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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 11 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning Mr Soni ,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV SONI SC:   Morn ing Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Montana.    

MR MONTANA:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay the oath you took yesterday wi l l  

cont inue today Mr Montana – wi l l  cont inue to  apply.   Okay.   

Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   As you p lease Chai rperson.   Chai rperson 10 

you wi l l  recal l  we adjourned yesterday af te r  Mr Montana had 

made par ts  or  had made the aff idavi t  in  the S iyangena 

mat te r  avai lab le to  us.    

We just  wanted to  check i f  there is  anyth ing there  

that  would affect  the l ine of  quest ion ing for  now obviously 

we wi l l  admi t  that  document  at  the correct  s tage but  for  now 

may I  proceed w i th  where we le f t  o ff  on the  quest ion ing  

yesterday Chai rperson? 

MR MONTANA:   Ja that  i s  f ine.  

ADV SONI SC:   And we wi l l  admi t  the re levant  documents a t  20 

the r ight  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No that  is  f ine.   Mr Montana I  am 

going to  t ry  and keep an eye maybe more than I  have done 

before today to  making sure that  you – you are able to  

answer the quest ion f i rs t  even i f  you have some e laborat ion 
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but  i f  the quest ion is  wide the answer star ts  wi th  the reason 

is  and then you can expla in or  i f  i t  is  what  or  where then the 

p lace is  th is  or  the t ime was what .   Okay le t  us sta r t .  

ADV SONI SC:   As you p lease Chai rperson.   Mr Montana 

can I  p lease again refer  you to  Bundle G and th is  i s  page 

198.   This you wi l l  recal l  i s  where the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is is  PRASA Bundle G? 

ADV SONI SC:   PRASA Bundle G as you p lease 

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Th is i s  an annexure to  Mr Loubser ’s  

aff idavi t  i t  is  SS16 and i t  is  page 198 where Mr Van Der 

Wal t  was i temis ing the payments he made in  respect  o f  the 

Parkwood property.   Page 198 Mr Montana.    

CHAIRPERSON:   The handwr i t ten 198.    

MR MONTANA:   I  got  i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   A l r ight  so yesterday you wi l l  recal l  we were 

deal ing wi th  d i f ferent  sub-paragraphs of  –  paragraph 2.2 

and we had gone up to  2.2.4  that  is  the amount  of  

R400 000.00 that  was paid on the  24 t h  o f  Ju ly  2014.   You 20 

conf i rm that?  

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  note –  I  note there the – I  know 

the statement .  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay I  am … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV SONI SC:   I  am just  a  b i t  concerned when you say you 

note the statement .   You see what  I  am put t ing to  you is  we 

have a le t te r  f rom Mr Van Der Wal t  in  which he says in  

respect  o f  Parkwood property  he made these var ious 

payments  to  you.   Now are you s imply saying you note i t  o f  

do  you say you received those payments e i ther  in  your  own 

bank account  o r  he paid somebody whom you asked h im to 

pay? 

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  can only note I  sa id yesterday i t  is  

l ike Chai r  somebody g iv ing me your  s tatement  and say 10 

answer the quest ion.   I  do not  know the deta i ls  o f  the 

statement  because i t  has got  noth ing to  do wi th  me.    

So I  can only note and I  th ink le t  –  I  th ink that  le t  us  

be fa i r  I  am – how am I  expected to  answer about  the  

statement  of  somebody e lse?  What  we know here Chai r  is  

that  I  so ld a proper ty  for  R6.8 to  Mr Van Der Wal t  and he – 

and I  have conf i rmed that  he paid me R6.8.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now that  R6.8 d id not  even come in to my 

account .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  i t  was paid in  d i f ferent  ways.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Wi th my own inst ruct ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:   Now what  we have before us Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Not  asking me about  that .   You know Chai r  

I  mean le t  us be fa i r  I  came here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   When I  came here I  was to ld  that  I  s to le  

R36 mi l l ion and brought  proper t ies.   I  am here.   This s to ry  

about  R36 mi l l ion  has now gone away.   Now I  can only note  

I  do not  even know h is – Mr Van Der Wal t  is  responding to  

h is  par tners.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  th ink we can make progress what  you 

have made what  you have just  sa id now is  Mr Van Der Wal t  

pa id you R6.8 mi l l ion – number 1.  

2 .  I f  I  understand you cor rect l y  none of  –  no par t  o f  that  –  

no por t ion of  that  amount  came d i rect l y  in to your  bank 

account .   Is  that  r ight?  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  th ink the large – the large  bulk of  

that .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And that  is  why I  say I  do not  have access 

to  my own accounts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   But  the large bulk – so I  remember two – 
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three speci f ic  payments that  were made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   The f i rs t  was to  the  bank for  R2 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So i t  is  not  re f lected here I  so not  see i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   We do not  even know f rom what  account  i t  

was paid.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:   We know that  I  have asked h im to  pay R2 10 

mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   For  deposi t  to  Hur l ingham.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   We do not  see that  in  the statement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Then there is  a  th i rd  payment  of  R2.2  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And then – there  are other  payments that  

he sa id to  me in  an emai l  that  i t  is  money that  I  owed to  20 

h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Which I  th ink i s  in  that  annexure there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Now I  th ink Chai r  the – so that  I  conf i rm.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now I  look at  the statement  – th is  

s tatement  yesterday.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  

MR MONTANA:   I  d id  a quick ca lcu lat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   The statement  that  I  th ink i t  was 198 and 

ear l ie r  one – the longer one vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Now i t  has got  t ransact ions deposi ts  of  10 

over  R30 a lmost  between 30 and 40 mi l l ion they have got  

noth ing to  do wi th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   They have got  to  do wi th  even other  

people.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Are they here before the commission to  

expla in?  Now Chai r  I  th ink i t  is  rea l ly  to  ask me to ask me 

to answer quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no.  I… 20 

MR MONTANA:   About  somebody e lse statement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  th ink.  

MR MONTANA:   I  can only note I  do not  know what  you are 

saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink I  do not  know what  Mr Soni  says – 
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I  th ink that  what  you are saying is  some of  that  amount  of  –  

par t  o f  that  amount  of  R6.8 may have gone in to your  

account .  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  cor rect  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the bulk of  i t  on your  inst ruct ions was 

paid in  d i f ferent  amounts to  d i f ferent  people or  ent i t ies.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes for  example Chai r  the f i rs t  R2 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  goes wi thout  saying actual l y  that  was not  

even an inst ruct ion f rom me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  is  the proper ty  that  had to  be  

t ransfer red.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   The bond had to be  cancel led in  the bank.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   He has to  pay tha t  amount  f i rs t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And so I  –  I  agree wi th  that  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR MONTANA:   Now I  am saying i f  –  i f  you say 110 came 

in to your  account  s i t t ing here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Not  having my sta tements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR MONTANA:   Because my account  was c losed.   That  is  

why I  requested the commission to  – can we ask the  bank to  

provide us that  so  that  I  can then compare and say that  may 

have come in to my account  I  conf i rm.   So – so when I  say I  

note because I  cannot  conf i rm or  re ject  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You cannot  admi t  or  d ispute.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Wel l  on that  basis Mr Montana can I  then – 

we wi l l  accept  what  you say – you are saying  that  you note  10 

the var ious payments that  Mr Van Der Wal t  re f lects as 

having been paid  in  respect  o f  the  Parkwood proper ty  f rom 

2.2.1 to  2.2.9.  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  cor rect  Cha i r  ja .  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay so we do not  need to go in to each 

statement .  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  do not  th ink we should but  par t  o f  

the issue le t  me expla in.   When Mr Van Der Wal t  you wi l l  

recal l  that  when Mr Van Der Wal t  bought  the proper ty  one of  

the issues that  we agreed on there were cer ta in  th ings that  20 

needed to be done at  the house and we agreed tha t  I  even 

sa id to  h im those are not  for  my account .    

I f  you want  to  res tore new th ings you can do that .   I  

can insta l l  them but  they are for  your  account .   Now as I  am 

s i t t ing here I  am not  ab le to  even reconci le  any of  those 
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th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So – so I  th ink the only th ing that  wi l l  he lp 

us i s  on ly i f  we get  my statements  to  do that .   And noth ing 

is  be ing put  to  me Chai r  about  the  f low of  the R36 mi l l ion.   

You know Chai r  I  keep on repeat ing th is  po int .   The whole 

count ry knows that  Montana sto le  R36 mi l l ion and bought  

houses.   I  am here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am being asked about  somebody e lse  10 

account  not  about  what  I  s to le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  want  to  answer th is  commission on those.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine .  

MR MONTANA:   So I  keep on making that  po in t  Chai r  

because i t  is  very  important  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  i s  f ine Mr  Montana.   I  th ink 

the only other  issue that  should be  ra ised in  regard to  these 

amounts that  are stated here at  page 198 to 199 is  that  you 

are able to  remember I  one,  two or  three – i t  is  in  respect  o f  20 

two or  three or  so payments that  you have recol lect ion of  

your  inst ruct ions to  Mr Van Der Wal t  as to  what  he  should 

do.   L ike the Hur l ingham property  that  some money should  

go there but  you cannot  remember a l l  o f  them.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  am – I  am saying – actual l y  I  do not  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 12 of 343 
 

want  to  come and say to  the commission I  do not  remember.   

That  is  not  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  not  the k ind  of  answer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am s imply saying  that  for  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   ja .  

MR MONTANA:   We are deal ing wi th  two statements  that  do 

not  be long to me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  10 

MR MONTANA:   Now Mr Van Der Wal t  and I  Chai r  beyond –  

beyond th is  s tatement  – beyond what  has been put  before  

me had a re la t ionship on developments.   There is  monies  

that  have exchanged.   Now I  do not  even know what  these 

re lates to .   Now in  pr inc ip le  I  would say to  Mr Soni  I  am not  

denying that  there could  have – these payments would have 

been done or  even paid to  other  people  on my behal f  

because that  is  what  I  sa id to  you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So Chai r  I  am not  – Mr Van Der Wal t  20 

bought  the proper ty  – I  th ink ear l ie r  on you sa id R68 mi l l ion  

not  R6.8 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh R6.8 Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink Chai r  I  do not  want  that  amount  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  – you must  have been th ink ing  
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f rom R36 mi l l ion to  R68 mi l l ion.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes we – but  I  would have asked for  more 

that  you come back Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No i f  I  sa id R68 mi l l ion sorry i t  is  R6.8.  

MR MONTANA:   So p la in  as what  I  am saying to  Mr Soni .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am saying that  I  am not ing th is .   I t  is  t rue  

he may be saying  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  a lso real i se that  Mr Van Der Wal t  may 10 

a lso have made mistakes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   When I  look at  these in  my unders tanding 

of  the th ing and I  th ink that  he cou ld – he may be inc lud ing  

a l l  o f  these.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   In  re la t ion  to  what  he  then to ld  me as a – 

as an amount  owing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  he sa id you owed h im.  

MR MONTANA:   That  I  owed to h im.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   That  is  what  he is  saying.   So I  am not  ab le 

to  say that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  th ink le t  us put  i t  to  bed i f  we 

can.  As I  understand i t  Mr Soni  –  Mr Montana says he notes  
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these amounts and what  Mr Van Der Wal t  says about  them.   

He is  not  in  a posi t ion – he is  not  saying he is  d isput ing  

them.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He – a l l  he is  say ing is  he and Mr Van Der  

Wal t  had a re la t ionship in  te rms of  which var ious 

t ransact ions happened and not  just  the ones we are ta lk ing  

about .   And in  respect  o f  th is  par t i cu lar  p roper ty  he  

inst ructed Mr  Van Der Wal t  to  make payments ou t  o f  h is  

R6.8 mi l l ion not  R68 mi l l ion – ou t  o f  the R6.8 mi l l ion he  10 

gave h im inst ruct ions as to  where to  pay what  amount .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so I  th ink … 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   We cannot  take i t  fu r ther.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink we can – ja  we can take i t  f rom 

there.  

ADV SONI SC:   There is  one – there are two issues that  I  

want  to  ra ise wi th  you in  regard to  the payments.   I f  you 

look at  page 199 you wi l l  see at  paragraph 2.2.8 he says 

that  a  payment  was made of  R2 mi l l ion on the 20 t h  o f  20 

February 2015.   Do you see that  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:   I  see that .  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay now I  want  you to look at  p lease page 

191 of  that  bundle.   Keep your  hand on th is  page though 

look at  page 199 of  that  bundle and you wi l l  see the four th  
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last  ent ry on tha t  page.   This i s  the Precise Trade bank 

account  that  he has g iven h is  par tners.  

MR MONTANA:   What  page – what  page are you on?  191? 

ADV SONI SC:   191.    

MR MONTANA:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   You wi l l  see there that  on the 20 t h  o f  

February 2015 in  regard to  that  account  there is  a  

wi thdrawal  o f  R2 mi l l ion.   That  is  the same day that  he says 

he made payment  in  respect  o f  the Parkwood property.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes and I  th ink that  he provides that  the  10 

ERF number which is  the proper ty  you are ta lk ing about .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Okay I  just  wanted to  make that  po int .  

MR MONTANA:   So Chai r  I  th ink that  – that  may suggest  to 

me that  that  R2 mi l l ion  I  ment ioned ear l ier  on which  is  the 

R2 mi l l ion fo r  the  set t lement  of  the  – the cancel la t ion of  the 

bond.  

ADV SONI SC:   Ja.   Of  the Parkwood property?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes remember i t  was bonded fo r  … 20 

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no I  wi l l  j ust  –  just  l is ten  to  the 

quest ion p lease Mr Montana.  

MR MONTANA:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Because I  unders tood you to say –  p lease 
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turn to  page 190.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now i t  is  the previous page of  that  bank 

account .  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   You look at  the f i rs t  debi t  on that  account  

on the 18 t h  o f  June 2014.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is  the R2.25 mi l l ion you sa id was in  

respect  o f  the deposi t  o r  the bond on that  account .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   He sa id may have been I  th ink.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no but  a lso  Chai r  le t  me c la r i fy.   There  

are three main b ig i tem payments  that  were – tha t  were  

made f rom the R6.8.    

The f i rs t  is  the R2mi l l ion because the – I  am not  

ta lk ing about  the dates.   The R2 mi l l ion is  for  the  

cancel la t ion on the bond.   Okay.    

The second one is  the – i s  the payment  for  the –  

sorry there i s  a  R2 mi l l ion for  the payment  of  the bond.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR MONTANA:   There is  a  R2 mi l l ion deposi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   For  the cancel la t ion.  

MR MONTANA:   To Hur l ingham and there is  a  R2.2  mi l l ion 

rent  to  Waterk loof  proper ty.   So those are the three 

payments that  I  spoke about .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  le t  us ta lk  about  th is  I  just  want  to  

make sure that  I  –  you are r ight .   I  th ink when you answered 

the quest ion in  re la t ion to  the R2.2 –  R2.250 mi l l ion which  

appears as a second or  i s  i t  a  th i rd  t ransact ion on page 190 

yesterday you may have answered in  a more def in i t i ve way 

that  i t  was fo r  the bond.   But  I  th ink la ter  on you 

emphasised that  you thought  so bu t  you were not  def in i te .  

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  le t  me… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  are you def in i te?  

MR MONTANA:   No le t  me be def in i t ive Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am saying the th ree main i tems.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   That  I  can remember v iv id ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   When the R6.8 – remember Chai r  when you 

look at  my accounts at  that  t ime you wi l l  not  even f ind the  

R6.8.   That  is  because they went  not  in  my account .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Usual ly  you wi l l  see that  th is  s ide and that  20 

s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   The reason why you do not  see i t  i s  

prec ise ly  i t  is  for  one th ing because I  then asked h im so you 

set t led the bond – the bond cancel la t ion comes f rom that  
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amount .   Because I  am paying –  I  am set t l ing the bond.   

The second issue re lates – was a R2 mi l l ion that  was paid 

as deposi t  and I  th ink Chai r  that  the R2 mi l l ion that  is  

ment ioned once not  twice we do not  know where the other  

R2 mi l l ion i s  coming f rom.   So there is  a  R2 mi l l ion  for  the 

bond cancel la t ion ,  there is  a  R2 mi l l ion  for  the deposi t  to  

Hur l ingham.  So those are the two.   And then there is  a  

th i rd  payment  which is  basica l l y  pay fo r  the ERF 161 

Waterk loof  which I  ment ioned in  the – in  my statements.   So 

those three Cha i r  are def in i te  –  I  am saying def in i te ly  10 

because that  is  what  has been paid .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are def in i te  about  those ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Exact ly  Chai r  so I  can conf i rm tha t .   Now 

that  is  why when I  am asked about   

CHAIRPERSON:   The R2 250 mi l l ion.  

MR MONTANA:   The payments  – the other  payments here  

that  he – that  Mr  Van Der  Wal t  shares wi th  h is  –  w i th  – I  

th ink they may re late – may ref lect  payments that  he could  

have made to me or  other  people.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On your  inst ruct ion.  20 

MR MONTANA:   Which he then regard – which he then 

regard as a loan which he ment ions R1.3 mi l l ion.   Okay or  

other  th ings that  we may have done together.   But  f rom the  

R6.8 the three large  t icket  i tems are those Chai r  bond 

cancel la t ion which was R2 mi l l ion.   The deposi t  fo r  
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Hur l ingham and as wel l  as the payment  for  ERF 161 

Waterk loof .  

MR MONTANA:   And those three payments  a lmost  

exhausted R2.8 m i l l ion,  is  that  r ight?  

ADV SONI SC:   R6.8.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because they each is  about  R2 mi l l ion.  

MR MONTANA:   No they come to about  – they come about  

R6.2.  

ADV SONI SC:   R6.8 Chai rperson.  

MR MONTANA:   So there is  about  5 /  600 000 le f t  Chai r.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is  about  5?  

MR MONTANA:   No they come to  about  R6.25 so there is  

about  600 – 600 le f t  in  the 00:20:03 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  No that  i s  f ine.   Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Montana I  am just  t ry ing to  understand 

and I  know you are not  answerable for  what  Mr Van Der 

Wal t  says.   So to  the extent  that  Mr Van Der Wal t  says to  

h is  par tners as he does in  2.2 of  h is  le t ter  o f  the  28 t h  o f  

January that  these var ious payments were made in  respect  

o f  the Parkwood property  save fo r  the one marked at  2 .2.1 20 

and the one marked at  2 .2.8 you are saying that  the rest  a re  

not  in  respect  o f  the Parkwood property.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  –  Chai r  I  would – I  would say that  

and I  th ink that  the probably what  Mr Van Der Wal t  has done 

may have been to confuse – to  conf la te issues that  are 
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there because I  th ink they wi l l  have to  a l ign wi th  annexure 

162 or  ra ther  160.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   We then have to then check the statement  

as to  where the R1.3 he is  ta lk ing about  comes f rom and 

when I  look at  the statements not  knowing them – they are 

not  my statements I  would assume that  those amounts  

would ref lect  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   So I  am not  saying that  they were not  made 10 

but  I  am saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   So for  me Chai r  the – that  is  why when 

people ta lk  about  my proper t ies I  say no,  no,  but  I  put  my 

money.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And that  is  a  breakdown of  that .   That  is  

why I  keep on coming back where is  the R36 mi l l ion that  

Montana spent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA:   On proper t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No that  is  f ine.   Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh.   Now I  just  want  to  go back and I  know 

you are not  answerable fo r  th is  but  th is  is  in fo rmat ion  

before the commission and we must  in  some way t ry  and 
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reconci le  a l l  the facts that  are before us.    

 I f  you look at  a f ter  the R2 mi l l ion he then says he –  

at  2 .2.9 on the 23 r d  o f  March 2015 he paid R439 200 … 

MR MONTANA:   Sor ry Mr Soni .   A re you on 190 or  198? 

ADV SONI SC:   199.  

MR MONTANA:   199 Okay sor ry,  sorry about  that .   I  just  

wanted to  make sure.   199 okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   He says he paid on the 23td of  March 

an amount  of  R439 200.00.   Now he is  saying he paid that  

in  respect  o f  the Parkwood property.   Now when one looks 10 

at  the Precise Trade  

MR MONTANA:   Accounts.  

ADV SONI SC:   The t ransact ional  account .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   One does not  f ind that  f igure there.   I  am 

just  saying that  so even on Mr Van Der Wal t ’s  vers ion  

unless he paid you f rom some other  account  in  respect  o f  

the Parkwood property  he paid you R439 200.00 less.  

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  i f  he is  owing – i f  there i s  money 

owing to  me then (speaking in  vernacular )  Chai r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  be qui te  happy to  receive i t .  

MR MONTANA:   I  am in  desperate need of  money.   So I  

th ink – no but  that  is  the point  I  am making.   So I  do not  

even know Chai r  how Mr Van Der Wal t  was f inancing h is  

act i v i t ies or  what  I  can see here is  that  he has got  a  lo t  o f  
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act i v i t ies and monies going in  and out  o f  d i f fe rent  people.  

Okay.   For  me I  am in terested f i rs t l y  on the R6.8 because i t  

te l ls  me how I  f inanced my par t i c ipat ion in  the other  

pro jects.   So i t  is  possib le  that  he may have had another  

account .   I t  is  possib le  that  he may have paid the other  

people that  needed to be paid f rom the complete ly  d i f ferent  

account .   And I  th ink for  me that  is  why I  have a problem 

that  I  am deal ing wi th  s tatements that  a re not  mine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  f rom what  Mr  Soni  is  do ing to  say we 10 

see what  he is  saying there but  we see on the  other  s ide I  

do not  have a problem Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   The commission should do that  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No that  is  f ine.    

ADV SONI SC:   A l r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And of  course when you ta lk  about  g iv ing 

inst ruct ions for  Mr Van Der Wal t  to  pay as I  see i t  here you 

– you accept  that  he was using  Precise Trade to make 

payments.  20 

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  Precise Trade was h is  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes i t  was h is  company.   Ja.   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:    He had now – now remember I  am not  par t  

o f  Precise Trade.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja .  
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MR MONTANA:   The issue was that  where  we do 

developments together.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  

MR MONTANA:   We then create  jo in t  ventures for  that  

purpose.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So that  was the – that  was the pr inc ip le  

around that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  

MR MONTANA:   And – and I  wish  Chai r  the only th ing that  10 

wi l l  he lp us Chai r  to  understand and to conf i rm or  to  re ject  

that  i t  is  on ly  my statements are  put  here on the tab le  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And Chai r  I  th ink  i t  is  not  too la te.   I  th ink  

the commission should t ry  and get  my statements so  that  we 

can – we can conf i rm so that  I  can say he d id not  come here  

or  I  had to  then get  my notes where I  say  page so and so,  

page so and so now I  do not  have those before me Chai r  to  

be able to  conf i rm that .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  –  wel l  Mr Soni  maybe I  should say 

th is .   I  do  not  know to – I  do  not  know what  d i f fe rence i t  

would make to see what  is  in  Mr Montana’s bank sta tements 

in  th is  connect ion  in  the c i rcumstances where h is  pos i t ion is  

c lear  that  that  I  so ld the property  to  Mr Van Der Wal t  fo r  
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R6.8 mi l l ion.   Mr  Van Der Wal t  pa id that  R6.8 mi l l ion and 

par t  o f  i t  may have come in to my account ;  par t  o f  i t  – 

d i f ferent  par ts  of  i t  were paid by h im on my inst ruct ions to  

d i f ferent  ent i t ies  so – so i t  is  not  a  s i tuat ion where he 

denies that… 

ADV SONI SC:   No absolute ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Those payments were on h is  inst ruct ions.   

So I  do not  know that  i t  would make a d i f ference.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  w i l l  not .   I t  w i l l  not  Chai r.    

MR MONTANA:   In  fact  Chai r  i f  you look at  the  le t ters  10 

where to  – for  the Hur l ingham property  and for  the 

Waterk loof  proper ty  he says but  there he does i t  f rom not  

Precise.  He was using a conveyance house which – which is  

the f i rm that  he says we are hold ing th is  amount  of  money 

on behal f  o f  Mr Montana.   So he makes a commitment  to  

pay a deposi t  for  that  – fo r  that  proper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now – Now Chai r  that  i s  why i t  was very  

important  and you can see people  who went  to  th is  f i rm of  

a t torneys and col lected in format ion  they – they jumped that  20 

point .   They jumped the fact  that  he had wr i t ten a le t ter  but  

as  a not  as Precise  th is  t ime but  as a law f i rm that  we have 

got  R2 mi l l ion for  Mr Montana that  wi l l  pay.   So he is  

deal ing – he is  p rovid ing a guarantee.   When he does the 

same in  Waterk loof  Chai r  and I  th ink that  one of  the  le t ters I  
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may even have –  I  may not  have inc luded – because I  d id  

not  know that  we are going to  go th is  route you see i t  was – 

but  now I  see these le t ters conf i rm what  he holds  on my 

behal f  f rom the sa le of  that  – of  that  par t icu lar  p roper ty.  

 Now – and that  is  why Oel le rman is  saying Mr  

Oel lerman was saying Montana paid for  th is  proper ty  but  he  

d id not  have money.   Because he wi l l  say that  i f  he jumps 

an important  le t te r  Chai r  and that  i s  why the importance of  

proper  invest igat ions.   He jumped that  le t te r  that  says – you 

wi l l  not  know everybody moves f rom the premise  that  in  10 

Hur l ingham I  d id  not  pay.   I  pa id R2 mi l l ion Chai r  f rom the 

proceeds of  the sa le.   When my bank went  to  Pre tor ia  fo r  

the second proper ty  and I  see i t  has been tweet ing about  i t  

yesterday he does not  know that  the proceeds of  that  

payment  comes f rom the sa le of  my – of  my house.   Why 

are they doing that  Chai r?  Because they are not  in terested  

in  that  they are in te rested in  another  nar rat i ve that  no,  no  

Montana got  money – got  a  k ickback and paid for  h is  

proper ty  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Let  –  at  least  I  th ink we are c lear  20 

that… 

ADV SONI SC:   About  the payment  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t   might  –  ja  – i t  is  not  necessary to  go 

in to Mr Montana ’s  s tatement  because of  the posi t ion  he has 

taken.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  Chai r  I  am making a commitment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   That  i f  my statements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   S tatements.  

MR MONTANA:   S tatements become avai lab le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   The commission wants to  p robe me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  w i l l… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are happy to  do that .  

MR MONTANA:   I  w i l l  come back Chai r  even i f  I  come in  my 

pajamas I  wi l l  come and answer quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No that  is  f ine.   That  i s  f ine.  

ADV SONI SC:   A l r ight  now Mr Montana we must  get  on I  

am af ra id  p lease.   Can I  ask you to  turn now to Bundle H 

page 57.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the same bundle we are us ing or  

is  i t  a  d i f fe rent  bundle?  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is  –  sor ry i t  i s  –  so we were work ing in  G 20 

wi th  the bank accounts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  i t  the same that  we have – oh we were  

using G.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes now we looking at  H.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Th is i s  Mr Oel le rmann’s – the annexures to  

Mr Oel lermann ’s repor t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    What  page,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Page 57.   Now you remember  in  

respect  o f  the  o f fe r  to  purchase wh ich  is  PP-2  wh ich  

appears  a t  page  46.   On the  5 t h  o f  May you so ld  th is  

p roper ty.   We were  a t  tha t  yes terday.   Now I  jus t  want  to  

re fe r  you to  the  addendum to  t he  sa le  and i t  s ta r ts  a t  

parag raph –  page  57 o f  SA-16.   I t  is  a  ca l led  an  Addendum 10 

to  Offe r  to  Purchase and you agreed tha t  th is  i s  the  

addendum to  the  sa le  o f  the  proper ty  by  yourse l f  to  Prec i se  

Trade,  the  proper ty  a t  Parkwood.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  can I  –  I  do  no t  remember  tha t  I  

see i t  i s  s igned by  me,  Cha i r.   Le t  me jus t  qu ick ly  remind  

myse l f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR MONTANA :    I  see  tha t ,  Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   I  jus t  want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  jus t  ra i se  th is  fo r  the  sake o f  20 

c la r i t y?   Mr  Montana,  I  know you have been say ing  you had 

a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Van der  Wa l t .   Jus t  no t ing  tha t ,  fo r  

example ,  th is  addendum and the  purchase,  i s  be tween  

yourse l f  and Prec ise  Trade as  an  ent i t y.  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  i t  be  more  accura te  to  say your  

re la t ionsh ip  was w i th  Prec i se  Trade as  a  l ega l  en t i t y?   But  

o f  cou rse ,  Mr  Van der  Wal t  was the  so le  d i rec tor  o r  

shareho lder  and  –  because you were  no t  se l l ing  the  

proper ty  to  h im in  h is  persona l  capac i ty,  you were  se l l ing  

to  h is  company.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  I  so ld  i t  to  h im in  h i s  persona l  

capac i ty,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  he  dec ided to  use tha t  as  a  veh ic le .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Now we do not  know in  o the r  

deve lopments  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .what  o ther  veh ic les  wou ld  use i f  we had 

proceed w i th  our  re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    So  Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  the  re la t ionsh ip  was 

w i th  h im . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th  h im.  20 

MR MONTANA :    . . .persona l ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    The fac t  tha t  he  dec ided to  use Prec i se  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Use a  ce r ta in  veh ic le .  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 29 of 343 
 

MR MONTANA :    . . . fo r  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    . . . i t  i s  h is  own dec is ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  course ,  you wou ld  have no ob jec t ion  10 

i f  he  used a  cer ta in  veh ic le  as  long as  he  was beh ind  tha t  

veh ic le  and you cont inued w i th  –  you ach ieved the  

ob jec t i ves  o f  the  re la t ionsh ip .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  i f  you  look –  le t  us  use  

the  example  o f  Hur l ingham to  answer  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  pu t  to  med ia(? )  and I  sa id  to  h im:   

Would  you par tner  w i th  me?  He sa id  no .   I  w i l l  no t  have  

the  money to  come in to  tha t  re la t ionsh ip .   And he 

in t roduced me to  some o ther  peop le .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  en tered  in to  an  agreement  w i th  

them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So  i t  i s  the  na ture  o f  the  bus iness ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .   

MR MONTANA :    I t  i s  the  na ture ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  wou ld  jus t  depend on the  bus iness.  

MR MONTANA :    On the  bus iness and where  money i s ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Because –  want  to  use.   I  mean,  in  my 

case,  I  have had  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  banks says:   We 

cannot  expand your  fac i l i t y.   So tha t  c rea ted a  b i t  o f  a  

p rob lem for  me.   So tha t  i s  what  i t  i s ,  Cha i r. ,  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .   Ja .   Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson .   Now,  

Mr  Montana,  can  I  jus t  ask  you to  look a t  page 58,  

parag raph 2 .1  o f  the  addendum? 

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And tha t  re f lec ts  –  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  go  

th rough i t  very  qu ick ly.   That  says i t  wou ld  be  your  

ob l iga t ion  as  the  se l le r  to  comple te  and ins ta l l  on  the 

proper ty  the  swimming poo l ,  to  be  proper ly  f i t ted ,  the 

k i t chen to  be  rep laced,  the  const ruc t ion  on  top  o f  the 20 

garage to  be  comple ted ,  the  t i l i ng  ins ide  the  house to  be  

comple ted ,  renovat ions to  ba throoms must  be  comple ted ,  

and f ina l i sa t ion  o f  secur i t y  sys tem.   That  i s  an  ob l iga t ion  

tha t  –  those are  the  ob l iga t ions tha t  were  p laced on your  

by  v i r t ue  o f  th is .  
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MR MONTANA :    I t  i s  t rue  except ,  Cha i r,  tha t  subsequent  

to  our  conversa t ion ,  we have agreed because in  some 

ins tances,  when we wanted –  I  remember,  fo r  example  the  

k i t chen,  he  wanted me to  ins ta l l  a  d i f fe ren t  k ind  o f  –  what  

do  you ca l l  i t  –  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    App l iances?  

MR MONTANA :    . . . the  app l iances .   So I  th ink  I  wanted to  

pu t  d i f fe ren t  ones.   I f  I  remember  ve ry  we l l  he  wanted 

d i f fe ren t  ones.   He sa id :   Look,  i f  you  do not  want  tha t  one 

then we are  go ing  to  pu t  i t  on  your  account .   So tha t  i s  the  10 

k ind  o f  th ing  bu t  la rge ly  these. . .   For  example ,  the  poo l ,  I  

remember  I  d id  t he  poo l ,  Cha i r.   So we d id  some o f  tha t  

work  and I  th ink  tha t  most  o f  those were  fo r  my account ,  

Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now,  a t  2 .3  i t  says :  

“The par t ies  spec i f i ca l l y  agreed tha t  a l l  the  

above costs  w i l l  be  fo r  the  account  o f  the 

se l le r. . . ”  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   And then,  o f  course ,  the  one 20 

you re fer red  to  and I  have a l ready re fer red  you to  at  

parag raph 3 .1  tha t  Mr  Zamchlaka(?)  [00 :06 :27]  was  

res id ing  on  the  premises and you have exp la ined to  the  

Cha i rperson a l ready the  c i r cumstances tha t  you thought  he  

wou ld  be  in  danger  i f  he  l i ved  in  town o r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MONTANA :    That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then there  was to  be  payment  o f  

a t  leas t  R 20 000,00 pe r  month  by  Mr  Zamchlaka fo r  

occupy ing  the  premises.   Jus t  –  I  jus t  want  –  and p lease a  

yes or  no  –  do  you know where  Mr  Zamchlaka pa id  the  

ren ta l  as  pe r  th is  agreement?  

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  –  my unders tand  

tha t  he  s tayed there  fo r  l ong and he was pay ing  fo r  ren ta l ,  10 

ja .   But  whether  he  pa id  eve ry  month ,  I  do  no t  know Cha i r.   

I  wou ld  no t  know.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And Mr  Van der  Wal t  never  

compla ined to  you?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no .   Not  as  fa r  as  I  can reca l l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   I  say  tha t  because o f  th is .   

When one looks  a t  the  bank account ,  the  t ransact ion  

account ,  one does not  see depos i t s  o f  R 20 000,00.   I  am 

jus t  po in t ing  tha t  ou t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Sure .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . in  case you want  to  comment .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Okay but  i t  i s  no t  a  mat te r  tha t  concerns  

you.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  Cha i r  bu t  you w i l l  reca l l ,  
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Mr  Son i ,  when he (?)  i s  ta lk ing  about  the  four-hundred-and-

th i r t y -n ine ,  i t  i s  re f lec ted  in  h i s  exp lanat ion  bu t  i t  i s  no t  

showing in  the  s ta tements  wh ich  is  poss ib le  tha t  we do not  

–  un less  we have tha t  cont rac t  be tween the  two o f  them 

and to  see wh ich  account  was used.   So i t  may suggest  

tha t  he  was not  hav ing  one accoun t ,  as  i t  were ,  Cha i r.   But  

aga in ,  i t  i s  no t  my s tory.   I  wou ld  no t  ge t  invo l ved in  tha t .   

MR MONTANA :    Okay.   Do not  and p lease.   Can I  then ask  

you to  – in  regard  to  now what  happened in  regard  to  the 

improvements?   There  are  cer ta in  emai ls  tha t  s ta r t  a t  page 10 

60.   And can I  ask  you to ,  p lease,  f i rs t  look  a t  page  61 and 

tha t  i s  an  emai l  f rom yourse l f .   You w i l l  see  r igh t  on  the  top  

da ted the  10 t h  o f  June sent  about  noon to  Mr  Van der  Wal t  

and you say:  

“Dear  R iaan.    

Can I  request  tha t  we pay f rom the  proceeds o f  

the  sa le  o f  my house an  amount  o f  

R 79 576,92 fo r  in te r io r  work  done fo r  me.   

The payment  shou ld  be  made to  the  fo l low ing,  

Team Aust in (?) . . . ”  20 

 You reca l l  tha t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  see tha t .   I  th ink  i t  i s  my emai l .   I  

th ink  I  can conf i rm tha t .  

MR MONTANA :    Okay.   And then i f  you look a t  page 60,  

there  i s  a  response to  you on the  fo l low ing – oh ,  sor ry,  a t  
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th ree  o r  four  days la te r,  i s  f rom Mr  R iaan van der  Wal t .   He 

says:  

“H i ,  Lucky.  

Hope you a re  we l l .  

Take note  tha t  I  cou ld  no t  do  the  payment  

due to  the  bank account  be ing  inva l id . . . ”  

 I  am jus t  po in t ing  ou t  to  you tha t  th is  i s  among 

the  documents  tha t  re la te  to  the  Parkwood proper ty.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Thank you.  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  a l r igh t?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR MONTANA :    Then can I  ask  you to  p lease look  a t  page  

63 where ,  on  the  30 t h  o f  June 2014 ,  you say to  h im:  

“Dear  R iaan. . . ”  

 And in  the  second paragraph:  

“ I  am under  p ressure  to  s ta r t  pay ing  the  

cont rac tor  fo r  add i t iona l  work  and h is  own 

supp l ie rs  f rom the  proceeds o f  the  sa le  as  we l l  

as  s ta r t  to  rea l i se  the  sav ings o f  my month l y  

ins ta lments  o f  the  bond. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Son i .   A re  you a t  63?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A t  page 63 ,  yes .   I  am not  read ing  

the  who le  emai l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .as  there  is  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a t  leas t  te l l  us  where  you a re  

s ta r t ing  f rom.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Oh,  sor ry,  so r ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am get t ing  los t  where  you are  read ing  

f rom.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Oh,  sor ry.   I t  i s  the  las t  sen tence o f  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .o f  the  –  parag raph.   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Sor ry,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Now I  see ,  ja .   Okay.  10 

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lea r. ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  you then ask  h im to  make those 

payments .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me jus t  –  so  there  –  tha t  sentence 

says:    

“ I  am under  p ressure  to  s ta r t  pay ing  the  

cont rac tor  fo r  add i t iona l  work  and h is  own 

supp l ie rs  f rom the  proceeds o f  the  sa le  as  we l l  

as  s ta r t  to  rea l i se  the  sav ings o f  my month l y  

ins ta lments  o f  the  bond. . . ”  20 

 Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .   Cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then you  say:  

“ In  the  meant ime,  I  request . . . ”  

 Th is  i s  the  next  paragraph.  

“ . . . I  request  you to  make the  fo l low ing urgent  
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payments  f rom the  proceeds o f  the  sa le  and  

we can reconc i le  the  numbers  when the  

proper ty  i s  f ina l l y  reg is te red. . . ”  

 You d id  send tha t  emai l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  con f i rm tha t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay and I  jus t  want  to  –  we do not  

need to  go  in to  de ta i l s .   The amounts  are  in  respec t  o f  the 

C i ty  o f  Johannesburg ,  R 150 000,00 and in  respect  o f  

S imc ind i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    S imc ind i  P ro jec ts ,  ja .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .P ro jec ts ,  R 350 000,00 and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    S imc ind i  w i l l  be  s - i -m-c - i -n -d- i .   S imc ind i  

P ro jec ts  Company.   That  i s  fo r  the  t ranscr ibers .   Yes?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    R  350 000,00 .   And then in  respect  o f  

a  c red i t  card  f rom ABSA,  wh ich  seems to  be  in  your  name,  

an  amount  o f  R 250 000,00 and then an invo ice  o f  

R 110 000,00 w i th  the  re ference TL Montana.   You conf i rm 

you sent  tha t  emai l  w i th  tha t  request  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Then can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  

page 65,  p lease?  

MR MONTANA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And tha t  i s  an  emai l  f rom a  Jasper  

Nukwa,  I  th ink  i t  is ,  where  they say :  
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“Good morn ing ,  DCEO. . . ”  

 I t  i s  addressed to  you and i t  says :  

“A t tached are  proposed des igns fo r  number  

10 . . . ”  

 And tha t ,  obv ious ly,  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . in  Newpor t (? ) .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And you see the  res t  o f  the  –  the  

fo l low ing pages unt i l  page 71 are  cop ies  o f  the  des ign  tha t  10 

are  be ing  sent  to  you.   You conf i rm rece iv ing  tha t?  

MR MONTANA :    I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   And then i f  I  can  ask  you to  

p lease look a t  page 72 and tha t  another  emai l  f rom 

Mr  Nukwa.   Th i s  i s  on  the  19 t h  o f  August  2014 and the  

sub jec t  –  i t  i s  addressed to  you.   The sub jec t  mat te r  i s :   

Newpor t  master  bedroom.   And i t  says :  

“DGCEO,  the  a t tached 3D’s  are  in  fac t  par t  o f  

the  se t  o f  what  I  fo rwarded to  you on Fr iday 

and aga in ,  I  have conta ined drawings fo r  3D 20 

drawings o f  the  maste r  bedrooms. . . ”    

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Sor ry,  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  am not  be ing  d i f f i cu l t .   I t  i s  jus t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    You need  to  re f lec t  your  answer  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

MR MONTANA :    I  am sor ry,  sor ry.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And then can I  ask  you to  look  a t  10 

page 77.   Aga in ,  th is  i s  –  oh ,  sor ry  –  th i s  i s  now f rom 

Mr  Just in  John.   I t  i s  addressed  to  you.   I t  i s  da ted  the  

2 n d  o f  September  2014 and i t  dea ls  w i th  the  Newpor t  

master  bedroom and the  emai l  reads:  

“Good morn ing ,  Mr  Montana.  

Hope you a re  we l l .  

I  am s t i l l  wa i t ing  to  ge t  approva l  and a  depos i t  

to  s ta r t  the  maste r  bedroom. . . ”  

 And then he says  in  the  second pa ragraph:  

“ I  have not  ye t  rece ived the  ba lance o f  20 

R 165 000,00 fo r  the  k i t chen.  

I t  was supposed  to be  pa id  by  the  end of  

Ju ly. . . ”  

 D id  you rece ive  tha t  emai l  m is te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  con f i rm tha t  Cha i r.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Then can I  ask  you to  p lease look a t  

page 84?  

MR MONTANA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th is  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  page?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Page 84.   Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 84.   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom yourse l f  da ted  

the  21 s t  o f  October  2014 to  Mr  Van  der  Wal t  and you  say:  

“Dear  R iaan.  10 

Th is  invo ice  i s  fo r  the  des ign  manufac tu r ing  

ins ta l la t ion  o f  the  modern  k i t chen un i ts .  

In  add i t ion ,  I  have spent  R 40 000,00 fo r  the  

app l iances as  purchased f rom Mie le  i n  

Johannesburg .  

I  w i l l  fo rward  the  invo ices f rom Mie le  as 

we l l . . . ”  

 And then you say :  

“ I  t rus t  you w i l l  f ind  th is  in  o rde r. . . ”  

 And the  invo i ces  you sent  to  h im go up to  page 20 

94.   I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  Mr  Montana?  

MR MONTANA :    So  I  see i t  s ta r ts  f rom page 91.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  there  are  var ious o the r  

documents .   You w i l l  see  jus t  in te r io rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  thought  th is  one was par t  o f  –  
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ac tua l l y  was par t  o f  the  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led?   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    O f  page 84 .   These invo ices  fo r  the 

des ign  manufac tu re  and so  on .    

MR MONTANA :    From Just  In te r io rs?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.    

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r  I  see tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Now jus t  a t  page 94,  the  

amount  re f lec ted  towards the  end is  R 525 787.50.   You  

see tha t?   I t  i s  the  th i rd  l ine  f rom the  bot tom.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r  bu t  the  pages –  I  see the 10 

numbers .   I  do  no t  see the  head ing  here .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    From 91.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    What  i s  i t?   Is  i t  an  annexure  to  Just  

In te r io rs?   Because I  see on ly  numbers .   There  is  no  

head ing  a t  a l l .   I  do  no t  know what  th is  i s  a l l  about .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So ,  can I  jus t  ask  you?  You are  no t  

in  any pos i t ion  to  te l l  us  what  th is  i s  about?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  he  is  s imp ly  say ing ,  Mr  Son i ,  these  20 

pages f rom 91 onwards is  jus t  numbers .   There  is  no th ing  

to  ind ica te  what  the  numbers  are  about ,  what  they re la te 

to .   He is  ask ing  whethe r  i t  i s  an  annexure  to  someth ing  or  

i t  i s  a  s tanda lone  document .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  i t  i s  the  documents  we have 
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up l i f ted  f rom the  S iyangena app l i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  do  we know what  they represent?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you know what  they represent?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We on ly  –  i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  they  

are  par t  o f  o r  they were  a t tached to  the  emai l  a t  page 84.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  But  you  are  no t  sure  about  i t ,  I  

guess?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  cannot  take  tha t  fu r ther  than th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  do  no t  know what  i t  means.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    There  is  ac tua l l y  the  –  i f  you  look a t  Jus t  

In te r io rs ,  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  –  a l l  the  amount  they 

ment ioned in  ema i l .   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR MONTANA :    Now th i s  numbers  look d i f fe ren t .   I  th ink  

they p robab ly  re la te  to  someth ing  e lse .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    So  I  do  no t  know Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    I  cannot  deny or  conf i rm,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Can I  then –  can I  jus t  ask  

you to  look  a t  page 95?  And I  expect  what  you are  say ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    95?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .and i t  does not  make sense to  me 

as we l l .   I  was hop ing  you wou ld  be  ab le  to  he lp .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th i s  then is  an  emai l  you sent  on  the  10 

21 s t  o f  October  to  Mr  Van der  Wa l t  in  regard  to  now Mie le  

app l iances and you say to  h im.   Th is  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    App l iances.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . the  Mie le  app l iances.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  pa id  fo r.   And i t  looks  l i ke  i t  i s  about  

R 40 000,00 fo r  tha t .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.    

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   Where  do  you see the  

amount  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  thought  you sa id  R 40 000,00.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  may have had i t  in  my 
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head based on page 84  where  Mr  Montana says to  Mr Van 

der  Wal t :   I  have spent  ove r  R 40 000,00 fo r  the  app l iances  

purchase f rom Mie le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   But  a t  leas t  the  amount  

does not  appear  on  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    On . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now,  Mr  Montana. . .   Oh,  sor ry  

Cha i rperson.   Can I  ask  you to  p lease look a t  page 97?  

MR MONTANA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And you w i l l  see  the  amount  r igh t  a t  

the  bo t tom.   Th is  i s  an  –  i t  i s  marked Mie le  Customer  Order  

and the  surname o f  the  pe rson who ordered i t  i s  sa id  to  be  

Mr  Montana and  you w i l l  see  the  to ta l  o rder  va lue  i s  

R 40 448,00.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  see tha t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Once . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you th ink  tha t  i s  where  you  got  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th is  i s  where  –  and  I  jus t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .was not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  i t  a lso  t ies  in  w i th  tha t  emai l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Now,  Mr  Montana,  I  know i t  i s  

a  d i f f i cu l t  exerc i se  because these are  emai ls  you sent  and  

rece ived a  long t ime ago.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And some o f  them are  no t  i n  o rder  10 

bu t  leav ing  tha t  as ide .   I  jus t  want  to  ask  you  a  few 

quest ions about  these emai l s .   You sa id  to  Mr  Van de r  

Wal t ,  and I  have read your  emai ls ,  p lease pay  those  

amounts .   D id  he  pay them? 

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  some o f  them.   For  

example ,  the  o ther  one he sa id  t here  is  a  bank p rob lem.   

He d id  no t  pay.   I  see  the  one o f  Jus t  In te r io rs ,  I  th ink  tha t  

i t  was not  pa id .   And then there  is  the  –  I  see the  hundred  

and ten  fo r  the  ca ter ing ,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  i t  was pa id .   Th is  

was fo r,  i f  I  remember  we l l ,  there  was a  funct ion  o f  –  a 20 

fa rewel l  func t ion  f rom one o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  no  Mr  Montana,  I  am jus t  ask ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Ja ,  I  am conf i rm ing some o f  them Cha i r,  

yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  am not  sure ,  Cha i r,  i f  a l l  o f  them 

had been pa id  bu t  I  can conf i rm some tha t  I  see 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . fo r  example  tha t  I  remember  very  c lea r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  Mr  Van der  Wal t  pa id  them? 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  remember  tha t  Mr  Van der  Wal t  

pa id  f rom the  proceeds o f  the  sa le ,  ja .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  tha t  answer  i s .   Yes,  Mr  Van 

der  Wal t  bu t  f rom the  proceeds o f  the  sa le  o f  the  proper ty.  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  i f  you  look a t  tha t  emai l  tha t  was read 

–  Mr  Son i  read.   I t  says  pa id  f rom the  proceeds.   We wi l l  

then reconc i le  what  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .what  the  is  due but  i t  says  pa id  f rom 20 

the  proceeds o f  the  sa le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now what  i ssue tha t  in t r igues me.   I  

read to  you the  var ious mat tes  tha t  the  addendum requ i red  
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you  to  a t tend to .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I t  d id  no t  requ i re  you to  a t tend  to  the 

bedroom.   Can I  ask  you why you f i t ted  –  why you ins ta l led  

and made a l l  those improvements  to  the  bedroom when  

there  was no ob l iga t ion  on  you?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r,  you see,  the  –  i t  shou ld  no t  

in t r igue anyone.   The re la t ionsh ip  be tween myse l f  and 

Mr  Van de r  Wal t  was deeper  than tha t  and I  th ink  tha t  –  i f  

you  look a t  the  i tems,  some o f  the  i tems a re  no t  l i s ted  10 

there  bu t  fo r  example ,  I  th ink  we d id  no t  ta lk  about  –  in  the  

addendum we d id  no t  ta lk  about  mater ia ls  bu t  we had  

constant  meet ings be fore  the  proper ty  was t ransfer red .   

Some o f  the  th ings where  he  wanted changes  on the  

proper ty  to  say:   No,  no .   Look,  I  th ink  tha t  we must  

change a l l  o f  tha t  bu t . . .  

 And I  do  no t  know,  I  need to  check the  da tes  

very  we l l ,  Cha i r,  because I  th ink  some o f  them are  no t  

re la ted .   The –  Mr  Nukwa’s  des igned th ing  was not  re la ted  

to  Mr  Van der  Wal t .   I  th ink  tha t  we –  i f  I  remember  we l l ,  20 

we bu i l t  fo r  example  a  b ig  wa l l .   We wanted to  change tha t  

and b reak in to  ha l f ,  pu t  wa l lpaper.   So there  was a  lo t  o f  

work  Cha i r  tha t  was done.   So I  th ink  tha t  the  –  I  th ink  tha t  

those were  the  de ta i l s  –  tha t  was  what  was happen ing  a t  

tha t  po in t  in  t ime,  ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So  Mr  Montana,  I  am tes t i ng  your  

s ta te  o f  m ind now.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .   A t  the  t ime or  now? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  no .   A t  tha t  t ime.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We have a  s i tua t ion  where  you se l l  a  

house fo r  R 6 .8  m i l l ion .   You agree then a f te r  the  sa le ,  s ix  

weeks a f te r  the  sa le  to  do  improvements  to  the  house 

wh ich  the  or ig ina l  sa le  agreement  d id  no t  requ i re  you to .   

That  i s  co r rec t ,  r igh t?  10 

MR MONTANA :    Yes and no,  Cha i r.   The sa le  ag reement  

d id  no t  requ i re  these th ing  bu t  I  am say ing  tha t  there  was  

constant  in te rac t ion  be tween myse l f  and Mr  R iaan van de r  

Wal t .   I f  you  look a t ,  fo r  example ,  the  k i t chen,  l i ke  I  

exp la ined ear l ie r.   He wanted,  fo r  example ,  cer ta in  th ings  

to  be  done the re  and tha t  those were  where  I  sa id :   Wel l ,  i f  

you  want  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  fo r  your  account .   And so  I  th ink  i t  

was a  more  dynamic  re la t ionsh ip ,  Cha i r,  tha t  we had w i th  

Mr  Van de r  Wal t .    

 Un less  i f  you  say  tha t  we were  no t  –  we d id  no t  20 

s t r i c t l y  a l ign  w i th  the  –  what  i s  i t  ca l l  –  w i th  the  o f fe r  to  

purchase.   P robab ly  d id  no t ,  w i th  h inds igh t ,  bu t  I  do  no t  

have a  prob lem wi th  tha t  Cha i r.   The nature  o f  the  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Van der  Wal t  was such tha t  we were  

work ing  together  on  many proper t ies  and I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  
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tha t  there  were  many t ransact ions beyond even what  we 

have here ,  Cha i r.    

 We a re  look ing  a t  a  spec i f i c  p roper ty  and maybe  

–  i t  does not  f i t  in  there  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  what  you can 

conf i rm,  I  th ink  tha t  was tha t  we had the  sa le  and  some o f  

th is  was pa id  f rom the  proceeds o f  tha t  sa le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  answer,  bas i ca l l y,  to  tha t  

quest ion  i s .   Yes,  some o f  the  th ings you d id ,  you were  no t  

requ i red  by  the  sa le  ag reement .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you are  s imp ly  re l y ing  on  the  na ture  

o f  your  re la t ionsh ip  to  say,  you say –  to  say:   We l l ,  I  d id  

some o f  the  th ings even though,  s t r i c t l y  speak ing ,  the  sa le  

agreement  d id  no t  requ i re  them.  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.   So le t  us  take  one 

example .   I  sa id  yeste rday,  when Mr  Van der  Wal t  took over  

the  proper ty  in  Wate rk loo f  –  I  am g iv ing  tha t  as  an  

example .   You w i l l  p robab ly  come to  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I  sa id  tha t  some o f  the  in i t ia l  work  were  20 

peop le  tha t  were  mob i l i sed  by  me,  tha t  I  pa id  fo r  them,  

okay?  For  them to  come and  do  the  b reak and a l l  o f  those 

–  a l l  o f  –  they were  organ ised by  me f rom Mamelod i .   I  pa id  

these peop le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  
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MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  was the  na ture  o f  the  an imal  and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . i t  may in t r igue  someone but  i f  you  ta lk  

about  s t r i c t l y  tha t  rea l l y  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led?  Th is  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The sa le ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . the  sa le  and c lose  up eve ry th ing .   Yes,  

I  mean,  there  is  a  –  you w i l l  see  i t  as  a  p rob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  i f  you  unders tand the  na ture  o f  the 

re la t ionsh ip  and what  we were  invo l ved in ,  Cha i r,  you –  I  

do  no t  th ink  i t  shou ld  in t r igue anyone.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Can I  ask  you to  p lease look a t  page  

49 o f  tha t  bund le ,  the  or ig ina l  sa le  ag reement .   I  am go ing  

to  read paragraph 9 .3  to  you in  l igh t  o f  what  you have sa id .   

C lause 9 .3  o f  the  agreement  says:  

“The par t ies  he re to  be ing  Prec i se  Trade…” 

And yourse l f .  20 

“…be agreed tha t  th is  ag reement  const i tu tes  the  

en t i re  ag reement  be tween them and tha t  no  

war ran t ies  o r  representa t ions o ther  than those 

conta ined here in  sha l l  be  b ind ing  on  any o f  the  

par t ies  or  the i r  agents ,  no r  a re  there  any 
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suspens ive  cond i t ions  to  th is  agreement  wh ich  are  

no t  inc luded here in .   No var ia t ion ,  a l te rna t ion  or  

consensua l  cance l la t ion  o f  the  agreement  sha l l  be 

o f  any fo rce  or  e f fec t  un less  reduced to  wr i t ing  and 

s igned by  bo th  pa r t ies . ”  

Now I  am jus t  say ing  there  is  th i s  c lause.   You a re  say ing  

e f fec t i ve l y  tha t  we went  beyond the  te rms  o f  the  

agreement ,  the  s t r i c t  te rms spec i f i ca l l y  se t  ou t  in  9 .3 .   That  

i s  you r  answer  to  the  quest ions I  have asked.   Would  tha t  

be  r igh t?  10 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  the  answer  i s  yes ,  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA:    No but ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  the  – I  th ink  

you made a  –  i t  is  yes ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  want  to  exp la in  someth ing  and the  

po in t  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  w i l l  te l l  you  why I  am say ing  tha t .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  because I  th ink  you have exp la ined 20 

i t  be fore ,  I  th ink  tw ice  ac tua l l y.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  i f  the  po in t  –  I  agree w i th  you,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    The po in t  has come back,  le t  me  make i t  
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qu ick ly,  be fo re  I  fo rge t  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    You see,  Cha i r,  i f  there  was a  lega l  

d ispute  be tween Mr  Van der  Wal t  and I ,  tha t  c lause was 

go ing  to  p lay  an  impor tan t  ro le .   There  was none.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  tha t  i s  no t  what  he  is  ask ing  fo r.   

So tha t  i s  why I  say  your  answer  i s  yes ,  we went  beyond.  

MR MONTANA:    I t  i s  yes ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  the  po in t  I  was t ry ing  to  make ,  Cha i r,  10 

I  s t i l l  need to  make th is  po in t  because I  th ink  i t  i s  very  

impor tan t .   The S ta te  Capture  Commiss ion  w i l l  no t  ho ld  

Montana and Van  der  Wal t  fo r  no t  s t i ck ing  s t r i c t l y  to  tha t ,  

Cha i r,  un less  i f  there  i s  a  d i spute  be tween the  par t ies .  Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  –  un t i l  Mr  

Son i  makes another  po in t .  

MR MONTANA:    Po in t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Fo r  now your  answer  i s  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    I s  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :  We went  beyond what  the  sa les  20 

agreement  sa id .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  le t  me make tha t  po in t ,  Mr  

Montana,  and peop le  may say we l l ,  here  i s  an  agreement  

wh ich  says a  house is  so ld  fo r  R6,8  m i l l ion ,  you w i l l  reca l l  

tha t  the  year  ear l ie r  –  Ursu la  Wi l l i s  had sa id  tha t  the  va lue  
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o f  the  house was R3,5  m i l l ion  and …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  hang on one second,  Mr  Son i ,  the  

a i r  con,  i f  i t  can  be ad jus ted ,  i t  i s  mak ing  i t  d i f f icu l t  to  

hear.   I  th ink  they  have had to  make a  p lan .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    One o f  the  quest ions I  must  be  

expected to  ask  in  these c i rcumstances is  th is  ag reement  

then wou ld  pro tec t  peop le ,  you and Mr  van der  Wal t  in  the 

event  o f  a  d ispute ,  o r  i t  cou ld  be  the  cover  to  say tha t  th is  10 

pu ts  on  paper  someth ing  tha t  i s  no t  the  rea l i t y.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  am g lad  Mr  Son i  i s  ac tua l l y  

coming back to  h is  rea l  in ten t ion .   Okay,  le t  s ta r t  –  we s tar t  

w i th  36  mi l l ion  and I  was ask ing  de l ibe ra te ly,  Cha i r.   Now 

the  f i rs t  th ing  tha t  we have is  tha t  be fore  Mr  Son i  wou ld  

make tha t  s ta tement ,  he  w i l l  ask  the  f i rs t  quest ion ,  was  

there  a  house,  was i t  so ld ,  was i t  t ransfer red  and  who -  

and th i s  p roper ty,  how was i t  acqu i red?  Now I  th ink  f rom 

the  fac tua l  pos i t ion ,  Cha i r,  you can see tha t  the  reason 

why we pa id  and  I  th ink  Mr  Son i  in  h is  quest ions ra ises  a  20 

number  o f  th ings.    

So,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  even before  I  even answer  Mr  

Son i ,  the  fac ts  o f  the  mat te r  speak  fo r  themse lves and,  you  

see,  I  say  in  my  s ta tement  there  has been th is  despera te  

a t tempt  a  who le  range o f  th ings.   Yesterday I  sa id  you are  
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gu i l t y  by  assoc ia t ion .  

Now the  house has been so ld ,  Cha i r.   Now i f  I  se l l  –  

I  may have d i f fe ren t  houses why  I  se l l  the  house.   The 

house tha t  I  so ld  was f inanced by  ABSA and I  p rov ided –  

a l l  my proper t ies ,  I  p rov ided my bank s ta tements .   And tha t  

i s  why,  Mr  Son i ,  wanted us  to  dea l  w i th  four  p roper t ies  and  

no a l l  my proper t ies  prec i se ly  because i t  was a imed a t  

deny ing  the  fac t  tha t  there  are  p roceeds f rom th is  wh ich  

are  m ine,  I  am ent i t led  to  them because i t  i s  my proper ty.   

Once I  pay the  bank the  res t  o f  the  money be longs to  me,  I  10 

can invest  i t  as  I  w ish .  

So tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing .   And I  th ink  tha t  i f  there  

was no sa le ,  there  was a  sa le  c rea ted in  the  a i r,  there  was 

no ac tua l  sa le .   Now i f  the  sa le  has happened,  anybody  

can a t tach  the i r  own mot ive  one,  we cannot  se l l  th is  

p roper ty.   I t  has  happened,  i t  i s  there ,  i t  i s  fa i r,  I  want  

somebody to  say the re  was no such a  p roper ty,  a  

t ransact ion .   That  i s  one th ing .  

The second th ing ,  Cha i r,  we are  to ld  about  th ree  

numbers .   You w i l l  see  tha t  in  one o f  the  papers  you say 20 

the  va lua t ion  was  3 .3 .   Wel l ,  Ursu la  Wi l l i s  had sa id  i t  i s  3 .5 

in  2012,  no t  when the  proper ty  was so ld ,  Cha i r.   You w i l l  

see  tha t  the  emai l  i s  very  spec i f i c ,  we sa id  tha t  t ime we 

were  d iscuss ing  and he sa id  i f  you  d ispose o f  tha t  p roper ty  

–  he  ment ioned two proper t ies ,  Cha i r.   The bank ,  Ursu la  
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Wi l l i s  f rom ABSA says i f  you  d ispose o f  tha t  p roper ty  we 

w i l l  want  th is  x  amount  o f  money  because we va lue  i t  as  

th is  amount .   I f  you  d ispose o f  another  p roper ty,  we w i l l  

want  th is  amount  o f  money,  here  is  the  va lue .   Okay? 

Now a  year  o r  two la te r  somebody says tha t  

p roper ty  i s  no t  va lued a t  tha t  amount ,  they sa id  -  in  some 

o f  the  a f f idav i ts  they sa id  the  proper ty  shou ld  have been  

so ld  fo r  R4.8  m i l l ion .   Now su re ly  you can see,  Cha i r,  a l l  

the  s tu f f  tha t  Mr  Son i  has been tak ing  th rough,  a l l  these  

improvements  tha t  he  says they fa l l  ou ts ide  number  9 .3 .   I f  10 

tha t  work  happened and we pa id  f o r  those th ings,  i t  in  fac t  

te l l  you  tha t  the  enormous investment  tha t  has taken p lace  

in  tha t  p roper ty.   Okay?  Now i t  does not  make sense when 

you say the  bank  four,  f i ve  years  ago says th is  p roper t y  i s  

R3.5  m i l l ion  and  you l i s t  he re  a l l  the  work  tha t  has been  

done and the  payments .   I  have jus t  been asked about  the  

payments .   Ac tua l l y,  someone wou ld  be  in t r igued,  Cha i r,  in  

th is  t ime,  i t  w i l l  be  most  in t r igued tha t  when you put  money 

in to  a  proper ty  you inc lude the  va lue  o f  the  proper ty  

t remendous ly  and  I  th ink  tha t  i f  you  look a t  the  p ic tu res  o f  20 

th is  p roper t y  tha t  I  bought ,  I  sa id  the  day be fo re  yesterday 

i t  was a  comple te  wreck.   Cha i r,  i t  was a  comple te  wreck,  

wh ich  we bu i l t  –  we ac tua l l y  had to  rebu i ld .   I f  th is  

Commiss ion  had t ime i t  w i l l  go  to  the  prev ious owners ,  I  

th ink  the  o ld  man d ied  bu t  the  daughters  are  the re ,  they 
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w i l l  say  take  us  there  to  tha t  p roper ty.   They w i l l  te l l  you  

tha t  th is  i s  a  comple te ly  new proper ty  tha t  has been bu i l t .  

So ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink ,  you know,  I  re jec t  th is  s ta tement  

w i th  contempt  and I  know,  Cha i r,  le t  me te l l  you  i f  I  take  

fu r ther  what  Mr  Son i  i s  say ing .   You see,  the  surpr ise  o f  

yes terday was -  yes terday was Monday,  Cha i r,  when we 

came here ,  the  s to ry  o f  the  R36 mi l l ion  h inge on a  number  

o f  th ings.   I  sa id  th ree  th ings,  Cha i r,  when I  was here  

yesterday.    

 The f i r s t  one was tha t  a l l  o f  the  proper t ies  tha t  we 10 

are  d iscuss ing  are  no t  my proper t ies ,  they are  Mr  van der  

Wal t ’s  p roper t ies  and seven o f  the  proper t ies  are  m ine and 

I  de ta i led  each one o f  them,  how they were  pa id  fo r,  wh ich  

one I  so ld ,  how much money I  have made out  tha t .   That  i s  

the  f i rs t  i ssue,  Cha i r.  

 Second ly,  when the  Commiss ion  made i t s  asser t ions  

i t  d id  no t  ac tua l l y  bu t  par t i cu la r l y  w i th  two o f  the  proper t ies  

they e levated,  Hur l ingham,  they d id  no t  know tha t  I  pu t  

money,  I  pa id  the  depos i t  fo r  tha t  amount .   So the  no ise  

was tha t  Montana  d id  no t  pu t  any money and I  thought  tha t  20 

i f  we are  ass i s t ing  the  Commiss ion  to  ge t  to  the  t ru th ,  

when cer ta in  new fac ts  emerged,  l i ke  they emerged 

yesterday,  sure ly  tha t  –  I  th ink  tha t  we shou ld  be  ab le  to  

a lso  change our  pos i t ion  to  say now what  happened a f te r  

be tween myse l f  and R iaan,  R iaan van der  Wal t  o f  P rec i se  
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Trade in  respect  o f  improvements  and a l l  o f  those th ings?   

There  are  de ta i l s ,  Cha i r,  tha t  a re  then mater ia l  to  the  s to ry  

tha t  I  so ld  the  proper ty  and the  answer  i s  no ,  they  are  no t  

mater ia l  to  me but  the  s to ry  tha t  th is  agreement  i s  fa lse ,  I  

hope tha t  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  p resent  me  wi th  a 

suppor t ing  ev idence to  say –  and I  know,   Cha i r,  I  have 

sa id  the  s to ry  comes f rom – yesterday I  exp la ined ,  i t  i s  a  

Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  s to ry,  i t  p resents  and sa id  i t  in  tha t  way,  

the  Commiss ion  has now e levated fa lse  ev idence.    

 Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  says in  h is  a f f idav i t  Montana i s  10 

engaged in  a l l  these proper t ies  because …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  the  shor t  answer  to  Mr  Son i ’s  

quest ion ,  you r  shor t  answer  i s  you  are  say ing  the  fac ts  a re  

there  was a  proper ty,  tha t  p roper ty  was so ld ,  tha t  p roper ty  

was pa id  fo r  and  you have sa id  tha t  you gave ins t ruc t ions  

as  to  how ce r ta in  payments  shou ld  be  made f rom the  

proceeds.  

MR MONTANA:    And,  Cha i r  –  I  ag ree,  Cha i r,  and a l so  tha t  

I  re jec t  w i th  the  contempt  the  las t  s ta tement  where  he  says  

o ther  peop le  may say th is  was a  t ransact ion  fo r  o ther  20 

th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  have never  been presented w i th  

ev idence he re  tha t  suggests  o therwise  so  le t  i t  be  pu t  

be fore  me and then we dea l  w i th  i t  in  tha t  way.   But  I  re jec t  
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i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i?   Oh,  I  see i t  i s  –  ja ,  le t  us  take  

the  tea  break and le t  us  resume a t  twenty  to  twe lve .   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  

Montana,  now I  want  to  dea l  w i th  the  Waterk loo f  p roper ty  

and I  want  you to  p lease tu rn  t o  page 105 o f  bund le  H 10 

EXHIBIT SS18, 105. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Switch on your  mic,  Mr Montana.  

MR MONTANA:    Sorry, Chair .   I  am there, Mr Soni .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As you p lease.   Mr Montana, th is is 

an agreement that was entered into  between Aanmani  

Guesthouse and Johan Smith  as a  trustee of  the Minor  

Property Trust .   Do you see that?  

MR MONTANA:    That  is correct ,  Chair .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now the Minor Property Trust is a  

trust you formed for the benef i t  of  your chi ldren,  is that 20 

correct?  

MR MONTANA:    That  is correct .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Mr Johan Smith is the trustee o f 

the proper ty t rust .  

MR MONTANA:    That  is correct .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  trust is  st i l l  in  existence, I  take 

i t?  

MR MONTANA:    St i l l  in  existence,  Chair .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Mr Smith st i l l  a  trustee? 

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink Mr Smith  resigned but  there were 

three t rustees.   I t  was h im, someone else and my nephew. 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And who are the present  trustees? 

MR MONTANA:    I  said  there are  two now, I  was mean to  

appointed as a  –  af ter  Mr Smith  resigned.  I f  I  remember 

wel l ,  I  th ink i t  is Mr Johan Ta l jaard who works with Mr Smith 10 

and I  th ink i t  is  my nephew, Edwin Montana.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now th is agreement star t ing at page 

105 is for the sale of the members’ in terest  in  the Aanmani  

Guesthouse CC.  That  is correct ,  is  i t  not?  

MR MONTANA:    That  is correct ,  Chair .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now th is is – we have ta lked about 

the genera l propert ies and you dealt  with  i t  yesterday.   Th is 

is the Waterk loof  property.  

MR MONTANA:    That  is correct ,  Chair .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Th is is at  Rose Avenue. 20 

MR MONTANA:    That  is correct .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now can I  just ask you to p lease look 

at clause 2 of  the agreement which appears at  page 106. 

MR MONTANA:    Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i t  says:  
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“The purchase pr ice o f the property amounts to  R11 

mil l ion and i t  wi l l  be paid as fo l lows: 

2.1  A deposit  in  the amount o f R3,5 mi l l ion.”  

Is  that correct?  

MR MONTANA:    Tha t  is  co r rect .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And  then  tha t  amount  was  to  be 

nonre fundab le  and  then  a t  2 .4  i t  says:  

“As secur i t y  fo r  the  payment  o f  the  ba lance  o f  the 

purchase  p r ice  o f  R7 ,5  mi l l ion  the  purchaser  sha l l  

be  ob l iged  to  render  approved  bank guaran tees. ”  10 

Is  tha t  co r rect ,  a t  2 .4? 

MR MONTANA:    I  see  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now th is  agreement  was s igned on 

the  25  August  2014,  is  tha t  co r rect .   I f  you  look  a t  page 

110  you  wi l l  see  tha t .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  the  agreement  is  –  i t  i s  va l id ,  so  I  

cannot  reca l l  the  exact  da te ,  I  do  no t  th ink i t  was  s igned 

by me,  i t  was s igned by Mr  Smi th ,  so  I  cannot  reca l l  the  

exact  da te ,  bu t  yes,  i t  was en te red  in to  be tween the 

par t ies .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  you  do no t  know who s igned 

on  beha l f  o f  the  purchaser ,  the  s igna tu re  is  no t  fami l ia r  to  

you ,  i f  you  look a t  page  110 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t  does  no t  appear  to  be  Mr  

Montana ’s  one .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cer ta in ly  no t ,  Cha i r .  

MR MONTANA:    Because  I  thought  th is  was s igned by Mr  

–  i t  looks l i ke  Mr  Smi th ’s  s igna tu re ,  I  am no t  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We l l ,  the  las t  par t  o f  the  s igna tu re  does 

look l ike  TH.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  does look l ike  TH bu t  d id  you  know 

Mr  Smi th ’s  s igna tu re?   Did  you  know how he  s igns?  

MR MONTANA:    No, Chair ,  not real ly .   Not  real ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay, but obviously …[intervenes] 10 

MR MONTANA:    But I  th ink he should be the person who 

s igned, Chair .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   As far  as your  knowledge goes,  he 

is the one who should have s igned.  

MR MONTANA:    He should  have signed, Chair .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  Would you know the s ignatures of  

the other  two t rustees?  Are you able to exclude them and 

say no, th is [ inaudib le –  speaking s imul taneously]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Chair ,  they would not have signed 

because I  th ink for the Minor Property Trust Mr Smith was 20 

the author ised trustee on th is transact ion,  Chair .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay, so would you say, as far as 

your  are concerned, th is should  be his s ignature? 

MR MONTANA:    This should be his s ignature.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now, Mr Montana, can I  then ask you 

to p lease look a t bundle G page 199? 

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you wi l l  recal l  that  2.1 of  the 

agreement that  was between the guesthouse and the Minor 

Property Trust ,  said that a deposit  of  R3,5 mi l l ion had to be 

paid with in 14 days from the signature.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You accept that,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    I  accept  that ,  Chair .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A lr ight ,  now i f  you look a t page 199 

of bundle  G, that again is a  document we have been deal ing 

wi th quite o ften, th is is Mr Van der Walt ’s exp lanat ion to h is 

partners about  how the var ious payments were made. 

MR MONTANA:    Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And at  paragraph 4 where he deals 

wi th paragraph 6 of the ir  le t ter to h im and I  wi l l  just say th is 

to you, th is re lates to the Waterk loof proper ty because that 

is what they had ra ised with  h im. 

MR MONTANA:    Ja.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He says in  respect of that at page 

4.1:  

“The purchase pr ice was R11 mil l ion.”  

That  t ies in  with  the purchase pr ice as re f lected in  the 

agreement,  is  that correct?  
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MR MONTANA:    Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then he says a t paragraph 4.2:  

“The payment o f the purchase pr ice…” 

At  4.2.1  he says:  

“…on the 23 September 2014 an amount of  R3,5 

mil l ion was paid o f the deposit .”  

Now can I  ask you …[in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry, Mr Soni? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In my ears is sounded l ike you were 10 

saying 6,5 .  I t  is  3,5.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is  3,5.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  is  3,5 , sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that what  you heard a lso, Mr Montana, 

or you did  not  hear that  par t? 

MR MONTANA:    No, I  d id not  hear  that  part ,  Chair .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  is  3,5 , Chairperson,  I  am sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja , okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  would l ike you now to  just on 20 

that same document, SS16, i f  you cou ld go to – there is 

190, that  is  the transact ional  account.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I f  you look at  the entry on the 23r d , 

there are two entr ies on the 23 September and the f i rs t  
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entry on the 23 r d …[ intervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Just  hold  on, Mr Soni ,  le t  me get  there.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sorry, sorry.  

MR MONTANA:    You are on page 19..?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    190.  

MR MONTANA:    190, okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  so  you  wi l l  see  there  a re ,  in  

the  midd le  o f  the page,  two  en t r ies  on  the  23  September .   

The  f i rs t  en t ry  re f lec ts  a  depos i t  o f  R3 ,5  mi l l ion .  

MR MONTANA:    Tha t  is  co r rect ,  Cha i r .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And  Mr  Van der  Wal t ’s  handwr i t ing  i t  

is  sa id  to  be  a  TMM loan .   Do  you  see  tha t ,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    I  see  tha t ,  I  see  two TMM loans.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    A t  the  top  and  a t  the  bo t tom,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   We l l ,  the  top  one  we have 

been th rough a l ready.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Because  those  depos i ts  p receded 

the  R2,25  mi l l i on  guaran tee  pa id  in  respect  o f  the  20 

Parkwood Property .   Now th is  i s  on  the  23  September ,  a  

depos i t  o f  R3 ,5  mi l l ion  and  then  the  next  en t ry  fo r  the  23 r d  

is  a  wi thdrawa l  o f  tha t  exact  amount ,  R3 ,5  mi l l ion .   Do  you  

con f i rm tha t ,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    So  i t  is  a  w i thdrawa l  f rom th is  account? 
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Okay,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And  then  you  wi l l  see  tha t  the 

c i ta t ion  is  g iven  as Minor  Property Trust loan .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  he  says a t  page  199 ,  4 .2 .1  tha t  

Prec ise  Trade  pa id  in  respect  o f  the  Waterk loo f  p roper ty  

tha t  amount  on  the  23 r d  and  you  wi l l  see  i t  is  re f lec ted  as 

–  tha t  payment  is  re f lec ted  in  the  t ransact iona l  bund le .  Do  

you  accep t  tha t ,  Mr  Montana? 10 

MR MONTANA:    No ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You  do  no t?  

MR MONTANA:    No .   Cha i r ,  I  th ink  yeste rday I  exp la ined  

Prec ise  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  Minor Property Trust never  pa id  

fo r  the  p roper ty .   When we were  look ing  a t  buy ing  the 

p roper ty  and  I  th ink tha t  I  am glad that  i t  i s  now ca l led  by 

i ts  r igh t  name,  i t  i s  a  guesthouse ,  what  do  you  ca l l  i t?   

Aanman i  Guesthouse .   So  when the  f i rs t  o f fe r  tha t  went  to  

the  bank,  you  wi l l  reca l l ,  Cha i r  was –  I  ment ioned 

yeste rday a f te r  the  o f fe r  o f  R11 mi l l ion  was made,  the 20 

bank sa id  no ,  the  va lue  o f  the  proper ty  was  be low tha t .   

So  we then  agreed  wi th  R iaan  tha t  look,  why  then  do  we 

no t  then  f ind  –  pay fo r  the  d i f fe rence ,  the  bank to  pay –  to  

g ive  us the  loan a t  the  amount  tha t  they have  g iven  and 

there  is  a  d i f fe rence  tha t  has to  be  pa id  in  tha t  way and  
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the re fo re  i t  was  then  agreed  tha t  no ,  what  Prec ise  wou ld  

do ,  wou ld  then  the  p roper ty  be  reg is te red  in  the  name o f  

Minor Property Trust bu t  tha t  t ransact ion  never  went  

ahead,  Prec ise  Trade  pa id ,  Cha i r ,  and  tha t  is  why when 

we cou ld  no t  get  the  f inance  f rom the  bank,  okay,  the  

Prec ise  Trade  pa id  the  3 .5  and  the  deve lopment  is  r igh t  

there ,  so  tha t  is  why Mr  R iaan  van  der  Wal t  bought  the 

p roper ty  and  reg is te red  tha t  in  h is  name,  Cha i r .   So  the 

p roper ty  ment ioned  does no t  be long  to  Minor Property 

Trust  o r  to  me,  i t  be longed to  Mr  Riaan  van  der  Wal t ,  i t  i s  10 

reg is te red  in  the  name o f  Prec ise  Trade .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We are  go ing  to  come to  tha t ,  I  am 

re f lec t ing ,  Mr  Montana ,  because Mrs de  Beer  dea ls  w i th  

tha t  in  her  s ta tement  wh ich  I  am go ing  to  take  you  to  in  

jus t  a  moment  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  say tha t  –  and  p lease ,  

you  must  appreciate that  i t  is the duty of  the Commission to 

look at a l l  the evidence.   We have the let ter of  Mr Van der 

Walt  which says that in respect o f  the Waterk loof property 

he paid f rom th is account R3,5 mil l ion,  i t  is re f lected in the 

bank account,  I  am just putt ing that to you so that the 20 

Chairperson has the fu l l  record in  front o f h im.  Of  course, 

wi th your exp lanat ion but  let  us put  a l l  the facts on the tab le 

f i rs t .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  the  facts  a re  tha t  Prec ise  Trade 

pa id  the  3 .5 ,  i t  came f rom the i r  account .   Those  a re  the 
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fac ts .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Now the  next  th ing tha t  –  

we l l ,  no t  the  next  th ing  bu t  the  more  impor tan t  

deve lopment  a f ter  tha t ,  as  you  have  a l ready po in ted  ou t ,  

is  tha t  tha t  agreement  -  a f te r  tha t ,  as  you  have  a l ready 

po in ted  ou t ,  is  tha t  tha t  agreement  came to  no th ing.   

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And  i f  I  can  ask you  then  to  look a t  

page  111  o f  bund le  H.   Th is  now is  an  agreement  en te red 

in to  be tween Aanman i  Guesthouse  and  Prec ise  Trade .  10 

MR MONTANA:    Tha t  is  co r rect .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Tha t  is  the  agreement  you  were 

ta lk ing  about ,  is  tha t  co r rect?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  tha t  is  co r rect ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  page  111  and  you 

wi l l  see  i t  goes up  to  page 116 .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Is  tha t  co r rect?  

MR MONTANA:    Tha t  is  co r rect .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you  wi l l  see  the  s igna tu re  o f  20 

the  purchaser  a t  the  bo t tom.   Wou ld  I  be  cor rect  to  say 

tha t  tha t  s igna tu re  [ inaudib le  – speaking simul taneously]  

MR MONTANA:    Tha t  is  Van der  Wal t ,  indeed,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Now tha t  agreement  is  da ted 

28  February ,  is  tha t  co r rect?  
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MR MONTANA:    I  see  tha t ,  Cha i r ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Is  tha t  February ,  Cha i r ,  the  way-  I  see  

28 t h  bu t  tha t  month ,  I  do  no t  know whether  i t  i s  –  does no t  

look February  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  page a re  you ,  Mr  Son i .  

MR MONTANA:    Page 116 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    116 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    116 ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    The  s igna tu re  o f  Mr  Van der  Wal t  i s  10 

there  bu t  then ,  Cha i r ,  the  month,  I  am no t  sure ,  I  do  no t  

th ink i t  i s  February .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  there  is  no  s igna tu re  fo r  the se l le r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No ,  there  is  no t  a  s igna tu re .   

A l r igh t ,  perhaps Ms de  Beer ’s  a f f idav i t  w i l l  c lear  tha t  up ,  

we  wi l l  jus t  keep  tha t  in  m ind .   Can we jus t  move past  

tha t .   I  jus t  want  to  ask you  to  look a t  page  112 ,  re f lec ts  

aga in  the  te rms o f  the  agreement ,  ce r ta in ly  in  regard  to  

p r ice ,  i t  says:  

“The  purchase  p r ice  amounts  to  R11 mi l l ion . ”  20 

And 2 .1  then  says:  

“A  depos i t  in  the  amount  o f  R3 ,5  mi l l ion  wh ich  

amount  has a l ready been pa id . ”  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Tha t  is  obv ious ly  the  amount  we 
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looked  a t  f rom Prec ise  Trade ’s  account .  

MR MONTANA:    I  ag ree ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And  then  i t  says the  ba lance  wi l l  be  

pa id  by way o f  guaran tee .   Now can  I  then  ask you  

because  Ms de  Beer  makes a  s ta tement  about  th is ,  she  

has a lso  g iven  ev idence  and  you  have  commented on  her  

bu t  she  g ives a  commentary  on  how these  var ious 

deve lopments  took p lace .   I  would  jus t  l i ke  to  p lace  tha t  

on  record .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  where  –  can  we go  th rough to  10 

a f f idav i t  to  look spec i f ica l l y  on  what  she  is  say ing ,  Cha i r?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes.   I  want  us to  now look –  

the  a f f idav i t  is  page  121 .   I  am no t  go ing to  read 

every th ing ,  Mr  Montana ,  I  w i l l  j us t  te l l  you  where  I  am 

read ing  f rom.   I t  is  made by Ms Karen  de  Beer ,  her  name 

appears in  the  f i r s t  l ine  o f  the  a f f idav i t  i t se l f  and  then  she 

says in  paragraph  2 ,  the  f i rs t  sen tence :  

“ I  used  to  be  the  owner  o f  the  p roper ty  s i tua te  a t  

225  Rose St ree t ,  Waterk loo f ,  Pre to r ia ,  and  I  owned 

i t  th rough my company Aanman i  Guesthouse . ”  20 

Then she  says:  

“ I  dec ided  in  o r  about  the  end  o f  2012  to  se l l  the  

p roper ty  and  I  subsequent ly  en te red  in to  a  con t ract  

wi th  a  cer ta in  Lucky Montana  to  se l l  the  p roper ty . ”  

Then she  says:  
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“ I  a t tach  a  copy o f  the  con t ract . ”  

May  I  ask you  to  look a t  page  123?  Does tha t  document 

appear  fami l ia r  to  you ,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    123? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    123 .   Th is  document  is  t i t l ed  Deed 

o f  Sa le  o f  Members ’  In te rest  and  then  i t  says  

Memorandum o f  an  Agreement en te red  in to  be tween 

Karen  de  Beer  and  Mr  Montana .   Do you accept that? 

MR MONTANA:    I  accep t  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Tha t  –  i f  I  can  ask you  to  go  to  page 10 

130 .   You  wi l l  see  the  s igna tu res o f  the  cont ract ing 

par t ies .   In  the midd le  o f  the  page is  Ms de  Beer ’s  

s igna tu re ,  tha t  is  the  10  February  2013 and  then  under 

tha t  is  the  s igna tu re  o f  the  purchaser  a lso  on  the  10 

February  2011.   Tha t  is  your  s igna tu re ,  is  tha t  co r rect?  

MR MONTANA:    Tha t  is  co r rect .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  so  tha t  is  the  agreement  she 

re fe rs  to  and  then  jus t  because  i t  i s  jus t  par t  o f  the 

h is to r ica l  fac ts ,  you  can  go  back to  the  a f f idav i t ,  she  says 

…[ in te rvenes]  20 

MR MONTANA:    What  page aga in  is  tha t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry ,  page  121 ,  Mr  Montana .   

And  then  she  says:  

“Mr  Montana was  buy ing  my in te rest  in  the  p roper ty  

fo r  the  sum o f  R10,5  mi l l ion . ”  
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Tha t  was the  p r ice  you  and  she  had  agreed  upon.   Is  tha t  

co r rect ,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    Tha t  is  co r rect ,  yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then  a t  paragraph  3  –  the 

th i rd  l ine  f rom the  bo t tom,  she  says:  

“The  dea l  even tua l ly  fe l l  th rough as there  was one  

p rob lem a f te r  ano ther  and  Montana  c la imed the  

bank wou ld  no t  pay the  bond wh ich  I  d id  no t  

be l ieve  as there was more  than  enough va lue .   I  

dec ided  to  wi thdraw the  p roper ty  f rom the  marke t . ”  10 

Now ge t t ing  her  adverse  comments about  you ,  tha t  dea l  

d id  fa l l  th rough,  is  tha t  co r rect?  

MR MONTANA:    No ,  i t  d id  no t  work ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  I  th ink  i t  

was no t  because  o f  p rob lems –  and  tha t  is  why I  want  to  

see ,  Cha i r ,  the  copy o f  the  emai l  f rom Ursu la  Wi l l i s  f rom 

the  bank.   She  re fe rs  to  tha t :  

“ I  a t tach  a  copy o f  an  emai l  sen t  ou t  da ted  11 

March  by Ursu la  Wi l l i s  o f  ABSA Bank who gave  the  

address fo r  de l ive ry  o f  the  approved  bu i ld ing p lans 

as…”  20 

I  do  no t  know,  is  i t  a t tached here ,  Cha i r?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  no t .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  th ink  i t  i s  ve ry  impor tan t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  no t ,  Mr  Montana 

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  why no t?  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Because  we are  no t  –  we a re 

dea l ing  wi th  a  dea l  tha t  d id  no t  go  th rough,  we a re  now 

dea l ing  wi th  the  payment  o r  the  subsequent  agreement  in  

regard  to  the  Minor  Trust .  

MR MONTANA:    No  bu t  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Montana ,  what  document 

a re  you  ta lk ing  about?  

MR MONTANA:    I  am in  page 121 ,  Cha i r ,  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Mrs de  Beer .  

CHAIRPERSON :    De  Beer ,  ja .  10 

MR MONTANA:    She  says in  paragraph  3 ,  I  a t tach  a  copy 

o f  an  emai l  sen t  ou t  da ted  11  March  by Ursu la  Wi l l i s .   

Remember  Ursu la  Wi l l i s  was the  lady who was dea l ing 

wi th  my p roper t ies  f rom ABSA?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink ,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  a lso  very  impor tant  

because… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Who gave  the  address fo r  de l ive ry .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  ema i l  is  ve ry  impor tan t ,  

Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Because  you  remember  the  reason why  

tha t  dea l  d id  no t  go  th rough is  very  impor tan t  and  tha t  is  

why I  th ink  i t  i s  ve ry  v i ta l ,  i t  w i l l  te l l  you  i f  I  have app l ied 

to  the  bank th rough a  fac i l i ty  and  the  bank says th is  
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p roper ty  is  va lued  a t  7 .5 ,  whatever  the  case  may be .   So 

there  was tha t  gap  be tween the  10 .5  and  –  okay?   And 

tha t  exp la ins,  Cha i r ,  why we then  wanted  to  crea te  a  loan 

be tween the  7 .5  and  the  what  is  i t  ca l led ,  the  7 .5  and  the 

10 .5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Wh ich  was what  was  o f fe red .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  tha t  ema i l  is  mater ia l  because  i f  you 

leave  i t  ou t ,  Cha i r ,  i t  …[ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no .  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink i t  i s  ve ry  v i ta l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  th ink you  need to  persuade me 

tha t  i f  one  leaves i t  ou t  what  the  pos i t ion  is .   I f  the  

a f f idav i t  says i t  a t taches an annexure ,  tha t  annexure 

shou ld  be  there  i f  i t  i s  ava i lab le .   I f  i t  i s  no t  ava i lab le  tha t  

is  d i f fe ren t  because  o therwise  the  a f f idav i t  is  no t  comple te  

i f  i t  re fe rs  to  an  annexure  and  the  annexure  is  not  there.   

Do  you  know,  Mr  Son i ,  whether  Ms de  Beer  has go t  the 

annexure  somewhere ,  tha t  ema i l?   Because  she says in  20 

the  a f f idav i t  I  a t tach  a  copy o f  the emai l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We,  as I  say,  you  w i l l  see ,  

Cha i rperson ,  tha t  on  Ms de  Beer ’s  s ta tement  you  w i l l  see 

there  is  a  number 2911 r igh t  on  the  top  r igh t  hand  s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Tha t  we up l i f ted  aga in  f rom the 

documents  in  the S iyangena f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  the  S iyangena cour t  app l ica t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and  the  emai l  was no t  there .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Th is  is  what  I  was g iven .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You  do  no t  know there  –  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    No ,  bu t  Cha i r ,  bu t  Cha i r ,  can  I  ob ject  to  

tha t?   You  see ,  I  thought  –  you  w i l l  reca l l  yes te rday I  

ment ioned  the  fact  tha t  va r ious peop le  were  fo rced  by Mr  10 

O ’Su l l i van  to  f i le  par t icu la r  s ta tements ,  i t  was wr i t ten  –  i t  

was  even  wr i t ten  fo r  them and they to ld  them -  i t  was f rom 

the  Hawks.   Now th is  a f f idav i t ,  i f  Ms  de  Beer  came and 

deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  must  be  here 

wi th  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Now –  and  the  reason why I  am say ing  

tha t ,  Cha i r ,  i f  you  look a t  the  en t i re  paragraph 

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th is  was 2015,  i t  was no t  deposed to  20 

the  Commiss ion ,  I  th ink  i t  must  have  been for  o ther  

purposes.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  you  can  see  tha t  even the sworn 
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s ta tement  is  a  sworn  s ta tement  ra ther  than  a  fu l ly - f ledged 

a f f idav i t  tha t  answers the  quest ions o f  the  Commiss ion .   

You  see  –  and  tha t  is  what  I  am have  been te l l ing you  to  

say the  Commiss ion  cannot  take  documents  f rom a 

par t icu la r  mat te r  i f  the re is  no  p roper  con text  and in  th is 

par t icu la r  regard,  Cha i r ,  the  reason why the  dea l  d id  not  

happen is  very  impor tan t .    

She  g ives her  own v iew,  she  says there  the  dea l  

even tua l ly  fe l l  th rough as there was one  p rob lem a f ter  

ano ther  and  Montana  c la imed the bank wou ld  no t  pay the 10 

bond,  wh ich  I  d id  no t  be l ieve ,  and  there  was more  than 

enough va lue ,  I  dec ided  to  d raw the  p roper ty  f rom the 

marke t .  

Now,  Cha i r ,  tha t  is  ve ry  impor tan t  because  i t  wou ld  

then  exp la in  the o ther  th ings that  a re  there  and  I  th ink ,  

Cha i r ,  tha t  we  need –  i t  i s  e i ther  th is  s ta tement  does no t  

s tand ,  i t  i s  no t  a  comple te  –  does no t  meet  the 

requ i rements  o f  the  Commiss ion  because  i t  is  not  good 

enough to  be  to ld  tha t  the  s ta tement ,  we  have  up l i f ted  i t .    

Now Mr  Son i  yeste rday was say ing  to  me we are 20 

separa te  f rom the  –  we have  go t  our  own invest iga to rs  

separa te  f rom Werksmans’  invest iga t ion .    

Th is  is  Werksmans a t  p lay,  Cha i r .   Now I  am 

answer ing  quest ions on  peop le  who never  in te rv iewed me,  

who b roke  in to  my p roper ty ,  who fought  wi th  me and 
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[ indist inct ]  must answer the statements that  are there.   But 

yesterday,  Chair ,  I ’m glad I  put  i t  on record,  I  insist,  Chair,  

that th is emai l  - probably the Commission is in touch with Mrs 

de Beer so they can see that  that  – we cannot take only one 

part  of  what she said because i t  is  mater ia l  to what happens in 

th is t ransact ion after and the reason why we did not  proceed 

with the t ransact ion. 

CHAIRPERSON :    So you say that  emai l  wi l l  throw l ight .  

MR MONTANA:    W i l l  th row l ight ,  Chai r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    On  the reasons why i t  d id  not  p roceed.  10 

MR MONTANA:    Exact ly ,  Cha i r ,  because  i f  we  do  no t  have  i t  

we  a re  now go ing back to  the rea lm o f  specu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And  par t icu la r ly  negat ive  specu la t ion  where 

you  w i l l  [ indist inct]  in fo rmat ion,  I  th ink  i t  must  be  here,  Cha i r ,  

so  tha t  we can  have the  p roper  conversat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  that  is  f ine,  I  th ink a t  least  a t tempts 

should  be  made to  obta in  i t .   O f  course ,  i f  the re  a re  o ther  

annexures tha t  she re fe rs  to ,  wh ich a re  no t  there,  those 

should  be  –  a t tempts  shou ld  be  made to  obta in  them.   So  I  20 

wou ld  imag ine  tha t  a t  leas t  i f  she  is  approached,  tha t  is  Ms 

de Beer,  she m ight  be ab le  to  ass is t  and I  do no t  know 

whether  f rom the cour t  papers where i t  was up l i f ted  i t  a lso 

d id  not  have  the  annexure  o r  whether  what  the pos i t ion is  bu t  

i t  seems that  a t tempts  should  be  made at  leas t  to  get  i t .   Mr 
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Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI SC:    May I  make th is  suggest ion? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana says  i t  i s  importan t ,  I  say 

i t  is  no t ,  bu t  Ms de Beer  i s  no t  the  on ly  one who knows o r  

who was to ld  why  the  dea l  fe l l  th rough.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana knows tha t  i f  he  can g ive  

tha t  ev idence and  we can move on.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  you remember  why I  am here?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

MR MONTANA:    We are  no t  lead ing  Montana ’s  ev idence,  I  

have g iven th is  Commiss ion  an  a f f idav i t  w i th  over  170  

annexures and the  s ta f f  tha t  I  am dea l ing  w i th ,  w i th  the  

bank,  I  am not  dea l ing  w i th  a  p roper ty,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    The reason why th is  document  i s  here  20 

Cha i r,  you know why,  because my dea l  w i th  Ms de Beer  d id  

no t  work ,  okay.   Then she ente rs  i n to  a  t ransact ion  w i th  Mr  

–  w i th  Prec ise  Trade.   Cha i r,  you  can see tha t  when you 

ana lyse  –  and the  las t  parag raph say,  my d i sagreement ,  my  

f igh t  w i th  he r,  she ment ioned d i f fe ren t  reasons and she  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 77 of 343 
 

sa id  tha t  she be l ieved tha t  there  was va lue  in  her  p roper ty,  

okay,  tha t ’s  what  she says.   The bank doesn ’ t  agree what  

i s  the  va lue  there  because i f  she thought  the  proper ty  was 

R7mi l l ion  and she ag reed w i th  the  bank tha t  the  proper ty  

was R7mi l l ion ,  I  wou ld  have probab ly  bought  the  proper ty,  

Cha i r,  okay.   Now,  the  bank says  i t ’s  no t ,  she re jec ts  tha t ,  

okay and so  you  can ’ t  w i thho ld  tha t  in fo rmat ion  because 

what  i s  happen ing  i f  bu i ld ing  up-  bu t  he ’s  jumping up  

impor tan t  fac ts  wh ich  w i l l  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  to  have 

the  to ta l  p ic tu re  o f  why the  proper t y  i s  invo lved  in  the 10 

manner  tha t  i t  does.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So ,  i f  we are  p lay ing  re l iance on th is  

s ta tement ,  i t  must  p rov ide  a  fu l l  in fo rmat ion ,  

Cha i r…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  le t ’s  pause there ,  jus t  remind me,  Mr  

Son i ,  why i s  the  reason why –  why is  the  reason as  to  the  

t ransact ion  no t  be ing  proceeded  w i th  so  impor tan t  fo r  

purposes o f  the  Commiss ion?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t ’s  no t  impor tan t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  because i f  i t ’s  no t  impor tan t  then we  

shou ldn ’ t  be  –  we shou ld  no t  de lay  on  i t  then.    You know,  

I ’m  jus t  s imp ly  –  I ’m  s imp ly  ra i s ing  tha t  quest ion  because 

the  absence o f  the  Annexure  has been ra i sed  by  Mr  

Montana.   I f  the  reason why the  dea l  was not  p roceeded  
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w i th  i s  rea l l y  no t  impor tan t ,  we shou ld  then be ab le  to  jus t  

p roceed.  I f  i t  i s  impor tan t ,  i t  may be tha t  a t tempts  shou ld  

be  made to  okay  i t  bu t  i f  i t ’s  no t  impor tan t  maybe tha t  we  

shou ld  no t…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We submi t ted  Cha i r  bu t  Cha i rperson,  

as  I  sa id ,  we need to  work  ou t  what  the  pu rpose o f  th is  

ev idence is .   The  purpose o f  th is  ev idence,  Cha i rpe rson is ,  

to  t ie  in  w i th  th is  dea l  the  payments  tha t  Mr  van der  Wal t  

sa id  he  made,  the  source  o f  the  funds fo r  tha t  R3.5mi l l ion  

and tha t ’s  TNM,  we know and a t  the  end o f  the  day,  what  10 

happens is ,  the  dea l  fa l l s  th rough,  the  dea l  i s  then entered  

in to ,  wh ich  Mr  Montana concedes w i th  the  m inor  Trus t ,  tha t  

comes a f te r  th is  dea l  fa l l s  th rough and tha t  dea l  too ,  is  

rep laced,  as  we ’ve  a l ready seen by  the  dea l  be tween  

Prec i se  Trade and the  Guest  House.   So,  tha t ’s  s imp ly 

what  we want  to  pu t  on  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  then,  i f  tha t  i s  so ,  i t  seems to  me 

we can move on because the  reason does not  appear  to  be  

impor tan t  fo r  purposes o f  the  Commiss ion  bu t  i f  Mr  

Montana says i t  i s  impor tan t  and  then he can ind ica te  to  20 

me why i t  i s  impor tan t ,  then we can take  i t  f rom there ,  Mr  

Montana?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  le t  me take you th rough a  number  

o f  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  
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MR MONTANA:    F i r s t l y,  le t ’s  dea l  w i th  the  procedure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  i t  has  taken me two years  to  be  

ca l led  be fo re  th i s  Commiss ion  and I  was to ld  he  d idn ’ t  

number,  he  d idn ’ t  have th is  Annexure  and every th ing ,  tha t ’s  

the  f i rs t  i ssue,  so  f i rs t l y  th is  Commiss ion  must  be  fa i r  and  

cons is ten t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    So ,  you admi t  documents  tha t  a re  be ing  

used aga ins t  me,  th is  Commiss ion  admi ts ,  Cha i r,  and those  10 

tha t  re fu te  –  tha t  cha l lenges th is  Commiss ion  doesn ’ t  want  

to  accept ,  tha t ’s  the  f i rs t  i ssue Cha i r.   So,  I ’m  ask ing  fo r  

fa i rness,  tha t ’s  number  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  s t i l l  have two o thers  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe le t ’s  take  one a t  a  t ime.  

MR MONTANA:    A t  a  t ime… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  now,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you a re  

ta lk ing  about  th is  Annexure ,  I  agree w i th  you tha t  i f  there  

i s  an  Annexure  to  an  a f f idav i t ,  genera l l y  one shou ld  ca l l  fo r  20 

tha t  Annexure  okay but  I  go  fu r ther,  I  say,  there  m ight  be  

no  need to  go  and look fo r  the  Annexure  i f  i t  i s  no t  

impor tan t  fo r  purposes o f  what  we are  do ing ,  okay,  tha t ’s  

why I  asked Mr  Son i  why is  the  reason as  to  why the  

t ransact ion  was not  p roceeded w i th ,  impor tan t  and he sa id ,  
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i t ’s  no t  impor tan t  and I  sa id  we l l ,  I  w i l l  hear  whether  you  

say i t ’s  impor tan t  –  you a l ready sa id  i t  was impor tan t  bu t  I  

w i l l  hear  why you say i t  i s  impor tan t  bu t  –  so  i f  I ’m 

persuaded tha t  i t ’s  impor tan t ,  I  wou ld  a t tempts  to  be  made  

to  ob ta in  the  Annexure  bu t  i f  I ’m  not  persuaded tha t  i t ’s  

impor tan t  I  m igh t  no t  say  we shou ld  pursue tha t  bu t  I  w i l l  

hea r  what  you have to  say to  tha t .   So,  as  fa r  as  the  

Annexure  is  concerned,  I  agree tha t  i f  an  a f f idav i t  re fe rs  to  

an  Annexure ,  genera l l y  speak ing  one shou ld  look fo r  tha t  

Annexure  o therwise  the  a f f idav i t  is  no t  comple te ,  bu t  one  10 

might  say  fo r  what  we are  do ing ,  th is  Annexure  is  

impor tan t ,  bu t  tha t  Annexure  is  no t  impor tan t  so  l e t ’s  no t  

bo ther  about  the  one tha t ’s  no t  impor tan t  bu t  le t ’s  bo the r  

about  the  one tha t  i s  impor tan t ,  so  ta lk  to  me.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  a lways take your  gu idance  where  

the  Commiss ion  is  pay ing  re l iance on  th is  i ssue and I ’m  

be ing  led  on  ev idence,  i t  can ’ t  be  se lec t i ve  because the  

Commiss ion  is  here  to  search  fo r  the  t ru th ,  to  have the  

to ta l  p ic tu re  we have to  look  a t  h is to ry  in  the  round to  be  

ab le  to  fo rm a  p i c tu re .   So,  tha t  is  the  f i rs t  i ssue,  Cha i r,  20 

and I ’m say ing  tha t  i f  you  look a t  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  I ’m  led 

on  now –  and Mr  Son i  says,  fo rge t  the  …[ ind is t inc t ] ,  i f  you  

look -   you s ta r t  w i th  the  who le  a f f idav i t  you ’ l l  see  fo r  

example  tha t ,  she ment ioned my peop le  were  contac ted  

by…[ ind i s t inc t  -d ropped vo ice ] .   Th ings l i ke  those  don ’ t  –  
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d idn ’ t  happen Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  want  to  go  in to  tha t .   I ’m 

say ing ,  the  reason why the  sa le  d idn ’ t  go  th rough is  

because the  bank  sa id  cer ta in  th ings wh ich  she then sa id ,  I  

can ’ t  se l l  the  dea l ,  okay bu t  tha t  i s  a  b ig  i ssue Cha i r.   Now,  

I ’ l l  te l l  you  why th is  a l so  is  ve ry  impor tan t  Cha i r.   Mr  Son i ,  

fo r  the  past  two days,  he  sa id  to  me,  Mr  Montana I  need to 

be  ve ry  fa i r  to  us ,  we are  the  Commiss ion  we are  no t  

Werksmans Inves t iga t ion  okay.   Cha i r,  we jus t  dea l t  w i th  

Parkwood and I  le t  i t  pass because I  d idn ’ t  wan t  to  be  

pe t ty.   Now,  base on what  the  documents ,  tha t  were 10 

se lec ted ,  e lec t i ve ,  they ’ re  p resen ted,  and Mr  Son i  sa id  a t  

the  end o f  –  when we ta lk  about  Parkwood he sa id ,  I  pu t  i t  

to  you,  no t  the  fac ts ,  the  fac ts  don ’ t  suppor t  tha t .   That  

some peop le  may say –  tha t  i s  the  word  be fore  you 

in te r rup ted ,  Cha i r,  because o f  the  a i rcon o r  whatever.   

Some peop le  may say,  and he  conc luded i t  tha t  the  

agreement  fo r  the  sa le  o f  the  Parkwood proper ty  and Mr  

Son i  then re l ied  on  a  number  o f  documents .   You asked a  

quest ion  and he  sa id ,  those documents  were  p icked up  

f rom the  Werksmans,  what  i t ’s  ca l led ,  the  PRASA /  20 

S iyangena mat te r  okay.  Now,  those  documents ,  Cha i r,  were  

presented by  Werksmans th rough an i l l ega l  p rocess okay,  

tha t  I  regard  as  i l l ega l ,  and  I  sa id ,  they can ’ t  be  

admiss ib le .   

 The second i ssue Cha i r  i s  tha t  Mr  Son i  i s  
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a r t i cu la t ing ,  he  d id  tha t  a t  Parkwood,  tha t ’s  what  

Werksmans is  say ing  in  Cour t .   He ’s  repeat ing  i t ,  no t  f rom 

an independent  invest iga t ion ,  Cha i r,  by  th i s  Commiss ion .   

He ’s  taken the i r  v iews,  the i r  pos i t ions  and the i r  documents  

and t ransp lan t  i t  here  okay and Cha i r,  I  was not  even to ld ,  

so  tha t ’s   what  –  i t  keeps on  coming and he says  

someth ing  e lse .   Le t  me te l l  me what  Werksmans is  say ing  

and why we are  on  th is  pa th  tha t  Mr  Son i  i s  on .   He sa id  

someth ing  very  –  I  want  to  ask  fo r  a  b i t ,  I  won ’ t  take  long 

but  I  want  to  p resent  i t  to  you so  tha t  you can unders tand.   10 

Those who have accused me,  Cha i r,  have sa id ,  R iaan van 

der  Wal t  has go t  –  R iaan van de r  Wal t ’s  f i rm,  Loubser  &  

Van Der  Wal t ,  as  i t  was ca l led  a t  tha t  t ime,  I  th ink  now i t ’s  

changed had money f rom S iyangena or  ra the r  f rom TNM 

which  i s  a  ho ld ing  company o f  S iyangena.   What  d id  they 

p lace the i r  re l iance on,  they p laced the i r  re l iance,  le t ’s  go  

to  –  I  want  to  show i t  to  you Cha i r,  page –  where  we dea l  

w i th  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  and on Mr  Montana,  to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  you ’ re  ta lk ing  about  the  b ig  p ic tu re  o f  say ing  th is  i s  20 

the  nar ra t i ve  aga ins t  you by  Werksmans and so  on  and  so  

on ,  tha t  p ic tu re ,  I  th ink  I  unders tand.   A t  th is  s tage,  

remember  we are  jus t  ta lk ing  about  whether  tha t  

a t tachment ,  tha t  Annexure  is  why –  the  reason fo r  the  

t ransact ion  no t  go ing  th rough,  why  i t  i s  impor tan t .  
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MR MONTANA:    Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I ’m  not  dea l ing  w i th  the  b igger  

p ic tu re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  want  to  dea l  –  he  sa id  o ther  th ings  

Cha i r,  and I  want  to  go  to  tha t  page…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  remember,  a t  some s tage we can  

dea l  w i th  o ther  th ings he  has  sa id  bu t  th is  par t i cu la r  

one…[ in tervenes] .  10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  ac tua l l y  re la ted  to  th is ,  I  

want  to  show you the  p i c tu re  and why,  in  fac t ,  th is  

shou ldn ’ t  even be  admiss ib le ,  bu t  I  want  to  go  to  tha t  page 

aga in  Cha i r,  i s  i t  191 o r  –  where  we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  

proper t ies ,  I ’ ve…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  hang on Mr  Montana,  I  th ink  as  

fa r  as  the  impor tance i s  concerned,  you might  be  ab le  to  

answer  w i thout  even go ing  to  the  paper.  You say the  

reason why the  t ransact ion  d idn ’ t  go  th rough was what  the  

bank sa id ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  tha t ’s  what  the  bank sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  Cha i r,  I ’m say ing  th ree  th ings,  Cha i r  

and I ’m us ing  th is  t ime to  ob jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA:    Okay,  I ’m say ing  tha t  the  – tha t  a f f idav i t  

o r  tha t  Annexure  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  f rom the  bank,  okay f rom 

the  bank.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    I t  ac tua l l y  shows how I  had in tended to  

f inance tha t  p roper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  there  was a  d isagreement  in  te rms o f  

the  number,  tha t ’s  the  f i rs t  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR MONTANA:    So ,  i t ’s  very  impor tan t  and mater ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  use –  because I  

le t  i t  s l ide  be fore .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  want  to  show two th ings,  Cha i r,  so  tha t  

you can unders tand and there ’s  an  a f f idav i t  I  want  to  re fe r  

to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    On th is  spec i f i c  mat te r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So ,  i f  you  can be pat ien t  w i th  me Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  want  to  d r ive  i t  now so  tha t  we  

can be…[ in tervenes] .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA:    So  tha t  we can be –  Cha i r  so  I ’ ve  sa id  

tha t  a f f idav i t  i s  very  impor tan t ,  i t ’s  mater ia l  to  

what…[ in tervenes ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Annexure  to  the  a f f idav i t .  

MR MONTANA:    The Annexure ,  tha t ’s  one,  second ly,  I ’m 

say ing  tha t ,  today,  un l i ke  what  I  was to ld  yesterday,  I ’m  

dea l ing  w i th  ev idence tha t  doesn ’ t  come f rom th is  

Commiss ion  where  the  peop le  were  in te rv iewed,  deposed  

to  a f f idav i t s  here .   Now,  there ’s  a  conf i rmat ion  tha t ,  no 10 

these documents  –  so  peop le  tha t  I ’m  f igh t ing  w i th  I ’m  s t i l l  

coming to  dea l  w i th ,  who ac tua l l y  have t r ied  –  who have 

run  a  ve ry  soph is t i ca ted  in te l l igence campaign aga ins t  me.   

The i r  documents  are  now the  documents  o f  the  

Commiss ion .   I  was g iven assurance yeste rday,  tha t ,  no,  

no ,  no  we a re  the  Commiss ion  we  are  no t  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van ,  

we a re  no t  Werksmans.   Now,  24  hours  la te r,  i t ’s  very  

obv ious Cha i r.   Now,  I  th ink  i t  shou ldn ’ t  be  admiss ib le  

Cha i r  tha t ’s  a  b ig  i ssue espec ia l l y  a f te r  I ’ ve  exp la ined how 

Mr  Lou is  Green,  how Mr  –  and Mrs  De Beer  were  ac tua l l y  20 

pressur i s ing  mak ing  these sworn  s ta tements ,  i t  was not  

even dra f ted  by  them Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    The Commiss ion  cannot  admi t  them,  i t  

must  have the i r  own s ta tements ,  tha t ’s  the  second  issue.   
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The th i rd  i ssue,  Cha i r,  my …[ ind is t inc t ] ,  you know what  

they ’ ve  done?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Son i  knows,  no t  on ly  d id  th is  

Commiss ion  –  and we ’ve  dea l t  w i th  the  issue about  the  De  

Beer  Commiss ion  or  ra the r  the  Wagner  a f f idav i t  Cha i r.   

There ’s  another  a f f idav i t ,  th is  a f f idav i t ,  i t  was deposed to  

by  S iyangena,  the  CFO,  Mr  Son i ,  i t ’s  in te res t ing  tha t  he  

read what  the  CFO of  TNM/S iyangena sa id  in  cour t  bu t  he  

d idn ’ t  read the  a f f idav i t  o f  S iyangena wh ich  is  submi t ted  10 

here  okay and Cha i r,  I  want  to  ask  you qu ick ly  tha t  I  ge t  

tha t  page because I  want  to  demonst ra te  someth ing  very  

impor tan t  Cha i r,  what  page is  tha t  Mr  Son i  o f  the  s ta tement  

i s  i t  191 on the  –  when we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  proper t ies  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  191 ja .  

MR MONTANA:    191.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  –  le t  me show someth ing  Cha i r,  

because …[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  must  be  the  o ther  f i l e .  

MR MONTANA:    I t  must  be  the  o ther  f i l e?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  okay,  le t  me te l l  you  what  TNM and  

S iyangena they d idn ’ t  on ly  depose o f  an  a f f idav i t  in  the  
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cour t  mat te r  they  deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  and submi t ted  to  

the  Commiss ion .   That  a f f idav i t  the  CFO says,  you are  

ta lk ing  about  payments  tha t  we have made as  

TNM/S iyangena and I  sa id ,  we have never  made a  s ing le  

payment  to  Prec ise ,  okay.   What  d id  they re l y  on ,  Cha i r  –  

and Mr  Son i  knows tha t  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t ’s  page 190 to  191.  

MR MONTANA:    192?  

CHAIRPERSON:    On –  oh  there  is  192 as  we l l  on  Bund le  

G,  PRASA Bund le  G,  yes?  10 

MR MONTANA:    You see,  Cha i r,  TNM/S iyangena deposed 

to  an  a f f idav i t  and says,  we as  TNM or  S iyangena never  

pa id  a  cent  to  Prec i se  Trade,  they say tha t  there ’s  an  

a f f idav i t  he re ,  i t ’s  no t  been read,  i t ’s  no t  been presented 

here  and you know why,  Cha i r,   i t ’s  be ing  w i thhe ld ,  

because they have been t ry ing  to  make the  cour ts  –  and  

now Mr  Son i ’s  tak ing  th is  na r ra t i ve  to  here .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    I  asked Mr  van der  Wal t ,  he  says,  I  asked  

h im,  d id  Prec ise  Trade rece ive  money  f rom 20 

TNM/S iyangena,  he  sa id ,  no  and  then we f ind  tha t  what  

they re l y  on  are  the  no tes  tha t  he  has made.   I  asked h im  

what  account  i s  th is ,  he  says,  no ,  because I  was manag ing  

many f i rms not  f rom Prec i se  bu t  f rom the  law f i rm I  had – 

and I  th ink  Mr  –  the  par tner  tes t i f ied  here  tha t  each  par tner  
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was in  cont ro l  o f  cer ta in  th ings.   He sa id ,  these are  my  

notes  to  show,  fo r  example ,  tha t  I ’m  us ing  tha t  money  

aga ins t  anothe r  money and a l l  o f  those th ings,  a t  P rec ise  

okay.  

 Now,  the  reason  why Mr  Son i  w i thho ld  th is  v i ta l  

in fo rmat ion  Cha i r,  i s  because,  l i ke  he  d id  w i th  the  f i rs t  one,  

where  in fo rmat ion  was presented,  he  then wants  to  

say…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D idn ’ t  they  g i ve  you a  copy o f  tha t  

a f f idav i t ,  the  one you ’ re  say ing  they w i thhe ld?   10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  they  d idn ’ t  Cha i r  i t  was  

ac tua l l y…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They d idn ’ t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  they d idn ’ t  the  Commiss ion  d idn ’ t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR MONTANA:    The Commiss ion  d idn ’ t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And tha t  i s  why,  based on tha t  s ta tement ,  

when I  saw the  s ta tement ,  I  asked  the  quest ion  and  I  sa id ,  

bu t  there ’s  a  th ing  and I  th ink  t ha t  a f f idav i t  mus t  come 20 

here ,  l i ke  th i s  Annexure  must  come here  and be read  

Cha i r,  and you know what  i t  means? 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    I t  means o ther  than the  no tes  –  because  

R iaan says,  no ,  no ,  no  I  d idn ’ t  rece ive  money  in  my 
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ro ta t ing  account  I  robbed Zondo to  pay Montana and  

ba lance my books a t  the  end and I  wro te  TNM loans,  I  

wro te  o ther  th ings tha t  a re  o the r  no tes  okay i t ’s  no t  a  

depos i t  f rom TNM.   He says,  he  jus t  sa id ,  Cha i r,  tha t  the 

payment  to  Prec ise  Trade,  the  R3 .5mi l l ion  was pa id  fo r  by  

TNM/S iyangena.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  want  to  say tha t ,  tha t  i s  fa lse  and  

I  th ink  tha t  we must  –  in  add i t ion  to  tha t  we must  perhaps  

a t  the  break,  ca l l  tha t  a f f idav i t  read  i t  to  what  i t  i s  and then  10 

i f  there  i s  any o ther  ev idence o f  payment  o ther  than the  

no tes ,  le t  them read the  accounts  and see wh ich  accounts  

pa id  fo r  th is  amount  and they w i l l  p rove –  so  Cha i r,  th is  

journey tha t  I ’m  be ing  taken on,  on  in fo rmat ion  taken f rom 

Werksmans to  hang me,  i s  made the  pos i t ion  o f  the 

Commiss ion  and we a re  be ing  led  on  a  jou rney where  v i ta l  

ev idence tha t  d isproves the  na r ra t i ve  tha t  has  been 

presented here  is  be ing  w i thhe ld  de l ibera te ly  Cha i r,  and I ’ l l  

never  agree to  tha t  Cha i r…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  no ,  no ,  no ,  Mr  Montana,  we l l  one,  I  20 

don ’ t  be l ieve  tha t  tha t  a f f idav i t  wou ld  have been –  wou ld  

no t  have fea tured because we a re  no t  done ye t ,  bu t  Mr  

Son i  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  I  don ’ t  be l ieve  tha t  we were  go ing  

to  f in ish  w i thout  i t  be ing  dea l t  w i th…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  a l l  the  documents  on  
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p roper t ies  are  in  these two f i les .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  was…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i t ’s  no t  there?  

MR MONTANA:    I t ’s  no t  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And i t  was not  b rought  to  my a t ten t ion ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  asked,  and you know why I  10 

asked,  Cha i r,  i s  because there  was a  par t i cu la r  Tweet  

made las t  n igh t  and I  then wanted to  check,  and I  then 

d iscovered there  was th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue.   Now,  I  rea l i se ,  

so  I  sa id  the  f i rs t  par t ,  I  don ’ t  want  to  f igh t  i t ,  le t  me see  

where  we a re  go ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  now Cha i r,  I ’m  now dea l ing  –  I ’m  not  

a t  the  Commiss ion  o f  Inqu i ry  to  S ta te  Capture  I ’m  now –  

Werksmans d idn ’ t  in te rv iew me,  they pu t  cer ta in  

s ta tements  in  cour ts  and the  Commiss ion  is  sub jec t ing  me,  20 

Cha i r,  why must  I  agree to  tha t ,  why must  I  s i t  here  and 

answer  the  –  he ’s  jus t  conf i rmed?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  I  th ink  too ,  w i th  regard  to  the  

issue o f  the  Annexure  i f  a t tempts  can be made to  f ind  i t  

f rom Ms De Beer  o r  whoever  those a t tempts  shou ld  be  
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made fo r  purposes o f  Mr  Montana but  I  no te  tha t ,  based on 

what  Mr  Son i  has  sa id  about  the  reason or  the  impor tance  

o f  the  reason fo r  the  dea l  no t  go ing  th rough fo r  purposes 

o f  the  lega l  team,  i t ’s  rea l l y  no t  impor tan t  bu t  i f  you  th ink  

i t ’s  impor tan t  fo r  your  ve rs ion ,  I  th ink  a t tempts  must  be  

made to  f ind  i t .  I f  i t ’s  found i t ’s  found i f  i t ’s  no t  found i t ’s  

no t  found but  a t tempts  shou ld  be  made.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  Cha i r,  I  suppor t  tha t  f i rs t  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  what  i t  te l l s  you about  a l l  the  10 

documents  tha t  we have,  I ’m  say ing ,  Cha i r,  I ’m  mak ing  – 

you ’ve  ru led  on  the  f i rs t  one,  I ’m  happy w i th  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  le t ’s  f ind  i t  bu t  we are  f ind ing  an  

Annexure  on  documents  tha t  a re  no t  the  Commiss ion ’s  

documents ,  you asked Mr  Son i  here  Cha i r,  you sa id  to  h im,  

Mr  Son i  do  you know the  re levance o f  th is ,  he  says ,  no  we 

have up l i f ted  them.   Cha i r,  I ’m  mak ing  now an app l i ca t ion ,  

maybe tha t ’s  when I  need my –  now my lega l  team to  be  

here  to  d ra f t  an  app l i ca t ion  tha t ,  a l l  these documents  tha t  20 

were  up l i f ted  f rom Werksmans tha t  a re  no t  the  

Commiss ion ’s  documents ,  a re  no t  admiss ib le  Cha i r,  to  th is  

Commiss ion ,  un less  i f  the  peop le  who made them,  the  

Commiss ion ’s  l ega l  team can make sure  tha t  they pu t  

together  p roper  a f f idav i t s  and they pu t  them –  or  e l se ,  
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Cha i r,  I  do  no t  –  I ’ l l  f i gh t  Werksmans as  we l l  bu t  I  don ’ t  

want  to  f igh t  w i th in  the  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  le t  me exp la in  th is  par t ,  Mr  

Montana.   I t ’s  c r i t i ca l l y  impor tan t  tha t  the  Commiss ion  does  

the  best  i t  can  in  invest iga t ing  the  issues tha t  i t  i s  

invest iga t ing  tha t ’s  po in t  number  one.   Po in t  number  two,  

obv ious ly  i t  has  to  opera te  w i th in  such const ra in ts  as  i t  

m igh t  have inc lud ing  t ime and so  on .   Po in t  number  th ree ,  

i t  i s  en t i t led ,  i f  i t  becomes aware ,  tha t  somebody is  in  

possess ion  o f  i n fo rmat ion  o r  documents  tha t  may be  10 

re levant  to  what  i t  i s  invest iga t ing  i t ’s  en t i t led  to  o r  i t  may 

be ob l iged to  ob ta in  tha t  in fo rmat ion  and look a t  i t .   So ,  I  

there fo re ,  don ’ t  th ink  tha t  there  wou ld  be  a  source  o f  

in fo rmat ion  where  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  say,  oh  i f  i t  

comes f rom so and so  we won ’ t  even look a t  i t .   I  th ink  tha t  

the  approach shou ld  be ,  i f  i t ’s  re levant  to  what  the  

Commiss ion  is  invest iga t ing ,  le t ’s  have a  look and then 

le t ’s  have a  look ,  cons ide r  i t  on  i t s  mer i t s .   I f  we don ’ t  

th ink  much o f  i t ,  we don ’ t  th ink  i t ’s  he lp fu l  tha t ’s  i t .   I f  we 

th ink  i t ’s  he lp fu l  le t ’s  have a  look a t  i t  bu t  o f  course  there  20 

may be s i tua t ions where  somebody who wro te  some 

document  m ight  have to  be  ca l led  and so  on  and  so  on .   

So,  I  jus t  ment ioned tha t  so  tha t  you unders tand,  indeed,  

the  Commiss ion  has ob ta ined in fo rmat ion  f rom var ious  

sources.  
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MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  thank you  fo r  the  assurance but  I  

don ’ t  want  to  ask  to  pu t  p las te r  ove r  c racks on  th is  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    I  respect ,  Cha i r,  you are  t ry ing  to  move 

us  fo rward .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  sa id  Cha i r,  when the  Commiss ion  –  I  

sa id  i t  yes te rday,  when the  Commiss ion  went  to  co l lec t  

documents  f rom cour t  wh ich  Mr  Oe l le rmann used  fo r  h is  

repor t ,  he  le f t  ou t  my vers ion ,  Cha i r  and th i s  i s  no t  10 

because the  Commiss ion  is  com ing to  an  end,  th is  was  

done las t  yea r,  Cha i r,  tha t ’s  the  f i rs t  i ssue.   I ’m  happy the  

Commiss ion  looks a t  a l l  the  documents ,  inc lud ing  my  

documents  Cha i r,  inc lud ing  those,  a l l  o f  those – remember  

I  quoted a  s ta tement  tha t  the  Commiss ion  can never  be  the  

vo i ce  o f  the  accusers  i t  must  ba lance and look a t  bo th  the  

accused and the  accusers ,  Cha i r.   Now,  in  th is  par t i cu la r  

ins tance,  we ’ve  go t  very  impor tan t  th ings,  so  Cha i r,  I  agree  

fu l l y  w i th  you,  the  documents  tha t  becomes ava i lab le ,  the  

Commiss ion  becomes aware  tha t  there  are  documents  v i ta l  20 

fo r  the  Commiss ion  to  fu l f i l  i t s  ro le ,  I  accept  tha t  Cha i r  bu t  

here ’s  a  Commiss ion  Cha i r,  desp i te  your  assurance,  i s  

do ing  the  oppos i te  o f  what  you. [ ind is t inc t ] .   I t ’s  mak ing  out ,  

i t ’s  sneak ing  in  documents  okay and leav ing  o ther  

documents  ou t  okay,  fo r  example ,  I  fo rced tha t  the  a f f idav i t  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 94 of 343 
 

o f  Mr  Wagner  be  read,  Mr  Son i  says i t ’s  no t  impor tan t ,  I  

sa id ,  read i t  and you know what  he  te l l s  you Cha i r,  tha t  

a f f idav i t  you know what  i t  te l l s  us ,  i t  te l l s  us  tha t  Mr  

Wagner  who ’s  go t  no  re la t ionsh ip  to  PRASA entered  in to  an 

agreement ,  he  deposed to  an  a f f idav i t ,  he  sa id  i t ’s  a  good  

proper ty  deve lopment  tha t  we a re  look ing  a t ,  a l l  the 

documents  were  submi t ted  yesterday and have  been  

admi t ted ,  Cha i r,  I  fo rced tha t  Cha i r.   Now,  here  the  

Commiss ion  and the  count ry  i s  made to  be l ieve  tha t ,  in  fac t  

the  R3.5mi l l ion  was pa id  fo r  by  TNM okay.   TNM then put  10 

the  s ta tement  to  say,  no ,  we d idn ’ t  make such a  payment  

and our  bank never  –  and they asked th is  Commiss ion  I  

th ink ,  fo r  the  prov is ion  o f  tha t  and you know i t ’s  kept  ou t  

Cha i r,  p rec i se l y  because i t  i s  kep t  ou t .   I t  then suppor ts  a  

nar ra t i ve  based,  no t  on  bank  s ta tements ,  based on  

handwr i t ten  no tes  o f  someone who says,  I ’m  – and I  th ink  

tha t  there  are  many handwr i t ten  no tes  the re  beyond where  

he  says,  I ’m  pay ing  th is  aga ins t  tha t .   Cha i r,  tha t  a f f idav i t  

l i ke  the  Annexure  i s  mater ia l  and i t  enab les  the  

Commiss ion  to  look  a t  th ings in  a  round.   Now,  we are  20 

be ing  –  Mr  Son i  says…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me a l low Mr  Son i  to  …[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    Le t  me make my las t  s ta tement  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Son i  keeps –  or  the  Commiss ion  
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ra the r,  so  tha t  I  don ’ t  become persona l ,  keeps tha t  a f f idav i t  

tha t  says TNM/S iyangena d idn ’ t  pay okay.   Yet  comes here  

Cha i r,  be ing  aware  o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  and makes the  

s ta tement  Cha i r  and says TNM pa id  and what  i s  tha t  based 

on,  i t ’s  no t  –  we sa id  fo l low the  money but  th is  one notes  

tha t  Werksmans  presented to  say we be l ieve  tha t  th is  

money may be coming f rom TNM.   Cha i r,  today,  we are  a l l  

here ,  th is  Commiss ion  has go t  capac i ty  le t  us  pu t  i t  on  the  

tab le .    Yesterday,  you knew Cha i r,  I  asked you to  say le t ’s  

p lay  the  c l ip ,  I  was not  a l lowed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Le t  us  pu t  –  where  th is  R3.5mi l l ion  comes  

f rom,  account  w ise  and le t  us  pu t  the  account  o f  TNM and 

see the  cor re la t i on  because th is  –  what  i s  pu t t ing  th rough 

to  me Cha i r,  i s  pu t t ing  us  to  te l l  the  count ry  tha t  TNM pa id 

when i t ’s  ac tua l l y  fa lse  and the  reason why  i t ’s  an  

annexure ,  i t  i s  no t  pu t  in  there  Cha i r  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  to  –  i t  is  

suppor ted  by  a  par t i cu la r  na r ra t i ve .    I  am ins is t ing  Cha i r  

tha t  they pu t  here  in  to ta l  we d iscuss the  mat te r  in  fu l l  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  the  a f f idav i t  –  le t  me a l low Mr  20 

Son i  to  respond to  th is .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rman le t  me f i rs t  o f  a l l  say  the  

t ransact iona l  account  and the  le t te rs  wr i t ten  by  Mr  van der  

Wal t  were  revea led  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime by  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .   Werksmans had noth ing  to  do  w i th  i t ,  they  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 96 of 343 
 

conducted the i r  invest iga t ions and they a re  no t  aware  o f .   

Mr  Loubser  came and gave  ev idence before  the  

Commiss ion  ind i ca t ing  where  they go t  th is  f rom and how 

the  few ledgers  f rom Mr  van der  Wal t  were  ob ta ined .  

 Now tha t  was a l l  con ta ined in  Mr  Oe l le rmann ’s  

a f f idav i t .   I  jus t  want  to  –  because Mr  Montana has kept  

mak ing  accusat ions aga ins t  the  Commiss ion  and espec ia l l y  

the  manner  in  wh ich  i t  has  conduc ted i t se l f ,  i t  i s  impor tan t  

Cha i rperson because a t  page 32,  and I  wou ld  l i ke  Mr  

Montana to  look a t  i t  so  tha t  he  fo l lows.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  bund le?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Page –  sor ry,  Bund le  8  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bund le  8 .   Whi le  you are  look ing  le t  me 

jus t  say  someth ing  Mr  Montana about  the  s ta tement  you  

made tha t  yes terday you asked fo r  a  c l ip  to  be  p layed and 

you were  no t  a l lowed,  I  am not  sure  tha t  i t  i s  cor rec t  to  say 

you were  no t  a l lowed,  bu t  th is  i s  what  I  th ink  happened  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Chai rperson so r ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  sa id  Mr  Son i  a t  tha t  s tage h is  quest ion  20 

re la ted  to  what  Mr  Oe l le rmann sa id  or  d idn ’ t  say  in  h is  

repor t  and I  sa id  he  was s t i l l  go ing  to  come to  the  quest ion  

o f  what  he  –  wha t  you say in  your  document  he  sa id  too  a t  

the   hear ing ,  and  I  sa id  i f  there  was – i f  i t  i s  necessary  we 

cou ld  look a t  tha t ,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   
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MR MONTANA:   I  apo log i se  Cha i r,  I  accept  you r  summary 

is  cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  what  happened,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Bund le  8  what  page 

Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Page 30 Cha i rpe rson.   

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  i s  i t  poss ib le  to  ask  fo r  a  qu i ck  

comfor t  b reak.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  we are  th ree  minutes  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   I  am danc ing  here .    Jus t  fo r  th ree  

minutes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t ’s  take  f i ve  m inutes ,  ja ,  le t ’s  

ad journ  fo r  f i ve  m inutes .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Mr Soni .    

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson I  am just  deal ing now with the 

procedure adopted in relat ion to the al legat ions.   At  page 30 

paragraph – oh sorry let  us start  a t  page 29.   We – ear l ier  

we deal  wi th  Mr Montana who was served wi th a copy of  the 

report  together wi th the annexures.  20 

 “And at  page – paragraph 105 the – 

among the more important  role p layers are 

Mr Van Der Walt  who next  to Montana or  

perhaps alongside him was the pr inciple  

f igure in the four t ransact ions.   Bank 
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statements of  Precise Trade the vehicle  

through which the deals were faci l i tated for  

pr incipal ly funded conf i rms Mr Van Der 

Walt ’s di rect  involvement in each t ransact ion.  

 And the next  paragraph what  is 

missing are detai ls of  h is relat ionship wi th Mr 

Montana nor does he provide an explanat ion 

of  how the whole scheme was conceived and 

what the end gain was.  

 Then at  paragraph 108 – oh sorry 107 10 

we say:   Another signi f icant  ro le player  

certainly in regard to providing f inance is  

TMM. In this regard – in th is regard the 

commission’s invest igators are aware of  a  

contract  between TMM and Mario Ferrei ra on 

the one hand and Mr Van Der Walt  on the 

other.   I t  is hoped Mr Loubser deals wi th th is  

in his aff idavi t .  

 And then at  page 109 we say:   In 

addi t ion Mr Van Der Walt  refers to payment  20 

made towards some of  the purchases by 

TMM.  I t  appeared to be conf i rmed by entr ies 

made in Invest  Trades Investment Bank 

account.   Given the four proper t ies i t  is 

submit ted that  there are ser ious quest ions 
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about  Mr Ferrei ra ’s relat ionship wi th Mr 

Montana and his reasons for providing such 

huge sums to fund property t ransact ions 

involving the CEO for Publ ic Ent i ty.  

 At  page – paragraph 111:   A copy of 

th is report  and other relevant  documents wi l l  

be emai led to Mr Ferrei ra  wi th  an in i t ia l  

invi tat ion to deal  wi th the matters concerning 

him, TMM and Siyangena.  

 And we deal  wi th other role players.  10 

 Then at  paragraph 115 i t  is said a 

number of  quest ion ar ise about Mr Montana.   

Monday 00:03:13 the fo l lowing what was his  

re lat ionship wi th Mr Van Der Walt?  How was 

the whole scheme to sel l  h is  Parkwood 

property and purchase the other three 

propert ies conceived?  How did he fund the 

purchases of  the propert ies?  Copy of  th is 

report  and other re levant  documents wi l l  be 

emai led to Mr  Montana with  an in i t ia l  20 

invi tat ion to  him to deal  wi th those and other 

re levant  matters.  

 Plus the report  wi l l  be sent  to other  

persons ment ioned again wi th an invi tat ion to  

respond to i ts  contents insofar as i t  
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impl icates them.  

 And then page – paragraph 117.  A 

number of  matters are raised in th is report  

about  the four property t ransact ions.   The 

persons ment ioned who are in some way or  

the other ei ther  part ic ipated in the 

t ransact ions or faci l i tated them have been 

invi ted to set  out  their  versions.  

 Paragraph 119.   Af ter thei r  responses 

are received a fur ther report  wi l l  be compi led 10 

and submit ted. ”  

 Now Chairperson Mr Montana seems to refer to an  

aff idavi t  by Siyangena.  I  do not  have i t  in here but  what I  do 

recal l  and we are checking on that  is  af ter th is report  was 

f i led on Siyangena they made an appl icat ion to  cross-

examine Mr Oel lerman.  They sa id they then went to do 

forensic invest igat ions in respect  of  the di fferent  matters.  

 They want to assist  Mr Oel lerman.  To the best  of  my 

knowledge and again I  say this has come as a surpr ise we 

have not  received anything f rom Siyangena beyond that  20 

appl icat ion made in terms of  3.3 and 3.4.  

 The commission responded to that  appl icat ion.   The 

purpose of  that  appl icat ion as set  out  in thei r  appl icat ion was 

they did not  want the hearing of  the commission to effect  the 

Siyangena hearings in the High Court .   That  is what the 
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stated purpose was.   And that  as I  understand i t  in any case 

did not  take place then i t  took place at  a later date.  

 So I  say al l  of  th is Chairperson because i t  is said we 

were select ive.   This report  was served.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry i t  is said… 

ADV SONI SC:   We are select ive in the documents and what  

we submit .   This report  was served on Mr Montana in  June 

last  year.   We have not  received anything in wri t ing f rom Mr 

Montana.   That  is  why the 10.6’s  needed to be served on him 

in relat ion in part icular to th is repor t .  From TMM as I  said to  10 

the best  of  my knowledge and i f  something had come up I  

would have been told about  i t .  We have not  received the so 

cal led forensic invest igat ions they did i f  they did any.  

 They took a technical  point  Chairperson that  the 

matter had been served on Mr Ferre ira but  not  for – or had 

been served on S iyangena but  not  on TMM and so on.   We 

responded to that  in relat ion to the 3.4 s i tuat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so is  the posi t ion that  you are not  

aware of  the aff idavi t  that  Mr Montana is ta lk ing about? 

ADV SONI SC:    Where there is  a denial  of  th is  – wel l  20 

certainly since the forensic invest igat ions are…here there is  

a denial  of  th is – wel l  certainly since the forensic 

invest igat ions are… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no Mr Montana says he is  aware that  

the commission has in i ts possession an aff idavi t  by 
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somebody f rom ei ther TMM or Siyangena? 

MR MONTANA:   The CFO Chai r.   The CFO. 

CHAIRPERSON:   The CFO. 

MR MONTANA:   The CFO. 

CHAIRPERSON:   What is h is name? 

MR MONTANA:   Tom – What is Tom’s surname?  I  remember 

the surname Chai r  but  he is the CFO of  TMM. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I t  was the CFO of  TMM. 

MR MONTANA:   S iyangena.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And in that  aff idavi t  you say he says 10 

TMM never paid any money.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To Precise Trade connected wi th you.  

MR MONTANA:   And Riaan i t  conf i rmed the same Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   And so – yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  us – let  us pause i t  there.   So you 

are not  aware of  any such aff idavi t?  

MR MONTANA:   Chairperson I  do not  have the aff idavi t  in 

my head at  the moment.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  – the one I  am aware of  is that  

appl icat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   There is an aff idavi t  in support  of  the 3.3 
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appl icat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Do you know whether they deal t  wi th 

that  in that  aff idavi t?  

ADV SONI SC:   I  – I  am just  t ry ing to get  conf i rmat ion of  

that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because they – i f  they were seeking to 

leave to cross-examine anybody they would need to put  up 

their  version.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  may be that  that  is the aff idavi t  that  –  10 

that  appl icat ion you said i t  was for leave to cross-examine.  

ADV SONI SC:   To cross-examine Mr Oel lerman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   What happened to i t?  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson we submit ted – when I  say we 

the commission submit ted an answering aff idavi t  in that  

regard.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The legal  team. 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   But  beyond that  you… 

ADV SONI SC:   I  am not  too sure.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You ment ioned also that  the – there was – 

they wanted to say the commission should not  hear  certain 

evidence pr ior to the High Court  hearing.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is – they did not  want Mr Oel lermann’s 

report  to be presented to the commission.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja before? 

ADV SONI SC:   That  was part  of  i t  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  i f  – i f  you could refresh your  

memory on that  appl icat ion so that  one can see whether i t  

was decided on or not  decided or whether certain  issues 

were raised.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  – I  do seem to recal l  that  there was some 

appl icat ion but  I  cannot remember – are there – there have 

been so – there are so many appl icat ions that  one has deal t  10 

wi th I  cannot remember each one – I  cannot remember what 

the posi t ion is but  I  would l ike to – to know whether a 

decision was made on i t  or not  – not  yet  or whatever.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Do you have a copy of  that  

aff idavi t?  

MR MONTANA:   No not  wi th me Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  have.    

MR MONTANA:   Not  wi th me Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Soni  has i t  at tempts wi l l  be 20 

made to t ry and establ ish i f  there is such an aff idavi t .   Wel l  

certainly the appl icat ion one.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  th ink – I  th ink the Secretar iat  must  be 

asked to check.   I t  is just  that  i t  wi l l  be easier i f  we know the 
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surname of  the CFO.  When you do remember  

ADV SONI SC:   I  th ink i t  is Mr Dubeck Chai r.  

MR MONTANA:   Dubeck.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink i t  is Dubeck.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  th ink i t  is Dubeck.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay so I  th ink – I  th ink the legal  team 

should ask the Secretar iat  to check i f  there is such an 

aff idavi t .   So – so that  i t  can be looked at .   So I  th ink Mr – 

what Mr Soni  is saying Mr Montana is he cannot say such an 10 

aff idavi t  does not  exist  but  he is not  aware of  i t  other than 

the – such aff idavi t  as may have accompanied the 

appl icat ion for leave to cross-examine.   So bearing in mind 

that  in an appl icat ion for  leave to  cross-examine that  is  me 

now talk ing i t  is  l ikely that  they would have put  up thei r  

vers ion and obviously i f  they knew that  there was an issue 

about whether  they made any payments to Precise Trade 

they might  – they would have had to deal  wi th that .   But  I  

th ink rather  than speculate let  us get  that  aff idavi t  in  relat ion 

to the appl icat ion and let  us get  th is  Secretar iat  to check is i f  20 

there is  any other aff idavi t  f rom – by the same person and 

then we wi l l  take i t  f rom there.   And then whatever is 

obtained wi l l  be shared wi th you Mr Montana.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  was – may I  make one other point? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Mr Montana is to say now that  he had talked 

to Mr Van Der Wal t .   We do not  know when he has done that .   

The importance of  that  Chairperson is that  Mr Van Der Walt  

th is report  was emai led to Mr Van Der Walt  wherever he is in 

Texas as we understand i t .   Mr Van Der Walt  has not  taken 

the t rouble to present  his version.   He knows what we were 

going to present  to h im and so we have nothing f rom him.  

His partner came and gave evidence on the basis that  they 

accepted in good fai th what is contained in his  let ters 

because those let ters were in response to concerns they had 10 

ra ised wi th h im.  So this not ion that  there is – there are 

these loose documents and what is important  Chairperson is  

in none of  these two let ters that  Mr Van Der Walt  wr i tes does 

he say there look man what is ref lected as my notes may not  

be correct .   He in  fact  says these are the payments wi th no 

qual i f icat ion made.  He presents the t ransact ional  account to 

them.  So we would l ike to know to where did the money 

come f rom? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes wel l  let  me just  say this so you – you 

know Mr Montana.   I  do recal l  that  at  some stage I  th ink 20 

there was the quest ion whether since Mr Van Der Walt  is –  

cannot be compel led to come here or even to depose to an 

aff idavi t  when he is outside of  South Afr ica whether some 

documents should be given to them and I  said even i f  he 

cannot be compel led i f  we can i f  we know where he is he 
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should be given the documents – he should be asked for his 

vers ion.  I f  he does not  comply there is nothing we can do but  

he should be.   So I  just  want to ment ion that  I  certainly said 

that  should be done and f rom what Mr Soni  says i t  was done.  

So ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  can I  address you?  Thank you Chai r.   

You know – you know Chai r  I  l istened to Mr Soni  and I  th ink 

that  he – he made statement.   Now this last  statement we do 

not  know who paid.  

 Before I  intervened that  TMM paid Chai r  I  spoke to 10 

Riaan when the matter went to court .   I t  was in the count ry 

and let  us leave Riaan Van Der Walt  on the side.    

 Let  us deal  we said the method of  invest igat ing 

corrupt ion is a f low of  money.   Al l  on the t rack of  money.   

Chai r.  Now here the money does not  show notes are now 

being accepted.  A note that  is  wri t ten Chair  and I  ask Riaan 

what did you mean by this?  Okay.    

 Chair  I  th ink that  – I  th ink that  I  want  to put  i t  here Mr 

Soni  does not  know who paid and he says he does not  know 

and thi r ty minutes ago he sa id these monies are paid for by 20 

TMM. 

 Chair  I  am – I  want to say I  have said before f i rst ly 

they are false and that  is why Chair  i t  is  not  a  mistake that  

they want to deal  wi th  four propert ies that  are not  my 

propert ies but  that  is someone else propert ies.   And then – 
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and then keep things that  are there.  

 But  let  me just  quickly ment ion Chair  page 32 – 

30 118.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   The persons ment ioned who in some way of  

the other – of  the other – or the other part ic ipated in the 

t ransact ions or faci l i tated them have been invi ted to set  out  

their  versions.  

 Mr Soni  says I  have been invi ted to set  out  my 

vers ion and that  is why Chair  I  refused in Ju ly.   Chai r  that  is 10 

not  t rue.   In fact  on our f i rst  day here I  sa id – I  indicated to 

the Chair  that  when I  was served the 10.6 I  re jected.   I  sa id 

the Chai r  is un lawful .    

 Chair  my f i rst  aff idavi t  was given to th is commission 

in – in August  2019 and I  addressed the issue of  propert ies 

exact ly what I  said here you – when you look at  my f i rst  draf t  

th is commission t r ied to  curtai l  my evidence Chai r  and what 

they were t ry ing to do they were t ry ing to get  me to speak to 

certain th ings and tel l  me others are outside of  the Terms of  

Reference.   Werksmans I  was told Chai r  Werksmans or  20 

Werksmans whatever i t  is cal led I  was told i t  is outside the 

Terms of  Reference of  th is commission – 00:18:47 by this 

commission.  

 The reason why I  d id not  appear for  almost  two years 

Chair  th is commission had t r ied to terminate and l imi t  my 
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response.   So when they served me with 3 – Rule 3.3 

Not ices I  said but  I  prepared an aff idavi t  and I  address al l  

those issues.   And i f  indeed the commission is of  the view 

that  I  d id not  address some of  the Rule 3.3 let  me know and 

then I  wi l l  supplement.   But  I  bel ieve that  i f  you look at  my 

comprehensive – at  that  t ime I  – my f i rst  draf t  to the 

commission Chair  was about 245 pages.   So I  addressed my 

propert ies.    

I  d id not  need the commission to serve me with a 

not ice when I  volunteered to come I  knew that  one of  the 10 

publ ic issues being raised was the issue about propert ies 

and I  said I  am going to assist  the commission wi th 

informat ion.  

 So Chai r  I  want  to say that  Mr Soni  knows that  is not 

t rue.   There is – in my aff idavi t  I  have at tached al l  my 

correspondence and in my f i rst  day Chair  I  spoke openly 

about i t  how my relat ionship – I  have had a bad re lat ionship 

wi th th is commission because i t  has t r ied on numerous 

occasions and I  was surpr ised Chai r  by the way when you 

asked you say Mr Montana you have wri t ten a let ter to me – 20 

you referred to  a let ter of  26 Ju ly 2019.   And I  said the Chair  

has not  seen the let ter.   Yes I  wrote the let ter and I  d i rected 

i t  to the Chai r.  

 So Chair  the issue about the response about 210.6 I  

even spoke to some of  the people in the legal  department of  
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the commission I  said how do you guys mislead the Chair  to  

issue a 10.6 regulat ion against  me.  I  wi l l  not  honour i t  and i f  

the Chai r  is fa i r  – I  used those words in an emai l  to the 

commission – i f  the Chai r  is fa i r  he wi l l  want  to understand 

my side of  the story.    And you what I  was saying in that  

story Chai r  in simple terms I  said I  wi l l  address each and 

every al legat ion made against  me okay and those I  have 

addressed even in  a speci f ic way in my aff idavi t .    

 Chair  the – by the way this – these al legat ions 

against  me whi lst  they are old they were made here in the 10 

commission eight  months af ter I  have presented my draf t  

statement which addressed the very same issues.  

 So – so number 1 Chai r  on 10.6 Chai r  the – Mr Soni  

knows i t  is not  t rue.    

Secondly Chair  so in 118 I  was there – I  was the key 

person – I  was served with 3.3.   Oel lerman spoke to al l  other 

people he never  spoke to me Chai r because he never  had an 

interest .    

Thi rdly Chai r  Oel lerman says I  am basing my 

documents on court  –  on court  papers.   Court  papers on 20 

these matters of  Siyangena Chair  at  that  t ime when he cal led 

the informat ion actual ly records the fact  that  Siyangena and 

TMM had actual ly said we never paid a cent  to th is company.  

Yet  i t  is being – i t  is being pushed in the way that  i t  

has.   He says Chair  – Mr Soni  Mr Loubser ’s aff idavi t  wi l l  
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deal  wi th i t .   Chai r  Mr Loubser ’s aff idavi t  does not  deal  wi th 

i t  actual ly i t  does not  – i t  just  re ferred to – i t  is actual ly 

deal ing wi th the process on the law f i rm and not  th is – these 

al legat ions because he said we did not  know about them.  

We are learn ing them about for the f i rst  t ime.   

Now Chair  the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

MR MONTANA:   Chair  let  me – I  just  noted four points just  to  

complete them quickly Chai r.   The – the – he caused the 

report  where they say the relat ionship and you can see he is 10 

speculat ing there Chai r.  

 But  I  th ink Chair  when Mr Soni  made the statement  

and said TMM paid okay this commission has got  a  very 

simple task i t  has got  invest igators Chai r.   Let  us go to the 

bank and get  the accounts the bank accounts of  TMM and 

see the very same process he has been taking me through 

and can you see that  I  am 00:22:53 to that .   I t  wi l l  show 

Chair  – i t  wi l l  show that  in fact  no such payment and I  have 

sat isf ied mysel f  around that .  

 What is based on Chai r  i t  is based on what Mr Soni  20 

has been t ry ing to do.  To takes notes – now he said in the 

statement there are certain things Mr Van Der Merwe said in  

his statement sorry rather in his  let ter to  his  partners but  

those are not  ref lected in the statements.  

 Now i f  that  is the case i t  te l ls us that  there were 
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other act iv i t ies and probably other accounts at  play not  only 

one account.    

 Now they are ignor ing bank statements and the facts 

what they are t ry ing to do they are t ry ing and Riaan said i t  

very clear  they say no I  am deal ing wi th a lot  of  people 

including investors and other th ings into my company I  work 

– I  handle the issue of  propert ies for the company there.   So 

when I  do I  pay Peter and – I  rob Peter to pay Paul  and visa 

versa depending on the avai lab i l i ty  of  cash in my account.  

 Now and I  – I  then suspect  that  the reason why he 10 

wrote TMM loan i t  means he says i f  I  have got  th is amount of  

money in our account okay I  use i t ,  pay back and a l l  of  those 

things.   Now Chai r  the issue is we then need to conf i rm.   

Fol low the money.   The money must  say – i t  says two things.   

I t  says 3.5 was paid by TMM.  I  ask;  TMM says no i t  is not  

us,  we have never  paid that  amount – that  money.  

 I t  then says TMM paid 7.5 okay.   That  again is also 

not  t rue.   Mr Soni  as he is  bu i ld ing towards this point  

because I  know Chair  – I  know because I  know – I  have been 

through this before.   I  know where he is heading to and I  am 20 

al lowing him to cont inue asking the point  because I  know 

where the falsehoods l ie.  

 Because for the past  s ix years I  have been accused 

of  these kind of  th ings.   Now Chair  I  th ink the other than al l  

these things there are three speci f ic  quest ions.    
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 Where is that  a ff idavi t  and I  th ink we need to get  to 

today probably lunch t ime and read i t  l ike we did wi th the 

Wagner one.  

 Let  us get  the actual  bank accounts so that  what Mr 

Soni  is saying – what Werksmans is saying – what Mr Pieter 

Louis Myburgh is saying we can show for example that  they 

are not  t rue.  

 And thi rdly Chai r  I  th ink that  Mr Soni  should ei ther 

change his statement or wi thdraw because he says he does 

not  know – he cannot say to you i t  was paid by this  and he 10 

says he does not  know.  I t  is not  t rue Chair  i t  is fa lse.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay Mr Montana.   Let  – just  

remember that  Mr Soni  is – has no personal  knowledge of  

whatever happened. When he says i f  he sa id so this amount 

was paid by TMM my understanding of  what he is saying is i t  

would appear f rom these documents that  th is  is what  

happened and giv ing you an opportuni ty to say no but  that  is  

not  t rue and this is why i t  is not  t rue.  

 So he does not  have personal  knowledge of  who paid 

what – when he looks at  the documents and then says as I  20 

understand these documents I  understand them to ref lect  

that  so and so paid so much to so and so on such and such 

a date,  what do you say?  That  is my understanding of  what 

he is saying.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  – Chair  I  am afraid – I  am af raid 
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Chair  and I  want to ask respect ful ly  Chair  Mr Soni  sa id af ter  

he real ised that  I  sold my house – remember that  quest ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MONTANA:   He said I  can conclude and put  i t  to  you that  

th is was not  a property t ransact ion i t  was someth ing else.   

Okay.   He says that  based on what he has seen Chai r.   Okay.  

And then she comes and make a di fferent  – another 

statement.    

 Now Chair  I  wi l l  te l l  you that  i f  Mr Soni  and the team 

were assist ing you and put t ing al l  the facts before you and 10 

not  jump and I  want to say that  he has been select ive Chai r.   

You can see Chai r  that  th is property story and I  should not  

have agreed to i t  Chai r  wi th hindsight  I  should not  have 

agreed I  accepted your  guidance.   I  should have insisted that  

my aff idavi t  be deal t  wi th in fu l l .   Because I  have said there 

is bias – there is  predetermined agenda.  I t  is playing i tsel f  

out  here Chai r  and I  am being asked about documents that  

have been l i f ted not  the invest igat ions of  the commission 

and I  want to te l l  – I  want to say to this commission I  have 

said Chai r  that  when I  came here and I  want to repeat  the 20 

statement consistent ly.   When I  came here I  was told that  

Montana paid for propert ies R36 mi l l ion and these were paid 

for by his – by a contracted party to  PRASA. 

 I  said that  is fa lse.   And I  then indicated the detai ls of  

these t ransact ions and how I  was able to pay for 1,2,3.   That  
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is one Chai r.  

 We are no longer ta lk ing about the R3 mi l l ion – the 

36 mi l l ion.   We have moved to something else.   Okay.   Now 

we come to this issue and you can see Chai r  that  what he is 

get t ing at  – what he is  get t ing at  in  th is  statement  is the – i t  

is not  the money in the account i t  is the handwri t ten notes 

because those are suggest  – those are – that  is why he says 

these have not  been denied by Mr Riaan Van Der Walt  but  

those are not  t ransact ions – they are notes – handwri t ten 

notes Chai r.   And unless i f  he know what was in the mind of  10 

that  person he would not  be able to say for certain ty I  take 

that  as i t  is.   And he – he meant i t  Chai r.   As ev idence leader 

I  said i t  yesterday Mr Soni  you have got  a duty to assist  the 

Chair  towards f inding the t ruth.   Now you are peddl ing – you 

are peddl ing you know what are effect ively stor ies that  have 

been created by other people outside and that  is why Chair  I  

actual ly object  Chair  to al l  these documents that  have been 

l i f ted I  wi l l  never Chair  agree to answer quest ions based on 

documents that  have been l i f ted.  I  want  that  aff idavi t  to be 

here to be read so that  the commission – the Chair  can have 20 

the total  p icture of  what – of  what i t  is.  

 So his response I  re ject  Chai r  I  do not  accept .  

CHAIRPERSON:   We – for the lunch break.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Soni  shal l  we – wi l l  you say whatever  
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you wish to say when we come back or do you want to… 

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no I  wi l l  say i t  when we come back – just  

let  me check what  the. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   When we come ja.   Yes okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   What the documents say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We are at  nearly  twenty f ive past  one let  

us resume at  hal f  past  two.    

ADV SONI SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay  le t  us  cont inue.   You were  go ing ,  

Mr  Son i ,  to  say someth ing  in  response to  what  Mr  Montana  

had sa id  be fo re  lunch.   You may do so  bu t  I  want  to  p lan t  

th is  idea tha t  in  orde r  to  make sure  tha t  we make progress,  

i t  may we l l  be  tha t  your  team shou ld  no te  the  th ings tha t  

Mr  Montana has  sa id  around the  cr i t i c i sm tha t  he  has 

ar t i cu la ted  bu t  maybe not  respond now.   We car ry  on ,  

t ry ing  to  f in ish  what  we have to  do  and then a t  some s tage 20 

when i t  i s  done,  you can then dea l  w i th  a l l  the  cr i t i c i sm and  

so  on  so  tha t  we make prog ress o therwise ,  we get  he ld  up .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Le t  us  do  tha t .   But  

i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  you r  team members ,  your  team note  a l l  
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the  cr i t i c i sm,  a l l  the  concerns  tha t  Mr  Montana has 

ment ioned.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  they can be looked a t  on  the i r  

mer i t s  a t  some s tage la te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    May I ,  though,  ra ise  one po in t  to  th is  

and we have a  resource fu l . . .  [Speaker ’s  m icrophone is  no t  

work ing  proper ly  –  speaker  unc lea r ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  jus t  pu l l  the  m ic  c loser  to  you .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Oh,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .managed to  ge t  the  emai l  tha t  

Mr  Montana was concerned about  f rom Ms De Beer.   May I  

jus t  have leave  to  hand tha t  up?  That  w i l l  jus t  c lea r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .one smal l  par t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A t  leas t  we know tha t  we can 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .we can a t tend to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I f  I  cou ld  jus t  read in to  the  reco rd  

what  the  emai l  says  and then perhaps you shou ld  g i ve  i t  an  

exh ib i t  number  i f  we want  to  admi t  i t  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  s ta r t ing  w i th  who i t  i s  f rom and who  

i t  was addressed to .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  as  you p lease.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  the  sub jec t  mat te r  i s .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  da te ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And you w i l l  see ,  Cha i rperson,  based 

on what  i s  conta ined in  paragraph 3  o f  Ms De  Beer ’s  

a f f idav i t ,  the  re fe rence is  J  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . .BQ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You want  us  to  l ink  i t  w i th  what  page and  

what  bund le?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Page –  oh ,  sor ry,  Cha i rpe rson.   

Bund le  –  page –  Bund le  8 ,  SS-18,  page 121.  

CHAIRPERSON :    121.   Oh,  tha t  i s  Ms De Beer ’s  a f f idav i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A f f idav i t .   We are  jus t  go ing  to  f in ish  

tha t  very  qu i ck l y  bu t  I  thought  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . to  c lear  tha t  up ,  tha t  w i l l  he lp ,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  can I  ob jec t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  a re  you  ob jec t ing  to  be fore  he  

reads i t?  

MR MONTANA :    Because th is  i s  –  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    I  am g lad  tha t  th is  i s  he re .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  le t  us  no t  regu lar ise  someth ing  tha t  i s  

i r regu la r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  I  want  to  hear  what  he  has to  

say about  i t  f i rs t .   What  a re  you ta lk ing  about?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  bu t  I  am say ing  tha t  we are  even 

g iv ing  i t  a  number  and every th ing  when we are  supposed to 

dea l  w i th  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  have not  g iven i t  any  number.  

MR MONTANA :    He was ment ion ing  the  number,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And I  have  sa id  once I  have read i t  

in ,  we can dec ide  whethe r  we want  to  admi t  i t  as  an  

a f f idav i t  –  as  an  annexure ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  le t  h im read  –  le t  me see what  i t  i s .   

He can exp la in .   And le t  me hear  what  he  says.   Then,  i f  
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you  have someth ing  to  say,  then you can say i t .  

MR MONTANA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  was mere ly  say ing ,  Cha i rperson,  

tha t  when one looks a t  the  t i t le  g iven to  the  document ,  i t  i s  

Annexure  KDB-2 .   I t  i s  the  same one re fer red  to  in  

parag raph 3 .   That  i s  the  one Mr  Montana was concerned  

about .   And th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom Ms Ursu la  Wi l l i s  da ted  the  

11 t h  o f  March 2013 to  book ings@armani (?) .   That  i s  

obv ious ly  Ms De Beer ’s  company and CC’d  is  Mr  Montana 10 

and the  sub jec t  i s :   Mr  TL Montana,  address (?)  fo r  

va lua t ion  cent re .   And i t  says :  

“H i ,  Dan ie l .  

There  is  the  address fo r  a  copy o f  the 

approved p lans.  

However,  the  va lua t ion  you prov ided  us  w i th  

f rom is  f rom 2009 .  

S ince then the  proper ty  p r i ces  have changed.  

I  spoke to  No lene and the  Reg iona l  Head,  

Wi l l iam . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and they w i l l  no t  be  ab le  20 

to  va lue  the  proper t y  fo r  more  than  

R 7 .5  m i l l ion  based on the  cur ren t  market  

cond i t ions .  

Due to  th is ,  I  do  no t  want  you to  waste  your  

t ime dropp ing  o f f  the  p lans.  
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We wi l l  no t  be  va lue  fo r  any more  than we 

have. . . ”  

 And i t  i s  –  s igned  by  –  or  sent  by  Ms Wi l l i s .   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you a re  say ing  th is  i s  the  annexure  

tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  in  Ms De Beer ’s  parag raph. . .   I s  i t  para  

2?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Paragraph 3 ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  paragraph 3 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    On the  second l ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  Mr  Montana  was say ing  i t  shou ld  be  10 

who is  in  content? [Speaker  no t  c lear ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Before  we proceed.   Mr  Montana,  

do  you want  to  say someth ing?  

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  am g lad  th is  th ing  is  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Because aga in ,  th is  emai l  i s  so  mater ia l  

in  two respects .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    The f i rs t  one i s  the  fac t  tha t  i t  shows how 20 

the  f i rs t  p lan  around fo r  buy ing  th is  p roper ty  was me 

approach ing  the  bank.   That  i s  why – th is  emai l  f rom 

Ursu la  Wi l l i s .   Second ly,  i t  con f i rms the  po in t  I  was mak ing  

tha t  the  reason why d id  no t  p roceed is  no t  because o f  any 

shenan igans.   I t  i s  p rec ise ly  because the  bank re fused to 
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va lue  th is  p roper t y  fo r  more  than seven po in t  f i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  the  bank was wrong but  tha t  

i s  immater ia l .   The fac tua l  ev idence befo re  us .   I t  te l l s  us  

the  s to ry,  Cha i r.   Now i f  you take  th is  ou t  o f  the  equat ion  

okay?  Then you are  go ing  to  te l l  us  about  the  fac t  tha t  we 

were  do ing  in  i s iZu lu  [speak ing  vernacu lar ] .   So you are  

keep ing  th is  ou t  because you are  t ry ing  to  say:   No,  no  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  hang on Mr  Montana.   I  know 10 

what  you th ink  about  i t s  absence ear l ie r.   You have to ld  me 

tha t  bu t  now i t  i s  here .   You have no prob lem tha t  we admi t  

i t?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   That  i s  the  second issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  what  do  you say?  

MR MONTANA :    The second issue  Cha i r  i s  about  –  I  know 

you are  g iv ing  a  d i rec t l y  f rom how the  team shou ld  be  

dea l ing  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  you are  s i t t ing  w i th  a  chap  who is  20 

very  unhappy here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    And I  am not  go ing  to  le t  i t  go ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am a f ra id ,  Cha i r,  you have to  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no .   You have got  to  pu t  your  

s ide ,  pu t  how your  concerns . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  as  Mr  Son i  spoke ear l ie r  on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I  sa id ,  o f  course ,  we have sa id  tha t  the  

s ta tement  f rom Ms De Beer  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  the  a f f idav i t .  10 

MR MONTANA :    The –  no ,  i t  i s  no t  the  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.   I t  

i s  a  sworn  s ta tement  in  the  mat te r  in  cour t .   I t  is  no t  a  

s ta te  –  i t  i s  no t  an  a f f idav i t  deposed to ,  to  the  Commiss ion ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  i t  i s  no t  a  –  i t  i s  a  –  on  the  face  

o f  i t ,  i t  i s  an  a f f idav i t .   A sworn  s ta tement  and an a f f idav i t  

i s  the  same th ing .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Not  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .p robab ly  made  i t  to  the  Commiss ion .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  i t  was not  fo r  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    And there fore  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    And there fore ,  the  issue tha t  I  have  

ra ised before .   I  sa id  the  admiss ib i l i t y  o f  a l l  these  

documents  tha t  were  l i f ted(? )  tha t  they are  no t  the  –  you  

have made the  po in t  and I  have accepted i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Look,  when we invest iga te ,  we  look a t  

every th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Here  i t  i s  no t  look ing  a t  every th ing .   I t  i s  

the  Commiss ion  p lac ing  re l iance on these documents  tha t  I  10 

even say beyond  tha t  a re  improper ly  ob ta ined.   So I  am 

say ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  fo r  now we know th is  document  un t i l  

such t ime,  Cha i r,  tha t  overa l l  w i th  a l l  these documents ,  as  

you have now d i rec ted ,  tha t  you look a t  th is  document  and 

sa t is fy  yourse l f .    

 And I  am say ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  they undermine the  

impact  on  the  ve ry  in teg r i t y  o f  th is  Commiss ion .   I t  i s  l i ke 

someth ing  is  be ing  sneaked in  fo r  an  agenda even i f  tha t  i s  

no t  so ,  i t  says  tha t .   And I  th ink  tha t  Cha i rperson shou ld  

no t  take  th is  l igh t l y.   So I  am say ing  Cha i r  tha t  i s  the  next  20 

s tep  fo r  now unt i l  you  have made the  de terminat ion  we  

noted.    

 I  knew th is  emai l ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  why I  cou ld  no t  

p rov ide  i t  because I  am rep ly ing  here .   But  le t  me make,  

Cha i r,  the  second  po in t  tha t  I  th ink  i t  very  impor tan t .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I  am go ing  to  cont inue w i th  ev idence,  

Cha i r,  respond ing  to  be ing  taken  th rough th is  document .   

Mr  Son i  sa id ,  d id  no t  say  S iyangena or  TMM on ly  pa id .   He 

sa id  we know tha t .   Now we know tha t ,  i s  he  speak ing  on  

beha l f  o f  the  Lega l  Team?  Is  he  re fe r r ing  to  the 

Commiss ion?   

 Cha i r,  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t ,  fo r  us  to  

p roceed now wi th  th is  document  and th is  th ing  tha t  i s  

based on l ies ,  I  th ink  the  Cha i r  shou ld  request  –  I  am 10 

w i l l i ng  –  I  am not  happy but  I  am wi l l i ng  to  come here  

aga in  tomorrow Cha i r.   We get  th is  a f f idav i t  and we get  the  

bank s ta tements ,  Cha i r,  because the  crux  o f  why we are  

s i t t ing  here  cent res  on  what  Mr  Son i  has sa id  –  was 

dea l ing  w i th  abou t  who funded these proper t ies .    

 You remember  yesterday,  and th is  w i l l  be  my las t  

po in t ,  Cha i r.   Yes terday I  exp la ined.   I  sa id  when you look 

a t  P rec ise  Trade,  i t  i s  qu i te  c lear  f rom the  very  s ta tement  

tha t  I  have been presented tha t  there  a  lo t  o f  peop le ,  there  

are  a  lo t  o f  investors  in  there .   And you can even  see on  20 

some o f  the  no tes .   Th is  Commiss ion  has jumped a l l  o f  

those.    

 Cha i r,  and I  am speak ing  on the  s t rength  o f  what  

has been asked  f rom me.   That  there  are  o the r  peop le  

invo l ved.   Now the  quest ion  ar i ses .   The l ie  o f  th is  i s  tha t  
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TMM/S iyangena pa id  and I  am mak ing  a  submiss ion  tha t  

they d id  no t  pay,  Cha i r.   I  have checked and I  am sat is f ied  

w i th  the  in fo rmat ion  and we th ink  tha t  i f  Mr  Son i  says  

S iyangena o r  TMM pa id  to  Prec ise  Trade.    

 Cha i r,  we have to  pu t  th is  th ing  on  the  tab le  now 

before  I  even p roceed w i th  a l l  o f  th is  because I  cannot  

answer  on  –  because th is  th ing  –  the  who le  th ing  is  based 

on a  l ie ,  Cha i r.   And I  do  no t  see  how I  am even go ing  to  

par t i c i pa te  in  i t .   I  am go ing  to  s i t ,  l i s ten  Cha i r.   I  want  to  

he lp  the  Cha i r.   I  th ink  i t  i s  e i ther  we do what  we d id  10 

yesterday.    

 Cha i r,  ge t  tha t  a f f idav i t ,  number  one.   The Cha i r  

ge t  the  bas is  o f  tha t  s ta tement  tha t  Mr  Son i  has sa id ,  

okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    We put  them on  the  tab le .   And f ina l l y,  

Cha i r.   He says,  Mr  Son i ,  tha t  they have rep l ied ,  they have  

responded to  the  s ta tement  o f  the  app l i ca t ion  by  TMM and  

S iyangena but  Cha i r  I  have then  been fu rn ished – as  a  

person –  I  am p robab ly  the ,  as  the  word  goes,  the  number 20 

one accused and. . .  accused has no t  been.   Even i f  we were  

in  a  c r im ina l  cour t ,  Cha i r,  I  jus t  –  my lega l  team wi l l  s tand 

up and say:   We are  no t  g iven these documents .   We a re  

see ing  them for  the  f i rs t  t ime.   And a  good judge w i l l  say  

the  mat te r  i s  d ismissed.   Go home,  Mr  Montana.    
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 So  Cha i r,  I  am say ing  I  do  no t  want  us  to  jump 

and proceed.   I  know,  Cha i r,  tha t  you a re  say ing  s tudy(?)  

bu t  the  issue o f  the  payment  i s  so  cent ra l  tha t  i t  a f fec ts  

about  how we dea l  w i th  the  remainder  o f  th is  fac t .   So I  am 

prepared,  Cha i r,  un t i l  la te  ton igh t  i f  we get .   I  know tha t  

you have got  an  a f te rnoon sess ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  my request ,  Cha i r,  w i l l  be  tha t  th is  i s  

so  fundamenta l ,  i t  has  go t  a  bear ing  on  how I  am go ing  to  

be  asked th is  quest ion ,  Cha i r.   Mr  Son i  says . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  le t  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    . . .be fore  h im there  i s  a  co r rup t  man  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  take  th is  s tep  by  s tep ,  okay.   Now 

wi th  regard  to  th is  document .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i  can re f lec t  on  how i t  –  how he 

w ishes i t  to  be  dea l t  w i th .   One  approach is  fo r  i t  to  be 

admi t ted  separa te ly.   Another  approach is  fo r  i t  to  be  

s lo t ted  beh ind  Ms  De Beer ’s  a f f idav i t  on  the  bas is  tha t  i t  i s  20 

where  i t  i s  supposed to  have been .   Of  course ,  you  might  

have to  co l lec t  another  poss ib le  approach on tha t .   Those  

are  the  two tha t  come to  my mind.   Admi t t ing  anyth ing  does 

not  necessar i l y  mean what  i s  wr i t ten  there  is  t rue .  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  a  separa te  i ssue.   So when i t  

comes to  the  o ther  documents  we  are  ta l k ing  abou t ,  I  get  

the  impress ion  tha t  par t  o f  your  concern ,  maybe the  main  

concern  is  tha t ,  you a re  say ing ,  what  i s  conta ined in  those  

documents ,  o r  a t  leas t  some o f  i t ,  i s  no t  t rue  and  tha t  i s  

par t  o f  you r  concern .   But  in  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  you s t i l l  have  

th is  concern  about  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you were  ta lk ing  about  

be fore  lunch.   Now le t  me ask.   Dur ing  the  lunch  break,  

was the  Secre tar ia t  asked to  look  fo r  i t?   They might  no t  

f ind  i t  so  qu ick ly.    10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We have found i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have found i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   A re  there  enough cop ies?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  why –  I  th ink ,  why do 

you not  hand i t  up?  G ive  h im a  copy and then we can take  

i t  f rom there .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am s topp ing ,  Mr  Montana.   I  am not  20 

cont inu ing  because I  d id  no t  know tha t  i t  has  been found.   

So the  fac t  tha t  i t  has  been found might  a f fec t  what  we are  

go ing  to  do  nex t .   So I  am not  cont inu ing  w i th  what  I  

wanted to  say.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Except ,  Cha i r,  tha t  –  on  two th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  agree w i th  you Cha i r  tha t  –  you know 

th is  emai l  suppor ts  my vers ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I  shou ld  be  jumping and say le t  i t  be  

admi t ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    So  when you say tha t  i t  can  be admi t ted  10 

separa te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Maybe Cha i r  tha t  there  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  

can l i ve  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r,  your  summary o f  what  my  

prob lem is  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .about  these documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i s  no t  comple te .  20 

MR MONTANA :    I t  i s  no t  comple te ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Le t  me ind i ca te  what  I  am say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am say ing  –  and you remember  I  ra ised 
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the  issue about  fa i rness,  tha t  the  Commiss ion  has to  

eva lua te  ev idence on both  s ides.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And then come -  the  Cha i rperson w i l l  

come to  a  de te rm inat ion .   That  I  respect ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    What  we are  hav ing  now,  Cha i r.   Because  

the  ev idence leader  i s  an  ex tens ion  o f  the  Commiss ion .   He 

is  ass is t ing  the  Commiss ion  in  comple t ing  the  job .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA :    The Commiss ion ,  there fore ,  has now 

enter  the  arena.   I t  i s  box ing  w i th  me Cha i r.   That  i s  the  

issue.   The Commiss ion  has accepted a  par t i cu la r  vers ion  

wh ich  is  fa lse .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Now I  am not  say ing  i t  must  except  the  

t rue  vers ion  bu t  what  the  Commiss ion  shou ld  do  is  to  say 

tha t  a l l  the  peop le  are  mak ing  a l legat ions aga ins t  Montana,  

le t  them f ind  –  le t  them put  the i r  a f f idav i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR MONTANA :    And tha t  they a re  led  th rough a  p rocess.   

The ev idence leader  l eads them through tha t  p rocess and 

then I  am inv i ted  to  come and rep ly  to  them and then I  a lso  

have my r igh ts  to  e i the r  c ross  –  to  dec ide  to  app ly  to  the  

Commiss ion .   These peop le ,  Cha i r,  a re  no t  he re  in  the  
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a rena.   I  have Mr  Son i  s tand ing  he re  and say S iyangena or  

TMM pa id  fo r  these proper t ies  and he says we know tha t .   

He says i t  f i rm ly  Cha i r.   That  i s  what  he  sa id ,  okay?  I  am 

say ing  i t  i s  fa lse .    

 And I  am say ing  the  reason why i t  i s  happen ing  

is  because o f  how we dea l  w i th  th is  ev idence.   So the  most  

p roper  and fa i r  way is  to  say a l l  those peop le  who are  

mak ing  –  so  i f  Werksmans or  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  or  anyone  

who wants  to  be l ieve  they have got  ev idence to  suppor t  

the i r  th ings,  they must  no t  do  i t  beh ind  Mr  Son i ,  okay?   10 

 They must  do  i t  themse lves and Mr  Son i  can lead 

them and then I  am inv i ted ,  Cha i r.   What  i s  happen ing  now.  

I  am here  a t  the  Commiss ion  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  and  

I  am box ing  w i th  the  Commiss ion  because the  Commiss ion  

has admi t ted  ev idence tha t  i s  no t  i t s  own ev idence.   I t  i s  

be ing  what?   L i f ted .   Okay?   

 In  the  process o f  invest iga t ion  –  who l i f t .   But  in  

te rms o f  p lac ing  re l iance on a  ve rs ion  tha t  has to  be  pu t  

be fore  the  Commiss ion .   Cha i r,  i t  cannot  be .   In  fac t ,  i t  

te l l s  us  tha t  th is  p rocess is  so  fundamenta l l y  f lawed.   And 20 

Cha i r,  tha t  i s  my –  tha t  i s  the  hear t  o f  my ob jec t ion .   That  

the  peop le  who are  mak ing  accusat ions aga ins t  me,  they  

are  no t  here .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  they are  speak ing  th rough Mr  Son i  
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se lec t i ve ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   So  as  I  unders tand your  

pos i t ion ,  as  i t  s tands now – as  we s tand now,  i t  i s  th is .   

One.   There  a re  documents  here  tha t  you a re  go ing  to  be  

quest ioned on.   You have a  p rob lem be ing  quest ioned on  

those documents  be fore  cer ta in  peop le  are  ca l led  to  g ive  

ev idence in  connect ion  w i th  those documents .   You say 

those peop le  who  maybe accus ing  you,  they shou ld  depose 

to  a f f idav i t s  f i rs t  and sub jec t  themse lves to  quest ion ing  by  

the  Commiss ion  and the reaf te r  you  get  ca l led  to  respond to  10 

tha t .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  can a lso  say i t  i s  r igh t  my cross-

examine . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You can then app ly  fo r  leave to  c ross-

examine them.   Now,  maybe befo re  I  say  anyth ing .   Wi th 

regard  to  –  I  know tha t  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on ,  Mr  Son i ,  maybe  

the  Lega l  Team can dea l  w i th  th is  la te r.   Do you want  to  

say anyth ing  on  th is  l im i ted  issue about  h is  pos i t ion? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rman,  I  do  no t  want  to  in f lame 

h is  s i tua t ion  tha t  seems . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . to  have heated up.   I  do  no t  know 

fo r  what  reason.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So  le t  me not  say  anyth ing .   I  ra ther  
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hea r  your  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . your  way fo rward ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Now maybe to  be  on  the  sa fe  

s ide .   Le t  us  j us t  ident i f y  the  documents  tha t  you have a  

concern  w i th  be fore  I  can go fu r ther.   Le t  us  ident i f y  wh ich  

ones exact ly.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  pre l im inary  repor t  and I  

ment ioned i t  th is  even ing(?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    . . .w i th  a l l  i t s  annexures,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  oaky.  

MR MONTANA :    Wi th  a l l  –  except ,  Cha i r,  the  –  except  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  m is te r  –  i s  tha t  a  Rober t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  the  par tner  fo r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    The par tner.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .Mr  Van der  Wa l t ’s  par tne r.  

MR MONTANA :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  have a  p rob lem because he 

tes t i f ied .  20 

MR MONTANA :    He tes t i f ied  –  he  presented . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . the  o thers  tes t i f ied ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And now i t  i s  c lear  tha t  they d id  no t  even 
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deposed o f  a f f idav i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    How are  they  a l lowed to  come here ,  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Le t  us  go  to  tha t  repor t  Mr  Son i .   

Where  do  I  f ind  tha t  repor t ,  f i rs t?   I  jus t  want  us  to  –  I  want  

to  see the  ac tua l  documents .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    The repor ts  i t se l f  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  bas ica l l y,  the  documents  are  those 

wh ich  are  annexures to  the  pre l im inary  repor t  except  fo r  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    H is  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  so  tha t  i s  Bund le  8  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .SS-18,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  And what  page?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    The repor t  s ta r ts  a t  page 4 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 4 .   I t  s ta r ts  a t  page four  and goes 20 

up to  page 32 and then the  annexures s ta r t  f rom page 34.   

I s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  tha t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And they go  up to  –  up  to  what  page?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Wel l ,  the  who le  document  together  
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w i th  the  annexures –  to  the  annexures goes up to  page 

240.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Two,  four,  ze ro?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  r igh t  a t  the  end?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   No,  sor ry,  241.  

CHAIRPERSON :    241.   Yes,  okay.   And as  I  unders tand  

your  concern  or  ob jec t ion .   I t  i s  s imp ly  tha t  because  

cer ta in  peop le  who are  connected w i th  these documents  

have not  deposed  to  a f f idav i t s  and have not  tes t i f ied?   10 

MR MONTANA :    Some . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .deposes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Some tes t i f ied  w i thout  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So w i thout  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Depos ing  to  a f f idav i t s .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  to  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Par t i cu la r ly  a l l  those l i f ted  documents ,  

Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am say ing  le t  us  pu t  them as ide .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    Whoever  i s  beh ind  them,  le t  them come.   

Le t  us  –  we can do i t  th is  week.   Le t  them depose o f  
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a f f idav i t s .   A t tached these very  documents .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    And Cha i r  my r igh t ,  I  am not  t rampled  

upon Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  c lear  th i s .   In  respect  o f  

those peop le  who  tes t i f ied ,  even i f  they  d id  no t  deposed to  

a f f idav i t s .   Do you have a  prob lem wi th  tha t ,  to  the i r  

documents?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  the  document  tha t  we have jus t  

been d iscuss ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .o f  Ms De Beer.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  am not  sure .   A t tached th is  document .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I  am say ing  tha t ,  fo r  example ,  there  i s  a  

b ig  p rob lem wi th  tha t .   The repor t  I  have a  p rob lem wi th ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  the  repor t  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    That  we have passed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    The . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  maybe we can go  th rough  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    We . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  the  –  the re  is  a  Parkwood  issue.   

Cha i r,  there  is  the  documents  there .   Then there  is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.    

MR MONTANA :    . . . the  document  we have dea l t  w i th  ear l ie r  

on  a l ready,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    We cannot  w i thdraw i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR MONTANA :    I  am say ing  there  is  a  document  on  

Parkwood . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .wh ich  –  I  am happy w i th  Parkwood,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    There  is  no  p rob lem wi th  Parkwood.  

MR MONTANA :    I t  suppor ts  my s tory  fu l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    Now Cha i r,  we have got  Annexure  OR-2.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Te l l  me what  page so  tha t  we can 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    I t  i s  page 98.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Anyth ing  be fore  page 98 is  f ine?  
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MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  no .   There  is  a  repor t  be fo re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no,  the  repor t  I  know.   Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .   Then there  is  Parkwood.   We have 

dea l t  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  i t  i s  the  same pr inc ip le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    That  app ly.   We have  a l ready 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  we have dea l t  w i th  i t .  10 

MR MONTANA :    We have dea l t  w i th  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So  I  do  no t  want  to  go  back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  then there  is  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  we s tar t  f rom where  there  is  a  

p rob lem.  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  we s ta r ted  a t  page 98,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 98.    

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

MR MONTANA :    And . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   That  par t i cu la r  document  is  what?   

What  i s  tha t  document ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  i s  a  commentary  on  the 
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annexures tha t  f lows f rom page 105.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So  what  one d id  there ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

i s .   Took the  documents  and se t  ou t  f rom page 98  to  104 

what  the  re levant  document  say.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   That  -  you have prob lem wi th  

tha t?  

MR MONTANA :    I  have a  b ig  p rob lem,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I f  you  look a t  page 27.1 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Now tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  a t  the  hear t .   So the  

Commiss ion  has summar ised th is  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    271?  

MR MONTANA :    I f  you  look a t  page 99.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.  

MR MONTANA :    And tha t  i s  –  wha t  i s  i t  ca l led?  Bund le  8 ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you are  re fer r i ng  to  page two  

someth ing  jus t  now.  20 

MR MONTANA :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id  i t  i s  a t  the  hear t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Yes-no,  I  am say ing  –  we l l ,  I  was look ing  

a t  the  number  o f  the  document  bu t  I  re fe r r ing  to  the  red  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 140 of 343 
 

number  99 ,  Cha i r,  a t  the  top .  

CHAIRPERSON :    99 .   Yes?  

MR MONTANA :    99 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    And i f  you look a t  paragraph 7 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Parag raph 7 ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    7 .1 ,  7 .2 ,  7 .8  and a l l  o f  those th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Th is  i s  a  summary by  the  Commiss ion ,  as  

Mr  Son i  sa id ,  bu t  they are  pu l l ing  th is  in fo rmat ion  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . f rom the  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And I  am say ing ,  i t  i s  no t  on ly  fa lse ,  

okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    And i f  i t  was fa lse  and i t  i s  sa id  by  a  

w i tness,  i t  w i l l  be  f ine .   I  w i l l  be  w i l l i ng  to  cha l lenge tha t  

w i tness.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Now Mr  Son i  has gone summar ise  and  

adv ise  the  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .on  someth ing  tha t  i s  very  fa l se .   Now I  
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must  f igh t .   Bas ica l l y,  I  am put  in  a  pos i t ion  Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .where  I  must  ac tua l l y  f igh t  Mr  Son i  to  

t ry  to  p rove to  h im . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  th is  i s  no t  t rue .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MONTANA :    And Cha i r,  le t  me say tha t  I  have  noted  

and kept  qu ie t  because i f  you l ook a t  even the  l ine  o f  

quest ion ing ,  i t  i s  no t  one tha t  opens up and say we are  

t ry ing  to  –  and g ive  h im these var ious op t ions.   I  am tak ing  

th rough th is .   A t  the  end,  I  am to ld  tha t  someone w i l l .   

Okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  a  le t -o f f (? ) ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    A l l  these w i tnesses who were  he re ,  20 

espec ia l l y  in  respect  o f  PRASA,  s i t t ing  here ,  Ms Ngoye,  

they were  g ive  the  p la t fo rm to  say eve ry th ing  under  the  

sun.   For  me,  I  am not  even asked on a  pa r t i cu la r  i ssue,  I  

sa id  can you –  Mr  Son i  says,  Mr  Montana,  le t  us  agree on 

the  methodo logy.   I  sa id  I  agree.   He sa id  the  methodo logy  
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i s  go ing  to  be  le t  us  conf i rm the  fac tua l  mat te rs  and then  

we w i l l  then take  i t  f rom there .   I  a l lowed on Parkwood,  

Cha i r,  knowing tha t  Parkwood i s  even my s t rength ,  I  bu i l t  

the  proper ty  and I  so ld  i t .   Bu t  when he f in ished tha t ,  the  

very  same –  to  fac i l i ta te  o f  th is  Commiss ion ,  he  then 

comes to  a conc lus ion ,  he  does not  say  hav ing  then 

conf i rmed some o f  these fac tua l  i ssues,  I  want  to  pu t  the  

fo l low ing propos i t ions .   They were  no t  –  i t  was fo r  me to  

accept  o r  to  re jec t ,  he  moved f rom those –  down those  

propos i t ions  and then we conc luded on tha t  mat te r,  Cha i r,  10 

where  he  says I  am put t ing  to  you and says some peop le  

w i l l  say  tha t  –  now tha t  ev idence was not  even tes ted .    

 Now i f  you look a t  7 .1 ,  7 .2  and a l l  o f  those,  wh ich  is  

a  summary o f  the  Commiss ion ,  I  do  no t  have any prob lem 

wi th  somebody  be ing  wrong,  i t  shou ld  no t  be  the  

Commiss ion ,  the  Commiss ion  cannot  be  fac tua l l y  –  cannot  

ge t  i t s  fac ts  inco r rec t  because they have l i f ted  th is  th ing  

f rom somewhere .   I f  they  come to  tha t  de terminat ion  as  a  

resu l t  o f  the  invest iga t ion  i t  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r.  

 So you can see tha t  document ,  Cha i r,  7 .1 ,  7 .2  and  20 

you go on and a l l  o f  those th ings.   Th is  Commiss ion  moves 

f rom the  p remises wh ich  be l ies  the  s ta tement  made by  Mr  

Son i  be fore  lunch tha t  the re  i s  the  propaganda mach inery  

ou t  there  has been te l l ing  the  coun t ry  tha t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  no ,  no ,  tha t  is  f ine ,  I  
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unders tand.   So but  th is  i s  –  you have a  prob lem wi th  th is  

document .   I  jus t  want  to  ident i f y  the  documents  tha t  you  

have a  p rob lem w i th .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  –  yes ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i s  i s  one o f  them? 

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    R igh t ,  le t  us  cont inue,  le t  me ident i f y  

p roper ly.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  can I  remind you,  tha t  when I  say  I  

have a  prob lem I  am say ing  tha t  i f  there  –  the re  are  peop le  10 

beh ind  these documents  or  these a l legat ions,  pu t  them 

forward ,  I  am wi l l i ng  to  dea l  w i th  them and cha l lenge them 

but  no t  by  the  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  ident i f y  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    135,  Cha i r,  in  page 135,  there  is  aga in  a  

summary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When you sk ip  –  th is  document  tha t  we 

have jus t  dea l t  w i th ,  tha t  you have a  p rob lem wi th ,  does i t  

re fe r  to  a  number  o f  documents  tha t  come a f te r  i t?   Mr  20 

Son i?   Does i t  re fe r  to…? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  jus t  re fe rs  to  the  ag reement  

be tween Mr  Montana and the  guesthouse [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   What  I  am t ry ing  to  i s  jus t  
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ident i f y.   So does the  agreement ,  Mr  Son i ,  go  up  to  page  

116?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  le t  me –  I  am sor ry,  I  

th ink  we are  ta lk ing . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i s  tha t  anothe r  one?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The documents  tha t  I  thought  you  

were  say ing  tha t  Mr  Montana had a  prob lem wi th  seems to  

be  in  Ms De Beer ’s  a f f idav i t ,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  page 121.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  what  we were  ta l k ing  about  jus t  a  

few minutes  ago w i th  Ms Montana is  the  documents  a t  page 10 

98.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  I  am t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  now 

because Mr  Montana then moved to  a  much la te r  page and 

I  am t ry ing  to  see whether  he  is  jumping o ther  documents  

because they are  pa r t  o f  th is  one tha t  he  says he  has a  

prob lem wi th  o r  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  maybe I  can take  you to  

tha t  one by  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  a f te r  the  summary are  the  

documents  tha t  I  re l ied  on  and tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 105,  tha t  

was the  ag reement  be tween the  guesthouse and  Johan 

Smi th .   That  was f rom 105 to  110.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  110?  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So tha t  wou ld  fa l l  –  tha t  i s  the  

agreement .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  agreement ,  tha t  i s  the  

f i rs t  document  tha t  we went  th rough in  regard  to  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So perhaps Mr  Montana shou ld  be  

asked …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh and then the  next  document  you have 10 

a  prob lem wi th?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  maybe le t  us  do  i t  p roper ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And you s tar ted  w i th  page 3  w i th  the 

pre l im inary  repor t .   We have passed tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  the  next  one is  the  no tes  in  respect  

o f  page 34.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wai t ,  I  am sor ry,  w i l l  your  jun io r  jus t  

make a  no te  o f  the  page numbers  o f  the  d i f fe ren t  20 

documents?   Yes,  the  next  one a f te r  the  pre l im inary 

repor t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  page 34.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  what  i s  a t  page 34?  

MR MONTANA:    Page 34,  Cha i r,  i s  what  Mr  Son i  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh what… 

MR MONTANA:    To  the  no tes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    For  example ,  le t  me g ive  you an example ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  I  see …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Do you see tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    They fa l l  in to  the  same ca tegory  as  the  

o ther  no tes  tha t  you dea l t  w i th .  10 

MR MONTANA:    As  the  o thers ,  Cha i r,  yes ,  tha t  i s  what  I  

am re fer r ing  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    D ispar i t y  because va lue  and  par t ies ’ 

p r ice ,  no t  the  Commiss ion  say ing  tha t .   I t  is  Pau l  

O ’Su l l i van  in  h is  a f f idav i t  and now i t  i s  a  pos i t ion  o f  the  

Commiss ion .   So Mr  O ’Su l l i van  must  f i l e  an  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And then he is  quest ioned and we  fo l low 

the  process proper ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  so  tha t  i s  the 

next  –  tha t  goes up to  page 39,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and then?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  there  is  that  
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long document .   I  th ink  i f  you  look a t  the  emai ls ,  some o f  

the  documents  tha t  have been  l i f ted .   The o f fe r  to  

purchase,  Cha i r,  there  is  no  prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    That  we must  accept ,  I  th ink  tha t  I  have 

s igned tha t ,  I  am happy w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    And then the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  the  o f fe r  to  purchase a t  page 46? 

MR MONTANA:    A t  page 46,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    And tha t  w i l l  inc lude the  addendum.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The documents  tha t  a re  be fore  page 46 

but  a f te r  the  no tes ,  you have no prob lem wi th  those.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  no ,  fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  one,  Cha i r,  I  do  

no t  have.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  have a  prob lem wi th  the  no tes  bu t  

no t  the  documents ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  so  f rom page 40?  20 

MR MONTANA:    I s  i t  page –  I  thought  i t  i s  the  no tes ,  bu t  i t  

w i l l  be  page… 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  wou ld  th is  he lp  because 

I  know the  documents  and I  am fami l ia r  w i th  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I f  I  can  jus t  dea l  w i th  them in  –  no t  to  

make any comment  bu t  jus t  so  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you know –  you can say –  ja ,  you 

can lead us ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  up to  page 45 are  those emai l  

exchanges between Mr  Montana and Ms Wi l l i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Do you  have any prob lem wi th  

those?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  those a re  f ine ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Those are  f ine ,  okay.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then the  next  one is  the  o f fe r  to  

purchase by  Mr  –  f rom Prec ise  Trade made to  Mr  Montana,  

tha t  i s  a t  page 46  to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    51 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    51  or  52 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  52 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    52 ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  he  sa id  he  has no t  p rob lem wi th  tha t .   

I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  Mr  Montana?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   And then –  ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    53  to  56  is  the  Deed o f  Transfer,  

Cha i r.  

MR MONTANA:    No p rob lem wi th  tha t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    No prob lem wi th  tha t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    No p rob lem,  Cha i r.   Then the  addendum 
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on,  I  must  hear  Mr  

Montana conf i rm i t .  

MR MONTANA:    I  con f i rm,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have no p rob lem,  ja .   Tha t  i s  53  

to . .?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  tha t  i s  53  to  56 ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Yes?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then the  addendum is  57  to  59 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you have no prob lem w i th  tha t  10 

e i the r,  I  imag ine ,  Mr  Montana?  The addendum? 

MR MONTANA:    The addendum – no,  Cha i r,  I  am happy  

w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then 60 to  –  f rom 60 onwards 

there  are  emai l s  be tween Mr  Montana and Mr  van der  Wal t ,  

60  to  64 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    60  to  64?  I s  i t  60  to  64?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Ja ,  as  you p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Montana,  any prob lem wi th  20 

those?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  no ,  no ,  I  am happy w i th  

those to  64 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then the re  is  65  to  seeming ly  76 ,  
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a re  a l l  the  des igns and photog raphs sent  to  Mr  Montana by  

the  peop le  who were  e f fec t ing  the  bu i ld ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   What  about  those Mr  Montana?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  tha t  par t i cu la r  document  i t  

runs in  fac t  w i th  o ther  emai ls  to  page –  I  th ink  94 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Or  ra ther  –  I  th ink  page 94,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    You w i l l  reca l l  I  even ob jec ted  because i t  

i s  those pages w i th  lo ts  o f  numbers?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And we cou ld  no t  even exp la in  what  these 

numbers  were ,  where  they are  coming f rom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  tha t  we w i l l  need,  o f  

course ,  tha t  they  are  there  –  the  conf i rmat ion  where  these  

numbers  a re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  unders tand the  pa r t  re la t ing  to  the 

numbers  bu t  w i th  regard  to  –  tha t  i s  no t  to  a s ing le  

document ,  i s  i t  no t ,  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  documents  or  i s  i t  one 20 

document?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  i t  was presented –  there  are  

th ree  d i f fe ren t  p layers  there .   I  th ink  tha t  one s tar t s  in  86 ,  

Cha i r.   Ja ,  I  th ink  the  des ign  ac tua l l y  ends up in  page 81,  

so  tha t  i s  f rom Mr  Nugwa.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Page 91 you mean or  81?  Or,  no… 

MR MONTANA:    65  to  81 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    65  to  81?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have a  prob lem wi th?  

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  have a  prob lem,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  have a  prob lem wi th  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  have a  prob lem,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  tha t  i s  65  to  81 ,  no  prob lem.   

Okay and then 82?  Okay,  Mr  Son i .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    82  to  83  is  a  job  de ta i l  sen t  to  Mr 

Montana.  

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  have a  prob lem,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  have a  prob lem.  

MR MONTANA:    Even the  one  a f te r,  I  do  no t  have a  

prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  even the  one a t  84 ,  i s  tha t  you 

sa id?   Even the  one a t  page 84?  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  even the  one a t  page 84.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    84  is  obv ious ly  the… 

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    84  and 85 a re  those emai ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I s  tha t  f ine?  That  i s  no  prob lem? 

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    86  onwards is  the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The document  he  was ta lk ing  about .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The document ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  he  has a  prob lem wi th  the 

document  s ta r t ing  a t  page 86 to… 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    94 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  94 ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  we –  

there  is  an  issue there .   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA:    91 ,  i f  you  go to  page 91,  tha t  i s  where  we 

have a  lo t  o f  numbers  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  tha t  we do not  know what  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    We are  no t  even sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  sa id  i f  I  look  a t  i t ,  we are  no t  even  

sure  whether  i t  i s  par t  o f  tha t  document .   So unt i l  –  tha t  

document ,  Cha i r,  i s  –  I  th ink  tha t  un t i l  page… 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  you r  on l y  p rob lem the  numbers ,  these 

f igures?  Once –  there  shou ld  be  an exp lanat ion  by  way o f  

a f f idav i t  o r  someth ing?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  these numbers  are  

…[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  s ta tes  what  they mean? 

MR MONTANA:    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O ther  than tha t  you do not  have any 

prob lem? 

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  no ,  these numbers ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i f  

there  i s  an  exp lanat ion  –  we do not  even know which  

document  tha t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    They are  s tand ing  on the i r  own.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA:    So  I  th ink  tha t  we need to  dea l  w i th  i t  

p roper ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   But  a lso ,  I  jus t  

pause he re  to  say i t  depends whether  anybody wants  to  

make an issue o f  them a lso .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  nobody wan ts  to  make an issue o f  

them,  they jus t  happen to  be  there  and they a re  no t  go ing  

to  be  pu t  to  you ,  i t  m igh t  no t  be  an  issue.   You w i l l  go  

a long w i th  tha t?  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  am happy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    My fundamenta l  i ssue is  tha t  the  

Commiss ion  must  no t  en ter  the  arena.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA:    That  i s  the  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay,  tha t  i s  up  to  

94 .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cont inue,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    95  –  oh  sor ry,  95 ,  96  and 97 re la tes  

to  the  emai l  to  Mr  van de r  Wal t  f rom Mr  Montana about  the  

app l iances.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then 97 is  the  invo i ce  fo r  the 10 

order  fo r  the  app l iances.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Any prob lem wi th  th is?  

MR MONTANA:    I  am happy w i th  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  happy w i th  th is ,  okay.   And the  

98 ,  we know you  have a  prob lem wi th  the  no tes  and then  

the  agreement  to  page -  you have no prob lem wi th .  

MR MONTANA:    Unt i l  –  the  no tes ,  they go  to  204.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The notes  go  up to  104.  

MR MONTANA:    104,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  and then Mr  Son i ,  cont inue?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then we  have the  agreement  o f  

purchase and sa le .  

MR MONTANA:    Sor ry,  Mr  Son i ,  98  to  104,  Cha i r,  we sa id  

we a re  keep ing  out .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have an ob jec t ion .  
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MR MONTANA:    I  have an ob jec t ion ,  the  no tes ,  I  have an 

ob jec t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you to ld  me,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  where  the  fa lse  th ings are  car r ied  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  you ment ioned tha t .   

Okay,  105?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    105 to  110 is  the  agreement  to  

purchase by  Mr  Smi th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no  prob lem wi th  tha t?  10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  am happy w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then 111 there  is  111 to  116 is  the  

agreement  by  Prec i se  Trade to  purchase the  proper ty,  the  

guesthouse.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Aanmani  Guesthouse.  

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  have an ob jec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No prob lem wi th  tha t ,  okay.   Yes,  Mr  

Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then the  Deed o f  Transfer,  20 

Cha i rperson,  i s  a t  117 to  120,  tha t  i s  an  o f f i c ia l  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no  prob lem wi th  tha t ,  Mr…? 

MR MONTANA:    I  am happy w i th  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then o f  course  there  is  Ms de 
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Beer ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  121 and 122 ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No prob lem wi th  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  re jec t  th is  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  Jus t  a r t i cu la te  your  bas is?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  you  reca l l  there  were  th ree  

th ings I  sa id  about  the  document .   F i r s t l y,  tha t  th is  

s ta tement  was meant  fo r  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  was l i f ted  f rom 

somewhere ,  does not  address the  issues tha t  we have  

there  un less  i f  she  does depose o f  an  a f f idav i t .  

 Second ly,  you w i l l  reca l l ,  Cha i r,  address the  i ssue  10 

o f  the  annexure  wh ich  I  th ink  tha t  you dea l t  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  has been found,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    We jus t  dea l t  w i th  tha t .   And a lso ,  Cha i r,  I  

ra ised the  i ssue tha t  th is  p roper ty  was – I  th ink  i f  I  look  a t  

–  a t  the  second pa ragraph in  –  was i t  the  second 

paragraph?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The th i rd  paragraph [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

MR MONTANA:    The second paragraph –  no ,  the  th i rd  

parag raph is  the  annexure .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    The one where  she says I  ca l led  on  her  

peop le  to  enqu i re  about  the  proper ty.   Th is  p roper ty  was on  

the  market ,  i t  was we l l -adver t i sed,  Cha i r,  and i t  was a  

show house.   So I  th ink  some o f  th is  –  I  th ink  I  want  her  to  
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f i l e  an  a f f idav i t  p rec ise ly  because she has got  a  lo t  o f  

hearsay wh ich  a re  no t  –  she on ly  in te rac ted  w i th  Ms de  

Beer  towards the  end  and th i s  a f f idav i t  does not  speak to  

tha t ,  i t  speaks to  the  S iyangena mat te r,  Cha i r,  in  cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  no ,  le t  us  hang on.   I s  your  

ob jec t ion  to  th is  sworn  s ta tement  by  Ms de Beer  s imp ly  

tha t  you be l ieve  tha t  i t s  contents  a re  no t  t rue  or  some o f  

i t s  contents  a re  no t  t rue?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  some o f  the  contents  a re  

no t  t rue .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA:    And the  Commiss ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say you ob jec t  because i t  i s  no t  

an  a f f idav i t  tha t  was made to  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  i s  an  

a f f idav i t  made fo r  another  pu rpose.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    And now the  Commiss ion  –  because she 

d id  no t  f i l e  an  a f f idav i t  here ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA:    The Commiss ion ,  when I  ra ise  my 

ob jec t ion ,  i t  was rep lac ing  re l iance on a  document  tha t  i s  

no t  meant  fo r  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I t  makes cer ta in  s ta tements  about  me.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  cannot  ca l l  Mrs  de  Beer  to  come here  

and say –  I  need to  quest ion  here ,  Cha i r,  about  these 

th ings tha t  she says.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  hang on one second.   D id  Ms Beer  

no t  come here?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    She d id  come.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And tes t i f ied  and she conf i rmed th is  10 

a f f idav i t .   That  shou ld  cover  i t ,  Mr  Montana.   Or  le t  me 

exp la in .   You remember  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  once the  

Commiss ion  is  aware  tha t  somebody is  in  possess ion  o f  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  may he lp  i t  in  i t s  invest iga t ion  i t  can  

obta in  tha t  in fo rmat ion .   So even i f  th is  sworn  s ta tement  

was made to  whoever,  whether  the  Hawks o r  Werksmans or  

whoever,  i f  the  Commiss ion  became aware  o f  i t  and i t  

thought  tha t  i t  m igh t  ass is t  in  i t s  invest iga t ion  i t  cou ld  

ob ta in  i t .    

 Now i t  may be tha t  in  regard  to  some documents  20 

you say we l l ,  th is  person was not  ca l led  here  to  g ive  

ev idence and maybe we can pu t  tha t  as ide  fo r  now,  a  

s i tua t ion  where  somebody cou ld  no t  come and tes t i f y  bu t  

where  somebody  d id  come and tes t i f y,  you wou ld  have,  i f  

you  were  g i ven –  and I  assume you  were  g iven a  3 .3  no t ice  
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in  regard  to  her  a f f idav i t ,  you wou ld  have been en t i t led  to  

app ly  fo r  leave to  c ross-examine her  and she cou ld  have  

been ca l led  back to  face  cross-examinat ion .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  accept  fu l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You accept  tha t ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Except  one th ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  one o f  the  

th ings I  ra i sed was tha t  these  s ta tements ,  the  sworn  

s ta tements  fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  case were  even obta ined  

th rough i l lega l  means.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

MR MONTANA:    And I  am say ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  there  i s  one  

issue …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  duress o r  in t imat ion  you are  

ta lk ing  about .  

MR MONTANA:    That  duress and tha t  i s  why the  

Commiss ion ,  f rom a  qua l i t y  po in t  o f  v iew… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So  you p lace re l iance on a  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Some o f  the  s to r i es  tha t  a re  be ing  sa id  in  20 

here ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  am say ing  i f  she  – 

even i f  i t  i s  one page conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t  f rom her  to  say  

I  conf i rm tha t  my s ta tement  and  –  and tha t  I  can have  
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recourse  on i t ,  Cha i r,  i f  I  choose.  I  am not  say ing  I  w i l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Depend ing  on  how th is  who le  mat te r  

un fo lds .   I f  I  dec ide  to  exe rc i se  my r igh ts ,  I  shou ld  be  ab le  

to ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  okay,  I  th ink  in  regard  to  tha t ,  

once she came and under  oa th  sa id  she conf i rms th is ,  

there  i s  no  need fo r  her  to  do  an  a f f idav i t  because she has 

conf i rmed i t  under  oa th .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  – bu t  what  you are  f ree  to  do  is  to  

look  a t  the  contents  and po in t  ou t  what  you be l ieve  are  

f laws o r  what  i s  un t rue ,  tha t  you w i l l  be  f ree  to  do .   But  I  

do  no t  th ink  tha t  jus t  because there  is  no  a f f idav i t  f rom her  

say ing  th is  i s  t rue  wou ld  be  a  g round to  ob jec t  bu t  w i th  

regard  to  what  you say namely  tha t  on  the  in fo rmat ion  you  

have some o f  the  peop le  were  in t im ida ted or  p ressur i sed,  

there  is  no  p rob lem wi th  you ,  i f  you  got  persona l  

knowledge o f  tha t ,  lead ing  ev idence about  how those 

a f f idav i t s  were  –  or  documents  were  ob ta ined or  ca l l ing  20 

somebody to  tes t i f y  to  tha t .   But  tha t  i s  d i f fe ren t  f rom 

anyth ing  e lse .   So I  th ink  tha t  look ing  a t  what  you are  

ar t i cu la t ing ,  you shou ld  no t  have a  prob lem wi th  i t  be ing  

here  bu t  you can  say as  fa r  as  i t  may have been obta ined 

i l l ega l l y,  I  ma in ta in  tha t  and I  w i l l  lead ev idence i f  I  choose  
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to .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  accept  your  gu idance,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You accept .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  Mr  

Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then the  next  document ,  

Cha i rperson,  i s  a  deed o f  sa le  re la t ing  to  the  Waterk loo f  

p roper ty  be tween  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe,  Mr  Son i ,  i t  w i l l  he lp  i f  you  s ta r t  

w i th  the  page.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  then you te l l  us  what  the  document  

i s ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  page 128 and i t  goes unt i l  the  – 

the  agreement  i t se l f  goes up to  page 130.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  i s  an  agreement  o f  sa le  in  

regard  to  th is  p rob lem which  d id  no t  eventuate .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t  seems to  have annexure  B ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  so ,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Does i t  no t  have annexure  A ,  does i t  

on ly  have B?  

MR MONTANA:    Can I  d raw your  a t ten t ion  to  someth ing ,  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA:    The document  128,  I  accept  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  accept  tha t ,  Cha i r,  and I  th ink  i t  goes to  

132.  

CHAIRPERSON :    122?  

MR MONTANA:    I f  I  am r igh t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  annexure  A …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  when i t  s ta r ts  a t  128,  so  i t  

cannot  go  to  122.   132 you mean? 10 

MR MONTANA:    132,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  have a  prob lem wi th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then there  is  a t  page –  131 is  

annexure  B  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    133 you mean?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The 131 to  132,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  he  says he  has no  prob lem wi th  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry.  20 

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  have a  prob lem wi th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  we are  a t  133 now.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    133,  Cha i rpe rson,  and 134 is  an  

emai l  tha t  Ms de Beer  sent  to  ne ighbours  a f te r  she handed 

the  keys to  Mr  Montana.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine ,  even i f  you do not  exp la in ,  

he  a l ready knows wh ich  ones he has a  prob lem wi th .   Have  

you got  any prob lem wi th  these two? 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  in  fac t ,  I  w i l l  no t  ob jec t ,  I  am happy 

w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  happy w i th  th is .  

MR MONTANA:    Le t  us  p roceed w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  le t  me make  one qu ick  po in t ,  Cha i r.   

These documents  and the  a f f idav i t ,  you can see tha t  Ms de 10 

Beer,  she be l ieved tha t  she had  entered in to  a  proper ty  

t ransact ion  w i th  me even though in  one o f  her  emai ls  –  she 

uses beaut i fu l  words,  hey?   

“ I  wou ld  l i ke  to  in fo rm you tha t  I  have so ld  my 

house to  Mr  Lucky Montana,  cur ren t ly  o f  PRASA.   

He is  a  very  n i ce  gent leman and w i l l  take  fu l l  

respons ib i l i t y  o f  the  proper ty. ”  

And goes on to  say tha t .   Now le t  us  go  back  to  th is  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You o f  course  not  ob jec t ing  to  be ing  20 

re fer red  to  as  a  n ice  gent leman.  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  bu t  you can see tha t  these 

are  two wor lds ,  i s  i t  no t ,  the  same person says –  she says  

I  am th is  wonder fu l  gent leman,  te l l s  the  ne ighbours ,  okay?  

But  you can see,  Cha i r,  tha t  she a l so  does not  have  ac tua l  
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unders tand ing  o f  the  issues because I  am say ing  her  own 

sworn  s ta tement  o r  a f f idav i t ,  you can see because  she on ly  

met  me once.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:     I t  i s  based on hearsay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  what  I  am s imply  say ing  is  tha t  when  

I  take  th is  i ssue on a t  a  la te r  s tage,  I  am go ing  to  

demonst ra te  tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  two.   I t  i s  e i ther  we  

are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  one person w i th  two characte rs .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no t  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    I  am n ice  guy and I  am a  cr im ina l  on  the 

o ther  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   You  have no p rob lem.   Then 

the  next  one is  page 135.   Mr  Son i?  

MR MONTANA:    135?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Those are  no tes  aga in .  

MR MONTANA:    I  ob jec t  the  no tes ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Those are  no tes ,  they go  up to  what?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    They go up to  page 143,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    143.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  he  ob jec ts  to  the  no tes .   And then  

there  is  the  sworn  s ta tement  o f  –  oh ,  cont inue,  Mr  Son i?  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  sor ry,  Cha i rperson,  page 144 

and 145 is  the  s ta tement  o f  Mr  Green.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have no prob lem wi th  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  do  no t  have ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Wi th  regard  to  Mr  Green,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He a l so  tes t i f ied ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  know,  I  remember  he  d id  tes t i f y.   

Mr  Montana has ment ioned h im I  th ink  yesterday tw ice ,  i f  I  

am not  m is taken  and I  fo rgo t  to  say th is ,  I  am under  the  

impress ion  tha t  he  is  the  w i tness who le f t  on  the  bas i s  tha t  10 

he  shou ld  s t i l l  come back to  c la r i f y  someth ing .   Wi l l  you  

team jus t  check?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  so  tha t  i f  there  was someth ing  tha t  

he  was meant  to  come back and c la r i f y,  i t  i s  no  le f t  

hang ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  seem to  th ink  tha t  as  we were  f in ish ing  

I  –  we ta lked on the  bas is  tha t  he  wou ld  s t i l l  come back a t  

some s tage.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  maybe –  and th i s  i s  no t  

to  say we w i l l  no t  do  tha t .   Mr  Green when I  met  h im on the  

day he  gave ev idence,  he  to ld  me tha t  he  had been  

su f fe r i ng  f rom cancer  fo r  some per iod  and cou ld  no t  

remember  th ings.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  no ,  no ,  tha t  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  tha t  does not  mean we w i l l  no t ,  

bu t  I  am jus t  p lac ing  i t  on  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  tha t  we know tha t  tha t  i s  a  

poss ib i l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR MONTANA:    He is  the  man who to ld  you,  Cha i r,  tha t  

what  Mr  Montana  is  do ing  is  no t  unusua l  in  the  p roper ty  

market .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .   Yes.   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   So 

le t  us  check s imp ly  because we shou ld  no t  have a  s i tua t ion  

where  someth ing  was le f t  hang ing  and we do not  fo l low up.   

Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then page 146,  Cha i rperson,  there  i s  

an  emai l  f rom Mr  Green to  obv ious l y  h is  f i rm but  in  re la t ion  

to  the  agreement  tha t  Mr  Montana …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  one a t  146 is  empty  or  i s  i t?   

Or  what  i s  146?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Green.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  does i t  go  to  147?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   From Mr  Green to  who? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  Cha i rperson say ing  tha t  

he  is  a t tach ing  the  document  o r  the  agreement  tha t  had 
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been entered in to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Does he a t tach  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He doesn ’ t  a t tach  the  ag reement  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  he  is  re fe r r ing  to  the  Deeds o f  

Sa le .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  emai l  you have no p rob lem 

wi th?   10 

MR MONTANA:    No Cha i r  I  don ’ t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then page 147 is  a  second emai l  

f rom h im wh ich  dea ls  w i th  a  le t te r  seeming ly  sen t  by  Mr  

van der  Wal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem Mr  Montana?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  no ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   148?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    148 is  a  repet i t ion  o f  what  was 146 

as  we l l .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then there ’s  no  ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   And then  149 i s  c rossed  out ,  o r  

what  i s  the  s to ry?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  149 is  the  same th ing  as  146  
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Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    150?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    150 is  f rom Mr  van de r  Wal t  to  Mr  

Green.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem wi th  tha t  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem,  ja?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And 151 is  t he  bank le t te r  conf i rm ing 10 

the  payment  tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  on  page 150.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem wi th  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  p rob lem w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then 152 Cha i rpe rson  is  the  

agreement  be tween Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and Mr  van der  Wal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    152 to  what  page?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    155.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t ’s  o f fe r  to  pu rchase wh ich  was  

accepted.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  p rob lem wi th  tha t  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no t  a  p rob lem Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem,  and 156?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    156 is  mere ly  the  cer t i f i ca te  by  the  
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C IPC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  p rob lem wi th  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No p rob lem Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then page 157 Cha i rperson are  –  

or  f rom 157 but  we jus t  dea l  w i th  each one,  a re  emai ls  by  

the  se l le rs  to  Mr  Montana,  Mr  Green and o the r  peop le  

assoc ia ted  w i th  the  proper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem? 

MR MONTANA:    No p rob lem Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    158 is  a  cont inuat ion  o f  tha t  emai l ,  

159 i s  an  emai l  re la t ing  to  a  progress repor t  sent  to  

var ious peop le  inc lud ing  Mr  Montana Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem wi th  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.     

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    160 is  the  red  c lea rance f igures .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem? 

MR MONTANA:    No p rob lem Cha i r.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    161 i s  the  e lec t r i ca l  compl iance 

cer t i f i ca te  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem? 

MR MONTANA:    161?  

CHAIRPERSON:    161 ja .   No prob lem.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then 162  is  the  account  by  the  

a t to rneys who d id  the  t ransfe r  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No prob lem? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  an  account  sent  to  Prec i se  

Trade.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   I  th ink  Mr  Montana is  look ing  a t  i t .  

MR MONTANA:    I  am look ing  Cha i r  so r ry  a t  the  –  th is  i s  

163?  

CHAIRPERSON:    162.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    162.  10 

MR MONTANA:    Oh 162 Cha i r,  yes  no  I  am happy w i th  tha t  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  then 163?  

MR MONTANA:    I  am happy w i th  tha t  cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    164 is  a  fu r ther  emai l  f rom Mr  Green.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  maybe Mr  Son i  even i f  you don ’ t  

say  who i t  i s  f rom he knows them,  he  w i l l  jus t  say  no  

ob jec t ion  un t i l  we come to  where  he  has an  ob jec t ion .    I f  

you  w i l l  jus t  ment ion  the  page,  164  there  is  no  ob jec t ion  Mr  20 

Montana?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  no  ob jec t ion .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    165?  

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion .   166?  
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MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    167?  

MR MONTANA:   No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    168  

MR MONTANA:   No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    169?  

MR MONTANA:   No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Up to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink  document  goes fu r ther  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Up to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Up to  179 Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Up to  179.   I s  tha t  f ine  Mr  Montana,  up  

to  179?  

MR MONTANA:    Ja  Cha i r,  I  th ink  un t i l  in  fac t  un t i l ,  I  don ’ t  

have a  p rob lem unt i l  187.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Unt i l  187?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes,  Cha i r  bu t  I  have got  one,  okay un t i l  

187,  bu t  there ’s  someth ing ,  I  th ink  the  pages do not  fo l low 

each o ther  Cha i r.    I  don ’ t  know a f te r  187,  un t i l  187  I  don ’ t  

have any ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Unt i l?  

MR MONTANA:    187.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have no p rob lem.  

MR MONTANA:   I  don ’ t  have any ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.     
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MR MONTANA:   There ’s  a  page wh ich  I  don ’ t  be l ieve  i t  

goes the re  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The pages then sk ip  f rom 187 to  193.      

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  someth ing  m iss ing?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Things were  pu t  in  tha t  d idn ’ t  be long 

to  th is  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  th ink  what  shou ld ,  i f  tha t  i s  the  10 

case a  page shou ld  be  put  in  he re  w i th  a  no te  to  a le r t  

whoever  i s  go ing  th rough th is .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You’ re  qu i te  r igh t  Cha i r,  m ine has 

tha t ,  I  don ’ t  know why i t  i s  no t  in  yours .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mine  doesn ’ t  have,  yours  Mr  Montana 

doesn ’ t  have any note  say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  I  am shocked w i th  th is  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

MR MONTANA:   These th ings he re   you know somet imes 

you say God works  in  myster ious ways.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   This  document  Cha i r  you see and I  th ink  

i t  comes f rom a  Werksmans repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  document  a re  you look ing  a t?  

MR MONTANA:   The one Cha i r  a f te r  187,  a f te r  –  you 
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remember  I  accepted 187.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And then the re  i s  th is  document  wh ich  I  

don ’ t  th ink  i t  be longs here  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    193?  

MR MONTANA:   I s  i t  193?  

CHAIRPERSON:    My next  document  i s  page 193.  

MR MONTANA:   So you don ’ t  have th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  i t  i s  no tes ,  i t  i s  no tes  I  th ink .  

MR MONTANA:   There  is  a  document  Cha i r  ta lk ing  about  10 

Dr  Dan ie l  Nt imku lu ,  Joseph Pomola ,  Mr  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page is  i t  marked,  what  i s  the  page  

number?  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  be longs here ,  i t  

doesn ’ t  fa l l  in  tha t  number,  i t  is  w r i t ten  S4,  I  th ink  i t  

be longs to  a  d i f fe ren t  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay.  

MR MONTANA: But  you know what  i t  i s  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MONTANA:   I t  i s  a  document  f rom Werksmans the i r  20 

a l legat ions tha t  they were  mak ing  on some o f  the 

memorandums tha t  we prepared,  so  these a re  par t  o f  the  

documents  tha t  a re  be ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Has i t  go t  a  head ing?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  i t  doesn ’ t  even have a  head ing ,  i t  
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s ta r ts  w i th  Dr  Nt imku lu  conf i rms unreserved ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t ,  does i t  look  l i ke  a  cont inuat ion  

f rom anothe r  document?  

MR MONTANA:    No i t  i s  no t  a  con t inuat ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i s  i t  one page?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes,  so  i t  doesn ’ t  be long here ,  I  don ’ t  

th ink  i t  be longs here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  be longs he re  bu t  I  am jus t  

s imp ly  say ing  tha t  we shou ld  take  i t  ou t  Cha i r,  bu t  10 

. . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  i s  su ing  me,  what  i s  sa id  in  here  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  can I  see tha t  page?   She w i l l  take  

i t .    Oh,  i t  i s  my reg is t ra r.    

MR MONTANA:   And my . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  you w i l l  f ind  th is  

par t i cu la r  document  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Okay i t  i s  a  document ,  i t  i s  a  

page tha t  i s  marked 11 a t  the  bo t tom to  ind ica te  tha t  i t  i s  

page 11 o f  a  document ,  a t  the  top  there  is  paragraph 5 .6 .3 ,  

i t  says  Dr  Nt imku lu  conf i rmed unreserved ly  tha t  the  amount  

o f  R17 628 118,59 is  due and payab le  i n  te rms  o f  the  20 

above two cont rac ts  because the  company had successfu l l y  

executed the  mater ia l  management  p rog ramme and  the  

da ta  c leans ing  p rog ramme.   I t  i s  wr i t ten  by  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

Commiss ioner.    I ’m  sure  Mr  Son i  wou ld  l i ke  to  see i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  see i t  bu t  I  don ’ t  know 
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what  i t  i s  about ,  i t  i s  cer ta in ly  no t  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  

vo i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   I t  does say PRASA a t  the  top .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.     

MR MONTANA:    So  you w i l l  see  my annexures on  the  

var ious documents  tha t  were  prepared and I  annexed them 

to  my a f f idav i t  i t  dea ls ,  th is  page comes f rom tha t  

document  and  I   know a l l  the  a f f idav i t s  on  the  PRASA 

mat te r,  and the  Ru le  3 .3  Not ices  g iven to  me ,  these  

documents  were  no t  tab led  be fore  th is  Commiss ion  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:   So you w i l l  unders tand why I  fee l  so  

aggr ieved and unhappy,  because I  see these  th ings,  

documents  tha t  be long somewhere  come in to  here ,  bu t  fo r  

now Cha i r  fo r  us  to  move on I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  you know 

God is  k ind  Cha i r,  [ speak ing  in  vernacu lar ]  to  see  what  i s  

happen ing ,  bu t  I  don ’ t  want  to  do  tha t  [ speak ing  i n  

vernacu lar ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Chai rperson,  so  I  th ink  Cha i r  we can 20 

proceed to  the  next  one,  193.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  f ine .    Yes,  so  is  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am to ld  tha t  i t  be longs to  another  

f i l e  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  another  f i l e?  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Another  PRASA f i le?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    SS4 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  okay,  bu t  then there  

shou ld  be  a  no te  here  tha t  –  a  page tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Chai rpe rson may I  g ive  you  mine,  I  

won ’ t  need i t .   I t  says  exact ly  what  i t  i s  f rom page 188 to  

192.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  jus t  says b lank pages . . . [ ind is t inc t  10 

dropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   So i t  says  b lank page non-

re levant  pages removed  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes. .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay i t  i s  there ,  a  few pages in  tha t ,  

okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The next  document  Cha i rperson is  

Annexure  OR4 and tha t  i s  f rom page 193 to  198,  tha t  i s  

aga in  a  commentary  on  the  index.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Those I  know.  20 

ADV VAS SONIC SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Mr  Montana has prob lems wi th  

no tes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    193 Cha i r  I  do  no t  accept ,  I  re jec t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then Cha i rpe rson 199 to  205 is  an  

a f f idav i t  f rom the  t ransfer r i ng  a t t o rney in  the  Hur l ingham 

proper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  any ob jec t ion  to  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  to  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MR MONTANA:   No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then page 206 to  209 is  the  o f fe r  to  10 

purchase made by  Mr  Montana to  the  owner  o f  Mont rose  

Avenue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then page 210 is  a  conf i rmat ion  f rom 

Investec  Bank tha t  Mid town Brace  had pa id  R11.5m i l l ion  to  

the  account  o f  the  t ransfer r ing  a t to rney.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  a  one page or  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Page 210,  i t  i s  jus t  one page.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  no  ob jec t ion .  

MR MONTANA:    I  am happy w i th  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Happy w i th  tha t  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then page 211 Cha i rperson is  

conf i rmat ion  tha t  the  t ransfer  had been reg is te red in  the 
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Deeds Off i ce  on  tha t  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    I  am happy Cha i r  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Page 212  to 215 is  an  o f fe r  to  

purchase f rom Mr  Smi th  on  beha l f  o f  the  Mino r  P roper ty  

Trus t  to  the  owner  o f  12  Mont rose Avenue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  no  ob jec t ion  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.     10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:     Page 216 is  a  le t te r  f rom Mr  Smi th 

to  o ther  peop le  in  h is  agency – sor ry  Mr  Green 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    From Mr  Lou is  Green.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr Green conf i rm ing tha t  an  o f fe r  

had been rece ived f rom Mr  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no t  a t  a l l  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then page 217 is  two emai ls  sent  by  20 

seeming ly  the  secre tary  o f  the  t rus tee  to  Mr  Green and 

cc ’d  to  Mr  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then a t  page 218 to  223 is  an  o f fe r  

to  purchase made  on beha l f  o f  the  Minor  Proper ty  Trus t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  up  to  what  page Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry  page 222 Cha i r,  so r ry  page 221  

and then page 222 is  the  m inutes  o f  the  t rus t  conf i rm ing 

tha t  Mr  Smi th  had  been author ised to  make the  o f fe r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  and then?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then page 223 to  226 there ’s  a  10 

fu r ther  o f fe r  to  pu rchase made by  Mr  Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    I  thought  Cha i r  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    O f fe r  to  purchase.   I  don ’ t  th ink  you w i l l  

have any ob jec t ion  to  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   Oh no Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  have an ob jec t ion  

Cha i r,  I  was confus ing  i t  w i th  some o ther  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then page 227 is  conf i rma t ion  by  

Investec  Bank tha t  payment  had been made to  the  t rus t  20 

account  o f  the  t ransfe r r ing  a t to rney  by  Prec ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    For  R2mi l l ion  is  i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Fo r  R2mi l l ion .  

MR MONTANA:    For  R2mi l l ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion .  

MR MONTANA:   I  am happy w i th  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then page  228 is  a  le t te r  read in to  

an  o f fe r  to  pu rchase made by  Mr  van der  Wal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion?  

MR MONTANA:    No maybe Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then page 231 is  a  fu r ther  le t te r  

f rom Mr  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  you sa id  231,  what  about  10 

230,  i s  230 par t  o f  what  we have dea l t  w i th .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    230 is  seeming ly  par t  o f  the  le t te r  

f rom Mr  van der  Wal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Okay,  231?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    231 Cha i rperson is  a  fu r ther  le t te r  

f rom Mr  van der  Wal t  to  the  t ransfer r ing  a t to rney ask ing  fo r  

more  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  231 to  233?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As you p lease Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No ob jec t ion .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    From 233 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   234?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    234 is  a  le t te r  f rom the  t ransfer r i ng  

a t to rneys to  Mr  van der  Wal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Even i f  you don ’ t  say  he  has seen i t ,  ja ,  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 181 of 343 
 

234 to  236 you have no ob jec t ion .  

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  237?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then 237  is  an  emai l  f rom Mr  van 

der  Wal t  to  the  a t to rney.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay no  ob jec t ion .  

MR MONTANA:    No ob jec t ion  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then 238 is  aga in  a  t ransfe r,  a  

le t te r  f rom Mr  van der  Wal t  to  the  a t to rney.  

CHAIRPERSON:    238 to  240 you have no prob lem? 10 

MR MONTANA:   No p rob lem Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    241,  i s  –  have  you got  no  ob jec t ion  to  

tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  in  fac t  I  th ink  when I  look  –  

when I  look  back  Cha i r,  I  go  back ,  I  th ink  Cha i r  when you  

look back,  when you move fo rward  a l l  the  o ther  documents  

remain ing  there  Cha i r  a re  acceptab le  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The ones tha t  a re  remain ing?  

MR MONTANA:   The ones tha t  a re  remain ing  un t i l  the  las t  

page,  page 315 I  th ink ,  317 ra the r  Cha i r,  317.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  they are  acceptab le?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  so  the  ones tha t  

have been ident i f ied  as  ob jec t ionab le  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y  i s  

the  pre l im inary  repor t  and the  no tes ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR MONTANA:  That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And you can see Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  there  a re  d i f fe ren t  no tes  bu t  a l l  the  

no tes  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   There  are  d i f fe ren t  no tes  Cha i r  and a l l  o f  

them a re  mov ing  f rom -  and tha t  i s  why we are  le f t  w i th  one  

issue Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:   We are  in  ag reement  w i th  a l l  these  10 

documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  i s  jus t  the  no tes .  

MR MONTANA:   The notes  are  wr i t ten  on  the  bas i s ,  on  the  

premise  tha t  these p roper t ies  were  funded by  TTM and I  

am say ing  tha t  i s  fa lse  and I  am surpr ised Cha i r,  by  the  

way I  d idn ’ t  make th is  po in t ,  the  ev idence –  I  am actua l l y  

surpr i sed Cha i r,  because some o f  these documents  tha t  

have now gone th rough they conf i rm a  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t  

vers ion ,  fo r  example  the  Investec  account  o f  R2mi l l ion  they 

conf i rm the  t rue  s to ry,  the  le t te r  f rom Mr  van de r  Wal t ,  f rom 20 

Mr  Bredenkamp the i r  a t to rneys i t  ac tua l l y  says I  am under  

ins t ruc t ion ,  the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  my c l ien t ,  to  do  the  fo l low ing 

th ings.  

 Now i f  tha t  i s  the  case why wou ld  fo r  example  the  

Commiss ion  then  ignore  those th ings and wr i te  the  k ind  o f  
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no te  tha t  has been wr i t ten ,  tha t  i s  a t  the  hear t  o f  my s tory,  

those th ings,  tha t  i s  a t  the  hear t  o f  my s tory  Cha i r,  and I  

th ink  because the re  is  no  ob jec t ion  we are  no t  f igh t ing  over  

th is  one,  we then  must  ge t  Cha i r  to  the  hear t  o f  th is  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no .  

MR MONTANA:   Who funded these proper t ies  and we 

reso lve  th is  i ssue once and fo r  a l l  today so  tha t  when we  

a l l  leave he re  we  know tha t  Mr  Montana was b r igh t ,  he  was  

invo lved in  cor rup t ion  fo r  these proper t ies  were  funded and 

Cha i r  I  am here  to  dea l  w i th  th is  i ssue now.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .    So the  one 

th ing  a t  leas t  tha t  i s  c lear  i s  there  is  no  ob jec t ion  to  any 

documents  o the r  than the  pre l im inary  repor t  and the  no tes .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now my unders tand ing  o f  the  a t t i tude 

you took yeste rday Mr  Son i  i s  tha t  you were  qu i te  happy to  

leave as ide  the  p re l im ina ry  repor ts .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  purposes o f  th is .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Of  the  –  o f  pu t t ing  th ings on  record  20 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  okay.    Now what  do  you say  

about  the  no tes?    The ob jec t ion  to  the  no tes ,  and  I  th ink 

the  ob jec t ion  is  rea l l y  tha t  you were  say ing  we l l  you were  

say ing  tha t  the  no tes  a re  based a t  a  cer ta in  bas is ,  and you 
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say  i f  there  was  somebody who  comes and tes t i f ies  or  

depose to  an  a f f idav i t  and says what  i s  sa id  i n  the  no tes  

then you wou ld  have your  oppor tun i ty  to  app ly  to  c ross-

examine them and so  on ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  you remember  when I  ob jec ted  the  

fundamenta l  i ssue has to  do  w i th  how these th ings are  

funded.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And the  no tes  wh ich  i n fo rmed Mr  Son i ’s  

th ing  was tha t  th i s  in  fac t  we know th is  had been funded by  10 

TTM.    TTM Cha i r,  o r  /S iyangena  and I  am say ing  Cha i r  

tha t  w i th  a l l  the  ev idence we have dea l t  w i th  the  –  bar  the  

no tes  tha t  had been wr i t ten  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you are  happy to  dea l  w i th .  

MR MONTANA:   The ev idence  po in ts  tha t  he re  is  a  

company ca l led  Prec i se ,  i t  has  go t  a l l  o f  these ac t iv i t ies  in  

a l l  these investo rs  and every th ing ,  okay now the  no tes  

ignore  a l l  o f  tha t ,  a l l  o f  tha t  ev idence,  even in  that  

s ta tement ,  there  is  a lmost  R40mi l l ion  in  tha t  s ta tement .    I t  

then wans to  ex t rac t  no t  even based on the  s ta tement ,  on  20 

the  no tes ,  ac tua l l y  one o f  the  no tes  says Mr  Van der  Wal t  

says  tha t  tha t  p roper ty  was funded by  TTM,  so  Mr  van de r  

Wal t  doesn ’ t  say  tha t  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me – le t ’s  pause there ,  do  you need  

the  no tes  fo r  your  p rocess?  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We don ’ t  need the  no tes  Cha i r,  i t s  

in fe rences to  be  drawn f rom the  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  they can  be pu l led  ou t ,  they  can  

be ignored.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  Cha i r  you get  the  pr inc ip le  o f  what  I  

say,  i t  i s  easy to  say we can ignore  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:  But  I  am say ing  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  you a re  i f  I  unders tand you 

cor rec t l y  you are  say ing  these notes  pa in t  a  ce r ta in  p ic tu re  

or  a re  based on cer ta in  in fo rmat ion ,  ac tua l l y  you wou ld  be  

happy i f  they  were  no t  here ,  so  f rom what  Mr  Son i  i s  say ing  

he  seems to  say  we l l  ac tua l l y  i f  the  no tes  are  c rea t ing  a  

prob lem they can  be taken out .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Abso lu te l y  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  they can be taken out  and then we 

cont inue,  we can put  quest ions  to  you based on the  

documents  tha t  you have no ob jec t ion  to .  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  tha t  i s  no t  –  I  am not  ask ing  fo r  a  

concess ion  on  th i s  i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Whether  the  documents  are  w i thd rawn or  

no t  Cha i r  you have sa id  tha t  the  next  few days you want  to  
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focus on  th is  p roper t y  i ssue.    In  the  m inds o f  the  na t ion  

the  issue is  the  proper t ies  have been bought ,  and they are  

in te res ted  in  the  pub l i c  en t i t y,  PRASA,  tha t  i f  a  fo rmer  CEO 

is  invo lved in  cor rup t ion  i t  i s  a  b ig  p rob lem and they have 

got  a  leg i t imate  r igh t  and we know tha t  repor t s  have been 

made,  s ta tements  have been made,  tha t  no ,  no ,  no  these  

th ings have been pa id  fo r  by  TMM and S iyangena,  okay.  

 The Commiss ion  repeats  tha t ,  now I  have dea l t  w i th  

the  procedura l  pa r t  wh ich  is  the  fac t  tha t  who must  do  tha t ,  

the  Commiss ion  must  no t  in te r rogate  or  en ter  a rena and a l l  10 

o f  those th ings Cha i r  and you can  hear  Cha i r  tha t  I  spoke 

to  lawyers  who were  debr ie f ing  me,  tha t ’s  why some o f  the  

language . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  may you d id  in t roduct ion  to  law 101 

crash course .  

MR MONTANA:   Crash course .     

CHAIRPERSON:    Admiss ib i l i t y  o f  ev idence.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r,  now Cha i r  my ob jec t ion  in  a  

way caused us  to  come to  a  cent ra l  i ssue o f  a l l  these why  

we a re  dea l ing  w i th  these p roper t ies .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Who pa id  and the  se lec t ion  o f  documents  

Cha i r,  the  way they have been l ined up,  okay,  you know 

some o f  the  documents  tha t  a re  sa id  the re  –  i f  Mr  Son i  

were  to  go  back o r  the  lega l  team were  to  go  back 



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 187 of 343 
 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No but  I  unders tand what  you are  say ing  

Mr  Montana,  bu t  what  Mr  Son i ’s  pos i t ion  is ,  and he  is  go ing  

to  te l l  me i f  I  m isunders tand h is  pos i t ion ,  he  i s  c rea t ing  the  

pos i t ion  tha t  says these notes  i t  is  no t  rea l l y  so  impor tan t  

tha t  they be  here ,  my unders tand ing  o f  them was tha t  they  

were  fo r  conven ience,  tha t  was my unders tand ing  o f  them.   

I f  you  have an ob jec t ion  to  them he is  happy tha t  they be  

taken out  and then we p roceed,  we  proceed f rom there ,  so 

I  don ’ t  expect  you to  be  aggr ieved w i th  tha t ,  because you 10 

are  ob jec t ing  to  them so he says look le t ’s  take  them out  

and le t ’s  cont inue  then there  shou ld  be  no prob lem.  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  you see pa r t  o f  the  prob lem we are  

dea l ing  w i th  –  I  am a  fundamenta l i s t  Cha i r  in  the  t rue  

sense o f  the  word ,  I  go  fo r  max imum ef fec t s  bu t  th is  i s  no t  

about  tha t ,  i t  i s  about  the  so f t  p r inc ip le .    I  am say ing  tha t  

a  s ta tement  was made Cha i r,  and I  need to  ask ,  pe rhaps I  

shou ld  ask  I  know I  am here  to  answer  quest ions,  le t  me 

ask the  quest ion  th rough you Cha i r,  now wi thdrawn is  f ine ,  

I  th ink  they showed the  b iasness and every th ing  Cha i r  and  20 

t ry ing  to  d i rec t  th is  in  a  par t i cu la r  fash ion ,  bu t  the  

fundamenta l  i ssue tha t  made me f igh t  Cha i r  was when in  

those s ta tement  the  Commiss ion  o r  those notes  say  – and 

th is  was when o f  cou rse  Mr  Son i  i s  mak ing  the  s ta tement ,  

we know,  now I  want  to  be  to ld  – I  don ’ t  want  to  be  taken  
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on  a  jou rney Cha i r  when I  see where  th is  journey is  go ing  

to ,  and I  want  to  cu t  the  chase Cha i r,  ins tead o f  cu t t ing  the  

chase le t ’s  say  i t ,  does th is  Commiss ion ,  does Mr  Son i  as  

he  is  s tand ing  there  can te l l  th is  Commiss ion  w i th  cer ta in ty  

tha t  TMM or  S iyangena pa id  fo r  the  proper t ies ,  now th is  I  

know,  there  are  two types o f  p roper t ies  Cha i r,  my 

proper t ies  and Mr  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    I  want  to  go  back the re  Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  you see when Mr  Son i  says 

these notes  can  be taken i t  does not  prevent  that  issue 

being deal t  wi th whether immediately or in due course.   I t  

does not  prevent  – i t  is not  l ike that  issue that  you think you 

say is fundamental  i t  is not  put  under the carpet .   A l l  i t  

means is at  least  as far as you had raised an object ion to  

certain documents that  object ion then fa l ls away once these 

notes have been taken out .   Then we can proceed.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chair  but  I  th ink the moment has 

arr ived Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   For me and everyone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MR MONTANA:   And I  th ink let  us confront  i t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine.   Mr Soni  I  suggest  that  
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they be taken out  for purposes of  progress.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  no,  no I  have no di ff icul ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  al r ight?  And where they were 

pages can be put  in that  says what was taken out .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay alr ight .   Wel l  why do you not  we 

pract ical ly  that  then we proceed.  The f i rst  ones are f rom 

what page to what  page? 

ADV SONI SC:   They are f rom 1 to 33 Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Page 1 to 33.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the – there is  the prel iminary report .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the – there is the index and then the 

prel iminary report  starts at  page 3,  is that  r ight? 

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson as I  understand i t  Mr Montana 

also objects to the main report .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where is the main report? 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  starts at  4 to – which starts at  page 4 and 

goes up to page 33.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  page 3 says Prel iminary Report .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is page 4 not  part  of  the Prel iminary 

Report? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  you just  said the – I  thought you 

said permanent or  f inal  report .  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no I  said he – he seems to object  to the 

whole part  of  that  – that  part  of  the report .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  he objects to the whole Prel iminary 

Report .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And the Pre l iminary Report  starts at  

page 3,  is that  r ight? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  10 

MR MONTANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  goes up to what page? 

ADV SONI SC:   Up to page 33.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Up to page 33.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so – okay that  we take out  and then 

– and then the notes what page 34? 

ADV SONI SC:   Page 34 to 39.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Because your posi t ion is that  these 

do not  make a di fference to – to. .  20 

ADV SONI SC:   To the evidence  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the issues.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  you need to hear Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.    

ADV SONI SC:   Then 99 – oh sorry 98 to 104.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then 135 to 143.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then 193 to 198.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was that  – those were the last  notes? 

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  th ink – I  th ink we have covered 

them.   

MR MONTANA:   There is one issue outstanding Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR MONTANA:   The issue about the – I  thought we said we 

found also in addi t ion to the let ter the annexure we a lso f ind 

the aff idavi t  f rom … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh – oh the aff idavi t .   Can I  see the 

aff idavi t  and Mr Montana can be given a copy? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you get   a  chance to read the aff idavi t  

Mr Soni  to see whether i t  says what Mr Montana says i t  

says? 

ADV SONI SC:   No I  can – I  can take just  to save t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  what you have got  – what you have 

got  is – excuse me – is  – is an appl icat ion brought  by 

Siyangena Technologies Pty L imited as f i rst  appl icant  TMM 

Holdings Pty L imi ted as second appl icant  and MJA Ferre ira 

as thi rd appl icant  in terms of  Rule 3.4 and 11.1 of  the Rules 
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of  the Commission of  – and they ask for leave to cross-

examine Mr Oel lerman in relat ion to the contents of  his  

aff idavi ts and versions and repor ts wi th reference to the 

subject  matter of  the relat ionship and or al leged re lat ionship 

between the appl icants and PRASA and al l  the appl icants 

and Mr Lucky Montana’s involvement in al leged property  

t ransact ions and the re lat ionship between the appl icants and 

at torney Riaan Van Der Walt  and or  al leged payments 

di rect ly or indi rect ly f rom the appl icants to Van Der Walt  and 

or Precise Trade and or Lucky Montana.   And Rule 2 – payer 10 

2 is Rule 11.1 for the hearing of  any further evidence 

impl icat ing the appl icants regarding or informat ion wi th 

matters pertaining to or concurrent  wi th the facts in the High 

Court  appl icat ion under case number X be held in  camera 

al ternat ively be postponed unt i l  such t ime that  the appl icants 

have been granted consent to cross-examine any such 

wi tnesses impl icat ing the appl icants on such al legat ions.  

 Okay so that  – that  was an appl icat ion for leave to  

cross-examine as wel l  as an appl icat ion for the 

postponement of  – or for the hearing of  evidence impl icat ing 20 

the appl icants to  be held in camera al ternat ively to be 

postponed unt i l  such t ime as the appl icants have cross-

examined certain wi tnesses.  

 Okay now the – that  appl icat ion – let  us say notes of  

mot ion in the aff i  – i t  is a 00:08:31 an aff idavi t  by Mr Thomas 
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Andreas Dubeck.  

 Have you had a chance to check whether the aff idavi t  

says what Mr Montana says? 

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson I  have – I  can only refer to what  

I  th ink the relevant  parts of  the aff idavi t  are.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And I  th ink i t  starts  at  page – at  page 30 the 

red numbers 30 and at  paragraph 69 at  the bot tom of  that  

page.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    10 

ADV SONI SC:   He says:   I  turn now to deal  – perhaps you 

should read i t  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   For yoursel f  and then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And – yes you can read ja.  

ADV SONI SC:    And perhaps Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought you were going to read Mr Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought you were offer ing – I  thought you 

were offer ing to read i t .  20 

ADV SONI SC:   I  turn now to deal  wi th  the repor t  of  Mr 

Cl inton Oel lerman and the evidence he wi l l  probably lead on 

the 2n d of  July  2020 and reasons for  cross-examining Mr 

Oel lerman. 

 Paragraph 70 – despi te nei ther  of  the f i rst  two 
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appl icants receiving any not ice f rom the commission’s legal  

team and I  submit  that  both f i rst  and second appl icants were 

ent i t led to a not ice.   The appl icants appl ied for  cross-

examinat ion of  Mr Oel lermann’s evidence as i t  is envisaged 

to be led at  present  on the fol lowing basis.  

 70.1 Mr Oel lerman does not  contextual ise at  least  

wi thin reasonable measures his reports – his report .  

 70.2  Mr Oel lerman fai ls to report  that  Siyangena 

commenced the execut ion of  phase 1 ISMS several  years 

pr ior to the date on which i t  commences wi th his report .  10 

 70.3  Mr Oel lerman fai ls to explain in anywhere 

whatsoever what the benef i t  f rom Mr Montana was or would 

have been with regards to 70.3.1 the Waterkloof  property,  

70.3.2 the Sandhurst  property,  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry – I  am sorry Mr Soni .   The only 

reason I  was asking for that  part  is  s imply to see whether i t  

could be the aff idavi t  that  Mr Montana was talk ing about.   

Would you know Mr Montana whether th is is the aff idavi t  you 

were referr ing to? 

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chai r  and I  want to read the – I  th ink 20 

that  Chai r  is … 

CHAIRPERSON:   The part  about  payment.  

MR MONTANA:   From page 27 of  that  a ff idavi t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I  just  … 
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  do not  want you to read the whole 

thing.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  just  want the… 

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The parts there – i f  there is a part  that  

says they never paid or what.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chair  i t  is – i t  is – I  just  picked i t  up – I  

just  lost  i t  again as you spoke to me Chai r.   And I  wanted to 

read that  part .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR MONTANA:   Where he says – sorry Chai r.   Okay let  me 

f ind i t  again quickly.   Where he says on the CFO of  th is 

company and that  we have never made –  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  would be at  the beginning.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja – no,  no towards the end Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Towards the end.    

MR MONTANA:   Towards the end I  th ink f rom page 25 I  wi l l  

just  f ind i t  again Chai r.   I  just  picked i t  up.   So he starts – he 

starts in  fact  f rom page 27 and i t  goes for example Chair  to  20 

page 28 and 70.9.1 on page 28 the – Mr Tom – Mr Tom – the 

deponents Andreas Dubeck says 70.9.1 Chai r  can you see 

that? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  can see that .  

MR MONTANA:   He says:   None of  the payments ment ioned 
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in the report  of  Mr Oel lerman were made f rom a TMM bank 

account.   I  am the Chief  Financial  Off icer of  TMM and 

Siyangena and I  can conf i rm the aforesaid and I  wi l l  put  Mr 

Oel lerman to the proof  thereof  i f  and when al lowed an 

opportuni ty to do so.  

 Now Chair  the bank account f rom which the TMM 

payments and they put  i t  in – were made i t  is not  a bank 

account opened by TMM or any of  his off ic ia ls or any of  his  

employees in fact  i t  seems as i f  i t  was – and I  th ink Chai r  i t  

seems as i f  i t  was a cash Money Market  account opened for 10 

M on behal f  of  Loubser Van Der Walt  At torneys at  Investec 

Bank.   To i l lustrate the aforesaid I  append hereto marked 

Annexure TD22 a copy of  what seems to be a pr intout  of  a  

bank statement ref lect ing TMM payments.  

 And Chair  i t  cont inues – i t  cont inues Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is the part  you were ta lk ing about.  

MR MONTANA:   So that  is the par t  I  am talking about Chair  

and now i f  th is aff idavi t  Chai r  – I  am saying.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   I f  th is aff idavi t  was before the commission 

and Mr Soni  said what he said then we are lef t  wi th one 

quest ion Chai r.   Let  us put  the bank account – not  the notes 

because current ly  the noise is about  the notes wri t ten TMM. 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   The – TMM and S iyangena they were never  

paid Precise Trade these amounts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  i t  seems we are deal ing wi th notes on a 

money account.   Let  us put  i t  on the table Chair  and deal  

wi th the matter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   So I  th ink Chair  the – I  do not  know 

because this was an appl icat ion to you Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja th is was an appl icat ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which was brought by  

MR MONTANA:   Exact ly Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   By them but… 

MR MONTANA:   But  you can see Chai r  consider ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – but  what they are saying is relevant .   

Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  a l l  is actual ly profound because i t  

changes the foundat ion f rom which I  have been si t t ing here 20 

for  the past  two days answering quest ions about my 

propert ies.   Because I  am here to answer and gr i l l  that  the 

TMM and Siyan – I  have said I  paid for my propert ies and for 

those that  I  owned and I  have entered into partnership and 

they say the money comes f rom TMM where I  have entered 
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into partnership and where Riaan Van Der Walt  bought his  

own propert ies they say i t  came from TMM. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now here is a CFO Chai r  under oath is  

saying no we have never made such a payment.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Now i f  th is aff idavi t  has been with the 

commission since July 2020 Chai r  there is no way in which – 

why i t  was not  shared wi th me number 1 and number 2 i t  was 

– i t  would not  have been possible  that  for Mr Soni  and the 10 

commission not  to be aware of  th is important  th ing unless i f  

they have got  ev idence and say we have got  the account 

f rom TMM i t  contradicts what you are saying.   Then we have 

got  a story Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no what I  can tel l  you Mr Montana 

is that  the f i le that  has been given here to me has got  my 

notes because th is was an appl icat ion by these ent i t ies plus 

Mr Ferre ira for leave to cross-examine Mr Oel lerman which I  

made in February – ear ly in February this year.   I  do not  

know whether that  means that  is when i t  –  I  became aware of  20 

i t  for the f i rst  t ime.  I  may have been become – I  may have 

become aware before then I  am not  sure but  at  least  I  have 

got  notes that  I  made on that  page.   This was an appl icat ion 

by the two ent i t ies MS Ferreira for  leave to cross-examine 

Mr Oel lerman on his report .  
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 Now of  course 3.3 Not ices would be given to you i f  a 

certain person impl icates you in his statement.   Of  course 

they do not  impl icate you in thei r  statement.  

 But  of  course what they do say there is important  and 

Mr Soni  do you want to say anything about i t?  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson what  one needs to do is see 

what they – what else they say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   About the source of  funds in that  aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Because Chai rperson you wi l l  recal l  that  in  

answer to th is the commission’s legal  team are then 

answering aff idavi t  to say why leave to cross-examine ought 

not  to be given.   But  let  me go – I  am just  saying that  I  am 

aware of  that .   But  let  me just  say what… 

CHAIRPERSON:   They f i led a replying aff idavi t  or – af ter  

that  or do you know? 

ADV SONI SC:   To the best  of  my knowledge I  have not  seen 

one Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  20 

MR MONTANA:   But  Chai r… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  him f in ish.  

MR MONTANA:   Oh so sorry.  

ADV SONI SC:   So in regard to the funds for  th is  they say – 

I  was reading about paragraph 70 and i f  I  could just  say at  
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70.6 i t  is said:  

I t  seems as i f  Mr Oel lerman suggests that  TMM the second 

appl icant  made di rect  payments to Precise Trade.  

 Now I  am emphasising direct  i t  is  not  emphasised 

here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What paragraph? 

ADV SONI SC:   Paragraph 70.6.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes.    

ADV SONI SC:   Made d irect  payments to Precise Trade and 

Invest  02 Proprietary Limited and or  for instance t ransferr ing 10 

at torneys Borchard and Hanson f rom t ime to t ime.  

 Mr Oel lerman suggests that  the aforesaid payments 

by TMM coincide wi th certain payments to and f rom Precise 

Trade and Investec 02 Proprietary L imited.  

 That  is of  course the t ransact ional  account  that  he is 

referr ing to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja 

ADV SONI SC:   There is  nowhere in his report  – his aff idavi t  

or  any of  the further  documents did Mr Oel lerman at  checked 

the so cal led source of  the payment reference as TMM 20 

payments.    

 And this reference by Mr Van Der Walt  in that  bank 

account Chai r.   Then they say and this is a crucial  part .  

“With a l i t t le effor t  Mr Oel lerman would have 

been able to establ ish the fol lowing:  
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 None of  the payments ment ioned in 

the report  of  Mr Oel lerman were made f rom a 

TMM bank account.   I  am the CFO of  TMM 

and Siyangena I  can conf i rm the aforesaid 

and I  wi l l  put  Mr Oel lerman to the proof  

thereof  i f  and when al lowed an opportuni ty to 

do so. ”  

 Then 70.9.2 – The bank account  f rom which TMM 

payments were made – and they put  TMM in inverted 

commas meaning the payments referred to by Mr Van Der 10 

Walt  in his notes.   Says – were made is not  a bank account  

opened by TMM or any of  i ts off ic ia ls or any of  i ts employees 

in fact  i t  seems as i f  i t  was a cash Money Market  account 

opened for and on behal f  of  Loubser Van Der Walt  at  

Investec Bank.  

 And then they at tach that .   Then they cont inue.  

With reference to the aff idavi t  of  Mr Loubser Mr Oel lerman 

re l ies further on hand wri t ten notes on Investec Bank 

account statements for Precise Trade and they at tach i t .   

Assuming that  payments into the aforesaid account came 20 

f rom TMM Mr Oel lerman in his repor t  suggests that  payments 

were made by the appl icants for the benef i t  of  Precise Trade.   

Where Mr Oel lermann’s assumpt ion is inaccurate and 

misplaced is where he fai led to invest igate the source of  

their  payments.   TMM Holdings held an account wi th ABSA 
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not  Investec Bank.   The Investec Bank f rom which payments 

were current ly  made was an Investec Bank opened by 

Loubser Van Der Walt  wi th cl ient  name TMM Holdings 

Proprietary Limited as is evident  f rom Annexure TD24.   

Loubser Van Der Walt  – Mr Van Der Walt  informed TMM i t  is  

mysel f  and Mr Ferre ira on the 12t h of  March that  the 

aforesaid bank account was opened in order to receive 

payments in terms of  the agreements concluded with the 

appl icants and payment made into the account where wi th 

speci f ic reference to Wet lands Wakkerstroom Farm.  I  10 

append hereto a copy of  an emai l  received f rom Mr Van Der 

Walt  and that  emai l  says what they are saying.  

 Then they say 70.15 – any payments f rom the actual  

bank account of  TMM to the aforesaid account were made in 

account  – were made in accordance with the agreement wi th 

Mr – of  Mr Van Der Walt .  

 Then they cont inue at  70.16 – Mr Van Der Walt  had 

ful l  control  and exclusive access to the account opened in  

the name of  Loubser Van Der Walt .   The funds paid into the 

aforesaid account of  Mr Van Der Walt  were paid for the 20 

referenced projects and I  can categorical ly state that  

appl icants had no further cont rol  or access to the said 

account.  

 Mr Oel lerman did not  request  any appl icants to  

address h im on the aforesaid st ructure and I  submit  that  as a 
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consequence h is provisional  report  – reports are mis leading,  

inaccurate and factual ly f lawed.  There is – Mr Oel lerman 

impl icates the appl icants wi th the answers,  suggest ions and 

unfounded assumpt ions of  wrongdoing.  The appl icants were 

not  al lowed an opportuni ty to address Mr Oel lerman whi le 

the appl icants bel ieved Mr Oel lerman had an obl igat ion to  

invest igate the matter proper ly.  

 Now Chairperson I  just  want to point  th is out  because 

we ear l ier in  the aff idavi t  and remember this  is  an 

appl icat ion to cross-examine.   Mr Dubeck says that  the 10 

purpose of  the aff idavi t  is for them to acqui re a forensic – I  

mean the person – the reason for the delay is so they can 

appoint  a forensic invest igator who can present  a report .  

 This aff idavi t  Chairperson is in July  2020.   What you 

do not  f ind in  th is  aff idavi t  is how much they paid into Mr Van 

Der Walt ’s account – whether they made any enquir ies f rom 

Mr Van Der Walt  as to the al legat ions made by Mr Oel lerman 

and what the resul ts of  the forensic invest igat ions are that  

they conducted.  

 But  perhaps most  important ly Chai rperson they do 20 

not  te l l  you how much TMM Holdings that  is Mr Ferrei ra ’s 

company paid into Mr Van Der Walt ’s TMM account.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  two aspects that  seems to come out  

of  the paragraphs that  you have read or three.  

1.  Is that  they say in the paragraph that  Mr Montana read 
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that  is 70.9.1 none of  the payments ment ioned in the 

report  of  Mr Oel lerman were made f rom a TMM bank 

account.   I  am the Chief  Financial  Off icer of  TMM and 

Siyangena and I  can conf i rm the aforesaid and I  wi l l  put  

Mr Oel lerman to the proof  thereof  i f  and when al lowed 

an opportuni ty.  

So he is saying in  other words whatever  payments are 

ment ioned up – whatever payments are ment ioned in that  

report  – Mr Oel lermann’s report  those payments did not  

come f rom a TMM bank account.   That  is point  1.  10 

2.  He says at  70.9.2 – the bank account  f rom which the 

TMM payments were made is not  a bank account 

opened by TMM or any of  i ts off ic ia ls or any of  i ts 

employees.   I t  is  in  fact  i t  seems as i f  i t  was a cash 

Money Market  account opened for  on behal f  Loubser  

Van Der Walt  At torneys at  Investec Bank.  

And then later he says at  70.18 – paragraph 70.18 – the 

Investec account  f rom which payments were apparent ly  

made was an Investec account opened with Loubser Van Der 

Walt  Incorporated wi th cl ient  name TMM Holdings Pty LTD as 20 

is evident  f rom Annexure TT24 appended hereto.  

 So there is  some TMM Holdings ment ioned and then 

he says at  70.14 – Loubser Van Der Walt  Incorporated Mr 

Riaan Van Der Walt  informed TMM (mysel f  and Mr Mario 

Ferre ira) on 12 March 2014 that  the aforesaid account was 
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opened in order  to receive payments in terms of  the 

agreements concluded with the appl icants.  

 So he is saying Mr Van Der Walt  to ld them – told him 

and Ferrei ra that  that  account  was opened in  order to 

receive payments in terms of  the agreements concluded with 

these appl icants namely Siyangena, TMM Holdings and Mr 

Ferre ira.  

 And the payments made into that  – into the account  

were wi th speci f ic reference to the Wet lands/Wakkerst room 

Farm and then he appends i t .   Okay – so he says that  is 10 

what they were about.  

 And then there is some part  – that  is in Af r ikaans 

there.   Then in 70.15 – paragraph 70.15 he says:   Any 

payments made f rom the actual  bank account of  TMM to the 

aforesaid account were made in accordance with the 

agreement wi th Mr Van Der Walt .  

 So based on para – on that  i t  seems that  he says 

there are payments made f rom TMM’s actual  bank account to 

th is part icu lar account but  he says they were in accordance,  

in ag reement  w i th  Mr  Van der  Wa l t ,  wh ich  I  th ink  he  must  20 

be  mean ing  is  the  agreement  concern ing  

Wet lands/Wakkers t room Farm.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So based on tha t ,  there  were  

some payments  he  says came f rom TMM – I  mean  to  tha t  
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account .   I t  i s  a  quest ion  o f  what  they were  fo r.   And then 

he says,  parag raph 17.16:  

“Mr  Van der  Wal t  had fu l l  con t ro l  and exc lus ive  

access to  the  a foresa id  account  opened in  the  

name o f  Loubser  Van der  Wal t  Inco rpo ra ted . . . ”  

 Th is  suggests  tha t  they d id  no t  have access to  

the  account  and the  mon ies  bu t  they –  the  TMM d id  pay -  

made some payments  in  tha t  account  in  acco rdance w i th  

the  ag reement  w i th  Van der  Wal t .   That  i s  a t  leas t  my 

unders tand ing  and Mr  Montana w i l l  g ive  h is  unders tand ing .    10 

 And then paragraph 17.17,  he  says :  

“The funds pa id  in to  the  a foresa id  account  o f  

Van der  Wal t  were  pa id  fo r  the  Reference 

Pro jec t  and I  can ca tegor i ca l l y  s ta te  tha t  the 

app l i cants  had no fu r ther  cont ro l  o f ,  over  o r  

access to  the  sa id  account . . . ”  

 So aga in ,  I  guess the  pro jec t  i s  the  –  i s  tha t  o f  

Wet lands/Wakkers t room Farm.   That  wou ld  by  my 

unders tand ing .   Okay Mr  Son i ,  you wanted  to  say  

someth ing  in  connect ion  w i th  wha t  you read?  I  was jus t  20 

ind ica t ing  what  my impress ion  was .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And tha t  i s  exact ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  submi t ,  Cha i rperson,  what  a  p roper  

read ing  o f  the  document  –  o f  the  a f f idav i t  says .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now,  the  po in t  I  want  to  make  

Cha i rperson is .   That  we know f rom what  Mr  Van der  Wal t  

says  tha t  he  pa id  f rom the  Prec ise  Trade account  and when 

he re f lec ted  on the  Prec i se  account ,  the  deb i ts  he  made 

notes  o f  tha t  and when he re f lec ted  the  cred i ts ,  he  made 

notes  o f  them and we have been th rough some o f  them.   I f  

I  cou ld  jus t  dea l  w i th  the  very  f i rs t  one on page 90  where  

he  says the  two cred i ts  on  the  18 t h  o f  June o f  

R 1 ,85  mi l l ion  and R 4  m i l l ion  came f rom TMM. . .   That  i s  10 

what  he  says he re .    

 TMM does not  d ispute  because they have had 

th is  repor t  w i th  th is .   They do  not  d ispute  tha t  those 

amounts  were  i n  fac t  pa id  i n to  the  TMM Hold ings account  

f rom which ,  c lea r ly,  t ransfer  was  made to  th is  account .   

What  we have be fore  us  then Cha i rpe rson,  when we  get  to  

the  nub o f  the  mat te r  i s ,  tha t  the  funds tha t  Mr  Van der  

Wal t  says  were  prov ided by  TMM loans tha t  he  ta lks  about  

tha t  came in to  t h is  account ,  were  probab ly  t rue  and I  say  

tha t  fo r  two reasons.  20 

 One is .   He says:   Here  i s  my notes  on  what  

happened.   TMM,  S iyangena,  Mr  Dubek and Mr  Fer re i ra  a l l  

had an oppor tun i ty  to  say bu t  those payments  do  not  

acco rd  w i th  what  we gave to  h im.   They have not  done so ,  

no t  even up to  t oday.   Now,  there  are  ser ious a l legat ions  
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aga ins t  them.    

 They br ing  an  app l i ca t ion  to  say:   We want  the  

proceed ings u rgent .   Our  name is  be ing  smudged.   When 

they have an oppor tun i ty  they do  not  use  i t .   They have not  

used i t  up  to  today.   I  ask  you to  d raw one in fe rence f rom 

tha t ,  Cha i rpe rson .   They do not  have a  p roper  answer  to  

the  in fe rences to  be  drawn.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   We are  a t  

e igh teen minutes  to  f i ve  and we obv ious ly  a re  no t  go ing  to  

f in ish  today.   Mr  Montana,  you want  to  say someth ing?   10 

Say someth ing  and then we w i l l  have to  ad journ  because 

we have run  out  o f  today ’s  t ime.   And then I  have got  to  t ry  

and see what  we need to  do  bu t  obv ious ly  a l so  to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  some work  connected w i th  th is  need to  be  

done,  tha t  may be done  but  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  S i yangena 

had sa id  they had in i t ia ted  a  fo rens i c  invest iga t ion ,  i t  

wou ld  be  in te res t ing  to  see what  they . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because they can jus t  le t  the  

Commiss ion  have  the  repor t  o f  the i r  invest iga t ion  o f  these  20 

payments .   Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  Mr  Son i  i s  to  recuse  

h imse l f .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  he  is  a  –  I  th ink  tha t  he  has 

demonst ra ted  s igns o f  be ing  b ias ,  s igns o f  be ing  –  o f  

hav ing  taken s ides on  these issues.   And I  th ink ,  Cha i r  –  

ask  h im a  quest i on  he  d id  no t  want  un t i l  th is  i s  read.   So I  

th ink  tha t  I  wou ld  argue tha t  he  has ac tua l l y  shown – you 

see,  he  has w i thd rawn a l l  those no tes  and he is  read ing  –  I  

th ink  tha t  th is  repor t  no t  read ing  i t  p roper ly  Cha i r.   Le t  me  

f i rs t  jus t  quote  two par ts ,  Cha i r,  because I  th ink  i t  i s  no t  in  

the  in te res t  o f  jus t i ce .   Le t  me read  f i rs t  seven and e igh t  in  10 

page –  i t  i s  page  4 ,  I  th ink .   Paragraph 7  and pa ragraph 8 .   

Le t  me s tar t  there ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   You say page 4 .   I t  cannot  

be  page 4 ,  I  th ink .  

MR MONTANA :    Oh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 4  o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

MR MONTANA :    O f  the  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  i t  i s  a  s tanda lone.   I t  i s  no t  par t  o f  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   What  paragraph?  

MR MONTANA :    Paragraphs 7  and 8 .   Le t  me read tha t  

f i rs t ,  Cha i r,  to  go  in to  th is .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I t  i s  submi t ted  tha t  fa i r. . . ”   Can I  p roceed,  

Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Do you have i t ,  Cha i r?   Shou ld  I  p roceed? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  go t  i t .   I t  s ta r ts  a t  page 3 .   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR MONTANA :    Page 4 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  thought  you sa id  you want  to  read f rom 

paragraph 7?  10 

MR MONTANA :    Ja ,  paragraph 7  and paragraph 8 ,  Cha i r,  

be fore  I  make my po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay my . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Sor ry,  sor ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . s ta r ts  a t  page 3 .  

MR MONTANA :    I s  there  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    My parag raph 7  s ta r ts  a t  page 3 .  

MR MONTANA :    A t  page 3 . . .   No,  no  I  meant  page 4 ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR MONTANA :    Page 4 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yours  s ta r ted  –  le t  me make sure  we 

have got  the  same . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    The same,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  f rom what  we 

are  read ing  i t  shou ld  be  the  same.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Dubek ’s  a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And in  te rms o f  red  numbers ,  pa rag raph  

7  i s  a t  page 8  on  my red  numbers  a t  the  top .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  the  red  numbers  i s  

page 4 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink ,  in  fac t ,  i t  i s  the  le t te r  Cha i r  f rom 

the  a t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A le t te r?  10 

MR MONTANA :    Ja ,  be fore  the  a f f idav i t .   Sor ry,  Cha i r.   

The cover ing  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The not ice?  

MR MONTANA :    The not ice ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The not ice  o f  mo t ion?  

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  what  you are  ta lk ing  about .   

Okay a l r i gh t .    

MR MONTANA :    Do you have tha t  on  page 4 ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .   Oh,  no ,  no  I  thought  20 

you were  read ing  –  you were  go ing  to  read f rom the  

a f f idav i t .  

MR MONTANA :    The a f f idav i t  i t se l f .   Oh,  no  my apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The not ice  o f  mo t ion ,  yes .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

MR MONTANA :    You have got  i t ,  Cha i r.   So the  le t te r  says  

–  the  no t ice  says:  

“ I t  i s  submi t ted  tha t  fa i r  admin is t ra t i ve  

procedures requ i res  an  unb iased,  ob jec t i ve  

and t ransparent  approach,  no t  on ly  in  the 

presenta t ion  o f  ev idence but  a lso  in  the  

process o f  ob ta in ing  ev idence pr io r  to  i t  be ing  

presented.  

I f  the  ev idence  o f  Mr  Oe l le rman and a l l  10 

w i tnesses g iv ing  ev idence are  re la ted  to  the 

re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  app l i cants  and  

PRASA,  as  we l l  as  Lucky Montana,  a re  a l lowed 

to  be  led  w i thout  the  ve rac i t y  o f  such  

ev idence,  i t  w i l l  have a  severe l y  p re jud i c ia l  

impact  on  the  app l i cant ’s  r igh t  to  a  fa i r  hear ing  

in  the  h igh  cour t . . . ”  

 Of  cou rse ,  Cha i r,  tha t  re la ted  to  the  cour t  mat te r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  was ment ioned.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  le t  me go to  the  mat te r.   I  th ink  

tha t  we are  dea l i ng  w i th  th ree  d i f fe ren t  accounts .   I  th ink  i t  

i s  very  impor tan t ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  remember  tha t  a t  th is  s tage,  we  

are  no t  dea l ing  w i th  whether  they are  r igh t  o r  wrong.    

MR MONTANA :    Yes –  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  –  I  in i t ia l l y  jus t  wanted to  ident i f y  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .whether  th is  i s  the  a f f idav i t  and you 

conf i rmed.   And then I  wanted to  es tab l i sh  where  exact ly  

where  they say what  you sa id  they  say and we have found  

out  where  tha t  i s .  10 

MR MONTANA :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  the  hear t  o f  what  Mr  Son i  and I  

quoted re fers  to  payment  f rom TMM to  Prec ise  Trade.   That  

i s   -  so  the  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  f rom an Investec  account .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  the  –  no ,  no t  Investec  –  tha t  i s  an  

Investec  account ,  Cha i r,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So  is  c lear ly  say ing  the re  is  no t  t ransfer  

f rom us as  TMM . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    TMM,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . to  Prec ise  Trade.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing  he  is  say ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  number  one.   The second he i s  

say ing ,  Cha i r,  and le t  us  no t  confuse(?)  them because then  

we are  go ing  to  confuse ou rse lves Cha i r.   The second th ing  

is  tha t  we had a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Loubser  Van der  Wal t  as  

a  f i rm wh ich  then opened an account  because they were 

manag ing  cer ta in  th ings fo r  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  10 

MR MONTANA :    So  when he  says they have made 

payments ,  they a re  no t  re fe r r i ng  to  the  account  o f  P rec i se  

Trade,  Cha i r.   They are  re fer r ing  to  the  account  o f  Loubser  

van der  Wal t ,  and tha t  i s  why in  the  a f f idav i t  they  take  

except ion  to  some o f  the  th ings tha t  i s  be ing  sa id ,  okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Mr  Son i ,  o f  course ,  and consc ious ly,  

Cha i r.   Consc ious ly.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    He conf la tes  those two to  suppor t  the  20 

v iew desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  the  no tes  w i l l  be  drawn .   

[Speaker  no t  c lea r ]   You remember  Cha i r  when I  sa id  tha t  I  

do  no t  want  a  concess ion  about  these notes?  He then 

re ta ins  back to  h is  own or ig ina l  pos i t ion ,  okay?  The  

or ig ina l  pos i t ion  says they do  not  deny.    
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 Cha i r,  le t  me say.   Today we are  hav ing  a  major  

d ispute  on  th is  i ssue and I  th ink  Cha i r  one o f  the  majo r  

th ings we w i l l  ask ,  espec ia l l y  in  re la t ion  to  th is  one.   I  do  

no t  th ink  you shou ld  wa i t  fo r  the  repor t   I t  i s  in  the  in te res t  

o f  jus t i ce  fo r  these chaps not  be  happen  to  ver i f y  the i r  

accounts .    

 You remember  why we are  he re ,  Cha i r?   I t  i s  

sa id  tha t  R 36 mi l l ion  o f  m is te r  –  o f  P rec ise  Trade  comes  

f rom TMM.   Cha i r,  I  am s t i l l  say ing  i t  i s  fa lse .   They are  

say ing  i t  i s  fa lse ,  okay?  Because they are  no t  ta lk ing  10 

about  tha t  –  they  are  say ing  i f  you  ta lk  about  ou r  work  w i th  

Loubser,  the  f i rm,  the  fac t (? )  work  and tha t  i s  fo r  one,  two,  

th ree .    

 The a l legat ions tha t  have been made Cha i r  was  

tha t  S iyangena,  wh ich  is  a  d iv is ion  o f  –  i t  i s  one o f  the  

subs id ia r ies  o r  whatever  o f  TMM.   They are  no t  one and  

the  same company.   S iyangena was g iven R 4  b i l l i on  wor th  

o f  cont rac t s  and  i t  pa id .   That  i s  the  a l legat ion ,  Cha i r.   

That  i s  why I  am here .   We say we must  dea l  w i th  the  

proper t ies .    20 

 Mr  Son i  sa id ,  when I  ra ise  my ob jec t ion ,  he  sa id :   

We know for  sure .   We know tha t  these payments  were  

made by  TMM.   Okay?  So he . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    May I  jus t  ob jec t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th is  i s  about  the  f i f th  t ime 

Mr  Montana sa id  tha t .   Every  t ime I  pu t  a  p ropos i t ion  to  

Mr  Montana or  to  you,  I  have sa id  tha t  th is  i s  what  i s  

ind ica ted  in  the  bank account .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  d id  no t  say  i t  was pa id .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  sa id  tha t  i s  what  Mr  Van der  Wal t  10 

says.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And I  cha l lenge aga in  Mr  Montana 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . to  ge t  h is  scr ip t  wherever  he  ge ts  

h is  scr ip ts  f rom to  say tha t  I  sa id  I  know they have  pa id  i t .   

Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  say  tha t .    

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  an  ob jec t ion .   I f  you  are  i n  

Par l iament  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . you  are  go ing  to  say we are  go ing  to  

s tudy the  Hansard .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    In  th is  par t i cu la r  ins tance,  the  t ranscr ip t  
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and the  reco rd ing  w i l l  show us.   Unfor tunate l y,  Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  what  he  is  say ing  is .   He d id  no t  

say  he  has persona l  knowledge.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  wha t  he  is  

say ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He was s imp ly  say ing  th is  i s  what  i s  sa id  

by  Van der  Wal t  based on the  document ,  as  I  unders tand i t .  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no ,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  when I  took –  when I  made the  

ob jec t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .and I  th ink  a t  the  las t  and the  next  

t ime.   So tha t  i s  why i t  i s  no t  an  ob jec t ion ,  Cha i r.   He has  

got  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew.   I  l i s tened,  he  spoke,  you spoke  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    You rever ted  back to  h im.   Now is  my to  

respond to  these th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja-no . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MONTANA :    So  the  ob jec t ion  Cha i r  i s  no t  an  ob jec t ion .   

Cha i r,  I  want  to  say and I  hope tha t  when I  b r ing  the  c l ip  o f  

what  he  sa id  ear l ie r  on  today,  you w i l l  see  tha t  tha t  c l ip  

Cha i r  –  he  says exact ly.   He sa id  we know.   And I  asked  

the  quest ion  ea r l ie r  on .   Who  is  we?  s  t ha t  the  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 218 of 343 
 

Commiss ion  or  i s  tha t  h im or  the  Lega l  Depar tment ,  Cha i r?   

 And I  w i l l  be  ab le  to  demonst ra te  tha t  to  you,  

Cha i r.   And tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  Cha i r  tha t  I  f ind  myse l f  

dea l ing  w i th  an  ev idence leader  who does not  want  to  

ass is t  the  Commiss ion  bu t  i s  pu t t ing  a  par t i cu la r  agenda.   

Cha i r,  the  a l legat ion  be fore  us  is  tha t  TMM pa id  fo r  

p roper t ies ,  okay?    

 Now TMM says:   We are  no t  invo lved in  tha t .   We 

never  pa id  –  our  re la t ionsh ip  i s  w i t h  the  lega l  f i rm on these 

par t i cu la r  i ssues.   The a l legat ion  is  tha t  p roper t i es  were  10 

pa id  fo r  f rom the  proceeds o f  the  tender  tha t  was awarded  

to  S iyangena.   These guys are  cha l leng ing  tha t  Cha i r,  

okay?  So the  accounts  must  no t  be  conf la ted ,  f i rs t l y.   So 

there  is  an  account  o f  TMM/S iyangena.    

 There  is  an  account  o f  Lombard(? )  wh ich  –  what  

Rober t  spoke about  and there  is  an  account  o f  P rec i se  

Trade,  okay?  So tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  issue,  Cha i r.   So they are  

no t  say ing  we never  pa id  Prec ise  Trade a t  a l l ,  okay?  So 

tha t  i s  the  s ta tement  I  am mak ing ,  Cha i r.   And there fore  

wou ld  –  they are  say ing ,  wou ld  no t  have been invo lved in  20 

pay ing  fo r  Mr  Montana ’s  p roper t ies ,  okay?   

 Now th i s  i s  con f la ted ,  Cha i r,  to  suggest  they 

have pa id  some money.   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  an  d i shonest  

p resent ing  Cha i r  because you are  say ing  there  is  pay –  no .   

There  is  payment  –  there  is  a  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  –  the re  i s  a  
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re la t ionsh ip  tha t  they desc r ibed there .   And I  do  no t  th ink  

Cha i r  tha t  we shou ld  –  the  Cha i r  shou ld  say:   In  the  l igh t  o f  

th is  b ig  i ssue tha t  we shou ld  go  and say le t  us  wa i t  fo r  the  

repor t .    

 The Commiss ion  made ce r ta in  s ta tements  wh ich  

are  no t  –  I  wan t  to  a rgue Cha i r,  they  are  no t  fac tua l l y  

based.   They a re  based on –  and  tha t  i s  why I  even sa id  

the  in fe rence we draw suggests .   Now I  asked Cha i r.   You 

sa id  we shou ld  no t  go  to  tha t  i ssue,  ear l ie r  on .   I  sa id ,  

wou ld  Mr  Son i  says w i th  abso lu te  ce r ta in ty  to  you Cha i r  10 

now –  I  am ask ing  you –  and te l l  you  and the  consc ious 

say TMM pa id  Prec i se  Trade and Prec ise  Trade,  no t  

in fe rences,  Prec ise  Trade then  bought  p roper t ies  fo r  

Montana?   

 My –  the  propos i t ion  –  the  d i f fe ren t  p ropos i t ions  

tha t  I  have p resented and wh ich  is  backed by  the  ev idence,  

i t  shows two th ings Cha i r.   I t  shows Montana buy ing  

proper t ies ,  te l l ing  them and enter ing  and invest ing  in  o ther  

p roper t ies .   That  i s  one.   That  we can see in  documents  

inc lud ing  the  annexures tha t  I  gave to  you today.    20 

 There  is  no  –  and  I  ment ioned very  c lea r ly,  there  

is  no  S iyangena  in  a l l  o f  those proper t ies .   The  second 

one,  Cha i r.   The second propos i t ion  tha t  i s  very  c lea r,  

wh ich  he  does not  want  to  dea l  w i th ,  i t  shows a  who le  

range o f  investo rs  Cha i r.   A who le  range o f  inves tors ,  in  
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invest ing  in  –  and I  am not  re fe r r ing  to  TMM,  investo rs  

ou ts ide  invest ing  in  Prec ise  Trade.   How d id  they  make a  

cho ice  tha t  no  tha t  money does not  come f rom a l l  these  

o ther  investors?   I t  comes f rom th is  pa r t i cu la r  on .    

 Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  ve ry  impor tan t  fac tua l l y  

i ssue.   And I  am say ing  tha t  i f  you  l i s ten  to  what  Mr  Son i  

has been say ing  now.   Now-now,  a f te r  he  has read th is  

th ing ,  Cha i r.   And h is  response to  S iyangena.   Somebody  

who is  ass is t ing  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  have sa id  

someth ing  d i f fe ren t  tha t  i s  very  impor tan t .   And I  see tha t  10 

he  is  emot iona l l y  –  he  is  so  invested  in  th is  mat te r,  to  use 

tha t  word .    

 He is  so  invested .   He is  pass ionate  about  i t ,  

Cha i r,  because i f  I  was not  here ,  Cha i r,  we are  go ing  to  

move f rom the  premise  tha t  TMM pa id  Prec ise  Trade.   TMM 

d id  no t  pay Prec i se  Trade and the  fa i r  p rocess to  fo l low i s  

no t  fo r  Mr  Son i  i s  to  speak on beha l f  o f  – and Mr  Montana 

and Mr  Son i  to  speak on beha l f  o f  these guys.    

 I t  i s  perhaps proper  fo r  e i ther  these guys to  

come and te l l  and say to  the  Commiss ion  and the 20 

Commiss ion  asks  quest ions,  Cha i r.   But  I  fee l  tha t  Mr  Son i  

has cross  the  l ined –  Cha i r.   And I  want  to  say Cha i r  tha t  I  

do  no t  know wha t  i s  the  procedure .   We approach the  end  

o f  th is  p rocess,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    Maybe I  need to  take  lega l  adv i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  th ink  tha t ,  no t  on ly  on  th is  one,  

Cha i r.   Th roughout  has shown h imse l f  tha t  he  is  incapab le  

o f  ass is t ing  th i s  Commiss ion  and the  fac t  tha t  he  can  

promise  you tha t  you are  go ing  keep take out  a l l  those –  

what  do  you ca l l  i t  –  no tes  and o ther  documents  tha t  were  

l i f ted  f rom e lsewhere .   Yet  when he speaks,  he  goes back 

to  a l l  o f  tha t  to  what  –  say ing  Cha i r.   [Speaker  no t  c lear ]   

He ac tua l l y  a f f i rms.    10 

 Now Cha i r,  I  th ink  we shou ld  go  back.   I  th ink  we 

shou ld  go  back and say –  and say  Cha i r  tha t  i t  i s  impor tan t  

tha t  we look a t  these issues d i spass ionate ly.   I  do  no t  th ink  

he  is  capab le  o f  do ing  i t  now,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  you can  

see the  leve l  o f  –  ac tua l l y  the  l eve l  o f  host i l i t y  towards 

TMM/S iyangena.   I t  i s  unprecedented f rom an ev idence 

leader  bu t  tha t  has been cons is ten t .    

 And I  sa id  on  my f i rs t  day when I  a r r i ved here ,  

Cha i r.   I  sa id  Mr  Son i  i s  conf l i c ted .   He re fused.   And what  

d id  he  do?  He then in  h is  own s ta tement  conf i rmed tha t  he  20 

d id  work  and was br ie fed  by  Werksmans and a l l  o f  those 

th ings.   Now I  am not  surpr i sed w i th  the  way in  wh ich  he  

conducts  h imse l f .   Cha i r,  the  fac tua l  mat te r  i s .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson.   I  must  ob jec t  

aga in .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  what  a re  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  d id  conf i rm,  Cha i rperson is ,  tha t  I  

d id  one op in ion  f rom PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  I  never  sa id  I  have worked  

Werksmans in  re la t ion  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  tha t  i s  a  conf l i c t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I t  was not  d isc losed before  I  sa id  i t  here .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Le t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    He had a  du ty  to  d isc lose  tha t  to  the 

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  do  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  can I  f ina l i se  my po in t ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Because tha t  i s  no t  an  ob jec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  sa id  he  i s  comple ted .   I  am s t i l l  

repeat ing  i t  now,  Cha i r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  what  shou ld  happen in  th i s  i ssue 

and maybe the  issue about  the  ver i f y ing  a l l  o f  these  th ings,  

okay?  And I  know because I  have  done my own p re l im inary  

work  to  see where  the  numbers  a re .   I  wou ld  no t  come here  
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and be. . .   [Speaker  no t  c lear ]    

 Bu t  the  ne twork  tha t  I  spoke about  when I  read 

the  conc lus ion  has been determined and i t  i s  qu i te  c lear  

tha t  they are  reach ing  out  to  Mr  Son i  in  a  pa r t i cu la r  way  

and tha t  i s  why you hear  the  l ine  tha t  he  is  tak ing .   And I  

am say ing  Cha i r  I  have got  an  ob jec t ion  to  tha t .   I  took  ou t  

–  we ag reed –  I  mean we wasted  about  two hours ,  tak ing  

ou t  ce r ta in  documents  because I  sa id  they a re  based on. . .  

[Speaker  moves away f rom microphone –  unc lear ] .    

 Cha i r,  le t  me ask  a  s i l l y  quest ion .   Mr  Son i  says 10 

w i th  abso lu te  ce r ta in ty  to  you now,  no t  tomorrow,  now 

Cha i r  and say tha t  I  know f rom a l l  the  documents  and a l l  

the  work  tha t  I  have done tha t  TMM pa id  Prec i se  Trade who  

in  tu rn  pa id  fo r  –  who in  tu rn  pa id  fo r  Mr  Montana ’s  

p roper t ies .   Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  quest ion  is  be t te r  i f  he  is  

s tand ing  there  and te l l  us  because  – bu t  Cha i r  I  have los t  

abso lu te  conf idence in  h im.    

 I  th ink  tha t  when  I  am inv i ted  -  I  am not  sure ,  I  

th ink  tha t  when I  am tak ing  th rough my a f f idav i t ,  assuming  

tha t  I  w i l l  s t i l l  be  inv i ted  –  Mr  Son i  has showed Cha i r  –  I  do 20 

not  th ink  tha t  he  is  he lp ing  you,  he  is  he lp ing  the  

Commiss ion .   He is  pursu ing  Cha i r  a  p re -determined  

agenda and tha t  i s  why the  documents ,  some o f  them,  are  

le f t  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA :    O thers  are  presented . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    . . . in  a way tha t  w i l l  push a  par t i cu la r  

nar ra t i ve ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have made the  po in t  Mr  Montana.   

One.   We have run  out  o f  t ime.   Mr  Son i ,  you may  w ish  to  

respond to  some o f  th is  now,  in  wh ich  case you can do so ,  

bu t  we have run  out  o f  t ime.   Wi th  a l l  the  t ime const ra in ts  

tha t  the  Commiss ion  has,  one  has  got  to  re f lec t  as  to  how 

we are  go ing  to  comple te  what  remains .   And you have  10 

made the  po in ts  you have made.   Mr  Son i ,  do  you want  to  

say someth ing  or  do  you want  to  say i t  a t  another  t ime? 

MR MONTANA :    Be fore  tha t  Cha i r.   I  thought  you  wou ld  

c la r i f y  the  p rocess to  ca l l  fo r  Mr  Son i  to  recuse h imse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  I  am not  go ing  to  dec ide  tha t  now 

but  I  heard  what  you say.  

MR MONTANA :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i ,  do  you want  to . . .?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson,  may I  make th is?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th is  i s ,  as  I  reca l l ,  the  f i f th  day tha t  

Mr  Montana. . .   [Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  unc lea r ]   The  

in i t ia l  enqu i r ing (?)  took p lace  and th ings tha t  ge t  

se t t led(?) .   I  jus t  want  to  make  th is  one po in t .   What  

changed today was the  quest ion  I  ra ised w i th  Mr  Montana  
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about  the  Parkwood proper ty  and  the  fac t  tha t  you wou ld  

en ter  i n to  an  dea l ,  se l l  a  p roper ty  fo r  R 6 ,8  m i l l ion  and 

th ree  weeks la te r  en ter  in to  a  dea l  to  make improvements  

on  the  proper ty.    

 And I  sa id  peop le  may say bu t  tha t  does not  look  

proper  o r  appropr ia te .   That  i s  no t  what  o rd inary  peop le  do .   

I t  does not  look  l i ke  what  you were  do ing .   And I  can  say to  

you Cha i rpe rson,  you can look a t  the  reco rd ,  you can look 

a t  every th ing .   That  i s  when Mr  Montana thought  tha t  he re  

is  somebody who  is  go ing  to  ge t  to  cha l lenge the  vers ion  10 

he wants  to  pu t .   Now he is  en t i t led  to  cha l lenge i t .    

 Cha i rperson,  I  cannot  as  an  ev idence leader  –  I  

cannot  come to  the  Commiss ion  w i th  no  pr ima fac ie  v iew 

about  what . . .   [Speaker ’s  vo i ce  d rops –  unc lear ]   I  have to  

have a  v iew.   Otherwise ,  I  wou ld  be  wast ing  taxpayers ’ 

money by  i nvest i ga t ing  th ings tha t  in  a  sense are  no t  wor th 

invest iga t ing .    

 The PRASA i ssue has been in  the  pub l i c  space 

f rom a t  leas t  two thousand and. . .   [Speaker ’s  vo i ce  drops –  

unc lea r ]   I t  does  not  mean Mr Montana is  gu i l t y  bu t  when  20 

the  –  when one  looks a t  the  ev idence,  one sees tha t  

Mr  Montana has many th ings to  answer  fo r.   And I  d id  no t  

say  i t  does mean tha t  he  does someth ing  wrong.    

 A t  the  same t ime,  when there  is  ev idence,  my 

s ta tements (?)  to  Montana as  you c la r i f ied  i t  yes terday,  and 
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I  want  to  sugges t  tha t  th is  i s  what  the  ev idence may lead 

to ,  I  am ob l iged to  pu t  i t  to  Mr  Montana.   And I  d id  tha t  

yes terday and I  d id  tha t  today and tha t ,  in  regard  to  the  

Parkwood proper t y  Cha i rperson is  what  tu rned Mr  Montana 

in to  rea l i s ing  tha t  he  may have. . .  [Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  

unc lea r ]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Your  vo ice  was  lowered towards the  end 

o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Sor ry.   I  say,  tha t  i s  what  tu rned  

Mr  Montana in to  rea l i s i ng  he  may  have cer ta in  d i f f i cu l t ies  10 

in  p rov id ing  answers .   I t  does not  mean he has to . . .   

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  tha t  is  a  sense –  tha t  i s  the  

sense I  go t  f rom the  t ime tha t  ques t ion  was put .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And the  next  quest ion  Cha i rperson 

was when I  d rew a  l ink  be tween the  R 3 ,5  m i l l ion  pa id  in  

respect  o f  the  guarantee fo r  the  Wate rk loo f  p roper ty  and  

drew a t ten t ion  to  the  R 3 ,5  m i l l ion  wh ich ,  acco rd ing  to  20 

Mr  Van der  Wal t ,  had been pa id  in to  the  account  ear l ie r  

tha t  day (?)    

 Now,  Mr  Montana is  en t i t led  to  ask  fo r  my  

recusa l .   I  w i l l  jus t  make one po in t  as  fa r  as  tha t  goes,  

Cha i rperson.   What  cannot  be  sa id  i s  tha t  I  have conducted 
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myse l f  in  a  fash ion  not  be f i t t ing  an  ev idence leader  be fore  

th is  Commiss ion .    

 Now,  one w i l l  hear  the  app l i ca t ion .   Jus t  make 

one f ina l  po in t ,  Cha i rperson,  and tha t  i s  the  reques t (?)  fo r  

the  recusa l  o f  an  ev idence leader  i s  ve ry  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  

request  fo r  the  recusa l  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  am not  go ing  to  –  bu t  I  am not  

hear ing  the  mer i t s  o f  any app l i ca t ion  fo r  recusa l  a t  the  

moment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have heard  what  Mr  Montana says,  

request ing  a  recusa l ,  bu t  tha t  may  have to  be  dea l t  w i th  in  

some o ther  way because r igh t  now we have run  out  o f  t ime.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We do not  have  the  t ime.   So I  th ink  we 

shou ld  ad journ ,  tha t ’s  number  one .  

Number  two,  we can a l l  re f lec t  on  the  issues,  I  cer ta in l y  

w i l l ,  and one o f  the  th ings tha t  I  w i l l  be  re f lec t ing  on  w i l l  be  

the  way fo rward  par t i cu la r l y  g iven  the  t ime const ra in ts  and  

to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Montana ins i s ts  on  or  pursues h is  20 

app l i ca t ion  or  request  fo r  your  recusa l  then a t  some s tage I  

wou ld  need to  dea l  w i th  tha t  bu t  I  do  want  to  say th is ,  tha t  

has crossed my mind as  we face the  t ime const ra in ts  tha t  

we are  fac ing ,  tha t  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  we have had –  you  

sa id  f i ve  days,  I  th ink  you sa id  s i x  days yesterday or  today,  
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I  am not  sure .  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  today,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  s ix  days.   We have not  f in ished but  

f rom the  po in t  o f  v iew,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  o f  the  ev idence  

leaders ,  the  issue o f  the  proper t ies  was the  las t  top ic  f rom 

the i r  s ide .   Mr  Montana may have w ished to  s t i l l  say  

someth ing  a f te r  the  top ic  o f  p roper t ies  has been f ina l i sed,  I  

am not  sure ,  we covered some g round.  

 I t  may we l l  be  tha t  –  we l l  one,  i f  one can f ind  

another  t ime be fore  the  end o f  May,  tha t  wou ld  be  10 

pre fe rence,  bu t  i f  we cannot  f ind  t ime i t  may be tha t  the 

res t  o f  the  i ssues  may have to  be  dea l t  w i th  in  wr i t ing .   So  

quest ions can be put  and answers  can be prov ided in  

wr i t ing  and so  on .   So tha t  i s  one o f  the  th ings tha t  has 

crossed my mind  but  the  pre ference is ,  i f  we can f ind  t ime 

and we have a  hear ing  l i ke  th is ,  tha t  i s  what  the  pre ference 

wou ld  be .     

 So  I  am jus t  shar ing  w i th  you,  bo th  you,  Mr  Montana  

and Mr  Son i ,  wha t  has crossed my  mind and you can s tar t  

th ink ing  about  i t ,  we do not  have to  dec ide  i t  now,  I  must  20 

re f lec t  on  i t  as  we l l  bu t  I  must  best  see whether  we can 

f ind  another  t ime when the re  can be a  hear ing  l i ke  th is .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  wou ld  no t  have a  prob lem w i th  tha t ,  
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Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  w i l l  be  deep ly  –  I  wou ld  be  

aggr ieved,  Cha i r,  i f  th is  Commiss ion  –  Mr  Son i  says my 

vers ion .   Remember  too  tha t  i s  why,  Cha i r,  I  have been  

respond ing  to  a l l  the  a l legat ions made aga ins t  me.   I  th ink ,  

Cha i r,  i t  w i l l  be  fa i r  tha t  be fore  th is  Commiss ion  ad jou rns  

or  ends,  i f  the  ora l  hear ings tha t  Montana i s  g iven an  

oppor tun i ty  to  te l l  h is  s to ry,  h is  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  because I  

have been answer ing  quest ions,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  th ink  i f  the  Commiss ion  says you 

cannot  do  tha t ,  then I  a lso  th ink  tha t ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  app ly  to  

you to  a l low me tha t  I  make my own a f f idav i t  pub l i c l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  we w i l l  wa i t  un t i l  you  

g ive  us  gu idance on your  dec is ions .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So  tha t  one exerc ise  –  bu t  I  th ink  i t  wou ld  

be  unfa i r,  Cha i r,  cons ider ing  the  issues tha t  I  have  ra ised 20 

in  response.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  w i l l  say  I  w i l l  e labora te  and dea l  

w i th  them in  my a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  
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MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  a  gross  ac t  o f  

in jus t i ce  fo r  th is  Commiss ion  no t  to  hear   -  even i f  i t  i s  a  

se lec t  few issues  because o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  no t  to  hear  i t  and admi t  i t ,  Cha i r,  I  

th ink  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  –  i t  w i l l  be  unacceptab le  to  me ,  Cha i r,  

le t  me be ve ry  up f ron t  about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no ,  no ,  you are  s t i l l  ta lk ing  

about  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  sub jec t  to  the  process tha t  has 

been go ing  on be tween yourse l f  …[ in te rvenes]  10 

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  –  we sa id  i t  

w i l l  be  ready on Thursday fo r  you to  dec ide ,  Cha i r,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   We know 

where  we –  what  the  pos i t ion  is  w i th  regard  to  tha t  

a f f idav i t .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.   No,  thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  te rms o f  wha t  you may w ish  to  say to  

the  ex ten t  tha t  you say you wou ld  l i ke  to  te l l  your  s to ry,  

what  k ind  o f  amount  o f  t ime were  you th ink ing  o f ,  i f  you  

were  –  i f  we found t ime before  the  end o f  May? 20 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know,  I  mean… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i r t y  m inutes?  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  may take  an ent i re  

morn ing  or  a f te rnoon.   Le t  me ind ica te  the  issues tha t  we 

have d i scussed,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no ,  do  no t  ind i ca te ,  I  jus t  

wanted to  have an idea.   Obv ious l y  I  m ight  no t  g ive  you the  

amount  o f  t ime you w ish  fo r.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  accept  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  th ink  the  quest ion  I  am ra is ing  is  

tha t  i f  I  say  Mr  Son i  has taken s ides,  i s  he  the  r igh t  person 

to  lead me,  to  lead me in  my ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  a  b ig  quest ion ,  Cha i r,  tha t  we 10 

have to  look  a t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  on  proper t ies ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  

u l t imate ly  –  I  do  no t  even want  to  pursue th is  anymore .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  have sa id  what  I  have sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  tha t  u l t imate ly  the  ev idence w i l l  

gu ide  –  w i l l  be  u l t imate ly  the  de terminant .   That  is  why I  

was ask ing  tha t  quest ion ,  can Mr  Son i  say  w i th  abso lu te  20 

cer ta in ty  to  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  there  has been payment  

f rom TMM and I  th ink  he  has been  avo id ing  tha t  quest ion ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  fo r  now I  w i l l  leave i t  a t  tha t ,  Cha i r,  
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and hope –  and look fo rward  to  me present ing  my 

ev idence,  Cha i r.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  then ad journ  

th is  day ’s  sess ion  and in  one way  or  anothe r  there  w i l l  be  

communica t ion ,  Mr  Montana,  as  to  what  i s  go ing  to  happen.   

We are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  about  15  m inutes  to  a l low the  

even ing  sess ion  team to  se t  up .   That  w i l l  be  ev idence  

re la t ing  to  Mr  Gama and fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c ,  

tomorrow dur ing  the  day I  w i l l  be  hear ing  the  ev idence o f  

the  Inspector  Genera l  Dr  D in twe and in  the  even ing  10 

tomorrow we wi l l  a lso  cont inue w i th  Mr  Gama’s  ev idence.   

We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Good a f te rnoon,  Mr  Myburgh,  good  

a f te rnoon everybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good a f te rnoon,  Cha i rpe rson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am sor ry,  we a re  s ta r t ing  la te r  

than f i ve  o ’ c lock  bu t  I  th ink  you were  a l l  here ,  you know 

what  i s  happen ing ,  so  –  bu t  once aga in ,  thank  you to  20 

everybody fo r  a l l  your  coopera t ion  so  tha t  we cou ld  s i t  th is  

even ing  and t ry  and cover  qu i te  some ground.   Yes,  sha l l  

we have Mr  Gama take the  oa th?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  a f f i rma t ion .  
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REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MR GAMA:    S iyabonga Innocent  Gama.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  t ak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR GAMA:    No.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  10 

e lse  bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and 

say so  he lp  me God.  

SIYABONGA INNOCENT GAMA:  So he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess lega l  representa t ion  is  the  same 

as be fore?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  the  same as be fore ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Thank  you fo r  

ava i l ing  yourse l f  once aga in ,  Mr  Gama.  20 

MR GAMA:    Thank you very  much ,  Cha i r,  fo r  hav ing  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Gama,  cou ld  I  s ta r t  by  ask ing  you 

p lease to  tu rn  to  Transnet  bund le  7 ,  EXHIBIT BB28 ,  tha t  is  

your  exh ib i t ,  and  cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  page 
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250.352,  i t  i s  about  50  or  60  pages f rom the  back  o f  the  

f i le ,  I  assume.  

MR GAMA:    352? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    352,  yes .   You wou ld  have seen tha t  

s ince  the  las t  s i t t ing  the  invest iga tors  in  the  Transnet  

s t ream got  in  touch w i th  the  journa l i s t  who wro te  the  ar t i c le  

about  you r  Obero i  s tay  and the re  you f ind  a t  352 and 

a f f idav i t  by  Ky le  Cohen.   I  am not  go ing  to  take  you  

th rough the  who le  a f f idav i t ,  I  want  to  jus t  paraphrase par t s  

and then get  your  comment .   Mr  Cohen says a t  paragraph 7  10 

a t  page 353 tha t  on  the  19  Augus t  2017 you responded in  

wr i t ing  to  the  quest ions tha t  he  had put  to  you and they are  

a t tached as  annexures and o f  s ign i f i cance fo r  p resent  

purposes,  i f  you  go over  the  page a t  7 .2  he  reco rds tha t :  

“Gama fu r the r  s ta ted  tha t  he ,  Essa,  had mere ly  

ind ica ted  he can  book fo r  me a t  the  ho te l ,  wh ich  I  

accepted.   Gama ind ica ted  tha t  he  wou ld  send me a  

copy o f  the  rece ip t  v ia  te legram a t  te lephone tex t ing  

app l i ca t ion  we had to  communica te . ”  

And then Mr  Cohen goes on to  say a t  pa ragraph 8  a t  page 20 

255 tha t :  

“Gama prov ided me wi th  a  copy o f  an  invo ice  v ia  

te legram which  he  c la imed to  be  f rom the  Obero i  as  

proof  tha t  he  had persona l ly  se t t led  the  b i l l .   The 

invo ice  i s  s tamped pa id .   However,  the  invo ice  does 
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no t  re f lec t  the  name o f  the  ho te l  nor  does i t  re f lec t  

the  name o f  the  person who se t t led  the  b i l l .   The 

invo ice  re f lec ts  tha t  i t  was pr in ted  in  June 2017  

a lmost  a  year  and ha l f  Gama’s  s tay  a t  the  ho te l  and 

rough ly  a t  the  same t ime tha t  I  f i rs t  contac ted  Gama 

regard ing  h is  s tay  a t  the  ho te l  in  quest ion .   A copy  

o f  the  invo ice  prov ided to  me by Gama is  a t tached 

a t  annexure  KC4. ”  

Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  take  you to  tha t  invo i ce  and you w i l l  

see  tha t  parag raph 8  tha t  I  have jus t  read to  you accords 10 

w i th  the  journa l i s t ’s  –  the  tex t  o f  the  ar t i c l e  i t se l f .    

 Annexure  KC4 you f ind  a t  page 362 and you w i l l  see  

tha t  i t  i s  s tamped  pa id ,  i t  does not  re f lec t  the  name o f  the 

ho te l ,  does not  re f lec t  the  name o f  the  person who se t t led  

the  b i l l  and you  w i l l  see  tha t  i t  was pr in ted  seems the  18  

June 2017.   Now prev ious in  your  tes t imony you to ld  the  

Cha i rperson tha t  the  invo i ce  tha t  you gave to  the  journa l i s t  

i s  tha t  wh ich  you f ind  a t  page 341 o f  the  same bund le .  

MR GAMA:    Can  you show me where  I  sa id  tha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Where  d id  you say tha t  you gave the  20 

journa l i s t  –  d id  I  m isunders tand your  ev idence?  Was tha t  

no t  your  ev idence? 

MR GAMA:    No,  can you show me where  I  sa id  tha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  Mr  Gama,  I  can go  to  the  

t ranscr ip t  i f  you  want  bu t  i f  I  have got  i t  wrong you can  
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cor rec t  me.   I  am not  -  want  to  engage in  a  ba t t le  o f  w i ts ,  

d id  I  m isunders tand your  ev idence? 

MR GAMA:    You probab ly  d id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  can you jus t  exp la in  –  

perhaps we w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  th is  way.   Do you accept  tha t  

you sent  the  journa l i s t  by  way o f  te leg ram the  invo ice  tha t  

appears  a t  page 362?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   D id  you then ob ta in  the  

invo ice  a t  341 la te r?  10 

MR GAMA:    Yes,  i t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  invo ice .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  da ted  on a  d i f fe ren t  da te .   As  I  have sa id  

to  you,  I  wro te  to  the  ho te l  because I  d id  no t  have a  copy 

and I  asked the  ho te l  to  send me the  invo i ce  and th is  was  

in  2018 and they sent  me th is  invo ice  in  2018.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  what  caused you to  want  to  ge t  

another  copy o f  the  invo ice  in  add i t ion  to  tha t  a t  362? 

MR GAMA:    Because the  one a t  362,  when I  changed 

phones I  los t  tha t  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was on tha t  phone so  I  20 

had a  new phone  and  I  d id  no t  have th i s  invo i ce  anymore .   

But  i f  you  look a t  the  invo ices they ta lk  to  the  same issues.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you accept  the  invo i ce  a t  341 is  

no t  da ted?  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  no t  da ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  to  -  Mr  Myburgh,  jus t  to  fo r  the  sake  

o f  the  t ranscr ip t  to  conf i rm tha t  when you say 341 you 

mean 250.341.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  do ,  I  beg your  pardon.   Yes,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because I  was look ing  fo r  the  page and I  

fo rge t  to  fac tor  in to  250.341.   Okay,  I  am sor ry,  I  

in te r rup ted ,  do  you want  to  jus t  repeat  your  ques t ion  or  

whatever  you put  to  h im? 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  pu t  to  Mr  Gama tha t  i t  does not  

appear  tha t  341 i s  da ted .  

MR GAMA:    No,  I  does not  have a  da te ,  as  you say,  bu t  i t  

i s  the  invo ice  tha t  I  requested in  2018.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  course  the  da te  he  does not  have is  

the  da te  when i t  was issued,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  has the  da te  o f  a r r i va l  and date  o f  

depar tu re .  

MR GAMA:    The invo ice  does not  have a  da te  bu t  the  20 

emai l  tha t  I  requested the  invo i ce  on  i t  w i l l  show when i t  

was sent  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  here ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The emai l  i s  no t  par t  o f  the  bund le .  
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MR GAMA:    Bu t  i t  can  be sent  he re  i f  you  want  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you have got  i t ,  ja .  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  have got  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no t  I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  good  i f  i t  

cou ld  be  sent .  

MR GAMA:    Then what  the  Commiss ion  has a lso  ob ta ined 

is  an  a f f idav i t  wh ich  I  understood f rom my lea rned f r iend is  

in  d ispute ,  so  we  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  I  suppose,  f rom a  Mr  

Cyr i l  Pe t rus  Lourens.   That  you  f ind  a t  342.   What  Mr  

Lourens purpor ts  to  do  in  th is  a f f idav i t  i s  to  ana lyse  the  so-10 

ca l led  metadata  i n  re la t ion  to  your  invo ice  a t  341 and he  

conc ludes tha t  tha t  invo i ce  was crea ted.   I f  you  have a  

look a t  page 250 .346,  he  conc ludes tha t  i t  was crea ted a t  

parag raph 23.1  on  the  19  February  2018.    

ADV OLD WAGE SC :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  am go ing  to  ob jec t  to  

what  i s  be ing  pu t  to  Mr  Gama on the  fo l low ing bases.   F i rs t  

one i s  tha t  th is  k ind  o f  a  document  o r  repor t  by  an  exper t ,  

someone who pro fesses to  be  an  exper t  in  in fo rmat ion  

techno logy,  as  th is  deponent  appears  t o  be  do ing ,  w i l l  in  

the  ord inary  course  descr ibe  the  methodo logy emp loyed by 20 

h im or  her  w i th  re fe rence to  the  re t r ieva l  o f  e lec t ron ic  da ta  

and tha t  i s  governed in  te rms o f  the  E lec t ron i c  

Communica t ions  and Transact ions Act .   There  is  no  

methodo logy employed and as  and by  way o f  example ,  

assuming the re  was a  m i r ro r  image made o f  a  ha rd  dr i ve  
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and in  th i s  re t r ieva l  p rocess,  tha t  hard  dr i ve  i s  cons ide red.   

The govern ing  pr inc ip le  i s  he  has to ta ls  o r  what  i s  

commonly  descr ibed as  the  a lgor i thm is  cent ra l  to  tha t .   In  

o ther  words,  you have two un ique numbers  and  i f  they  

match ,  i t  i s  an  ind ica t ion  tha t  there  was no a t tempt  to  

in te r fe re  w i th  the  da te  and modi fy  and so  fo r th .   We have  

none o f  tha t  methodo logy desc r ibed so  I  cannot  on  the  face  

o f  mere ly  what  i s  p resented in  an  a f f idav i t  accept  tha t  th is  

in fo rmat ion  is  accura te  and cor rec t .   In  fac t ,  I  can  ra ise  

many reasons why I  wou ld  ob jec t  to  the  recept ion  o f  th is  10 

k ind  o f  ev idence i f  we were  in  a  t r ia l  se t t ing .   Not  tha t  I  am 

depr ived present ly  o f  the  oppor tun i ty  o f  do ing  tha t ,  hence  

me ra i s ing  th is  ob jec t ion .  

 The second concern  what  ac tua l l y  appears  in  th is  

document  wh ich  w i l l  then te l l  that  what  Mr  Myburgh now 

has done i s  to  pu t  tha t  th is  document ’s  c rea t ion  da te  i s  the  

19  February  2018 and to  pu t  tha t  as  a  fac t  i s  wrong  

because,  you see,  and regre t tab l y  in  smal l  p r in t  what  th is  

deponent  has done,  i s  he  says there  is  a  re ference to  a 

foo tno te .   That  very  foo tno te  i s  no t  o f  re levance but  i f  you 20 

tu rn  the  page,  there  i s  a l so  a  c rea t ion  da te  a t  paragraph  

22.1  tha t  ta lks  about  f i l e  c rea ted and then there  is  a  

foo tno te  a t  number  11  in  smal l  p r in t  wh ich  reads:  

“Date  c rea ted or  da te  cop ied  f rom one dr i ve  to  

another  ( th is  i s  no t  necessar i l y  the  or ig ina l  c rea t ion  
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da te  bu t  th is  i s  how NTFS f i le  sys tems s tores  

da tes . )  

There  is  no  cer ta in ty.   One,  f rom the  methodo logy 

employed,  wh ich  is  lack ing  in  th is  document .  And,  fo r  

ins tance,  I  jus t  want  to  add to  tha t ,  i f  you  were  to  ana lyse  

hard  dr i ves  you wou ld  ta lk  about  the  inse r t ion  o f  cer ta in  

equ ipment  o r  i tems,  a  r igh t  b locker  wh ich  wou ld  p revent  a  

dup l i ca t ion  or  perhaps in te r fe rence w i th  tha t  e lec t ron ic  

da ta .   There  i s  no  re ference to  any o f  tha t  bu t  what  we see 

in  the  foo t  no te  is  tha t  what  i s  be ing  presented here  is  no t  10 

cer ta in .   In  o ther  words,  i t  i s  capab le  o f  var ia t ion .   So we 

cannot  pu t  to  the  w i tness,  w i t h  respect ,  tha t  tha t  i s  

de f in i te ly  the  crea t ion  da te .   I f  we have to  have regard  to  

tha t  and I  want  to  avo id  a  s i tua t ion  where  because o f  the 

t ime pressures tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  work ing  under,  me 

hav ing  to  re -examine Mr  Gama on th is  po in t .   The  pos i t ion  

is ,  i f  th is  document  was crea ted on 19 February  2018 and  

we look a t  the  t ime zone and I  am go ing  in to  a  b i t  o f  de ta i l  

here  to  demonst ra te  my ob jec t ion .   That  UTC is  someth ing  

tha t  app l ies  to  Europe and perhaps even the  Un i ted  20 

K ingdom.   I t  i s  no t  someth ing  crea ted in  South  A f r i ca .    

So i f  the  suggest ion  is  tha t  th is  document  was  

crea ted on tha t  da te ,  I  want  to  make i t  c lea r  tha t  i t  cou ld  

no t  have been c reated by  Mr  Gama.   But  we canno t  beg in 

to  accept  tha t  there  i s  any t ru th fu lness or  tha t  tha t  
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asse r t ion  is  in  fac t  cor rec t  by  v i r t ue  o f  what  appears  in  the 

very  document .   So tha t  i s  my ob jec t ion ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  th is  i s  maybe a  lo t  

to  do  about  no th ing  because Mr  Gama h imse l f  says  tha t  I  

no  longer  had the  invo ice  tha t  was p r in ted  in  2017,  so  I  

asked the  ho te l  fo r  another  copy,  so  i t  was more  than l i ke ly  

p r in ted  in  2018.   We are  no t  suggest ing  tha t  Mr  Gama has  

fabr ica ted  the  invo ice  a t  341,  what  th is  metadata  revea ls  i s  

tha t  the  invo ice  was in  fac t  c rea ted  a t  the  UAE by the  ho te l  10 

bu t  i t  i s  the  da te  tha t  i s  o f  s ign i f i cance to  show you  tha t  we  

are  dea l ing  w i th  two d i f fe ren t  invo i ces.   I f  he  has accepted  

tha t ,  tha t  he  gave the  journa l i s t  the  2017 invo ice  and then 

he went  and go t  another  invo ice  in  2018,  and  tha t  i s  

common cause,  then I  suppose to  a  la rge  ex ten t  the  

metadata  fa l l s  away because i f  Mr  Gama g ives us  the  emai l  

where  he  requested the  invo ice  f rom the  hote l  and  he can  

g ive  us  the  s t r ing  coming back then presumably  the  

crea t ion  da te  wou ld  cor respond.   

 But  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  show you one  th ing  and tha t  i s  20 

tha t  what  the  deponent  says a t  paragraph 24:  

“ I  conf i rm the  resu l ts  f rom E K  Sp ikes(?)  assess ing  

the  proper t ies  o f  the  document  in  Abode Acrobat  

Pro fess iona l  and a lso  by  ex t rac t ing  the  metadata  o f  

the  document  w i th  an  Ex iFToo l ,  resu l ts  a re  no ted in  
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annexure  CL2. ”  

Now CL2,  you w i l l  see ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  a t  351 and there  

you see ve ry  c lea r ly  tha t  th is  was crea ted i t  says  on  the  19  

September  2018.   So I  w i l l  cons ider  my learned f r iend ’s  

ob jec t ions and,  i f  necessary,  we can improve th is  a f f idav i t .   

But  as  I  say,  i f  we can get  the  emai l  s t r ing  f rom Mr  Gama 

then presumably  i t  may very  we l l  add up to  th is  and not  be  

an  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV OLDWAGE SC :    Mr  Cha i r,  g iven the  response by  my 10 

learned f r iend,  I  have asked tha t  he  then ho lds  over  on  

fu r ther  quest ion ing  in  re la t ion  to  par t i cu la r  document .   We 

are  happy to  p rov ide  h im wi th  cop ies  o f  the  emai ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  cer ta in ly  have no more  ques t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  do  want  though to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess the  emai l  can be p rov ided by  

tomorrow a f te r  –  ja ,  when we s tar t ,  as  we resume.   Okay.  

MR GAMA:    Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  say I  do  no t  know –  I  do  20 

not  th ink  we need –  or  we needed any exper t  to  send you  

these k inds o f  documents  i f  the  issue was these invo ices,  

they do  not  look  the  same.   The  contents  o f  the  invo i ces  

are  exact ly  the  same but  one was  obta ined la te r  than the  

o the r.   That  cou ld  have been ver i f ied  w i th  me,  i t  does not  
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need –  what  do  you ca l l  th is  k ind  o f  person? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i s  pa r t i cu la r  exper t .  

MR GAMA:    I t  does not  need th is  MacGyver,  I  do  no t  know 

what  they ca l l s  th is ,  phys ica l  fo rens ic… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  perhaps I  can jus t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine  because I  th ink  there  is  

agreement  tha t  –  le t  us  wa i t  un t i l  the  emai l  has been  

prov ided and take i t  f rom there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  the  reason why we got  the  10 

a f f idav i t  w i l l  become c lea r  now.   So,  Mr  Gama,  when I  was 

quest ion ing  you  on the  30  Apr i l  a t  page 77  o f  the  

t ranscr ip t ,  you sa id :  

“Yes,  I  d id  no t  have a  copy o f  the  b i l l  so  I  

approached the  ho te l  to  send me –  I  jus t  gave them 

the  dates  when I  was there . ”  

I  say :  

“Yes but  th is  pa ragraph re f lec ts  t ha t  you prov ided  

the  journa l i s t  w i t h  an  invo ice . ”  

Mr  Gama:  20 

“Yes,  i t  cou ld  be  th is  invo ice . ”  

Now we are  ta lk ing  about  250.341.  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  so  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Jus t  i f  you  wou ld  bear  w i th  me?  I  

say :  
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“But  how can i t  be  tha t  invo i ce  because i t  i s  

recorded here ,  un less  i t  i s  wrong ,  tha t  the  invo ice  

does not  show the  ho te l ’s  name. ”  

We were  re fer r ing  to  the  journa l i s t ’s  a r t i c le .  

“ I t  does not  say  you se t t led  the  b i l l  and was p r in ted  

in  June 2017. ”  

Mr  Gama:  

“He probab ly  go t  i t  wrong. ”  

Myburgh:  

“A l r igh t ,  do  I  unders tand tha t  you say tha t  you sent  10 

th is  invo i ce  250.341 to  the  journa l i s t? ”  

And you say yes.  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  th ink  there  was no c la r i t y  tha t  the  

contents  i s  the  same anyway,  i t  has  no t  changed.   But  an 

invo i ce  tha t  i s  genera ted  in  2018 cou ld  no t  have been sent  

to  somebody in  2017.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  c lear.   Here  I  th ink  i t  

i s  a  mat te r  o f  semant ics ,  rea l l y.   A l l  I  sa id  was the  contents  

o f  the  invo i ce  a re  the  same.   In  fac t ,  when I  was ask ing  fo r  

a  copy o f  the  invo ice ,  I  used the  da tes  tha t  I  was there  and  

I  sa id  these a re  the  da tes  I  was there ,  can  you send me a  20 

copy?  And they  sent  me a  copy  and the  contents  o f  the 

invo i ce  numbers  and whatever  i s  i n  the  invo ice ,  i t  has  no t  

changed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then to  d r ive  the  po in t  home,  you 

say:  
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“ I  sen t  h im th is  invo i ce ,  250.341”  

You say yes.   I  say :  

“R igh t . ”  

You say:  

“Yes,  i s  no t  any o ther. ”  

MR GAMA:    Can we agree tha t  the  contents  remain  the  

same,  they have not  changed? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    They have changed,  Mr  Gama,  

because the  one has i t s  s tamped date ,  the  one has a  da te  

when i t  was p r in ted ,  the  o the r  does not .   We have gone  10 

th rough tha t  bu t  the  po in t  i s  tha t  you to ld  the  Cha i rpe rson 

tha t  you sent  the  journa l i s t  341,  tha t  i s  why we  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR GAMA:    No,  I  sa id  to  you –  and you have jus t  quoted 

me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    You sa id  I  sa id  to  you  tha t  i t  cou ld  be .   That  i s  

what  you quoted jus t  now.   I  do  no t  have th is  th ing  tha t  you  

are  read ing  f rom,  my t ranscr ip t ,  bu t  i f  you  gave me a  copy 

we cou ld  bo th  quote  what  you have jus t  quoted to  me.   You 20 

have jus t  sa id  to  me tha t  I  sa id  i t  cou ld  be .   I  never  sa id  i t  

i s .   But  the  contents ,  Cha i r,  as  I  pers is t  w i th  th i s  mat te r,  

the  contents  in  te rms o f  what  the  amounts  were  and a l l  o f  

tha t ,  they  remain  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i f  you  do need to  see the  
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t ranscr ip t ,  tha t  can be done,  e i ther  now i f  there  i s  a  copy 

ava i lab le  o r  i t  can  be obta ined and la te r  on  i t  can  be g iven 

to  you and then quest ions can be put  a f te r  you had a  look.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  cer ta in ly,  I  w i l l  l e t  my learned  

f r iend have my  copy and he can dea l  w i th  i t  in  re -

examinat ion ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  jus t  to  p ick  up  on one issue  

and you conf i rmed what  i s  s ta te  in  the  ar t i c l e ,  tha t  you  

ra ised w i th  Mr  Essa or  Mr  Essa ra ised w i th  you h is  10 

invo l vement  in  Tr i l l i an  dur ing  your  meet ing  in  Duba i .   I  jus t  

want  to  make sure  tha t  I  unders tand your  ev idence  

cor rec t l y,  Mr  Gama.   A t  what  po in t  d id  you come to  learn 

tha t  Mr  Essa had a  shareho ld ing  in  Tr i l l i an?  

MR GAMA:    I t  was much,  much la te r.   I t  wou ld  probab ly  be  

a t  some po in t  in  2017 ear ly,  so  when we were  d i scuss ing  

w i th  the  journa l i s t  i t  then had dawned on me tha t  what  he 

had been ta lk ing  about ,  about  c rea t ing  a  b lack-owned 

consu l t ing  f i rm tha t  he  may in  fac t  have been re fer r ing  to  

the  crea t ion  o f  Tr i l l i an .   So i t  had become pub l ic  news a t  20 

some po in t  p robab ly  in  2017 in  tha t  –  he  had some k ind  o f  

shareho ld ing  or  some in te res t  in  Tr i l l i an .   When I  was a t  

Transnet  in  2016 ,  as  I  ind ica ted  to  you,  there  was  a  le t te r  

f rom Reg iments  tha t  ind ica ted  tha t  wou ld  be  fo rm ing 

Tr i l l i an .   There  was no ment ion  o f  an  Essa.   I t  was much 
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la te r.   I  th ink  when one reads too  many newspapers ,  I  th ink  

tha t  tha t  i s  when tha t  in fo rmat ion  had come about  tha t  

Essa was a l so  a  shareho lder  in  Tr i l l i an  bu t  I  learn t  tha t  

much la te r.   I  wou ld  no t  know,  i t  was ce r ta in ly  a round the  

t ime when the  j ourna l i s t  and I  were  hav ing  a  d iscuss ion .   

Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  take  you to  a  document  tha t  

par t  o f  Mr  Mohamedy ’s  a f f idav i t?   Cou ld  I  ask  you to  f i sh  

ou t  h i s  bund le  BB3B?  Someone  wi l l  he lp  w i th  t ha t .   I t  

shou ld  be ,  Mr  Gama,  here  th is  s ide ,  33B –  BB3B.   Cou ld  I  10 

ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  page 519? 

MR GAMA:    519? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    519 and I  am ta lk ing  about  the  

numbers  a t  the  top ,  MSM519.  

MR GAMA:    The bo ld  ones?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  no t  the  bo ld  one,  you shou ld  f ind  

a  number  above tha t .  

MR GAMA:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you see tha t?   An MSM number.  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you w i l l  remember  tha t  you gave 

ev idence as  we l l  tha t  you spoke to  Mr  ESSA about  a  

m igra t ion  o f  work  f rom Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an  and th is  i s  one 

example  o f  tha t ,  you f ind  tha t  a t  519.   A re  you there?  Do 

you see tha t  th is  i s  a  …[ in tervenes ]  
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MR GAMA:    No,  I  have never  sa id  I  spoke to  Mr  Essa  

about  a  m igra t ion  o f  work  f rom Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an .   I  

have never  sa id  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  the  ar t i c le  says,  quot ing  

you:  

“Essa sa id  the  exper t i se  wou ld  remain  the  same as  

core  resources,  wou ld  m ig ra te  f rom Reg iments and 

tha t  the  qua l i t y  o f  the  work  fo r  Transnet  wou ld  be  

unaf fec ted . ”  

I  th ink  you accept  tha t  las t  t ime,  cor rec t .  10 

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  we never  had a  d iscuss ion  about  the  name 

o f  the  en t i t y.   I  never  knew any name in  te rms o f  what  the  

name o f  the  en t i t y  was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  we l l  I  do  no t  want  to  t raverse  

ground we have  a l ready t raversed,  I  want  to  t ry  and go 

fo rward .   I f  you  have a  look a t  th is  document  a t  page  

522.1 ,  i t  i s  s igned by  you on the  9  May 2016,  four  o r  so  

months  a f te r  your  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa.   Do you see tha t?   

And the  recommendat ion  a t  tha t  page is :  

“ I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  acqu is i t ion  and 20 

d isposa l  commi t tee  approves cess ion  o f  the  

abovement ioned cont rac t  f rom Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an ,  

an  increase in  t he  scope fo r  the  de ta i led  cap i ta l  

op t im isa t ion  suppor t  se rves and  increase in  the  

cont rac t  va lue  f rom 375 mi l l ion  to  463.3  m i l l ion . ”  
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Do you see tha t  recommendat ion?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  I  jus t  want  to  d i rec t  your  

a t ten t ion  to  i s  page 521 under  the  head ing  D iscuss ion .   I t  

says  a t  paragraph 12:  

“On 13 Apr i l  2016 Mr  Wood sent  a  le t te r  to  

Transnet ,  annexure  B ,  ind ica t ing  tha t  he  is  ced ing  

h is  r igh ts  rece ived f rom Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an . ”  

13 .  Transnet  then in i t ia ted  i t s  vendor  approva l  p rocess 

to  ensure  tha t  the re  is  no  reason why Tr i l l i an  cannot  10 

be  a  vendor  to  Transnet . ”  

Paragraph 14,  over  the  page.  

“The process ind ica tes  the  fo l low ing.   The EEM 

af f idav i t  p rov ided  fo r  the i r  leve l  two BBBEE 

cer t i f i ca t ion  ind ica ted  tha t  they are  60% 

b lack-owned shareho ld ing .   Tr i l l i an  Ho ld ings  

(P ty)  L td  60%,  who l ly  owned by  Sa l im Essa. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i t  l i s ts  the  o the r  20 

shareho lders  and  then a t  paragraph 16:  

“Tr i l l i an  has in  the  past  successfu l l y  p rov ided 

serv i ces  as  a  subcont rac tor  to  Reg iments  on  

var ious ass ignments . ”  

E tce tera .   And tha t  i s  how here  Tr i l l i an  came to  rep lace  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 250 of 343 
 

Reg iments  on  th is  pa r t i cu la r  cont rac t .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And jus t  –  perhaps you can he lp  me,  

i s  the  shor thand fo r  th is  cont rac t  the  GFBE cont rac t?  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry,  shor thand?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  th i s  wha t  i s  commonly  re fer red  to  

as  the  GFB Consu l t ing  cont rac t?  

MR GAMA:    Okay sor ry,  I  th ink  I  am los t  there  Mr  

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  we l l  don ’ t  wor ry  abou t  tha t .  10 

MR GAMA:    You ’ re  ta lk ing  about  what  was be ing  ceded? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes is  th is  t yp ica l l y  re fe r red  to  as  

the  GFB cont rac t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  the  head ing  o f  i t  says  i t  i s  a  cess ion  o f  

the  GHFB cont rac t  yes ,  tha t  agreement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA:    That ’s  what  was mov ing  f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  take  i t  then  you accept  on  the  

assumpt ion  tha t  you read th is  o r  le t  me not  pu t  i t  tha t  way,  

d id  you I  assume d id  you read th is  memorandum before  20 

you s igned i t  and  recommended i t?  

MR GAMA:    In  the  main  what  I  unders tood f rom the  le t te r  

tha t  I  had was tha t  there  was a  le t te r  f rom Mr  Wood to  us  

so  I  read tha t ,  tha t  le t te r,  I  was not  aware  tha t  a t  tha t  t ime 

there  was a l ready th is  b reakdown in  te rms o f  the  ac tua l  
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shareho ld ing  bu t  I  no te  what  i t  says ,  i t  says  tha t  there  was  

a  –  Dan ie l  Roo i ,  Johannes Four ie ,  there  was a l so  the 

Tr i l l i an  Ho ld ings  wh ich  i t  says  i t  was who l ly  owned by  

Sa l im Essa,  and there  was someone e l se ,  A r ion  nominees  

and the  d i rec tors  bu t  I  don ’ t  th ink  I  went  in to  much  o f  tha t  

de ta i l  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  on the  face  o f  th is  document  as  

o f  tha t  t ime Tr i l l i an  Ho ld ings P ty  L im i ted  had a  60% 

shareho ld ing  in  Tr i l l i an  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    In  th is  en t i t y.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  and in  fac t  tha t  en t i t y  der ived  

i t s  BEE cer t i f ica t ion  f rom on  the  face  o f  i t  tha t  

shareho ld ing?  

MR GAMA:    I t  der ived i t s  BEE cer t i f i ca t ion  f rom? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    From the  60% shareho ld ing  he ld  by  

Mr  Essa?  

MR GAMA:    Ja .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cor rec t .  

MR GAMA:    So  I  th ink  tha t ’s  what  peop le  were  ta lk ing  

about  bu t  I  was not  aware  tha t  our  peop le  ac tua l l y  knew 20 

about  i t  and had ac tua l l y  wr i t ten  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  your  ev idence is  you d idn ’ t  read 

th is ,  you read the  le t te r  f rom Mr  Wood?  

MR GAMA:    I  rece ived a  le t te r  f rom Mr  Wood wh ich  was  

a t tached to  the  . . .  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 252 of 343 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  the  four  recommending  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry,  was tha t  le t te r  –  was th i s  

memorandum at tached to  the  le t te r?  

MR GAMA:    No when the  cess ion  was requested i t  was on  

the  bas i s  o f  two le t te rs ,  there  was  a  le t te r  f rom Reg iments  

and a  le t te r  f rom Mr  Wood wh ich  was ind i ca t ing  what  was  

happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR GAMA:    So  I  am say ing  tha t  those I  remember,  these I  10 

may have jus t  g lossed over  and not  pa id  too  much  

a t ten t ion  bu t  I  see tha t  i t  i s  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  o f  course  the  le t te r  f rom Mr  

Wood wou ld  no t  have dea l t  w i th  whethe r  o r  no t  Transnet  

shou ld  approve Tr i l l i an  as  a  vendor  and tha t  i s  by  and 

la rge  what  th is  memo is  about ,  parag raph 13 Transnet  the  

in i t ia ted  i t s  vendor  approva l  p rocess to  ensure  tha t  there  i s  

no  reason why Transnet  cannot  –  sor ry  Tr i l l i an  cannot  be  a  20 

vendor  to  Transnet  and then tha t  un fo lds ,  in  o rde r  to  

recommend . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    Tha t ’s  the  work  tha t  the  procurement  peop le  

do  so  I  th ink  as  you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  coming f rom the  

procu rement  o r  ch ie f  supp ly  cha in  o f f i ce r,  he  i s  ta lk ing  
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about  a l l  o f  the  work  tha t  they have done,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a re  you  say ing  you s igned th i s  

memo wi thout  read ing  i t?  

MR GAMA:   No,  no  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  am say ing ,  I  am 

say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  say ing  tha t .  

MR GAMA:   I  am say ing  tha t  I  may have jus t  g lossed over  

i t ,  i t  was not  someth ing  tha t  was p robab ly  impor tan t  a t  the 

t ime.   So i t  i s  a lways in te res t ing  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  

h inds igh t  when peop le  say okay jus t  look  a t  th is  memo I  10 

can see what  i t  says ,  bu t  what  was fo remost  in  my mind  

was tha t  the  work  was mov ing  to  –  w i th  Wood f rom 

Reg iments  to  th is  new ent i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you are  say ing  you d idn ’ t  read i t  in  

any de ta i l ,  you  g lossed over  i t ,  i s  tha t  what  you are  

say ing?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  d idn ’ t  read i t  in  any de ta i l ,  I  was  aware  

o f  –  and I  had in  possess ion  what  they are  say ing  in  i tem 

12,  where  we rece ived a  le t te r  f rom Mr  Wood wh ich  they 

say is  Annexure  B ,  and then i t  was then say ing  tha t  h is  20 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  rece ived f rom Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an  Cap i ta l  so  

I  th ink  a t  tha t  t ime in  my mind ’s  eye he was the  main  

shareho lder  o f  th is  new ent i t y  ca l led  Tr i l l i an  Cap i ta l  

someth ing ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  want  to  then pe rhaps move o f f  

th is  top ic ,  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  ask  you one las t  quest ion  on  

th is ,  a  penu l t imate  quest ion ,  you gave ev idence  ear l ie r  

about  how you were  a  b i t  i r r i ta ted  w i th  Mr  Essa because he  

a lmost  t r i cked you in to  meet ing  w i th  h im a t  the  Gupta 

res idence,  do  you  reca l l  g iv ing  tha t  ev idence? 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why –  I  don ’ t  know i f  I  have asked 

you why d id  you agree to  meet  w i th  Mr  Essa aga in  a t  th is  

t ime in  January  2016,  in  the  l igh t  o f  your  p rev ious 10 

exper ience when you met  w i th  h im? 

MR GAMA:    When you say why d id  I  agree to  meet  w i th  

h im,  we l l  I  met  w i th  h im I  had in  qu i te  cu t  and c lear  when I  

las t  met  w i th  h im and I  had vo i ced my anger  in  te rms o f  

what  I  thought  was an ambush,  and I  dea l t  w i th  tha t  i ssue,  

so  i f  somebody then says no  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  meet  w i th  you  

about  another  i ssue then I  sa id  okay f ine  le t ’s  meet ,  and  

then he wanted to  ta lk  about  c rea t ing  a  consu l t ing  en t i t y.   

I t  wasn ’ t  rea l l y  go ing  to  take  anyth ing  away f rom me,  I  

p robab ly  jus t  spent  an  hour  o r  so  w i th  h im.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  wan t  to  jus t  g ive  you an 

oppor tun i ty  to  comment  on  th i s  because somet imes the  

t ime l ines a re  los t  on  one.   By  the  t ime tha t  you met  Mr  

Essa in  January  2016 in  Duba i  on  the  money f lows 

invest iga t ion  Cha i rperson I  am assuming tha t  invest iga t ion  
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i s  uphe ld  by  you ,  what  we know by tha t  t ime is  tha t  Mr  

Essa had taken  50 cents  in  every  rand o f  fees tha t  

Reg iments  had charged Transnet  in  respect  o f  a  var ie ty  o f  

cont rac ts .   Mr  Essa o r  one o f  h is  compan ies  had been  

appo in ted  as  a  sk i l l s  deve lopment  par tner  to  Reg iments .   

Mr  Essa th rough Tequesta  and  Reg iments  As ia  had 

conc luded bus iness deve lopment  serv i ces  agreements  w i th  

the  Ch inese locomot ive  manufac tu rers  in  respect  o f  the  95  

locomot ives ,  the  100 locomot ives  and the  1064 locomot ives  

and you had au thor ised payment  a l ready to  Tr i l l i an  in  10 

December  o f  respect  o f  the  C lub  Loan o f  R93mi l l ion ,  so  

wh i le  Mr  Essa fo r  a  long t ime was in  the  background now 

he came to  the  fo reground where  he  was e f fec t i ve ly  a  

major i t y  sha reho lder  in  a  se rv i ce  prov ider  to  Transnet ,  in  

tha t  contex t  tha t  you met  h im a l l  o f  th is  had been done 

before  and as  I  pu t  to  you a l ready the  money  f lows 

invest iga t ion  is  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  what  I  have sketched to  

you was par t  and  parce l  o f  a  very  major  money launder ing  

scheme invo lv ing  the  Guptas .  

 That ’s  the  contex t  in  wh ich  you met  the  man.   20 

MR GAMA:    Okay Mr  Myburgh i s  i t  your  content ion  tha t  I  

knew about  these  payments  o r  these money f lows tha t  you  

are  ta l k ing  abou t?    I s  i t  your  content ion  tha t  I  was  

compl ic i t  in  tha t?   So i f  tha t  i s  your  content ion  then put  i t  

to  me.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am ask ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    Because I  rea l l y  don ’ t  know anyth ing  about  

money f lows,  I  don ’ t  know anyth ing  about  what  Essa was  

do ing ,  I  had met  h im a t  face  va lue ,  I  have ind ica ted  to  the  

Commiss ion  when I  met  h im.    You are  te l l ing  me what  was  

happen ing  in  the  background,  I  was not  aware  o f  i t ,  bu t  i f  

your  in fe rence is  tha t  maybe somehow I  knew about  i t  o r  I  

was compl i c i t  in  i t  pu t  i t  to  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  tha t  i s  what  we are  

invest iga t ing  here  Mr  Gama but  I  s ta r t  by  ask ing  you to  10 

comment  as  you have and what  you have sa id  i s  tha t  you  

were  unaware  o f  a l l  o f  th is .   Do I  unders tand cor rec t l y?  

MR GAMA:    Abso lu te ly,  I  was not  aware .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you mov ing  away f rom th is  memo? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes I  am DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  memo Mr  Gama a t  page 519 why 

wou ld  you remember  tha t  you d idn ’ t  read i t  bu t  you g lossed  

over  i t ,  what  about  th is  about  four  and a  ha l f  years  ago 

what  wou ld  make  you remember  tha t  you g lossed over  i t ,  20 

you d idn ’ t  read i t?  

MR GAMA:    No,  no  Cha i r  semant i cs  in  Eng l ish .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  Eng l i sh  i s  no t  my f i rs t  language 

e i the r.  

MR GAMA:   Ja,  th is  i s  my th i rd  languages.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  don ’ t  know about  Mr  Myburgh,  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:   [ speak ing  in  ve rnacu lar ]  so  somet imes  you go 

th rough these documents ,  you sk im th rough them,  you 

absorb  i t  a t  the  t ime but  i f  you  ask  somebody l ine  by  l ine  

and say th is  document  tha t  you read to  –  even i f  you  asked  

me two or  th ree  weeks ago and you say look he re  is  a  f i ve  

page document ,  I  th ink  i t ’s  f i ve ,  i t  is  s ix  pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  s ix  pages.  

MR GAMA:    So  we have th i s  s ix  page document  and then  10 

you say to  me as Mr  Myburgh does le t ’s  go  to  th is  

par t i cu la r  l ine ,  even i f  you ask  me a f te r  you read i t  and we  

sent  i t  to  the  commi t tee  to  de l ibera te  and then you say to  

me you know what  there  i s  J  I  A ffea t  i s  a  d i rec tor  o f  tha t  

company,  I  am jus t  look ing  a t  someth ing ,  I  wou ld  say look 

g ive  me the  document ,  le t ’s  look  a t  i t ,  because I  am – i f  

you ’ re  no t  fami l ia r  w i th  you know the  names and the  peop le  

you might  no t  remember  a l l  o f  tha t ,  so  i f  you  remember,  I  

remembered a l l  o f  the  g is t  o f  i t ,  and normal ly  these  

documents  when  you s i t  and you  d iscuss th is ,   you have  20 

somebody who s i t s  ac ross  f rom you,  you ’ve  go t  the  

document ,  they have got  a  copy.     You go th rough  i t  and  

say okay what  i s  go ing  on  here  and they say okay  there ’s  

an  annexure ,  they say can I  see the  annexure ,  you  read i t  

you say okay eve ry th ing  on  the  face  o f  i t  looks  okay and i t  
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means tha t  we can do a l l  o f  the  th ings tha t  we want  to  do  

here ,  and rea l l y  tha t ’s  what  happens there ,  bu t  you can ’ t  

have a  3  000 word  document  where  you then say you wou ld  

remember  l ine  by  l ine  eve ry  l ine  tha t  was there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  I  am not  suggest ing  tha t  you 

shou ld ,  you see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    Because we wou ldn ’ t  send a  document  to  the  

commi t tee  i f  we had not  checked and seen tha t  the  th ings 

tha t  we were  say ing  were  accura te  and a l l  o f  tha t ,  so  tha t  

wou ld  have happened,  bu t  i f  you  come and ask  me s ix  10 

years  la te r  i f  I  remember  eve ry th ing  tha t  was  in  tha t  

document  as  I  sa id  to  you I  d id  learn  tha t  Essa was a  60% 

shareho lder  in  one o f  the  Tr i l l i an  compan ies  bu t  I  cannot  

te l l  you  a t  what  po in t ,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  a t  what  po in t  d id  I  learn  

th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  the  reason why I  ask  you is  tha t  my  

expecta t ion  i s  tha t  when you look  a t  a  document  tha t  you  

have s igned or  tha t  –  i f  I  look  a t  a  document  tha t  I  s igned  

f i ve  years  ago I  know tha t  i f  I  see  my s ignature  there  I  

wou ld  know tha t  I  wou ld  never  pu t  my s ignature  there  20 

w i thout  read ing  the  document .    

MR GAMA:   H’m,  h ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay so  once my s ignature  i s  there  and  

I  am sat is f ied  i t  i s  my s ignatu re  then I  wou ld  know tha t  I  

read i t .  
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MR GAMA:   Ja,  no  we wou ld  have gone th rough the  

document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  tha t  i s  –  so  bu t  what  was  

in te res t ing  fo r  me  is  tha t  you were  say ing  you g lossed over  

i t  so  as  opposed to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:  No,  no ,  no t  tha t  mean ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  tha t  mean ing?  

MR GAMA:    Not  say ing  I  jus t  g lossed over  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes you read i t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes,  no ,  no  we sk immed th rough i t  and we 10 

d iscussed i t ,  we may not  have d iscussed each and every  

aspect  o f  i t  bu t  we d iscussed i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  there  is  hav ing  a  look a t  i t  and not  

read ing  the   who le  document ,  read ing  cer ta in  pa r ts  and  

le t t ing  somebody  te l l  you  what  i t  says ,  wh ich  is  one th ing .   

There  is  read ing  the  who le  document  even i f  you d iscuss i t  

w i th  somebody.    So is  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you d id  read the  

who le  document?  

MR GAMA:   No,  no  I  read the  document  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Myburgh?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then Mr  Gama perhaps I  jus t  want  to  

pu t  to  you how come i t  never,  the  shareho ld ing  in  Tr i l l i an  

d idn ’ t  jump out  a t  you in  the  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  jus t  four  

months  be fore  you had met  Mr  Essa in  Duba i?   

MR GAMA:    Wha t  d idn ’ t  jump out?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    The shareho ld ing  in  Tr i l l i an  and Mr  

Essa ’s  invo l vement .  

MR GAMA:    Why wou ld  i t  jump out  per  se ,  a re  you say ing  

he  wasn ’ t  en t i t led  to  be  a  shareho lder  in  the  en t i t y?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am say ing  in  the  l igh t  o f  the  

d iscuss ion  you had in  Duba i .  

MR GAMA:    I  don ’ t  unders tand the  quest ion  rea l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now we are  ta lk ing  about  the  

cess ion  he re  o f  th is  cont rac t  f rom Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an ,  

you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  in  2015 the  so-ca l led  GBF cont rac t  was 10 

or ig ina l l y  awarded to  McK insey and Reg iments ,  do  you 

remember  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  was Reg iments  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  to  you the  

money f lows invest iga t ion  has revea led  tha t  Mr  Essa got  50  

cents  in  eve r  Rand tha t  Reg imen ts  charged on the  GBF 

cont rac t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  don ’ t  know tha t  ja ,  you a re  te l l ing  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  want  to  now move to  another  

substant ive  top ic ,  you w i l l  remember  where  we ended o f f  20 

las t  t ime,  I  had been quest ion ing  you about  the  ZAR Club  

Loan and there  are  two t ransact ions re la t ing  to  the 

f inanc ing  o f  the  1064 tha t  I  want  to  dea l  w i th ,  the  one was  

the  C lub  Loan,  the  o ther  i s  the  success fee  tha t  was pa id  

to  Reg iments  o f  R189mi l l ion .   Perhaps I  cou ld  ask  you,  and  
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maybe the  most  conven ien t  way  to  dea l  w i th  th is ,  the  

eas ies t  way,  i s  fo r  me to  ask  you  to  go  to  the  POI  bund le  

p lease,  tha t  you f ind  a t  Bund le  6 ,  BB27.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi l l  somebody ass is t  me,  o r  i s  i t  a  f i le  

tha t  he  a l ready has?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We wi l l  ge t  someone to  he lp  you,  we 

w i l l  pu t  tha t  f i l e  away fo r  you.  

MR GAMA:    Page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  w i l l  be  w i th  you in  a  moment .   I  

th ink  Mr  Gama has i t ,  r igh t .   Cou ld  you p lease go to  page 10 

389.  

CHAIRPERSON:    389?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    389 Cha i rperson yes.   I  am jus t  

go ing  to  take  you th rough parag raphs 2 .6 .1  to  2 .6 .4  and 

then a lso  pa rag raph 2 .6 .6  and pe rhaps you can have open,  

I  th ink  you do a t  the  same t ime Mr  Gama,  Bund le  7 ,  Exh ib i t  

BB28,  a  co l lec t ion  o f  documents  re levant  to  th is  top ic  you 

f ind  a t  page 250.380  

CHAIRPERSON:    The las t  page you ment ioned was 260?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.380 Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    In  the  same bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No tha t ’s  in  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    In  another  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  Exh ib i t  BB28,  Mr  Gama’s  exh ib i t ,  

we need to  dea l  w i th  the  POI  exh ib i t  and Mr  Gama’s  exh ib i t  
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together.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr  Gama i f  I  cou ld  take  you then 

p lease back to  BB27,  th is  i s  an  ex t rac t  f rom –  or  i t  i s  the  

MNS repor t  on  t ransact ion  adv isors .    2 .6  the  second  

addendum to  the  MSA,  i t  says :  

“On 28 Apr i l  2015  Transnet  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    Which  page are  you a t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    2 .6  a t  page  389.  

CHAIRPERSON:    2 .6  so  the  page is  389 and the  10 

paragraph is  2 .6 ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Are you the re  Mr  Gama? 

MR GAMA:    I  have got  2 .6 .8 ,  2 .6 .9 ,  I  don ’ t  have tha t  2 .6 .  

UNIDENTIFIED COUNSEL:    Mr Cha i r  i t  i s  the  b lack  

number  as  opposed to  the  red ,  Mr  Gama must  look  a t  the 

b lack  number.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    On the  le f t  hand s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Look a t  the  b lack  numbers  in  the  

pag ina t ion  a t  the  top .  20 

MR GAMA:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no t  the  red  ones,  thank you.  

MR GAMA:   Sor ry,  2 .89 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i t  says  there  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    Sor ry  I  am s t rugg l ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wi l l  somebody he lp  h im.  

MR GAMA:   I s  i t  389?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  389.   Maybe somebody can ass is t   

h im when there ’s  a  need,  i t  shou ld  no t  be  too  fa r  away,  so  

tha t  when there  is  need . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  I  w i l l  o rgan ise  somebody to  

be  more  read i l y  on  s tandby Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  a t  2 .6 :  

“On 28 Apr i l  Transnet  Group  Treasurer,  Mr  10 

Ramasabud i ,  compi led  a  memorandum which  was  

recommended by  Mr  S ingh as  we l l  as  Mr  Gama and  

submi t ted  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .   The  

memorandum prov ides the  fo l low ing;  

A request  to  the  BADC to  approve the  cont rac t  

ex tens ion  f rom 99.5mi l l ion  to  265 .5mi l l ion  fo r  the  

appo in tment  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  o r  Transact ion  

Adv isory  Serv ices  and suppor t  to  Transnet  on  the  

1064 locomot ive  t ransact ion .  

A summary o f  the  serv ices  prov ided by  Reg iments  20 

e tce te ra  in  re la t ion  to  secur ing  the  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank loan in  the  amount  o f  

USD1.5b i l l i on ,  and a  mot iva t ion  fo r  r i sk  shar ing  

bas is  payment  o f  R166mi l l ion  exc lud ing  VAT to  

Reg iments  on  the  bas i s  tha t  the  serv i ces  prov ided 
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by  Reg iments  fo r  a  per iod  o f  more  than 12 months  

were  a t  r i sk . ”  

Now perhaps you  cou ld  jus t  keep tha t  open,  and le t  me ask  

you p lease to  tu rn  to  tha t  memorandum which  you f ind  a t  

page 250.383.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry,  jus t  repeat  tha t  page and the  

bund le?   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  250,  so  now we a re  in  Mr  

Gama’s  exh ib i t s ,  DCJ you want  us  to  read the  repor t  and 

the  exh ib i t  together.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Gama’s  exh ib i t  250.383.  

CHAIRPERSON:    283?  2 .283.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.383.  

CHAIRPERSON:    383?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So there  you f ind  the  memorandum 

which  you s igned and recommended on the  28 t h  o f  Apr i l  

2015,  tha t  you see Mr  Gama a t  page 391.   Can I  then take  20 

you to  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  memorandum at  383,  sub jec t ,  

request  to  appo in t  JP Morgan and Reg iments  Cap i ta l  to  

conc lude on the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan,  and then i t  

se ts  ou t  the  pu rpose o f  th is  submiss ion  is  to  request  

acqu is i t ions  and d isposa l  commi t tee  to ,  
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1 .  Approve the  conf inement  appo in tment  to  JP Morgan to  

hedge the  f inanc ia l  r i sk  [ in te res t  ra te ,  c red i t  and 

cur rency r i sk ]  emanat ing  f rom the  US Do l la r  1 .5b i l l i on  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank CDB loan  bank in to  ZAR;  

2 .  Approve the  con f ined appo in tmen t  o f  JP Morgan to 

lead and underwr i te  the  equ iva len t  synd ica te  ZAR 

loan o f  1 .5b i l l i on  do l la rs .  

3 .  Approve the  con t rac t  ex tens ion  f rom 99.5mi l l ion  to  

265.5mi l l ion  fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  

fo r  t ransact ion  adv isory  serv i ces  and suppor t  to  10 

Transnet  on  the  1064 locomot ive  t ransact ion ,  and  

4 .  De legate  au thor i t y  to  the  Act ing  GCE to  approve a l l  

documenta t ion  re la t ing  to  the  conf inement .  

Now i f  I  cou ld  take  you p lease to  page 387.    Now we’ re  

dea l ing  w i th  the  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  par t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  250.387? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.387,  pa rag raph 62.  

“Transnet  appo in ted  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  . . . . ”  

And now we ’ re  ta lk ing  about  an  issue.  

“ . . .as  the  t ransact ion  adv iso rs  on  the  1064 20 

locomot ive  t ransact ion .   In  te rms o f  the  

a forement ioned mandate  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  was 

requ i red  to  adv i se  on  dea l  s t ruc tur ing ,  f inanc ing  

and fund ing  opt ions to  m in im ise  r i sk  fo r  Transnet . ”  

As  a t  64 :  
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“Reg iments  had been work ing  toge ther  w i th  the  r i sk  

management /m idd le  o f f i ce  o f  Transnet  Treasury  f o r  

over  the  las t  12  months  to  ach ieve outcome be low. ”  

Page 69:  

“Reg iments  has  ass i s ted  Transnet  in  negot ia t ing  

w i th  a  number  o f  po ten t ia l  Ch inese sources o f  the  

ZAR fund ing  fo r  the  ZAR synd ica te  loan fac i l i ty  

inc lud ing  e t ce te ra . ”  

And then a t  73 ,  o f  d i rec t  re levance ,  and tha t  i s  a t  250.388:  

“The f inanc ia l  adv ice  and negot ia t ion  suppor t  tha t  10 

Reg iments  prov ided  th rough th i s  en t i re  p rocess 

wh ich  took in  excess o f  12  months  was done a t  r i sk  

w i th  an  expecta t ion  o f  compensat ion  on ly  on  

successfu l  comple t ion  o f  the  t ransact ion . ”  

And then a t  75 :  

“G iven the  inva luab le  cont r ibu t ion  Reg iments  to  the  

successfu l  conc lus ion  o f  the  t ransact ion  Reg iments  

success based fee  w i l l  no t  exceed 15 bas i s  po in t s . ”  

And then the  schedu le  re f lec ts  tha t  tha t  amounts  to  

R166mi l l ion ,  do  you see tha t?    20 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then in  a  s im i la r  ve in  i f  you  go  

to  page 250.390 a t  parag raph 97 cont r ibu t ion  o f  Regiments 

to the successfu l  conclusion of  the funding t ransact ion.   

Regiments is due a success or r isk based fee of  50 basis 
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points on y ield payable by Transnet  to JP Morgan or port ion 

thereof  subject  to a maximum of  166.  

 And the recommendat ion that  is just  to repeat  the 

thi rd bul let :  

Approve the cont ract  extension f rom 99.5 mi l l ion to 165.5 

mi l l ion.  So the di fference between those two f igures is 166 

mi l l ion for the appointment of  Regiments Capi tal  for 

t ransact ion advisory services and support  to Transnet .  

 That  you signed on the 28t h of  Apri l  2015,  do you see 

that? 10 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now when this memo ta lks about  the 

appointment of  Regiments and the work that  i t  was in i t ia l ly  

requi red to do can I  just  di rect  your  at tent ion please to an 

ear l ier document signed on the 4t h of  February 2014 and that  

you f ind at  page 250.380.  

 And this is the th i rd addendum for advisory services 

re lat ing to the acquisi t ion of  the locomot ive tender and you 

wi l l  see that  i t  is between McKinsey and Transnet and i f  you 

have a look at  382 i t  was signed by Eric Wood t i t le Execut ive 20 

Di rector Regiments Capi tal .   And then i t  was s igned by Mr 

Singh on behal f  o f  Transnet  i t  seems on the 4t h of  February 

2014.   

 I f  I  could di rect  your at tent ion to  paragraph 3.1 at  

page 250.380 the del iverables for the revised scope of  work 
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as per clause 2 der ived and agreed upon by Regiments 

Capi tal  for execut ing the funding port ion of  the tender 

agreement – i t  is  out  of  code – the object ive of  th is work 

speci f ic project  is  to conduct  al l  the necessary studies and 

preparatory work to enhance Transnet ’s abi l i ty to ra ise the 

requi red funding at  a compet i t ive interest  rate and to achieve 

an opt imal  funding st ructure wi th minimal pressure – sorry – 

on Transnet ’s funding l iquidi ty.  

 And then you wi l l  see there is a whole lot  of  numbers 

where the del iverables are set  out  for example at  250.381 10 

seven a value – evaluat ing al l  potent ia l  funding sources and 

mechanisms and then in relat ion to the var iat ion of  the 

contract  pr ice you see at  4.2 that  the work performed for th is 

del iverable wi l l  be f ixed at  a pr ice of  R15 mi l l ion.  

 That  is the thi rd addendum which was on the 4 t h of  

February 2014.   Then we get  the memo that  you signed 

which we have deal t  wi th at  383 and then I  want to take you 

to the next  document please.  

 That  you f ind at  page 392 the recommendat ion that  

you made and your col leagues made to BADAC was then 20 

accepted on the 29t h of  Apr i l  th is you f ind at  240.392.    

 You wi l l  see that  at  393 i t  was resolved and then the 

wording is the same as your recommendat ion.   And then the 

next  document I  want to take you to… 

ADV OLDWAGE:   Sorry Mr Chair  I  have at tempted to fol low 
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and I  am sure Mr Gama is not  fo l lowing because he has 

referred to a document of  which i t  appears Mr Myburgh’s 

put t ing to him that  i t  was approved by him.  I t  was reference 

to page 392 that  is s imply not  correct .   That  is a let ter  

addressed to Whom i t  may concern appears to have been 

produced under the hand of  one Buchle Ndlovo.   So I  th ink 

we need to go back so we can get  ( ta lk ing over one another).  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sorry may I  just  ret race my steps.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What I  meant to say and I  hope I  

certainly intended to is that  Mr Gama and his col leagues 

made a recommendat ion to BADAC.  Mr Gama signed that  on 

the 28t h of  Apri l  2015.   What you f ind at  2… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was the memorandum. 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   What  you f ind at  250.392 is a 

cert i f ied ext ract  f rom the minutes of  the BADAC meet ing that  

was held the next  day on the 29t h  of  Apri l .   I f  you go to  

250.393 i t  is resolved that  the commit tee approved the 

fol lowing and of  importance is the second bul let  point  the 20 

contract  extension for the appointment of  Regiments Capi tal  

for t ransact ion advisory services and support  to the company 

on the 1064 locomot ive t ransact ion f rom 99.5 mi l l ion to 265 

mi l l ion.  

 So what was recommended by Mr Gama was then 
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approved by the BADAC.  That  is 29 Apri l .   I f  I  can then take 

you please to the document you f ind at  page 250.394 this is 

a memorandum to you f rom Mr Singh dated the 19t h  of  May 

and what  we see i f  you could go please to  page 250.398 Mr 

Singh a ser ies of  people who signed this  memorandum in 

May Mr Weir on the 18t h of  May 2015, Mr Peter on the 18t h of  

May 2015.  I  th ink Mr Singh on the 19t h of  May 2015, you 

signed some two months later on the 16t h of  July 2015.   Wi l l  

you accept  that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  you go to page 394 paragraph 1.  

“The purpose of  th is submission is to request  

the act ing Group Chief  Execut ive to approve 

the contract  addendum to Regiments Capi tal  

for t ransact ion advisory and support  

serv ices. ”  

So this f lowed f rom your recommendat ion and the 

acceptance by the BADAC.  So the purpose of  th is  

submission to request  the act ing Chief  Execut ive to approve 

the cont ract  addendum to Regiments Capi tal  for t ransact ion 20 

advisory and support  services on the 1064 locomot ive 

t ransact ion.  

 I f  you go to page 250.395 you wi l l  see there is  a  

discussion.   Submission was made to the Transnet 

Acquisi t ion and Disposal  Commit tee detai l ing the serv ices 
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rendered by Regiments Capi tal  and the successful  outcome.  

7.  The submission inc luded the request  for approval  to  

extend the cont ract  value.  

8.  The submission was approved in i ts ent i rety by the ADC.  

That  we have gone through.  

 And what you wi l l  see then at  the end of  th is  

document at  398 under the heading Recommendat ion i t  is 

recommended that  the act ing GCE approves the fol lowing:  

1.  The va lue of  the cont ract  be increased to a capped 

amount to R265.5 mi l l ion and  10 

2.  The amounts for the contract  per iod to accommodate 

the successful  conclusion of  the funding and hedging 

agreements wi th CBD that  is China Development Bank 

and JP Morgan in order to affect  the remunerat ion 

(success) or r isk based fee to Regiments Capi tal .  

Now what I  just  want to point  out  to  you is that  i t  seems 

that  before you signed this – this memorandum which 

recommended and the purpose was to request  you to  

approve a cont ract  addendum. 

Before you signed that  on the 16 t h of  July 2015 Mr 20 

Singh on the face of  i t  author ised the payment on the 11t h of  

June 2015.  Perhaps I  could take you to page 250.399.   You 

wi l l  see that  at  250.400 there is an invoice f rom Regiments 

in the amount of  R189 – or i t  is  R166 plus VAT gets you to 

R189 and that  amount there is a  payment  advice affect ing 
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payment on the 11t h of  June at  page 399,  do you see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you conf i rm that  that  is before you 

signed the memorandum at  page 250.398? 

MR GAMA:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then what came af ter that  was the 

second addendum.  In  other words that  was the contract  that  

you were asked to approve and put  in place and that  second 

addendum you f ind at  page 250.306.   250.306.   And i f  I  could 

just  take you to the end page of  that  at  250.309 you wi l l  see 10 

– or I  would ask you to conf i rm please Mr Gama that  you 

then s igned this on the 16t h of  July 2015.   I t  was signed by 

you and i t  was signed by Mr Wood.  

MR GAMA:   That  is my s ignature.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You conf i rm that? 

MR GAMA:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And what th is st i r red is i t  – i t  put  in  

place the cont ractual  var iat ion,  correct  and i t  provided for  

the payment formal ised payment  of  the 166 success fee.   

You can go through i t  i f  you would l ike.  20 

MR GAMA:   Ja you moving pret ty quickly and the words are 

very smal l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja absolutely.   I t  is – let  us go through 

i t  i f  you would l ike to more slowly.   The preamble I  th ink 

gives you a sense of  what i t  is.    
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1.1 Regiments Capi tal  and Transnet  signed the f i rst  

addendum – part ies now wish to further varying the 

MSA.  The normal  sort  of  int roduct ion.  

I f  you go to var ia t ion of  condi t ions at  paragraph 3 at  page 

250.307 i t  is incorporat ing the recommendat ion that  you had 

made.  I t  is incorporat ing the decis ion that  was made by the 

BDS – the BDSA.   

You wi l l  see that  at  311 the scope of  the work shal l  be 

amended to include the fol lowing del iverables.   Technical  

support  development of  a detai led funding plan.   10 

Next  bul let  point .  

Assist  Transnet  in  the negot iat ions.  

Assist  Transnet in negot iat ing wi th a number of  potent ia l  

Chinese sources.  

So we are amending the scope of  the work.   Recommending 

advice and assistance post  successful  conclus ion of  

negot iat ions and then i t  goes on at  313 to  provide for the 

success fee of  166 mi l l ion.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You see that? 20 

MR GAMA:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And we know that  you sign this you 

concluded this contractual  var iat ion on the 16t h of  July by 

which t ime Mr S ingh on the face of  i t  has al ready paid 

Regiments.  
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MR GAMA:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what I  just  wanted to ask you is a 

few quest ions in relat ion to th is.   F i rst ly was i t  not  i r regular 

to have al lowed Regiments to work on this project  wi thout  a  

contract  being in place?  The cont ract  came af terwards once 

the work was completed.  

MR GAMA:   From – on the face of  i t  they are saying they 

had al lowed i t  – they had al lowed them to work on i t  for the 

previous twelve months.   I  was st i l l  fa i r ly new in the group 

off ice here and I  th ink i t  is one of  them i t  says Apri l  2015 I  10 

think I  arr ived there around the 20t h of  Apri l  2015 but  so 

when you get  there and people say these people have been 

working here for the past  twelve months you say okay and 

that  is what you get  to ld but  appropr iately I  th ink everybody 

would want  to put  the horse before the cart  and have the 

contract  in p lace beforehand.   

So that  was that  but  by going to the acquisi t ion 

commit tee and informing them that  th is is what has 

happened i t  a lso regular – regular ises that  but  i t  is a  

ret rospect ive approval .   I t  is being approved af ter the fact  20 

when the actual  work has been done.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You see Mr Gama perhaps I  could also 

just  get  your view on this.   What we have seen is that  

Regiments were in i t ia l ly appointment simply to be advisors –  

the amount that  they stood to be remunerated was 50 mi l l ion 
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what  we have seen f rom the documents we have gone 

through is they went f rom being purely  advisors to people 

that  actual ly did the deal  – they were deal  makers – they 

executed this deal .    

MR GAMA:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you say you were comfortable wi th 

that  being regular ised ex post  facto? 

MR GAMA:   Wel l  that  is – that  is what the people who were 

deal ing wi th i t  said they have done and you have seen a very 

detai led memo that  went to the BADAC that  were reading 10 

just  ear l ier on that  had 99 paragraphs i f  I  am not  mistaken.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja absolutely.   Let  me just  take you to 

the – to paragraph 73.  

MR GAMA:   Ja would you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And the one you have ment ioned.  

MR GAMA:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you turn up page 1044 you have 

got… 

MR GAMA:   Page? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1- I  beg your pardon.   250.388.   You 20 

qui te correct ly pointed out  that  they were at  r isk – they were 

al lowed to work there wi thout  a contract  for twelve months 

doing something di fferent  to what they were contracted to do 

and i t  records that  they did so at  r isk at  paragraph 73 at  

page 250.388.  
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 So i f  – do I  understand correct ly that  what that  meant 

is that  i f  you wanted to you did not  have to pay them 

anything? 

MR GAMA:   Wel l  i f  you read the whole thing i t  says there 

was an expectat ion of  compensat ion only on successful  

complet ion of  the t ransact ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes but  at  r isk.  

MR GAMA:   So – so they worked at  r isk for twelve months 

wi th an expectat ion of  compensat ion only on successful  

complet ion of  the t ransact ion.   So I  guess at  th is  po int  they 10 

have now successful ly concluded the t ransact ion and 

therefore that  is why there is then the mot ivat ion for the 

actual  payment.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  could you f ind any t race of  a  

procurement event .   I  mean this is  a  di fferent  cont ract .   So 

they start  off  at  advising you as pure advisors 50 mi l l ion.   

They land up execut ing a deal  get t ing paid a success fee of  

166 can you f ind any t race of  a procurement event  in  relat ion 

to the 166? 

MR GAMA:   I  do not  know i f  you cal l  i t  a procurement event  20 

but  i f  you go to the memorandum that  I  s igned on the 16t h of  

July.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   You… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Is that  at  394 – 250.394? 
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MR GAMA:   At  page 250.394.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   Correct .   I f  you go to point  number 5.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Point  number 5 in  – on the memo? 

MR GAMA:   Yes 250.394.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR GAMA:   Maybe to provide context  we start  at  3 but  we – 

I  am not  going to go through al l  of  i t .   I t  just  says upon 

phase 2 of  the engagement being reached i t  was decided by 

McKinsey and agreed by Transnet that  McKinsey would cede 10 

the role.   So the – that  is how Regiments come – comes into 

being to start  st ructur ing the f inancial  arrangements.   So i t  

was in i t ia l ly McKinsey and then i t  was ceded.  That  is point  

number 3.  

 Point  number 4 then says subsequent to the cession 

agreement the contract  per iod was extended by twelve 

months.    

 So in whatever way that  i t  would have been done I  

was not  there so I  do not  – I  do not  real ly know how i t  was 

done but  that  is what they say.    20 

 And then in point  number 5 Mr Myburgh  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   I t  is indicated that  Regiments indicated to  

Transnet they preferred operat ing model  for  such 

engagements is usual ly based on a r isk sharing model  for a  
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success fee.    

 And then that  number 5 the next  l ine says:   A 

submission was approved by the GCE on 17t h of  Apri l  in 

support  of  changing the remunerat ion model .   The agreement  

was then amended by value to ref lect  a  change in  the 

remunerat ion model  as proposed by Regiments.   And i t  says 

refer to Annexure C.   I t  w i l l  be inst ruct ive i f  we – i f  we went 

to Annexure C – is i t  there? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight  wel l  that  we have deal t  wi th  Mr 

Molefe.   Is i t  for your. .  10 

MR GAMA:    Is that . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Is i t  before your t ime.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Can I  ask you this.  

MR GAMA:   So I  am saying that  al l  of  these th ings that  

appear to have been done were approved by the t ime I  

arr ived there so.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Oh can I  just  ask you one other  

quest ion and your  comment?   I  mean did Regiments not  now 

have a conf l ict  of  interest  because we have seen that  they 20 

were appointed as pure advisors to advise presumably 

independent ly on models and opt ions.   And then what they 

landed up doing was actual ly execut ing.  

MR GAMA:   Mr Myburgh I  am not  qual i f ied – you have made 

me read too many documents al ready in th is 00:22:02 I  am – 
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I  am a bi t  confused now.  So i f  you say they were appointed 

only to be advisory I  have seen another document which is a 

cession document  that  says they wi l l  now do deal  st ructur ing 

so I  do not  know in terms of  the f inancial  people in  terms of  

what their  thoughts were and what  the d iscussions were in 

re lat ion to th is.   So I  am not  – I  am sl ight ly underqual i f ied 

Chair  to comment on i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   So have you got  any sense as 

to whether or not  the fee that  was paid to Regiments was 

excessive?  Are you able comment on that? 10 

MR GAMA:   I  am not  able to comment on that  ei ther.   What – 

what they say in that  long memo is they t ry and g ive  formula 

that  was used so they say 10 BBS – 15 BBS – 20 BBS and 

then here under 75.   They say even the – the successful  

conclusion of  th is t ransact ion the fee wi l l  not  exceed 15 

basis points on the yield as ref lected in the NPV calculat ions 

so that  – that  in i tsel f  is probably a manner I  know in which 

they deal  wi th these k inds of  th ings  but  I  do not  know i f  th is  

is the norm whether  th is is lower than the usual  or whether i t  

is higher I  – I  am under qual i f ied to give an opinion.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   Wel l  I  wi l l  not  tax you on that  

because some evidence has been led that  the market  

convent ion and Transnet pract ice wi l l  lead arrangement fee 

was 6 basis points.    

MR GAMA:   I  do not  know.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .  

MR GAMA:   I  would not  be able to.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You speak about – you made reference 

to Mr Mohammedy.  Perhaps I  could just  take you to his 

aff idavi t .   Could you please go to BB3 and can you turn up 

page 18.   I  just  want to ask your comment  on this.   

Paragraph 5.5.9 and Mr Gama I  do appreciate that  you have 

come in at  the ta i l  end of  th is.   Page 18 paragraph 5.5.9.   

The Transnet Treasury team says Mr Mohammedy had 

suff ic ient  experience to enter into loan t ransact ions wi thout  10 

the need for external  support .   In my view there was no need 

for the abovement ioned arrangement fees to be incurred.  

 Do you have any comment about that?  What was 

your sense and experience of  the Transnet  Treasury? 

MR GAMA:   I  would not  ab le to comment.   I  th ink people who 

were in  proximity to the t reasury team would be the people in  

f inance but  in  terms of  reputat ion as I  understood i t  is  that  

Transnet also had one of  the f inest  t reasury teams in the 

count ry in terms of  reputat ion.   So that  I  know but  I  would 

not  be able to te l l  you okay what does that  mean – what is i t  20 

that  they can do and what is i t  that  they outsource.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You see i t  real ly was – was to that  that  

Mr Mohammedy spoke and ul t imate ly  what  he concluded on 

this CBD loan he said i t  d id not  make any commercia l  sense 

and he ref lected that  and I  quote 
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“The only possible p lausible explanat ion f rom 

my perspect ive would be that  there was an 

agenda for payment to be made to Regiments 

ul t imately for some ent i ty that  existed 

outside of  the system.”  

 That  was his ev idence.   Did he cannot. . .  

MR GAMA:   Which – where are you reading f rom? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am reading f rom page 144 of  the 

t ranscr ipt  of  day 30 of  day 93.   This was his evidence.   

Perhaps I  can read i t  again.  10 

“The only possible… 

MR GAMA:   Oh i t  is something that  is in f ront  of  you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   Oh okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So just  bear wi th me for a moment.  

“The only possible p lausible explanat ion f rom 

my perspect ive would be that  there was an 

agenda for payment to be made to Regiments 

ul t imately for some ent i ty that  existed 

outside of  the system.”  20 

 But  you – you conf i rm that  the Transnet Treasury was 

wel l -equipped and was competent .  

MR GAMA:   Wel l  I  am – that  is the reputat ion that  Transnet  

Treasury had was that  i t  was amongst  the f inest  but  I  would 

not  be able to te l l  you what they could or could not  do.  But  a 
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person of  Mohammedy’s stature would have been aware 

what i t  is that  they can do because he had acted as a CFO 

from t ime to t ime.  So he would know and I  th ink he had 

enough t ime prepar ing for th is to have a look at  some of  

those things but  the unfortunate thing about al l  of  th is is that  

we were t ry ing to  operate on a pat ient  when someth ing has 

al ready gone wrong.   And he is now using hindsight .   I t  

would be good i f  he was there and he says let  us not  have 

these types of  t ransact ion advisors.  But  he did not  say that 

when i t  was happening.   And some of  us would – would not  10 

have been the wiser whether or not  i t  was appropriate or not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So is your evidence that  based on your  

own understanding and knowledge of  the ski l ls exper ience 

and expert ise that  the t reasury team at  Transnet ,  you wou ld  

no t  be  ab le  to  say what  –  how fa r  they cou ld  go  in  dea l ing  

w i th  d i f fe ren t  t ransact ion  bu t  based on what  you used to  

hear  o r  read about  them,  your  unders tand ing  is  tha t  they 

were  one o f  the  best  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .Treasury  teams in  government .  20 

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Jus t  to  add to  tha t ,  
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Mr  Gama.   I f  you  go over  the  page,  page 19,  paragraph  

5 .5 .11 .   Mr  Mohamedi  says:  

“My op in ion  i s  suppor ted  by  the  then Transnet  

Group Treasurer,  Ms Makgatho,  who wro te  an  

emai l  on  21  August  2014 to  Mr  Mole fe  and  

Mr  S ingh,  po in t ing  ou t  the  r i sks  o f  a l ign ing  

ex te rna l  pa r ty  to  negot ia te  s ign i f i can t  new loan 

agreement  in  i so la t ion  o f  the  imp l ica t ions i t  

may have had on our  ex is t ing  debt .  

Ms Makgatho fu r ther  po in ted  out  tha t  in  her  10 

v iew the  pr ic ing  o f  the  loan was out  o f  –  

espec ia l l y  due to  the  fac t  tha t  i t  car r ied  

secur i t y  o f  leans over  the  locomot ive . . .  

A t  the  t ime,  she es t imated the  excess cost  o f  

the  debt  to  amount  to  R 3 .8  b i l l ion  over  the  

te rm o f  the  loan. . . ”  

 And then the  emai l  i s  a t tached.   Do you want  to  

comment?   I  mean,  d id  you dur ing  your  tenure  as  the  GC or  

ac t ing  DG,  d id  you in te rac t  w i th  Ms  Makgatho?  

MR GAMA :    No,  I  knew Ms Makga tho when I  was the  CE o f  20 

TRF.   By the  t ime tha t  I  became the  ac t ing  DGC i t  was  

Ramasebud i  tha t  was the  Treasure r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA :    So  my in te r face  w i th  Ms Makgatho was as  CO 

o f  TRF.   I  never  i n te r faced w i th  he r  as  the  ac t ing  GC.    
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  jus t  go ing  back to  the  concerns 

tha t  Mr  Mohamedi  expressed in  h is  ev idence  tha t  he 

thought  tha t  there  needed to  be  –  i t  i s  p robab ly  some k ind  

o f  u l te r io r  mot ive .   I  have put  to  you ear l ie r  in  your  

ev idence what  the  Money- f lows Invest iga t ions has revea led  

in  re la t ion  to  th is  payment  o f  R 189 mi l l ion  and you  

remember  I  pu t  to  you tha t  the i r  invest iga t ion  has revea led  

tha t  R 147 mi l l ion  o f  tha t ,  78% was  pa id  to  A lbe r t ine  w i th  a  

R 122 mi l l ion  then hav ing  been laundered onto  Sahara  

Computers .  10 

MR GAMA :    Yes,  tha t  i s  –  I  th ink  –  ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You reca l l  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker  no t  c lear ]   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  memorandum,  I  th ink  we 

looked a t  a  l i t t le  ear l ie r,  wh ich  –  I  cannot  remember  

whethe r  tha t  was appo in t ing  or  ced ing  r igh ts  f rom 

Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an .   But  I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  where  

you were  asked by  peop le  under  you to  s ign  a  

memorandum recommending the  appo in tment  o f  ou ts ide  

adv isors ,  you wou ld  f i rs t  want  to  know:   Why do we need  20 

them?  Do we not  have th is  exper t i se  in te rna l l y?   I s  tha t  

someth ing  you may have ra i sed w i th  peop le  w i th in  

Treasury?  

MR GAMA :    No,  Cha i r.   You know,  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  t ime 

and peop le  in  Transnet  w i l l  te l l  you ,  I  do  no t  l i ke  
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consu l tan ts .   I f  we can do th ings w i thout  consu l tan ts  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . . tha t  i s  what  we do.   In  fac t ,  when I  le f t  

Transnet ,  I  had se t  ou t  someth ing  tha t  I  ca l l  In te rna l  

Consu l tan ts .   Peop le  who ac tua l l y  work  fo r  Transnet  and 

who can go around,  us ing  the i r  exper t i se ,  t roub leshoot ing  

in  a  d i f fe ren t  en t i t y.   In  th is  ins tance,  you get  to ld  t ha t  the  

peop le  have been he re  fo r  12-months.   They have been 

work ing .   So you have to  assume tha t  they are  re levant  10 

because why wou ld  you keep them for  12-months.   But  a lso  

there  is  someth ing  tha t  we are  do ing  he re  tha t  we need to  

c lean up a  b i t .    

 There  is  an  in te rchange o f  words.   So you wou ld  

ta lk  about  Reg iments  adv i sory.   I t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  en t i t y  f rom 

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  Par tne r.   We ta lked about  Transnet  –  I  

mean,  what  i s  tha t  –  Tr i l l i an  Asset  Management .   I t  i s  a  

d i f fe ren t  en t i t y  to  –  bu t  I  th ink  everybody gets  w iser  

a f te rwards to  then say:   Okay i t  i s  no t  the  same ent i t y  as  – 

there  i s  a  number  o f  these ent i t ies .   So adv isory  i s  t he  one 20 

tha t  was do ing  GFB,  as  I  unders tood i t ,  tha t  was adv isory.    

 But  the  one tha t  i s  s t ruc tu r ing  is  Cap i ta l  

Par tne rs  o r  whatever  the  name tha t  i s  re f lec ted  he re .   So i t  

i s  d i f fe ren t  en t i t ies .   So we must  no t  make the  m is take o f  

th ink ing  the  adv i sors  have now been appo in ted  as  sk i l l (? )  
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s t ruc tur ing .   I t  does not  appear  to  me tha t  tha t  i s  what  was 

the  case but  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  en t i t ies .  

 But  I  th ink  when Mr  S ingh is  here  you might  –  he 

might  be  much more  c learer  than me in  te rms o f  these  

d is t inc t ions be tween these ent i t ies  bu t  I  can jus t  see i t  tha t  

somet imes we conf la te  Reg iments  Adv isory  f rom Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  Par tne rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  pe rhaps I  cou ld  jus t  po in t  ou t  

one th ing  to  you.   I f  you  have a  look a t  page 380,  the  th i rd  10 

addendum where  Reg iments  i s  appo in ted  as  an  adv i so r.  

MR GAMA :    380 o f  the  prev ious f i le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  250.380 .   There  you w i l l  see  tha t  

i t  i s  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  (P ty)  L td  tha t  we are  ta lk ing  about .    

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  382 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I t  i s  no t  in  the  o ther  bund le?   380 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    250.380.   So the  or ig ina l  

appo in tment  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.   I  th ink  –  i s  tha t  in  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bund le  7 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bund le  7 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Page 250.   Po in t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    380.  

CHAIRPERSON :    387 or  380?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    380.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You w i l l  see  tha t  the  or ig ina l  

var ia t ion ,  i f  you  have a  look a t  paragraph 3 .1 ,  re la tes  to  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you w i l l  see  a t  382,  i t  i s  s igned 10 

then by  Er ic  Wood,  Reg iments  Cap i ta l .  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The ag reement  tha t  you ente red in to  

to  regu lar i se  the  var ia t ion  o f  the  cont rac t  i s  a t  306 and i t  i s  

a lso  be tween Transnet  and Reg iments  Cap i ta l .   Do you see  

tha t ,  a t  306?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  Reg iments  Cap i ta l .   So tha t  i s  l i ke  fo r  

l i ke .   So th is  i s  the  en t i t y  tha t  i s  dea l ing  w i th  the  f inanc ia l  

s t ruc tur ing .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can I  ask  you?  Were  you surp r ised 20 

tha t  m is ter  –  now tha t  you see –  or  d id  you know tha t  

Mr  S ingh had pa id  Reg iments  be fore  you s igned the  

memorandum? 

MR GAMA :    No,  no ,  no .   I  jus t  saw i t  now.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I s  tha t  o f  any concern  to  you? 
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MR GAMA :    I t  i s  concern ing .   There  is  one o f  two th ings.   

The f i rs t  memo,  the  long one,  i t  was to  go  to  the  board  to  

ge t  approva l .   So the  board  approved i t  bu t  in  the  approva l  

o f  i t ,  the  de legat ion  was to  the  GCE in  te rms o f  au thor i s ing  

payment .   So the  s ign ing  o f  i t  be fore  the  GCE approves i t  

i s  i r regu la r.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can you th ink  o f  any reason what  

wou ld  have mot iva ted  h im to  do  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    No,  no .   You w i l l  have  to  ask  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you wou ld  no t  know o f  any  10 

c i rcumstances tha t  wou ld  jus t i f y  tha t ,  wou ld  you? 

MR GAMA :    No.   I t  was not  to ld  to  me.   There  i s  no  way 

where  he  says:   Look,  s ign  th is  bu t  I  have a l ready pa id .   

There  is  nowhere  where  he  says tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  then move to  a  

d i f fe ren t  top ic  and tha t  i s  the  procu rement  o f  the  95  

locomot ives .   Jus t  g ive  me a  second,  p lease.  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  bund le  are  we go ing  to  go  to?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  two 20 

f i les  together  bu t  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  Cha i rperson,  to  go  to  

the  POI  Bund le ,  Bund le  6 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have jus t  a  few quest ions fo r  you  in  

re la t ion  to  the  95  locomot ives .   I  take  i t  you  w i l l  reca l l ,  and 
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th is  i s  dea l t  w i th  in  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  commencing  a t  

page 36,  Cha i rperson o f  Bund le  6 .   I  cer ta in l y  do  no t  

in tend to  take  you th rough a l l  o f  tha t  Mr  Gama.   I  jus t  want  

to  ask  you one or  two quest ions,  i f  I  may?  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  take  i t  you  w i l l  reca l l  tha t  in  2012,  

CSR was appo in ted  as  the  pre fe r red  b idder  fo r  the  supp ly  

o f  the  95  locomot ives .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  I  do  no t  know the  da tes  bu t  i f  you  say i t  i s  

2012,  you can maybe jus t  re fe r  me where  you are  read ing .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   We can go th rough a l l  o f  

th is .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And do you remember  what  the  costs  

were ,  the  costs  o f  those 95 locomot ives  were?  

MR GAMA :    No,  no .   [ laughs]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  go to  page 93 jus t  to  ge t  to  

the  da te .   Page  93 a t  paragraph – and you know these  

paragraph numbers  a re  ve ry  long.   [ laughs]   5 .5 .18 .44.   

Accord ing  to  a  le t te r  da ted  5  September  f rom Mo le fe  to  20 

Pam(?) :  

“Transnet  no t i f ied  CSR o f  i t s  appo in tment  as  

the  pre fe r red  b idder.  

In  a  le t te r,  CSR was requested to  s ign  the  

agreement  by  no  la te r  than the  c lose  o f  
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bus iness on  6  September  2012. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Okay.   So tha t  was the  da te ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now I  jus t  wanted to  ask  you,  

p lease,  to  tu rn  to  page 39.   And,  o f  course ,  l i ke  so  many o f  

these th ings,  we s tar t  o f f  w i th  p resenta t ions be ing  made to  

the  BADC.   You see there  is  a  head ing  a t  top  o f  39 ,  BADC 

of  3  August  2011.   I  jus t  wanted you to  conf i rm tha t  in  2011  

Mr  Sharma,  i f  you  can reca l l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . l i s ted  he re ,  was a  member  o f  the 

BADC and a  D i rec tor  o f  Transnet .  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  I  can conf i rm tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The ev idence befo re  the  Commiss ion  

is  tha t  he  was then appo in ted  as  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the 

BADC in  the  fo l low ing year,  in  August  2012.   Does tha t  

record  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MR GAMA :    I  wou ld  no t  know the  da tes  bu t  he  d id  become 

the  Cha i r  o f  BADC.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  2011,  i t  re f lec ts  tha t  Mr  Mkwanaz i  20 

–  or  do  you know who the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  BADC was in  

2011?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Who was i t?  

MR GAMA :    I t  was the  la te  Bongan i  Don Mkhwanaz i .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Don . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  my unders tand cor rec t  tha t  h is  

surname was spe l t  w i th  an  H as  opposed to  the  one  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .Mkwanaz i  i s  spe l t  w i thout  an  H.  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So the  spe l l ing  a t  page 39 wou ld  

no t  be  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi thout  the  H?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  i t  must  have the  H.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Were  you invo lved in  the  negot ia t ion  

o f  the  95  locomot ives?  

MR GAMA :    No,  tha t  I  can remember.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  tha t  I  have put  to  you tha t  the  

Money- f low’s  invest iga t ions revea ls  tha t  CSR and 

Reg iments  As ia ,  rep resented by  Mr  Essa,  en te red in to  the  

BADC in  respect  o f  th is  acqu is i t ion  w i th  Reg imen ts  As ia  20 

be ing  due a  20% commiss ion  or  k ickback and the i r  

invest iga t ion  has a l so  revea led  tha t  some 17  mi l l ion 

Do l la rs  have to  da te  been pa id  by  CSR in  respect  o f  th is  

acqu is i t ion .  

MR GAMA :    No,  I  am not  aware  o f  i t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  we are  go ing  to  come back to  

th is ,  I  suppose,  in  more  de ta i l  when we dea l  w i th  the  1064  

but  Mr  Gama wi th  your  exper ience,  there  is  someth ing  tha t  

the  Commiss ion  needs to  cons ide r  and invest iga te  i s .   How 

i f  negot ia t ions  are  done bona f ide ,  how i s  i t  poss ib le  tha t  

there  is  enough  in  the  po t  to  fund the  20% or  21% 

commiss ion  on  acqu is i t ions  o f  th is  s ize?  And these 95 

locomot ives ,  the  cont rac t  p r ice  was some R 2 .5  b i l l i on .   Do  

you want  to  comment?   Perhaps you can share  w i th  us  your  

ins igh ts  in to  tha t .  10 

MR GAMA :    No,  I  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  comment  on  tha t .   I  

am not  fami l ia r  w i th  tha t  bu t  f rom what  I  unders tand f rom 

some o f  the  ex t rac ts ,  the  marg ins  on  some o f  these  

locomot ives ,  they are  no  more  than about  4% tha t  a re  

made by  the  OEM’s  as  a  g loba l  s tandard .   And the  CSR 

tha t  you ta lk  about  i s  among the  cheapest  locomot ive  

manufac ture rs .   So I  do  no t  know how poss ib le  i t  i s  tha t  

you cou ld  then say the re  a re  money- f lows o f  tha t  na ture  

f rom these cont rac ts .   I  mean,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  none(?)  o f  the  negot ia to rs  a re  20 

do ing  the i r  job  p roper ly.    

MR GAMA :    No,  what  I  am say ing  is  tha t  f rom the  

negot ia t ions  and f rom compar i sons tha t  I  have seen,  they 

have been among the  cheapest  o f  the  locomot ives .   I t  

m igh t  jus t  mean tha t  maybe the  costs  cou ld  even be lower  
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bu t  I  th ink  when peop le  a re  conf ron t ing  the  issue,  they w i l l  

see  tha t  there  i s  no t  anyone who  has charged us  lower  

than them in  te rms o f  locomot ives .   So to  then say tha t  

there  are  a lso  commiss ions o f  the  na tu re  and the  

magn i tude tha t  you ind i ca te ,  i t  ba f f les  my mind.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .   The  las t  th ing  I  jus t  want  to  

dea l  w i th  b r ie f l y  i s .   The BEE requ i rement  was wa ived in  

phase 1  in  th is  tender  eva lua t ion  process.   A re  you aware  

o f  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can I  take  you,  p lease,  to  page 81? 

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  paragraph  

5 .5 .16 .26.   I  have jus t  one or  two  parag raphs to  take  you 

th rough here .    

“ In  the i r  recommendat ion  to  Mole fe ,  Gama and  

J iyane recommended opt ion  2  on  the  bas is  

tha t  op t ion  1  wou ld  mean tha t  fo re ign  members  

d id  no t  have  loca l  representa t ion  w i th  

p re jud ice  to  the  score  zero  on  BBBEE. . . ”  20 

 And says:  

“They fu r ther  ind ica ted  tha t  op t ion  1  d id  no t  

suppor t  the  BBBEE Code o f  Good Pract ice  

C lause wh ich  a l lows fo r  such fo re ign 

compan ies  who  had reg is te red  loca l l y  and 
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s ta r t -up  en te rpr i ses  to  be  deemed to  have  

BBBEE cont r ibu te  s ta tus  o f  Leve l  4 ,  

cont r ibu t ing  in  the  f i rs t  year  o f  opera t ion . . . ”  

 And then in  the  next  sub-paragraph says:  

“The not ion  tha t  fo re ign  compan ies  were  

pre jud iced canno t  be  substant ia ted  in  tha t  

A lexco,  a  South  A f r i can company,  sco red 

zero  po in ts  on  BBBEE.  

We determined  tha t  recommendat ions by  

Gama and J i yane to  Mole fe  to  amend the  10 

eva lua t ion  cr i te r i a  to  exc lude BBBEE,  the 

request  was approved by  Mole fe  on  8 

June. . . ”  

 The next  sub-paragraph:  

“We determined tha t  a f te r  the  cond i t ions  were  

change to  remove the  BBBEE requ i rement ,  

CSR scored ove ra l l  69% above the  m in imum 

thresho ld  o f  60%. . . ”  

 And then,  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you to  

comment  on  pa ragraph 5 .5 .16 .30.  20 

“Based on the  reasons advanced fo r  the  

dec is ion  to  exc lude BBBEE cond i t ions  f rom 

s tage 1  process as  re f lec ted  above,  we  

determined tha t  CSR was the  on ly  fo re ign  

en t i t y  tha t  benef i ted  f rom the  sa id  dec is ion . . . ”  
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 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  prob lem wi th  some o f  these 

repor ts  by  peop le  such as  Fundudz i  i s  tha t  they are  

m is lead ing  and they w i l l  m isrep resent  the  mean ing  o f  

th ings because I  th ink  they do  no t  unders tand i t ,  some o f  

these processes and then they w i l l  reach conc lus ions tha t  

a re  ve ry  w i ld .   The fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s ,  i t  i s  a  very  s imp le  

one and i t  a f fec ted  a l l  the  tenderers .    

 To  eva lua te  BEE a t  s tage 1  or  s tage 3 ,  i f  you  do  

i t  fo r  a l l  o f  the  en t i t ies ,  i t  means noth ing .   I t  i s  10 

mean ing less .   There  is  no  change.   I t  does not  change the  

pr ice  o f  tha t .   But  here  you get  the  t imes(? )  o f  t i ck  box 

aud i to rs .    

 Even tha t  –  aud i t ing  one-o-one,  you do not  even  

jus t  t i ck  box,  who w i l l  then come here  and g i ve  th is  

Commiss ion  an  impress ion  tha t  someth ing  went  wrong by  

agree ing  not  to  eva lua te  a t  leve l  1  bu t  have eva lua ted leve l  

3 .   A l l  o f  the  en t i t ies  were  eva lua ted a t  the  same t ime.   A l l  

tha t  happened he re  is .    

 They sa id  when  we were  ou t  on  tender  we  20 

assumed tha t  every  en t i t y  tha t  i s  go ing  to  tender  a l ready  

has a  BBBEE ce r t i f i ca te  bu t  we were  wrong because we 

have fo re ign  en t i t ies  who are  in  the  process o f  c rea t ing  

the i r  South  A f r i can ent i t ies .   So can you a l low us  no t  to  

eva lua te  any o f  the  en t i t ies?    
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 And then they used the  example  o f  the  fo re ign  

en t i t ies  and they  sa id  these two,  fo r  ins tance,  wou ld  be  

a f fec ted  by  th is .   I t  meant  tha t  they wou ld  drop o f f  bu t  we 

w i l l  s t i l l  eva lua te  BBBEE.   Le t  us  a l low them to  estab l i sh  

the i r  loca l  o f f i ce .   Le t  them then  go to  the  – no t  ra t ing  

agenc ies ,  what  do  they ca l l  i t?    

 The BEE agenc ies  tha t  g ive  peop le  a  cer t i f i ca te  

wh ich  te l l s  them whethe r  they are  100% compl ian t  o r  they  

are  a t  50% or  they are . . .   Le t  us  then a l low them to  do  th is .   

We wi l l  then,  a t  s tage 3 ,  eva lua te  a l l  o f  the  en t i t ies  fo r  10 

the i r  BBBEE credent ia l s .   So tha t  i s  what  happened here .   

Nobody los t  any ha i r  o r  anyth ing  as  a  resu l t  o f  ask ing  fo r  

tha t .    

 Bu t  a lso  in  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  the  de legated 

author i t y  wh ich  was the  JSE cou ld  cons ider  th i s  and  dec ide  

on  whethe r  i t  makes sense,  bu t  no t  on ly  tha t .   You then 

a lso  go  fu r ther  and you in fo rm the  board  tha t  in  te rms o f  

the  cr i te r ia  th is  i s  what  we sa id  we wou ld  do .   We d id  no t  

do  th is  a t  leve l ,  we d id  i t  a t  leve l  3  because o f  th is .   There  

is  no t  anyth ing  s in is te r  o r  anyth ing  tha t  was done.    20 

 Each o f  the  en t i t ies  was eva lua ted  in  s tage 3 .   I f  

a t  s tage 3  the  en t i t ies  d id  no t  have the  necessary  BEE 

then they wou ld  fa l l  o f f .   So  everybody gets  eva lua ted on a  

s im i la r  th ing .   There  i s  nowhere  where ,  as  a  resu l t  o f  no t  

eva lua t ing  BEE a t  s tage 1 ,  you are  advantag ing  anybody 
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over  anyone.   I t  does not  a r i se .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  the  quest ion  tha t  I  wanted to  

ask  you is .   You accept  tha t  CSR was the  on ly  fo re ign  

ent i t y  tha t  benef i ted  f rom tha t  dec i s ion?  

MR GAMA :    Accord ing  to  th is ,  there  was A lexco and CSR.   

I  do  no t  know when A lexco came f rom.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR GAMA :    But  –  so  th is  someth ing  tha t  the  cross-

funct iona l  team dec ided(?) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sub-27 says:  10 

“The not ion  tha t  fo re ign  compan ies  were  

pre jud iced cannot  be  substant ia ted  in  tha t  

A lexco,  a  South  A f r i can company,  scored ze ro  

po in ts  fo r  BBBEE. . . ”  

MR GAMA :    Wel l ,  they  wou ld  sco re  ze ro  po in ts  on  BBBEE 

i f  dur ing  the  t ime f rame tha t  they have been g i ven they are  

unab le  to  come in  and prov ide  the  BEE cer t i f i ca te  or  i f  

the i r  BEE cer t i f i ca te  comes in  and say they  are  no t  

compla in t .   So tha t  i s  a l l  i t  i s .   So the i r  scor ing  ze ro  po in t s 

i s  because o f  them not  comply ing .   I t  i s  no t  because they 20 

were  eva lua ted as  s tage 1  or  s tage 3 .   So the  issue  here  o f  

wh ich  is  one is  fo re ign  and wh ich  one is  no t  i s  rea l l y  

ne i the r  here  no r  there .   A l l  tha t  was happen ing  here  was  

the  cross- funct iona l  team says we  d id  no t  take  in to  account  

tha t  we might  rece ive  b ids  f rom non-South  A f r i can 
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compan ies .  

 So ins tead o f  eva lua t ing  BBBEE a t  s tage one,  le t  us 

eva lua te  every th ing  e lse  except  i t  w i l l  be  –  le t  us  eva lua te  

i t  a t  s tage 3  to  g ive  them t ime.   So i f  Ne lesco,  a f te r  be ing  

g iven t ime s t i l l  cou ld  no t  comply  w i th  the  BBBEE then they  

wou ld  be  scored  zero .   The same wi th  the  CSR i t se l f  i f ,  

a f te r  be ing  g i ven  t ime,  i t  does not  comply  w i th  the  BBBEE,  

i t  ge ts  scored ze ro .   Everybody gets  scored on one sca le ,  

they do  not  use  d i f fe ren t  ways o f  scor ing  these ent i t ies .  

 So fo r  me i t  i s  rea l l y  –  we a re  go ing  to  ge t  in to  an  10 

argument  and have a  d iscuss ion  wh ich  is  rea l l y  about  

no th ing  about  no th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  was  the  po l i cy  in  te rms o f  

whethe r  BEE shou ld  be  taken in to  account  a t  the  f i rs t  

s tage or  what  was the  lega l  requ i rement  as  you unders tood  

i t?  

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  no t  a  lega l  requ i rement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was a  po l i cy  requ i rement .  

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  an  eva lua t ion  c r i te r ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  so  i t  does not  come f rom the  po l i cy.  20 

MR GAMA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  does i t  come f rom? 

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  an  eva lua t ion  where  you say to  

everybody,  as  they take  the  documents ,  th is  i s  how we are  

go ing  to  eva lua te  you and then you come in  and then you 
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say  here  is  a  b idder.   Through no fau l t  o f  the i r  own 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  hang on,  le t  us  es tab l i sh  the 

ru les .   When the re  was  –  there  were  cr i te r ia  tha t  were  se t  

f rom the  beg inn ing ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The cr i te r i a  inc luded BEE,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  the  cr i te r ia  tha t  were  requ i red  to  be  

imp lemented,  be fore  i t  was d iscovered who had BEE,  who  10 

sa t is f ied  and who  d id  no t  sa t is fy,  was the  requ i rement  tha t  

tha t  c r i te r ion  o f  BEE shou ld  be  a  fac tor  a t  s tage one? 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  was the  pos i t ion?  

MR GAMA:    That  was the  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and then what  happened was a t  a  

cer ta in  s tage tha t  was changed and i t  was dec ided tha t  

BEE as a  pa r t  o f  the  cr i te r ia  wou ld  be  app l ied  a t  s tage 3 .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say tha t  was based on what ,  on  

the  fac t  tha t  some o f  the  compan ies  were  fo re ign  

compan ies?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  so  the  c ross- funct iona l  team says  here  is  
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our  RFP.   As Transnet  we d id  no t  fo resee tha t  there  cou ld  

be  ent i t ies  –  the re  cou ld  be  fo re ign  en t i t ies  who  do not  

have a  loca l  domic i le .   They then say th is  i s  the  cr i te r ia ,  

we unders tand i t ,  they  then say we th ink  i t  w i l l  be  

pre jud ic ia l  fo r  en t i t ies  who a re  jus t  coming in to  the  count ry  

and they such as  Ne lesco and Seza to  eva lua te  BBBEE a t  

s tage one,  they are  s t i l l  se t t ing  up  the i r  o f f i ces .   We wi l l  

eva lua te  BBBEE in  the  same manner  tha t  we eva lua ted,  we 

do not  change the  ra t ing  bu t  the  PPM,  wh ich  is  the  

Transnet  p rocedures manua l ,  i t  a l lows the  person who has  10 

the  de legated au thor i t y  to  cons ider  th is  and say does i t  

change the  pr ice  o f  eggs?  Wi l l  tha t  be  anybody  who is  

go ing  to  be  pre jud iced as  a  resu l t  o f  th is?   Now we are  

go ing  to  eva lua te  a l l  en t i t ies  a t  s tage 3 ,  where  we are  no t  

chang ing  the  cr i t e r ia ,  we are  s t i l l  go ing  to  eva lua te  BBBEE 

but  we are  no t  go ing  to  eva lua te  i t  a t  –  so  there  are  s ix  

s tages o f  th is  th ing .   So the  en t i t y  w i l l  s t i l l  fa l l  o f f  i t  does 

not  comply  bu t  a t  Transnet  you are  a l lowed to  approach the  

de legated author i t y  to  say can we  move th is  f rom s tage 1  

to  s tage 3  and tha t  i s  what  happened here .   So there  is  20 

no th ing  tha t  changed,  the  cr i te r ia  remained the  same,  a l l  o f  

the  b idders  were  eva lua ted a t  s tage th ree .   So I  am say ing  

here ,  Cha i r,  tha t  we can ta lk  a  lo t  about  these th ings,  there  

was no one who was be ing  p re jud i ced.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  I  unders tand,  you have made  
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the  po in t ,  Mr  Myburgh w i l l  pursue h is  quest ions.   On the  

fac t  o f  i t  my immedia te  react ion  wou ld  be  un less  one was 

ta lk ing  about  a  s i tua t ion  about  cer ta in  except iona l  

c i rcumstances,  I  wou ld  have expected tha t  i f  I  am Transnet  

and I  say  these a re  the  cr i te r ia  tha t  a re  go ing  to  be  used to  

de termine who ac tua l l y  ge ts  th is  cont rac t ,  the  fac t  tha t  

somebody says oh ,  I  jus t  reg is te red my company yesterday 

so  g ive  me a  chance to  go  and reg i s te r  th is  o r  ge t  tha t  

cer t i f i ca te ,  i s  ne i ther  he re  no r  there ,  hard  luck .   I f  

somebody says I  am coming f rom France or  whatever,  I  d id  10 

no t  know about  what  the  requ i rements  were  in  South  

A f r i ca ,  hard  luck .   I f  you  want  to  do  bus iness i n  South  

A f r i ca ,  you want  to  ge t  cont ract s  in  South  A f r i ca ,  

fami l ia r i se  yourse l f  w i th  what  the  requ i rements  i n  South  

A f r i ca  are .   That  wou ld  be  my immedia te  react ion  bu t  i t  

may we l l  be  tha t  when one looks deep ly,  i t  m igh t  change.  

MR GAMA:    Ja .   No,  here  is  a  g roup o f  peop le  who are  

exerc is ing  the i r  m inds,  they a re  say ing  fo r  ins tance,  

perhaps we d id  no t  th ink  p roper l y  about  th is  th ing  tha t  

there  cou ld  be  fo re ign  en t i t ies  who a re  no t  domic i le  in  20 

South  A f r i ca  because there  are  fo re ign  en t i t ies ,  most  o f  

these ent i t ies  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    They must  fami l ia r i se  themse lves w i th  

South  A f r i can s i tua t ion  and comply.  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  when peop le  are  coming th rough  fo r  the 
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f i rs t  t ime you can g ive  them tha t .   The cross- funct iona l  

team,  they thought  th rough th i s ,  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  

they jus t   -  they  thought  th rough i t ,  they  looked a  op t ions 

and then they sa id  okay,  we th ink  th is  i s  a  be t te r  op t ion  

and then they then sa id  can we take i t  to  the  de legated 

author i t y  to  look  a t  i t?   And then the  de legated author i t y  

cou ld  then agree or  d isag ree but  i f  the  de legated au thor i t y  

can see tha t  there  is  no  one who is  go ing  to  be  pre jud iced  

as  a  resu l t  o f  eva lua t ing .   We a re  no t  say ing  we w i l l  no t  

eva lua te  BEE,  we  are  jus t  say ing  we w i l l  no t  do  i t  on  s tage  10 

one,  we w i l l  do  in  s tage th ree  and then tha t  i s  what  

happened but  i f  you  wou ld  re l y  on  Fundudz i  t ype o f  

repor ts ,  there  is  a  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  you w i l l  f ind  here  wh ich  

jus t  says tha t ,  you know,  you shou ld  be  a  robot ,  you must  

no t  app ly  any log ic  in  te rms o f  dea l ing  w i th  th ings and then 

tha t  i s  no t  the  r igh t  way to  do  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  tu rn  

to  the  100 locomot ives ,  i f  I  may?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  jus t  want  to  p resent  someth ing  

o f  an  overv iew before  I  ge t  in to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  a f f idav i t  and 

your  response.   You w i l l  reca l l ,  Mr  Gama,  tha t  CSR –  now 

we are  ta lk ing  about  100 20E e lec t r i c  locomot ives .   You 

w i l l  reca l l  tha t  CSR was awarded the  tender  on  
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con f inement  rep lac ing  Mi tsu i .   Do you remember  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    I  jus t  want  to  go  back.   Can you jus t  remind 

me where  is  my… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am go ing  to  come to  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  can you po in t  me to  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  me take you to  the  page,  i f  you  

want .  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bund le  6 ,  page 140.  

MR GAMA:    Page 140?  I t  i s  jus t  use fu l  tha t  we –  okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  am jus t  p resent ing  an  overv iew.   

I f  you  go to  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  5 .6 .18  sub 1 :  

“As ind i ca ted  above we dete rmined tha t  the  board  

approved a  conf inement  o f  100 locomot ives  to  CSR 

on 24 January,  es t imated cost  o f  3 .8  b i l l i on .   We 

determined tha t  Mo le fe  conc luded an agreement  

w i th  CSR on 17 March fo r  the  supp ly  o f  100 

locomot ives  a t  a  cost  o f  4 .38  b i l l i on . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    3 .8 ,  ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now are  you in  a  pos i t ion  to  conf i rm 

because aga in  the  t ime l ine  here  becomes impor tan t .   Th is  

LSA was conc luded on the  17  March 2014 wh ich  was the  

same day as  the  LSAs were  conc luded in  respec t  o f  the 

1064 locomot ives .   Do you remember  tha t?  
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MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  wou ld  no t  know on what  da te .   I  know 

tha t  the  1064 was on tha t  par t i cu la r  da te  bu t  I  cannot  

remember  tha t  there  was any o the r  on  the  same day.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  le t  me take you to  

page 183.   Now th is  the  sect ion  dea l ing  w i th  the  1064 and  

we w i l l  come to  one o f  the  agreements  i n  t ime.   I  w i l l  

ac tua l l y  show you the  one conc luded by  CNR (s ic )  bu t  a t  

parag raph 5 .9 .12 .2 :  

“We dete rmined,  however,  by  tha t  t ime…” 

And tha t  i s  dea l ing  w i th  the  inc rease in  the  ETC.  10 

“…the locomot ive  supp ly  had a l ready been s igned 

on or  about  17  March 2014. ”  

So a t  leas t  on  tha t  the  100 locomot ive  LSA and LSAs in  

respect  o f  the  1064 were  conc luded around about  –  e i ther  

on  the  same day or  a round about  the  same.   Do you  have a  

reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    No,  no ,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    By  the  way,  Mr  Gama,  you  d id  no t  

s ign  the  LSAs.   F rom what  I  have seen they were  s igned by  

Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  S ingh.   Would  tha t  be  co r rec t?  20 

MR GAMA:    Wha t  do  you re fer  to  as  the  MSA? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The LSA,  the  ac tua l  locomot ive  

supp ly  agreements  conc luded in  re la t ion  to  the  1064 

locomot ives .   I  am jus t  s imp ly  ask ing  you d id  no t  yourse l f  

s ign  the  agreements .  
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MR GAMA:    Ja ,  ja ,  tha t  i s  –  so  I  do  no t  reca l l  what  the  

da tes  were  here .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Now a t  th is  t ime in  March 

2014,  Mr  Sharma was the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  BADC.  

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  poss ib le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a  d i rec tor  o f  Transnet .  

MR GAMA:    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    I t  is  poss ib le ,  I  cannot  remember  when the i r  

te rm exp i red .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We wi l l  come to  some documenta t ion  

in  due course .    

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then I  th ink  I  have put  th is  to  

you a l ready.   Mr  Essa,  rep resent ing  on  the  money f lows 

invest iga t ion ,  represent ing  Reg iments  As ia  conc luded a  

BDSA aga in  w i th  CSR for  a  21% k ickback.   To  da te  

payments  o f  124 mi l l ion  do l la rs  have been made under  tha t  

BDSA and the  one in  re la t ion  to  the  359  e lec t r i c  

locomot ives  tha t  were  par t  o f  the  1064.  20 

MR GAMA:    Sor ry,  can you repeat  tha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Essa,  on  beha l f  o f  Reg iments  

As ia ,  conc ludes a  BDSA wi th  CSR for  21% k ickback in  

re la t ion  to  the  100 locomot ives .   To  da te  24  mi l l ion  do l la rs  

have been pa id  under  tha t  BDSA and the  BDSA tha t  he  
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conc luded in  re la t ion  to  the  359 e lec t r i c  locomot i ves  tha t  

were  par t  o f  the  1064 cont rac t .   Do you want  to  comment  

on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    I t  sounds l i ke  te lephone numbers .   The 124  

mi l l ion?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    124 mi l l ion  do l la rs .  

MR GAMA:    In  respect  o f  the  100  locomot ives?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The 100 locomot ive  and the  359 

e lec t r i c  locomot ives .  

MR GAMA:    Oh,  a  combinat ion?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    No,  I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  tha t ,  I  am 

hear ing  i t  f rom you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe we shou ld  take  some b reak?  I t  

has  jus t  gone past  quar te r  to  e igh t .   Le t  us  take  a  ten  

m inutes  break.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r. ,  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then we w i l l  con t inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  cou ld  you g ive  us  a  

sense o f  how deep in to  the  n igh t  you wou ld  l i ke  t o  go  so 20 

we can make ou r  p lans and a lso  i f  I  cou ld  look and see 

what  I  can f in ish  sens ib ly  in  tha t  t ime?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  us  do  tha t .   From your  s ide ,  how 

much –  how fa r  a re  you f rom f in ish ing  w i th  Mr  Gama? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am s t i l l  some way.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  t ry  and ach ieve  

th is  even ing  is  to  f in ish  a t  leas t  100 locomot ives .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   I  can  go fo r  qu i te  some t ime.   

From my s ide  we  can jus t  go  –  we  can go to  n ine ,   we can 

go beyond n ine ,  I  must  jus t  check w i th  the  s ta f f  and 

techn ic ians.   From your  s ide ,  Mr  Gama,  you are  f ine?  

MR GAMA:    I  must  jus t  check i f  my team has got  the  tank 

to  go  beyond n ine  o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Your  counse l  i s  10 

f ine .  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   Mr  Cha i r,  we unders tood  tha t  we  

wou ld  run  un t i l  about  e igh t  o ’c lock .   I t  i s  now ten  to  e igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLD WADGE SC :   Regre t tab ly,  we a lso  have o ther  

commi tments .   I s  i t  poss ib le  –  because we wou ld  l i ke  to  

make those ar rangements .   I  am under  p ressure  w i th  

papers  tha t  have to  be  f i led  e lsewhere  and so  fo r th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   I s  i t  poss ib le  tha t  we p roceed unt i l  20 

8 .30?  

CHAIRPERSON :    The on ly  d i f f i cu l t y  i s  we need to  f in ish  by  

tomorrow wi th  Mr  Gama’s  ev idence.   I f  the  pos i t ion  is  tha t  

we shou ld  be  ab le  to  f in ish  tomorrow then maybe  there  

m ight  be  no  prob lem but  I  th ink  one shou ld  f i r s t  have an 



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 308 of 343 
 

assessment .   I  th ink  Mr  Myburgh  probab ly  w i l l  no t  f in ish  

today or  i t  depends –  what  can  you say,  Mr  Myburgh,  

because when we have an idea when you might  f in ish ,  

whethe r  i t  i s  tomorrow o r  a f te r  another  hour  o r  wha tever?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  some t ime,  

Cha i rperson.   The on ly  comment  t ha t  I  w ish  to  make is  –  I  

mean,  I  th ink  tha t  we must  obv ious ly  f in ish  tomorrow so  i f  

we are  on ly  go ing  to  go  un t i l  ha l f  past  e igh t  ton igh t  then I  

suppose we must  commi t  ourse l ves to  go ing  on  fo r  as  la te 

as  we have to  tomorrow n igh t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes because I  -  you know,  I  th ink  the  

bo t tom l ine  is  we must  f in ish  tomorrow so   -  because we 

jus t  do  no t  have the  t ime.   You know,  we are  c lose  to  the  

end o f  May.   So,  I  do  no t  know,  in  the  l igh t  o f  tha t  and  

maybe bear ing  in  m ind how much t ime you might  need fo r  

re -examinat ion ,  i f  any,  a f te r  Mr  Myburgh,  what  i s  your  

assessment?  

ADV OLD WADGE SC :   Mr  Cha i r,  there  i s  cer ta in l y  go ing  to  

be  a  need fo r  re -examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   There  is ,  o f  course ,  a  d i scuss ion  

tha t  has ensued between Mr  Myburgh and myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   And in  re la t ion  to  tha t ,  i t  was  

suggested tha t  we cons ider  whether  we do not  f i l e  a  fu r ther  
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a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  to  combine cer ta in  th ings.  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   By  Mr  Gama tha t  dea ls  w i th  those  

issues.   I t  i s  no t  a  mat te r  tha t  we have had a  su f f i c ien t  

t ime to  cons ide r,  i t  was in  fac t  suggested th is  a f te rnoon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLD WADGE SC :   Bu t  to  come back to  the  conc lus ion  

o f  h is  tes t imony in  ch ie f ,  i f  I  may te rm i t  such,  we are  a lso  

ava i lab le  to  s ta r t  ear l ie r  tomorrow.   We on ly  s ta r ted  a f te r  

f i ve  today but  we  can do much ea r l ie r  tomor row,  i f  tha t  i s  10 

needed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i s  tha t  so?  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When you say much ear l ie r,  wha t  do  you 

have in  m ind?  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   I  have o ther  commi tmen ts  f rom 

about  s ix  o ’c lock  tomorrow morn ing  bu t  cer ta in l y  by  m idday 

I  wou ld  have dea l t  w i th  those mat te rs  and we can s tar t  by  

about  12  o ’c lock  I  wou ld  imag ine ,  sub jec t  to  my c l ien t ’s  

ava i lab i l i t y.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  o f  course ,  tomorrow I  have 

got  a  day sess ion ,  Inspecto r  Genera l  i s  g iv ing  ev idence 

tomorrow.   That  i s  meant ,  I  th ink  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y,  to  be  

the  who le  day bu t  he  m ight  f in ish  be fore  fou r  o ’c lock ,  so  –  

a t  th is  s tage your  sense o f  how much t ime your  re -
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examinat ion  m igh t  need wou ld  be  what?  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   A t  leas t  an  hour  an  ha l f ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  leas t  an  hour  and an ha l f .   Okay,  Mr  

Myburgh,  can we go a t  leas t  up  to  n ine  today?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t ,  o f  cou rse ,  i f  we s top  a t  n ine  

because f rom my s ide  we cou ld  have gone even up to  ten 

as  we l l ,  then tomorrow i t  wou ld  have to  be  –  the  

ar rangement  wou ld  have to  be  tha t  one,  you are  ab le  to  be 

here  ear l ie r  than four  o ’ c lock ,  no t  on  the  guarantee tha t  we  10 

w i l l  s ta r t  ear l ie r  bu t  on  the  unders tand ing  tha t  i f  we f in ish  

ear l ie r  w i th  the  day w i tness then we can s tar t  bu t  tha t  we 

wou ld  then go on r igh t  in to  the  n igh t ,  to  t ry  and  f in ish .   

Would  tha t  be  f ine?  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   As  you p lease,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh,  maybe we cou ld  go  

up to  n ine  today and then …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Push th rough tomorrow.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  and then tomorrow and I  th ink  what  

wou ld  –  when we  ad journ  th is  even ing  we cou ld  ta lk  about  20 

what  t ime everybody cou ld  be  here  tomorrow.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  tha t ,  DCJ,  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  

to  make an accura te  assessment  o f  tha t  because i f  we  

have to  come here  and k i ck  our  h i l l s ,  i t  i s  no t  the  most  

e f f i c ien t  use  o f  t ime.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And pe rhaps we cou ld  be  on s tandby  

and then your  reg is t ra r  m ight  te l l  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  no ,  tha t… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  once you t rave l  here ,  there  i s  

very  l i t t le  you can do.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   No,  no ,  I  th ink  tha t  cou ld  be  

done par t i cu la r ly  i f  a l l  par t ies  a re  no t  too  fa r  f rom here .   

So no,  tha t  cou ld  be  done.   I  th ink  by  luncht ime we wou ld  

have an idea.   Mr  Pre tor ius  w i l l  be  lead ing  Dr  D in twe,  we  10 

wou ld  have an idea and then maybe you cou ld  make 

contac t  w i th  Mr  P re tor ius .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  luncht ime,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And g ive  an  assessment ,  ja .   And then 

you cou ld  share  tha t  w i th  counse l  fo r  Mr  Gama.  

ADV OLD WADGE SC :   Mr  Cha i r,  m ight  I  then work  on  the  

assumpt ion  tha t  we are  no t  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  re -

examinat ion  tomorrow g iven the  submiss ions by  Mr  

Myburgh and tha t  tha t  w i l l  have to  be  he ld  over  to  some 

o ther  da te  a l te rna t ive l y  tha t  tha t  be  incorpora ted  in  a  20 

fu r ther  a f f idav i t  by  my c l ien t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Two mat te rs .   One,  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  t ry  

and f in i sh  tomorrow.   When I  say  f in ish ,  I  mean f in ish  a l l  

o ra l  ev idence inc lud ing  re -examinat ion  i f  there  i s  re -

examinat ion .   Tha t  i s  po in t  one.  
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 Po in t  two,  i f  I  unders tand you cor rec t l y,  what  you 

and Mr  Myburgh  have s ta r ted  ta lk ing  about  seems to  

co inc ide  w i th  an  idea tha t  I  have begun to  have in  regard  

to  o ther  mat te rs  where  there  are  cha l lenges in  te rms o f  

t ime in  te rms o f  re -examinat ion ,  i f  the  d iscuss ion  be tween  

the  two o f  you is  tha t  ins tead o f  hav ing  ora l  re -

examinat ion ,  an  a f f idav i t  cou ld  be  fu rn i shed wh ich  wou ld  

c la r i f y  whatever  mat te rs  need to  be  c la r i f ied  because the  

regu la t ion  says the  purpose o f  re -examinat ion  is  to  c la r i f y,  

then I  wou ld  have no prob lem wi th  tha t .   So i f  tomorrow we 10 

are  done but  there  is  no  t ime fo r  re -examinat ion  bu t  there  

is  an  agreement  tha t  such an a f f idav i t  can be fu rn ished to  

c la r i f y  whatever  you wou ld  have wanted to  c la r i f y  in  re-

examinat ion ,  tha t  wou ld  be  f ine  w i th  me.  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   The on ly  added d i f f i cu l t y  to  a l l  o f  

th is  i s  o f  cou rse  the  issue concern ing  Mr  Todd ’s  app l i ca t ion  

fo r  c ross-examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   And so  I  need to  cons ider  i t  in  tha t  

contex t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   So  there  i s  much to  be  cons ide red 

w i th in  a  very  shor t  space o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   And tha t  i s  why I  wou ld  l i ke  to  know 
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whethe r  we have acqu i red  tomorrow to  present  the  re -

examinat ion  or  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  my 

reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  the  issue re la t ing  to  Mr  Todd was a  very  

nar row issue.   That  i s  my reco l lec t ion  so  i f  i t  remains  a  b ig 

dea l ,  I  know tha t  we sa id  le t  me hear  Mr  Gama’s  ev idence  

and then we can see how much d i spute  i s  le f t  a f te r  tha t .   I  

am su re  tha t  i f  tha t  i s  a l l  tha t  i s  le f t  we cou ld  d i scuss and 

f ind  a  way.  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :   As  you p lease,  Mr  Cha i r,  thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   A l r igh t ,  so  le t  us  jus t  take  

a  ten  m inutes  ad jou rnment  now and then we w i l l  re tu rn .   

We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  car ry  on  

then w i th  the  100 locomot ives .   Can I  jus t  ask  you Mr  

Gama so you have exp la ined to  us  the  ro le  tha t  you p layed 

in  the  1064 t ransact ion .   Now what  ro le  d id  you  p lay  in  20 

re la t ion  to  the  100 locomot ives  jus t  b road ly  speak ing? 

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  such a  long t ime ago,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  i t  have been the  same o r  

d i f fe ren t  to  the  1064?  

MR GAMA:    I  th ink  th is  one was the  conf inement  o f  the  –  
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the  100 they re la te  to  the  coa l  l ine ,  as  you say broad ly  

speak ing ,  maybe too  broad.    I  remember  tha t  there  was a  

conf inement  tha t  we t r ied  unsuccessfu l l y  to  do  th rough  

Mi tsu i  and then  ja ,  i t  was rea l l y  a round tak ing  the  

presenta t ions to  the  Group Execu t ive  Commi t tee  and then  

be ing  on s tandby  i f  one is  requ i red  fo r  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t  – 

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Gama what  I  am go ing  to  do  is  I  

am go ing  to  ask  you to  tu rn  to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  a f f idav i t ,  th is  i s  

Exh ib i t  BB4a,  BB4a.   Cha i r  in  dea l ing  w i th  the  100 10 

locomot ives  the  key par t  o f  i t  i s  the  sequence o f  events  

tha t  Mr  Ca l la rd  se ts  ou t  f rom page FQC106 th rough to  13 .   

Now what  we have seen f rom your  a f f idav i t  i s  tha t  I  mean a  

lo t  o f  th is  i s  common cause between you and Mr  Ca l la rd ,  

bu t  pe rhaps I  can jus t  run  th rough th i s .   He says a t  

parag raph 26 tha t  I  p repared the  f i rs t  bus iness case in  

Apr i l  and a  rev ised bus iness case  in  Ju ly,  fu r ther  changes  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry,  what  i s  the  page,  

I  am a t  106.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 6 ,  okay.    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  dea l ing  w i th  the  100 locomot ives  

he  says he  prepares the  f i rs t  bus iness case a t  26 .1  he  

says in  September  o r  October  I  was requested by  Gama to  
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update  the  memorandum to  the  BADC for  an  add i t iona l  119 

e- type equ iva len t  e lec t r i c  locomot ives ,  memorandum dated 

15 October  2013 was s igned by  Gama and o the rs ,  a t  27  the 

sa id  memorandum recommended  conf inement  to  Matsu i  

and company A f r i ca  Ra i lway So lu t ions,  a  subs id ia ry  o f  

Japan Matsu i  &  Company L im i ted  on  the  bas is  o f :  

1 .  Compat ib i l i t y  w i th  the  ex is t ing  119 e- type locomot i ves  

used on the  coa l  expor t  l ine ,   

2 .  Ava i lab i l i t y  o f  fac i l i t i es  w i thout  hav ing  to  es tab l i sh  

new fac i l i t i es ,  10 

3 .  Sav ing  and des ign ,  tes t ing  and type approva l  and 

fas tes t  poss ib le  de l i very.  

Then he is  –  a t  paragraph 29,  he  says tha t  19  e- type 

locomot ives  i s  a  heavy hau l  locomot ive ,  spec i f i ca l l y  

in tended fo r  use  on the  coa l  expor t  l ine ,  he  goes on to  

exp la in  tha t .  

 He says a t  pa ragraph 30 tha t  the  memorandum 

spec i f i ca l l y  s ta ted  tha t  the  e-20 type ie  95  locomot ives ,  the  

one we spoke about ,  recent ly  awarded to  CSL was not  

su i tab le  as  i t  i s  a  genera l  f re igh t  locomot ive  o f  22  tons per  20 

ax le .   A t  31  and fu r ther  the  memorandum a lso  s ta ted  tha t  

the  CSR 90 e - type locomot ives  s t i l l  had to  be  tes ted  and 

on ly  thereaf te r  wou ld  i t  be  poss ib le  to  say to  what  ex ten t  i t  

cou ld  rep l i ca te  the  heavy hau l  capab i l i t ies  o f  the  19-e .  

 Fur thermore  an ex tens ion  o f  the  95  20-e  cont rac t  
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wou ld  no t  be  acceptab le  procurement  mechan ism as i t  

wou ld  en ta i l  mater ia l ,  des ign ,  amendment  tha t  cou ld  be  

cha l lenged th rough the  procurement  p rocedures manua l .  

 Then he goes on to  say a t  32 :  

“ I  was in fo rmed th rough an sms f rom Gama on 21 

October  tha t  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  Mr  Mole fe  

had w i thd rawn the  memorandum at  the  BADC 

meet ing  on  the  same day. ”  

And then a t  33 :  

“On 22 October  2013 I  sent  an  sms to  Gama 10 

request ing  d i rec t ion  on  the  way  fo rward .  Gama 

rep l ied  v ia  sms as  fo l lows:  ‘ I  be l ieve  i t  remains  

w i thdrawn,  we are  now t ry ing  to  see how we can get  

leased locomot ive  f rom Queens land DC jus t  sa id  to  

me i f  i  need anyth ing  i t  must  be  less  than a  b i l l i on  i f  

i t  i s  cap i ta l  and fo r  a  conf inement  i t  must  be  w i th in   

h is  au thor i t y. ”  

Then he says a t  34 :  

“ I  la te r  p repared  an updated vers ion  wh ich  Gama 

s igned on 25 November  2013.   On the  a f te rnoon o f  20 

Fr iday the  18 t h  o f  January  I  rece ived the  fo l low ing  

sms f rom Gama . . . ”  

And he se ts  tha t  ou t .    I f  you  go to  paragraph 38:  

“On Monday the  20 t h  o f  January  I  ma i led  a  PDF 

vers ion  o f  the  rev ised bus iness case to  Gama. ”  
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39 :  

“On the  morn ing  o f  Wednesday 22 January  I  

rece ived a  mai l  f rom A lech i  f rom Supp ly  Cha in  

Serv i ces  request ing  my ass i s tance  in  fo rmat t ing  by  

memorandum of  the  prev ious Monday.   When  I  

perused the  memorandum I  no t iced tha t  the  

memorandum had been changed  to g ive  e f fec t  to  

conf ine  an  award  to  CSR for  100 e lec t r i c  

locomot ives . ”  

And then a t  paragraph 40 he says :  10 

“a  compar ison o f  my or ig ina l  bus iness case o f  20  

January  w i th  tha t  rece ived f rom A lech i  revea led  tha t  

the  bus iness case had been c lear ly  amended i n te r  

a l ia  . . . ”  

You see a t  40 .2 :  

“The mot iva t ion  to  conf ine  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  Mr  Myburgh wou ld  you ar range fo r  

me to  ge t  –  I  th ink  there  are  two pages miss ing  he re .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Oh,  I  beg your  pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  don ’ t  have pages 9  and 10,  wh ich  20 

wou ld  be  –  ja  I  don ’ t  have pages 9  and 10 so  the  

parag raphs you are  read ing  I  don ’ t  have,  bu t  they can be  

inse r ted  la te r  on ,  I  w i l l  j us t  l i s ten  to  you,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    So he under takes  

a  compar ison between the  two bus iness cases,  he  
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comments  i n te r  a l ia  tha t  the  mot iva t ion  to  con f ine  to  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  had been removed and rep laced  w i th  a  

conf inement  to  CSR.   A t  paragraph 42 a t  page 10  he  says  

he  was taken aback by  these un i la te ra l  changes  in  the  

memorandum.   He says a t  43  as  the  pr ime author  o f  the 

bus iness case/memorandum I  was  not  consu l ted ,  and then  

a t  44  he  says he :  

“de l ibera ted  long  and hard  on  Wednesday even ing  

on the  imp l ica t ions o f  what  I  have lea rn t  and on  

Thursday a f te rnoon 23 January  I  emai led  Game and  10 

Giann i  exp ress ing  my concern  a t  the  un i la te ra l  

change to  the  bus iness case/memorandum I  

submi t ted  on  Monday in  respect  o f  the  19  e- type  

heavy hau l  locomot ives  to  an  unspec i f ied  genera l  

f re igh t  locomot ive  conf ined to  CSR. ”  

A t  parag raph 45 my mai l  –  th is  i s  a t  page 11:  

“My mai l  to  Gama and Giann i  opens w i th  “ th is  i s  a  

d i f f i cu l t  ma i l  to  wr i te .    In  he lp ing  to  fo rmat  a  recent  

vers ion  o f  the  180 locomot ive  bus iness case on  

Wednesday 22 n d  I  no t iced tha t  the  case was  20 

changed f rom tha t  wh ich  I  had submi t ted  on  

Monday.    Th is  mai l  i s  because o f  the  na ture  o f  the  

na ture  o f  those  changes and imp l ica t ions,  the  

imp l ica t ions a re  techn ica l  and in  the  ra t iona le  fo r  

the  acqu is i t ion  wh ich  was speedy de l i very  to  
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m i t iga te  MDS vo lumes as  r i sk . ”  

And a t  46 :  

“The  essence  o f  my comments  i n te r  a l ia  covered the  

fo l low ing issues. ”  

Then a t  48  he  says tha t :  

“Dur ing  the  prepara t ion  o f  my s ta tement  the  

Commiss ion  prov ided me wi th  th ree  per t inent  emai ls  

f rom which  i t  i s  ev ident  tha t  Gama seeming ly  Mole fe  

had acknowledged my concerns per  the  emai l  t ra i l  

be low.  10 

1 .  The f i rs t  emai l  was sent  f rom Gama to  S ingh la te  

on  23 January,  essent ia l l y  re f lec t ing  my  

concerns.    I t  reads “H i  Mr  S ingh,  I  am a f ra id  the  

submiss ion  o f  the  100 locomot ives  is  a  mess and  

w i l l  need to  be  w i thdrawn.   The 20 e- locomot ive  

is  a  22  ton  per  ax le  locomot ive  su i tab le  fo r  the  

GFB whi l e  the  19  e- locomot ive  i s  a  26  ton  per  

ax le  w i l l  be  su i t ab le  fo r  the  coa l  l ine .   The two  

locomot ive  types  are  no t  in te r -operab le .   Whi le  

CSR can make add i t iona l  locomot ives  in  Ch ina  in  20 

a  very  shor t  space o f  t ime to m i t iga te  aga ins t  

Ind ia ’s  vo lume loss  th is  w i l l  be  counter  to  our  

loca l i sa t ion  s t ra tegy and w i l l  have to  be  spe l t  

ou t .   The 85 locomot ives  to  be  assembled by  TE  

has not  ye t  commenced,  so  we cannot  ye t  make  
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any  argument  as  th is  wou ld  reduce  the  r i sk .  

2 .  The second mai l  was sent  to  Gama on the  

morn ing  o f  24  January  say ing  tha t  we wou ld  

d iscuss the  mat te r  th is  morn ing .  

3 .  The th i rd  emai l  a lso  on  the  morn ing  o f  F r iday 24  

was where  S ingh fo rwarded Gama’s  mai l  to  

Mole fe  fo r  in fo rmat ion . ”  

Then we get  to  the  BADC meet ing  on  the  24 t h  o f  January ;  

“ the  m inutes  o f  the  BADC meet ing  on  24 January  

record  the  a t tendance o f  Mo le fe  and S ingh and the  10 

par t ia l  a t tendance o f  Gama and G iann i .   The BADC 

d iscussed the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  100 c lass  19  e-

e lec t r i c  locomot ives ,    BADC pack conta in ing  the  

rev i sed submiss ion  was s igned  by  S ingh and  

Mole fe .   The minutes  do  not  re f lec t  tha t  the  BADC 

was in fo rmed o f  my concerns ra ised in  the  emai l  

cor respondence above. ”  

A t  51 :  

“The minutes  re f l ec t  tha t  the  BADC was mis led  by  

management  as  to  the  va l id i t y  o f  the  conf inement  20 

process by  

1 .  Creat ing  the  impress ion  tha t  the  26  ton  heavy  

hau l  CSR locomot ive  ex is ted  when in  fac t  th is  

was not  the  case.  

2 .  Us ing  Ch inese  manufac tur ing  fac i l i t i es  to  
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mot iva te  fo r  the  speedy de l i ve ry  wh ich  wou ld  

have negated loca l  content  requ i rements ,  see  

Gama’s  emai l  in  th is  regard .  

3 .  Purpor t ing  tha t  the  conf inement  was in  

compl iance w i th  the  procurement  p rocedure  

manua l  when no prev ious p roduct  ex i s ted . ”  

52 :  

“ I t  was accepted tha t  the  locomot ives  cou ld  o r  

shou ld  no t  be  conf ined to  Matsu i  then the  cor rec t  

p rocedure  wou ld  have been to  go  ou t  on  open  10 

tender. ”  

53 :  

“The 100 locomot ives  were  conf ined to  CSR. ”  

And then a t  54 :  

“On 4  February  2014 I  rece ived an sms f rom Gama 

in  response to  my emai l  o f  23  January  s ta t ing  I  

have jus t  seen your  emai l ,  I  wou ld  exp la in  to  you  

the  GC is  th ink ing ,  th is  was not  fo l lowed up  

e tce te ra . ”  

So tha t  i s  the  k ind  o f  b road arch i tec ture  and sequence o f  20 

events .    Now as I  ment ioned to  you Mr  Gama much  o f  th is  

i s  –  you don ’ t  take  issue w i th  and you prov ide  your  own 

expos i t ion  over  th is  space,  I  th ink  i t  i s  on  e igh t  pages and I  

am go ing  to  ask  you to  go  th rough tha t .  

 You w i l l  f ind  your  response to  what  I  have taken you  



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 322 of 343 
 

th rough a t  Bund le  7 ,  page 250,  page 1 ,  250.150,  th is  i s  

f rom your  th i rd  a f f idav i t .    You s tar t  o f f  a t  paragraph  42 ad 

paragraph 26 and tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  or ig ina l  bus iness  

case/memorandum.    You say  i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  the 

memorandum dated 15 October  was in  fac t  the  

memorandum tha t  was submi t ted  to  the  Transnet  BADC for  

the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  100 c lass  19-e  e lec t r i c  locomot ives ,  

the  acqu is i t ion  was to  se rve  the  coa l  l ine ,  do  you conf i rm 

tha t?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You go on to  say a t  sub-2 :  

“ I t  was my ro le  no t  tha t  o f  Ca l la rd  to  peruse/ rev iew 

the  mot iva t ion  and the  approva l  o f  the  bus iness  

case,  however  my ro le  was l im i ted  to  submi t t ing  the  

bus iness case to  the  GCE o f  the  Transnet  whose  

funct ion  i t  was to  submi t  the  bus iness case to  the  

BADC.   In  tu rn  i t  was the  BADC’s  funct ion  to  submi t  

the  bus iness case to  the  Board  fo r  f ina l  approva l . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you go on to  say then  tha t  the 

Board  was requ i red  to  submi t  the  bus iness case  to  the  

Min is te r  fo r  approva l .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes in  the  event  tha t  PFMA approva l  was 

requ i red  ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you say in  th is  regard  fo r  me to  

a t tend BADC meet ings  I  had to  be  inv i ted  by  the  GCEO to  

suppor t  h im when he presented the  bus iness case i f  he  

found i t  necessary,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We know tha t  you weren ’ t  a  member  

o f  the  BADC.  

MR GAMA:    Yes I  was not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then you go on to  say i n  response 

to  paragraph 32,  you say:  10 

“ I t  was s t range fo r  Ca l la rd  to  s imp ly  inv i te  h imse l f  

to  the  BADC meet ing .   Th i s  in  c i r cumstances where  

he  hadn ’ t  been requested to  a t tend  such meet ing . ”  

MR GAMA:    He had not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He had no t ,  I  beg your  pardon.   In  

many ins tances I  wou ld  inv i te  h im to  a t tend the  meet ing  so  

as  to  suppor t  me and me in  tu rn  suppor t ing  the  GCEO.    I s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   That  i s  cor rec t  yes .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then I  wan t  to  take  you i f  I  cou ld  to  20 

your  paragraph 49,  Ad para ’s  44  and 45 o f  Ca l la rd ,  and  

what  Ca l la rd  i s  dea l ing  w i th  there  is  the  change  in  the 

memorandum.    You say a t  49 .1  the  changes  to  the  

memorandum were  a f fec ted  by  S ingh who s igned the  

memorandum on 21 January  2014.   The memorandum was  
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then s igned by  Br ian  Mole fe  on  22 January  2014.   I t  shou ld  

be  noted tha t  my s ignature  was not  appended to  FC14.   I  

was not  a  par ty  to  what  i s  a l leged to  have been the  

un i la te ra l  amendment .    I t  was a t  a l l  t imes known to  Ca l la rd  

tha t  I  suppor ted  the  conf inement  to  Matsu i  and Company.  

Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now Mr  Gama before  I  go  fu r ther  

in to  your  a f f idav i t  cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  go  back to  

Bund le  BB4A and cou ld  I  ask  you to  go  to  th is  10 

memorandum,  change memorandum,  wh ich  you  f ind  a t  

page 244.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What ’s  the  page  aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    244 Cha i rperson,  tha t  i s  FQC244.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   I ’ ve  go t  i t  thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  s igned a t  

page 267,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  you ’ re  re fer r ing  a t  your  

parag raph 49.1 ,  s igned by  Mr  S ingh on the  21s t  o f  January  

and  then s igned by  Mr  Mole fe  on  the  22n d  o f  January,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR GAMA:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  s top  here  

and ask  you how on ea r th  does  th is  come abou t?   Mr  

Ca l la rd  works  on  the  memorandum of  the  bus iness case,  

you are  the  bus iness owner,  these locomot ives  are  fo r  the  
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use  presumably  o f  TFR,  how does f rom one day to  the  next  

th is  memorandum change so  fundamenta l l y,  o r  the  conf ine  

change so  fundamenta l l y,  f rom Matsu i  to  CSR? 

MR GAMA:    No,  thank you.   The –  or  f rom what  I  reca l l  I  

th ink  as  Ca l la rd  has ind i ca ted  to  you somet ime in  October  

o r  November  the  submiss ion  had been w i thd rawn f rom the  

BADC,  os tens ib l y  because we had a l ready conf ined to  

Matsu i  I  th ink  a t  leas t  two t imes,  and th is  wou ld  have been  

the  th i rd  conf inement .    So i t  was fe l t  by  the  BADC tha t  th is  

wou ld  no t  be  cor rec t ,  and tha t  I  had in  pers is t ing  w i th  th is  10 

Matsu i  and th is  was the  th i rd  submiss ion ,  so  i t  appeared 

tha t  the  BADC re jec ted  my proposa l  on  tha t  da te  and 

there fo re  i t  was . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  so  I  learn t  

f rom Mr  Mole fe  tha t  tha t  subm iss ion  wou ld  have been  

s t i l l born  because  o f  the  sent imen ts  tha t  were  exper ts  by  

the  BADC tha t  we ’d  a l ready done  i t  tw ice  and a  th i rd  one  

was not  appropr ia te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  –  you swa l l owed the  las t  word ,  was 

not  appropr ia te?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR GAMA:   Or they wou ld  no t  we lcome i t ,  yes .   So tha t ’s  

how we got  to  renew conf inement  to  CSR which  as  

ind ica ted  in  what  Mr  Myburgh sa id  I  had then – I  had a  

te lephone d iscuss ion  w i th  Ca l la rd ,  wh ich  I  th ink  he  does 
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no t  reca l l ,  he  had phoned me and I  th ink  maybe  a t  the  

same t ime he a lso  sent  me the  emai l ,  and so  we had had a  

d iscuss ion  where  he  ind ica ted  to  me tha t  look  the re  is  a  

new submiss ion  and tha t  new submiss ion  is  to  CSR and me 

and h im then ag reed tha t  we d id  no t  cur ren t ly  have any  

exper ience o f  CSR do ing  a  heavy hau l  locomot ive  wh ich  

was the  26  ton ,  the  ax le  locomot ive .    I t  was on tha t  bas is  

tha t  I  then sent  an  emai l  to  S ingh tha t  even ing  to  say look 

th is  i s  what  I  hear  tha t  has happened,  I  th ink  i t  wou ld  no t  

be  appropr ia te  fo r  us  to  t ry  and conf ine  th is  t ype o f  10 

locomot ive  because we had no exper ience o f  i t ,  a t  leas t  in  

our  count ry,  the  exper ience tha t  we had i s  tha t  one o f  

Matsu i .  

 I  was s t i l l  a t  tha t  t ime unaware  tha t  the  BADC had 

re jec ted  comple te ly  any suggest ion  tha t  Matsu i  shou ld  

have the  –  to  have th is  conf inement  o r  th i s  p rocurement  

conf ined to  i t ,  so  I  learn t  i t  a f te r  tha t  submiss ion  f rom – so  

I  th ink  then i t  was a t  tha t  t ime tha t  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  S ingh 

had then submi t ted  the  CSR memo to  the  BADC because i f  

you look a t  the  t ime per iod  i t  wou ld  have been submi t ted  a  20 

day be fore  the  ac tua l  meet ing ,  because Mr  Mole fe  had 

s igned i t  a  day be fore  the  meet ing ,  so  tha t  i s  how i t  came 

about ,  tha t  there  was tha t  new CSR memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  me  take you back  to  your  

a f f idav i t ,  we have got  to  parag raph 49.1  where  you  sa id  a t  
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the  end i t  was  a t  a l l  t imes known to  Ca l la rd  tha t  I  

suppor ted  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] .    I f  I  can  take  

you over  the  page,  page 153,  tha t  i s  250.153,  a t  51 .2  I  

reca l l  hav ing  rece ived a  te lephone ca l l  f rom Cal la rd  dur ing  

the  even ing  o f  23  January  when he in fo rmed me tha t  the  

conf inement  to  Matsu i  had somehow been changed to  a  

conf inement  to  CSR.  

A t  51 .3  

“ I  ind ica ted  to  h im tha t  I  wou ld  l ia ise  w i th  S ingh to  

es tab l i sh  what  was go ing  on,  I  sent  the  emai l  10 

re fer red  to  dur ing  the  even ing  o f  the  23r d  o f  January  

a f te r  my conversa t ion  w i th  Ca l la rd ,  the  emai l  was  

premised on inpu t  p rov ided by  h im.   At  tha t  t ime I  

had not  seen the  emai l  wh ich  Ca l la rd  had sent  to  

me. ”     

You say a t  sub-4  I  agree w i th  Ca l la rd  concern ing  the  

mat te rs  ra ised by  h im,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then over  the  page 250 .154 a t  

53 .1 :  20 

“ I  d id  no t  suppor t  the  conf inement  to  CSR a t  we l l  

known to  Mole fe  and S ingh.   The memorandum to  

the  BADC was no t  s igned by  me. ”  

That  we have seen,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  wan t  to  ge t  to  the  minutes ,  

and perhaps wha t  I  cou ld  ask  you  to  do  is  to  tu rn  up  and 

work  w i th  them togethe r,  BB4a,  and go to  page 228 there ,  

you w i l l  f ind  the  m inutes  o f  the  BADC meet ing  on  the  24 t h  

o f  January,  and then I  w i l l  take  you th rough your  

commentary  on  them,  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page on 4a?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 228 Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.     

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  we see on tha t  page i s  these 10 

are  the  m inutes  o f  the  BADC meet ing  o f  24  January,  

p resent  Mr  Charne,  he  was the  Cha i rperson,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then in  a t tendance  Messrs  

Mole fe  and S ingh and then we  say –  you see  par t ia l  

a t tendance by  yourse l f ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes. ,  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  we then  go to  your  a f f idav i t  a t  

page 215.154,  you say a t  parag raph 54.1 :  

“ I  have read the  m inutes  pa r t i cu la r ly  a t  paragraph 20 

5 .22  o f  the  meet ing  o f  24  January  o f  the  BADC. ”  

You say a t  54 .2 :  

“ I t  i s  c lear  to  me tha t  no  one  f rom TFR wou ld  have 

presented anyth ing  o f  the  k ind  re f lec ted  in  the  m inutes .   As  

and by  way o f  example  “management  in fo rmed the  
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commi t tee  tha t  i t  was dec ided tha t  a  26  ton  heavy hau l  l ine  

by  GE wou ld  pe r fo rm bet te r  than a  C lass  19-e  Matsu i .   

a fo resaid capt ion  is  nonsensica l  in  that  not  on ly  is  the  

heavy haul  l ine  not  locomot ive  but  a lso that  Genera l  

E lect r i c  GE only manufactures  d iesel  locomot ives and 

therefore the speci f icat ions cannot  be compared wi th  those 

of  e lect r i c  locomot ives manufactured for  instance by Mi tsu i .  

Then you quote again at  54.3.  

“Management  mot ivated for  the conf inement  

in  favour  of  GE.  This was mot ivated by a  10 

submission that  was previously wi thdrawn 

due to reputat ional  i ssues that  had 

emanated f rom an o ld newspaper ar t ic le .  

Management  requested for  a  cont ract  

extension for  the Class 43E d iesel  

locomot ives by CSR.   From the oh and 

foregoing i t  is  c lear  that  confusion re igned 

between the procurement  of  d iesel  

locomot ives by  GE (43D) and the  

procurement  of  e lect r i c  locomot ives e i ther  20 

f rom CSR and or  Mi tsu i .   Consequent ly  no  

a l l iance ought  to  be p laced on the  aforesaid  

submissions as they are c lear ly  wrong and 

not  representat ive  of  what  had been 

d iscussed.   However what  is  s ign i f icant  was 
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the fact  that  whi ls t  I  supported the  

conf inement  to  Mi tsu i  the BADAC had 

re jected my said proposal  on the basis as I  

understand i t  that  such conf inement  would 

have been the th i rd  wi th  Mi tsu i .   As i t  so 

happened Br ian Molefe la ter  in fo rmed me 

that  my Mi tsu i  submission would have been 

st i l lborn. ”  

And then at  sub 4 .  

“S ingh and Molefe had removed my 10 

memorandum and prepared a new one which 

they s igned and presented to  the commit tee  

recommending CSR as the  prefer red  

suppl ie r. ”  

You want  to  comment  on that  fu r ther?  

MR GAMA:   Ja.   Wel l  that  is  what  i t  is  I  th ink when they 

real ised that  the Mi tsu i  submission  would not  be supported  

by  the BADAC they then put  in  CSR.   I  th ink wi th  us as  

people in  the ra i lway we had not  exper ienced anyth ing of  

heavy haul  for  –  f rom CSR so we would not  have made a  20 

recommendat ion that  CSR should do i t .   I t  turned out  much 

la ter  that  CSR did make such types of  locomot ives but  in  

China and not  –  we had not  had s ight  such a type of  

locomot ive ourselves.   So the conf inement  route would not  

have been one that  would support  –  we would have 
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supported for  CSR because we d id  not  know anyth ing about 

the i r  heavy haul  capabi l i t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  your  ev idence to the effect  that  pr ior  to  

th is  changed memorandum for  the one that  was 

recommending CSR – conf inement  to  CSR pr io r  to  that  

memorandum being presented to  the commit tee you were 

not  aware that  there was a change now the conf inement  was 

for  CSR? 

MR GAMA:   The – the only b idder  fo r  00:03:39 was the  

d iscussion that  I  had had wi th  Cal lard.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Cal la rd yes.  

MR GAMA:   Which was the evening  before.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   I  had then sent  the emai l  to  say look I  am to ld 

that  th is  is  what  i s  happening but  that  you guys are not  you 

know going wi th  Mi tsu i  you going wi th  someone e lse and I  

th ink you might  not  be able to  f ind what  we are looking fo r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was an emai l  to  Mr S ingh? 

MR GAMA:   That  is  cor rect  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Which he never  responded or  d id  he  20 

respond? 

MR GAMA:   The response accord ing to  the records he 

responded the fo l lowing morning  which I  d id  not  see where 

he sa id we wi l l  d iscuss i t  in  the morning.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  was never  00:04:32.  
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MR GAMA:   Ja,  no i t  was never  fo l lowed up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Would that  be qui te  unusual  that  

the commit tee would d iscuss a mat te r  such as that  that  

re la tes to  a par t icu la r  d iv is ion and the head of  that  d iv is ion  

is  not  aware of  the la test  posi t ion that  i s  be ing presented to  

the commission.  

MR GAMA:   Yes,  no i t  is  –  i t  was unusual  because I  was 

00:05:09 on the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GAMA:   Ja.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then as I  understand i t  your  input  

was not  sought  on the rev ised business case.  

MR GAMA:   No i t  was not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Gama perhaps you can assis t  

wi th  th is .   Do I  understand – I  mean was there a meet ing of  

the BADAC before the 24 t h  o f  January where i t  decided 

against  the conf inement  to  Mi tsu i  or  was that  an in formal  

d iscussion that  were had wi th  Mr S ingh and Mr Molefe that  

then caused the  change in  the  business case and the 20 

memorandum and then the presentat ion of  the rev is ion on 

the 25 t h  o f  January or  do I  have the  sequence wrong? 

MR GAMA:   No they had been a meet ing but  I  had not  

received any feedback f rom that  par t icu lar  meet ing.   There  

had been a meet ing I  th ink in  November of  2013 where the 
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BADAC had presented th is  but  I  had not  been pr ivy  to  th is  

so  I  cont inued to  send updated what  do you ca l l  i t  –  Mi tsu i  

conf inements to  say I  now have an update and th is  is  what  

i t  now looks l i ke can you put  i t  in to  the pack?  But  I  had not  

received th is  feedback.   I  on ly  received the feedback af ter  

the 24 t h  o f  January that  look th is  th ing would have been 

st i l lborn these guys had long re jected any procurement  f rom 

Mi tsu i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you absence f rom that  meet ing of  the  

24 t h  o f  November you sa id you were  absent  in  that  meet ing.  10 

MR GAMA:   No I  had not  been at  the meet ing.   There was 

never  a need fo r  me to go to  a l l  the meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GAMA:   I f  I  was requi red at  the meet ing I  wou ld then 

be.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You would be asked.  

MR GAMA:   I  wou ld be asked ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Even i f  a  mat ter  re la t ing to  your  d iv is ion  

was going to  be d iscussed would you need to be inv i ted or?  

MR GAMA:   Yes I  would need to  be inv i ted.   I  mean the 20 

GCE can make up h is  mind whether  or  not  .  

CHAIRPERSON:   He wants you to  come a long.  

MR GAMA:   He wants me to suppor t  h im there or  not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR GAMA:   I f  he fe l t  that  he could handle i t  he would 
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handle i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay a l r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  we car ry on wi th  your  aff idavi t  

a t  250.155 you say at  the t ime of  sending the sms I  had 

a l ready deal t  wi th  the mat ter  as I  had spoken to Cal la rd  

te lephonica l l y  dur ing the evening of  23 January 2014.    

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then you take issue wi th  what  Mr 

Cal la rd says at  54.1 and that  is  . .  

MR GAMA:   On h is  54.1? 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.   Where he sa id  that  i t  is  incorrect  

when you sa id I  had just  received your  emai l  he sa id that  

cannot  be cor rect  because you had – you had fo l lowed up 

on i t .   And you take issue wi th  that .  

MR GAMA:   That  is  cor rect  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then a t  paragraph 57 of  your  

aff idavi t  you say I  note the professional  op in ion expressed I  

do not  d i f fer  f rom i t  and have no cause not  to  suppor t  i t .  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  i s  where  he is  ta lk ing about  20 

the concerns that  he had.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  and then could I  take  you to  

other  par ts  of  your  aff idavi t  that  are  of  some s ign i f icance fo r  

present  purposes.   Could you p lease go to  page 250.145.   



11 MAY 2021 – DAY 392 
 

Page 335 of 343 
 

Sor ry my reference is  wrong.   I  beg your  pardon.   168.   You 

deal ing then genera l ly  a t  paragraph 77 at  the foo t  o f  the 

page wi th  the acquis i t ion of  the 120 E locomot ive you say 

TFR had set  out  to  procure 100 locomot ives f rom the coal  

l ine f rom Mi tsu i  in  l ine wi th  the 19E acquis i t ion.   The 

BADAC determined that  we had ut i l ised conf inement  as a 

procurement  s t rategy wi th  Mi tsu i  on two previous occasions 

and that  th is  d id  not  permi t  a  th i rd  acquis i t ion f rom Mi tsu i .   

The GCEO and GCFO subsequent ly  requested a  

conf inement  to  CSR and the BADAC agreed to the request .   10 

A decis ion was taken whi ls t  I  was protest ing the  

appropr ia teness of  the request  having regard to  the fact  

that  CSR had no establ ished h is tory wi th  the  prov is ion of  

s imi lar  locomot ives in  South  Af r i ca.   Subsequent  to  the 

approval  o f  the aforesaid request  by the  BADAC which  

mot ivated i ts  decis ion to  the board Transnet ’s  technica l  

design team engaged wi th  CSR to  create prototypes where  

af ter  the locomot ives were del i vered and employed on the 

coal  l ine.   They were named 21E Ser ies.   You want  to  

comment  and expand on that?  20 

MR GAMA:   Yes I  th ink I  am – af ter  the – af ter  the  – that  

meet ing of  the 24 t h  we were then in formed that  we – we 

should engage wi th  CSR which  we d id and they then 

created the prototypes.   Those 100 locomot ives were  

manufactured and in  fact  wi th  the  benef i t  o f  h indsight  and 
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somet imes ignorance can be in te rest ing because the  people  

that  s igned the CSR memo were  saying look they d id not  

know anyth ing about  locomot ives and th is  CSR locomot ives  

they are bet te r  than the Mi tsu i  locomot ives.   And I  th ink  

they have – they have fared wel l .   The Mi tsu i  locomot ives 

gave us a lo t  o f  post  commission ing teeth ing prob lems in  

the coal  l ine.   There were lo ts  of  issues around the i r  

adherence and a l l  o f  those k inds o f  issues which cost  a  lo t  

o f  money in  the sense that  they had to be taken out  for  

f requent  repai rs  and when the CSR locomot ives came in  10 

they d id assis t  in  terms of  de l i very record vo lumes on the 

coal  l ine and in  fact  the customers were very happy 

because fo r  the f i rs t  t ime af te r  we took del ivery  of  th is  

Transnet  reached about  77 mi l l ion  tons of  coal  in  one year  

and i t  is  someth ing that  we had never  thought  wou ld ever  

happen.   And that  was as a resul t  o f  these CSR locomot ives  

that  came th rough – these new ones the 21 E Ser ies.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  want  to  take you to  par ts  of  Mr 

S ingh’s aff idavi t  i f  I  may and th is  you f ind  and someone wi l l  

he lp you wi th  th is  Transnet  Bundle 5(c)  Exhib i t  BB23.    20 

MR GAMA:   Ja.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Could I  ask you to  tu rn to  page 1458.    

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  is  1558? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1458 Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1458.  
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MR GAMA:   Oh i t  is  in  the second bundle.   This one goes to  

– oh ja  14? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   1458.  

MR GAMA:   The b lack numbers? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes on the le f t  hand s ide.    

MR GAMA:   Th is one goes to  1425.   1458.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  wanted to  ask  you to  have a  

look at  paragraph 119 he is  comment ing on a paragraph in  10 

the Fundudzi  Report .   Perhaps i t  i s  not  – he says I  deny the  

contents of  th is  paragraph in  that  –  insofar  as  i t  re la tes to  

the manner in  which the conf inement  was prepared for  

these reasons.  

 He says Mr Gama was the Chief  Execut ive of  TRF.  

MR GAMA:   TFR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  Was for  a l l  in tents and purposes the 

end user  of  the locomot ives  as he was u l t imate ly  

accountable fo r  TFR as a d iv is ion o f  Transnet .  

 Sub 2 he was present  at  the meet ing at  which the  20 

conf inement  was present  – I  presume – presented and 

approved by the  BADAC.  Do you want  to  say anyth ing 

about  that?  

MR GAMA:   Ja I  was par t ia l ly  p resent .   I  cannot  recal l  you 

wi l l  see that  that  meet ing deal t  wi th  a number of  issues.   I t  
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was not  on ly the 100 i t  a lso deal t  wi th  the one of  64.   So I  

was par t ia l l y  present  but  I  do not  have a recol lect ion  of  my 

presence when the 100 was d iscussed.   But  I  would a lso 

say that  even i f  I  was present  in  those k inds of  meet ings 

that  i s  where you go to  these meet ings and you speak when 

you are spoken to .  (Speaking in  the  vernacular) .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you wi l l  have to  say that  in  Engl ish  

for  the benef i t  o f  those who do not  understand Is i -Zu lu.  

MR GAMA:   I  am saying Mr  Myburgh that  the –  in  these 

k inds of  meet ings where you are inv i ted you are – you are  10 

par t ia l  a t tendee and i t  says – you speak when you are  

spoken to.   You are there to  provide advise i f  i t  is  requi red.   

You are not  there  to  express any new v iews or  anyth ing that  

you might  want  to  do because you know the man wai t ing 

outs ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are not  outs ide par t ic ipant .  

MR GAMA:   You are not  a  par t i c ipant  a t  a l l  the par t i cu lar  

meet ing.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gama perhaps just  before n ine 

o ’c lock I  found the reference that  I  missed just  now.   Could 20 

I  ask you to go back to  your  aff idavi t  o r  back to  your  exhib i t  

28 and to another  of  your  aff idavi t  –  your  second a ff idavi t .   

Let  me ask you to  go to  page 144 so th is  i s  in  the beginning 

of  Exhib i t  BB28.    

MR GAMA:   BB? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   BB28 so i t  i s  your  exhib i t  and to  page 

144.   Bundle … 

MR GAMA:   250.144? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   144 no not  250.144 that  is  what  – I  

had confused mysel f  I  am sor ry.   A t  the beginning 144.   Just  

a t  paragraph 30 at  144 you a lso deal  wi th  100 locomot ives 

and what  we f ind that  30.1 are th ings we have a l ready deal t  

wi th .   I  just  want  to  take you over  the page 145 at  

paragraph 30.2.1  the wr i t ten  recommendat ion to  procure 

100 locomot ives  f rom CSR was s igned by the CFO, the 10 

GCEO at  the t ime etcetera in  c i rcumstances where I  was of  

the v iew that  CSR did not  have the capab i l i ty  to 

manufacture heavy haul  locomot ives.   You conf i rm that?  

MR GAMA:   I  conf i rm that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then the next  sub paragraph 

30.2.2.   I  was in formed by the GCEO that  Sharma the Chai r  

o f  the Disposal  and Acquis i t ion Commit tee ADC had not  

permi t ted any fur ther  p rocurement  by way of  conf inement  

f rom Mi tsu i .   

MR GAMA:   That  is  cor rect .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  deny tha t  I  was responsib le for  

making a recommendat ion to  the ADC and that  I  fa i led in  my 

f iducia ry dut ies dur ing the acquis i t ion of  100 locomot ives 

f rom CSR as [? ]  you conf i rm that?  

MR GAMA:   I  conf i rm that .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Could you just  g ive us the context  o f  

th is  d iscussion that  you had wi th  Mr Molefe.  

MR GAMA:   I  th ink I  have a l ready sa id i t  but  I  can repeat  i t .   

The context  was that  we had a l ready conf ined twice to  

Mi tsu i  and that  the BADAC Chai r  and the BADAC have then 

sa id look there was not  go ing  to  be a  th i rd  opportuni ty  for  

us  to  do that  so they had then – and I  th ink that  i s  a t  the 

t ime when they actual l y  wi thdrawn that  submission that  had 

been made in  November.   So that  is  the context .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And d id Mr Molefe make speci f i c  10 

reference to Mr Sharma the Chai rperson? 

MR GAMA:   Ja when we had the d iscussion he sa id look the  

Chai rperson of  the BADAC but  normal ly  i t  is  not  rea l ly  – you 

do not  work l ike  that  i t  is  rea l l y  – i t  is  the BADAC in i ts  

to ta l i ty.   You cannot  ho ld one person i f  the others agreed i t  

is  the whole 00:22:16 we do not  have a system of  s ing l ing  

out  par t icu la r  people per  se but  ja  that  i s  what  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  you say on th is  occasion even 

though that  i s  not  what  i t  normal ly  done namely s ing l ing  

somebody out  on  th is  occasion Mr Molefe d id or  are you 20 

saying he… 

MR GAMA:   That  is  the in format ion that  I  got  and that  was 

the in format ion that  I  g leaned ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   And what  was your  understanding of  

what  he  was say ing wi th  specia l  re ference to whether  he  
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was saying tha t  was the v iew that  came f rom the 

Chai rperson Mr Sharma or  the commit tee as opposed to  

saying that  was the v iew of  the commit tee.  Did you have an 

understanding? 

MR GAMA:   My understanding was that  he – he had 

par t icu lar ly  been the one who was not  very happy about  i t  

but  the – the whole commit tee concur red wi th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Chai rperson i f  th is  is  a  convenient  

t ime? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,   no that  i s  f ine.   We wi l l  ad journ 

then.   I  th ink that  therefore the ar rangement  about  tomorrow 

is  as we have d iscussed and I  suggest  that  maybe Mr  

Myburgh you cou ld be in  touch w i th  Mr ( ta lk ing over  one 

another ) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  wi l l  do that  a t  lunch 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi th Mr Pretor ius over  the lunch break 

and then you can share the in format ion.   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .   Thank you to  everybody for  20 

your  cooperat ion to  enable us to  s i t  unt i l  th is  t ime.    

Thank you Mr Myburgh and your  team and the 

invest igat ion team.   

Thank you Mr Gama and your  legal  team.  Thank to  

the technic ians and staff .    
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Thank you very much to everybody.    

We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 12 MAY 2021 
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